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Selected Summary Financial Information

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 (in millions, except share and per share numbers)

INCOME STATEMENT 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
As Restated  As Restated  As Restated
Operating revenues 54784 $454.2 $419.1 §267.1 $90.6
Interest expense 12.5 11.6 11.3 9.9 8.0
Non-interest expenses 4433 426.8 3524 2412 69.3
income from operations, before tax and discontinued operations 126 158 554 16.0 133
Income tax expense 33 31 20,9 57 26
Income {loss} from discontinued operations, net of tax - - 0.2 0.6 (1.1}
Income before extraordinary (loss) income 193 12.7 347 10.9 9.6
Extraordinary {loss} income - - - (7.0)_ 18.5
Net income 19.3 12.7 34.7 39 28.1
Add: Net {loss) income attributable to nhoncontrolling interests - 0.1 0.1 0.3 (0.5
Net income attributable to INTL FCStone common stockholders 519.3 5128 534.8 $4.2 $27.6
Diluted earnings per share $0.97 5064 $1.83 50.23 $2.80
Average diluted shares outstanding 19,068,497 19,156,899 18,567,454 17,883,233 10,182,586
BALANCE SHEET
Total assets $2,8480 529530 $2,632.0 $2,019.8 $1,555.7
Total stockholders’ equity $335.4 $313.2 $292.6 $240.1 $238.8
Common shares outstanding at September 30 19,209,157 18,984,951 18,642,407 17,601,535 17,350,727
UNAUDITED ADJUSTED FINANCIAL DATA (Non-GAAP) - SEE NOTE BELOW
Adjusted operating revenues, marked-to-market $467.3 $461.0 $410.7 §273.1 $97.5
Adjusted income from continuing operations, before tax $11.5 $226 547.0 $22.0 $20.2
Adijusted net income attributable to INTL FCStone common stockholders 5124 $17.0 $29.6 $7.9 $32.0
Total adjusted stockhaolders’ equity $333.1 $322.8 $298.0 $250.7 52457
Adjusted net asset value per share outstanding at September 30 $17.61 $17.00 $15.98 $14.24 51416
Change in adjusted operating revenues from prior year 1% 12% 50% 182% 11%
Adjusted net income to adjusted operating revenues 3% 4% 7% 3% 33%
Increase in adjusted stockholders’ equity from prior year 5% 8% 19% 2% 218%
Return on average adjusted stockholders’ equity (a) 3.8% 5.5% 10.8% 6.0% 16.0%

Note: The unqudited data {non-GAAP) has beer adjusted for urirealied gains in commadities inventory, which fs stated at the lower of cost or market value urider GAAR and unrealized values of
forward commitments to purchase and sell commodities. For @ reconciliation of the unatidited adjusted financial data {non-GAAF) to audited data (GAAP), see “ftem 6. Selected Financial Data”
in the Company’s Anpual Report on Form 10-X for the year ended September 30, 2013, which is included as part of this Annual Report to Stockholders.

{a) Return on average adjusted stockholders’ equity for 2010 exdudes $7.0 million extraordinary Joss resulting from purchase price adjustments relgted to the FCStone tronsaction. Return on
average adjusted stockholders’ equity for 2009 excludes $18.5 million extraordinary gain related to the F(Stone transaction.



Overview of Business
and Strategy

Overview

INTL FCStone is an independent financial services

firm employing nearly 1,100 professicnals in eleven
countries. We focus on providing our commercial and
institutional customers with efficient access to the global
markets, enabling them to mitigate or gain from their market
exposures, efficiently access liquidity, buy or selt physical
commedities and make global payments.

We execute and clear futures, options on futures, swaps,
securities, and foreign exchange in most global financial
marketplaces, buy and sell physical commodities, and provide
awide variety of services, including risk and corporate finance
advisory services and global payments. We act as an execution
hroker and clearer, and in certain markets we may act as
a liquidity provider or offer customized risk-management
structures not available in the traded marketplace.

We are a customer-centric organization and tailer our
services to our customers' requirements. These services
range from high-touch risk management advisory services,
including detailed proprietary market data and analytics, to
low-touch electronic and direct market access, including a
full range of post-trade support services.

Strategy

We focus on niche products and/or customer segments that
are generally overlooked or under-served by the larger
playersin our industry, while offering a broad range of services
and capabilities in almost all markets and asset classes. This
strategy focuses on higher-margin activities, allowing us to
earn an appropriate return and attain a discernible franchise
status in these niche areas with an opportunity to leverage
these relationships into a broader product offering. We aimto
be recognized as a successful mid-size financial services firm,
providing a wide range of financial services {o a high quality,
predominantly mid-market commercial and institutional
customer base.

We use a centralized and disciplined process for capital
allocation, risk management and cost control, while
delegating the execution of strategic objectives and day-
to-day management to experienced individuals. This
requires high-guality managers, a clear communication of
performance cbjectives and strong financial and compliance
contrals, We believe this strategy will enable us to build a
scalable and significantly larger organization that embraces
an entrepreneurial approach to business, supported and
underpinned by strang central controls.
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Current Drivers of Our Strategy

The rapidly changing regulatory environment and customers’
desire to transact with well-capitalized counterparties has
made the financial sector more capital-intensive and has
increased costs. This has resulted in industry consolidation, as
smaller players are driven out of the market and larger banks
are forced to deal with increased regulatory and capital
requirements to the detriment of smaller customers. We
believe we are uniquely placed to take advantage of these
industry trends.

We have developed a broad product capability, and the
regulatory status and global footprint to allow us to maximize
the opportunity to consolidate our strength as a mid-sized
industry player. This, in turn, allows us to take advantage of
both the consolidation of the lower end of the market and the
re-positioning of banks,

We are a leading independent clearing FCM (Futures
Commission Merchant), one of the few non-bank Swap
Dealers {registered under the recent Dodd-Frank legislation)
and a registered broker-dealer in the U.S, We have regulatory
authorizations for virtually all financial services except
depasit-taking in the UK and Ireland, and have regulated
affiliates in Brazil, Argentina, Dubai, Australia and Singapore.

Each of our businesses is volatile and their financial
performance can change due to a variety of factors that
are both outside of management’s control and not readily
predictable. To address this volatility, we have diversified into
a number of uncarrelated products and businesses as well as
geographically.

Customers

We have mare than 20,000 accounts representing
approximately 11,000 separate customers, located in more
than 100 countries, including producers, processors and
end-users of nearly all widely traded physical commeodities;
commercial counterparties who are end-users of our
products and services; governmmental and non-governmental
organizations; and commercial banks, brokers, institutional
investors and major investment banks. All of these customers
seek to mitigate financial price-risk embedded in their
business processes, requiring efficient access to the capital
markets.

Over the last three years we have aggressively invested in
new growth markets in Asia, Europe, Australia, Latin America
and Canada, where we see opportunities to deliver our
services to mid-market customers that are not well-served
by lacal players. The opportunities for us vary from a need
by mid-sized commercial entities for more sophisticated
risk management as exposure to markets increases, to
emerging markets looking for more comprehensive access to
international futures and securities exchanges. Our customer-
centric approach tends to lead to long-term customer
relationships and annuity-like revenue for the Company.
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ADJUSTED STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
$338.1 million as of
September 30, 2013
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Chairman’s Letter To Stockholders

As noted in both my letter to stockholders and the CEQ’s {etter in last year's annual report, ever since
the financial crisis of 2007-2008, the financial industry has heen experiencing profound change on both

the regulatory and the commerciat fronts.

From a regulatory perspective, it has been

a time of almost continual turmoil. For
example, the so-called “simple and common-
sense reform”™ represented by the Volcker ruie
is now, in its final version, explicated by a tome
of almost one thousand pages. As a result, a
company such as ours, which has followed a
highly successful growth strategy, has found itself
facing, as a regular part of its business, regulatory
and compliance changes of a magnitude that
were inconceivable a few years ago. Thus in fiscal
year 2010 our Legal and Compliance headcount
was 16, by fiscal year 2013 headcount had grown
to 46 and compensationt and related expenses
had grown from approximately $1.5 million to
approximately $5.7 million over the same period.
The best that can be said about these regulations,
from a business point of view, is that the regulatory
constraints are now such that a "moat” has been
established around the companies in the financial
industry that will make it difficult for new entrants
to succeed, Indeed, | question whether in the
current environment we could have achieved the
growth we have experienced over the past decade.

In terms of revenues, fiscal 2013 was a
disappointment. Adjusted operating revenues
were approximately $467 million, compared to
approximately $461 million for fiscal 2012, with
the growth constrained as a result of a decline of
some $36 million in our agricultural commadities
business. This decline reflected a reduction in
hedging activities due to severe drought conditions
in the US. and lower volatility and commodity
prices, and, very likely, caution in dealing in
the financial markets after the bankruptcies
of MF Global and Peregrine. In addition to the
declining volumes, the Company faced another
year of nearly zero percent interest rates on cash
balances. However, we remain optimistic that with
the recovery in crop volumes, our client base will
increase its hedging activity in fiscal 2014.
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The decline in revenues in our largest business
segment was offset by year-on-year increases in
most of our other businesses, thereby allowing us
to achieve stability in our revenues. It should also
be noted that one of the few other business units
that experienced a revenue decline during the past
fiscal year was our physical base metals business,
which we exited during the course of the year.

Although our revenue results are not satisfactory,
management is conscious of the Company’s
high degree of dependency on the agricultural
commodities business, and continues to invest
in and expand our other businesses in order to
achieve contra-cyclicality.

Subsequent to our fiscal year end we announced
that, during the final review of our 2013 financial
results, we determined that errors which occurred
during the integration of INTL Hanley (now known
as INTL FCStone Markets) into our business
resulted in a revenue averstatement over the
prior three years amounting to approximately $9.5
million ($5.9 million after tax).

As a matter of perspective, during this same
period INTL FCStone had revenues well exceeding
a billion dollars. Nonetheless, we will review
our processes closely and take any required
actions. You can rest assured that we and the
management, who are among the Company's
largest stockholders, remain optimistic about the
future and confident in our ability to once again
grow rapidly as we have done over most of the
past decade, and to reward you, our stockholders,
for your continued support.

JOHN RADZIWILL
Non-Executive Chairman






Chief Executive’s Report

Fiscal year 2013 was in every way a challenging year for INTL FCStone and probably the most challenging
I have experienced since joining the Company. While we recorded net earnings of $19.3 million {GAAP),
or $11.5 million on an adjusted basis, our financial performance fell short of our expectations for a
second year in a row. We experienced a wide disparity in the performance of our various businesses,
with the payments and securities businesses exhibiting strong growth and record results, although more
than offset by weaker performance from our largest business -- the agricultural commodities business.

All of our businesses depend on customer

volume and this, in turn, is directly affected
by absolute price levels (at (east relative to recent
histary} that dictate when customers choose to
hedge, as well as by volatility, which generally
encourages hedging and widens our margins. In
most of our activities, we have had neither of these
factors working for us, with commodity prices hitting
multi-year lows and volatility
declining. These market
headwinds  have  been
exacerbated by historically
low interest rates, meaning
negligible interest revenue
on our customer segregated
funds for several years now.

Added to these factors were
the time, effort and material
cost incurred in exiting
our physical base metals
business. Strategically this
business no longer met our
criteria and we had to make a
tough decision to reallocate
this capital to higher-margin
activities. This had a negative
$10 million adjusted pre-tax
or $6 million after-tax impact on our 2013 results,
which will in future years be reported under the
heading of discontinued operations.

On the positive side, we were pleased to see record
results from our payments and securities businesses,
which are now established as key franchises in their
market space. In our core commodities business,
we had pockets of good performance in some
of our smaller verticals such as softs (principally
coffee, cocoa, sugar, cotton and palm oil), and
our LME metals husiness continued to ramp up.
However, this good news was offset by much lower
revenues from our core grains business, largely due
to the aftereffects of the 2011-2012 U.S. drought,
which reduced the volume of activity from futures
customers. This trend was exacerbated by lower
prices and lower volatility, which significantly
reduced related structured products volume.
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During the course of performing our year-end
procedures, we determined we had overstated our
earnings by an aggregate $9.5 million pre-tax or
$5.9 million after tax during the 2010, 2011 and 2012
fiscal years, which required us to restate our financial
statements for fiscal 2011 and 2012, These errors
related to the July 2010 acquisition and subsequent
integration of the Hanley swaps business, during a
period when the volume
of business ramped up
dramatically. We believe
the transparency that a

public company affords
is a long-term advantage
to our business and a key
differentiator compared
to many of our private
peer group companies,
where there is limited

transparency. This requires
us to hold ourselves to a
higher standard and we
witl be reviewing and, as
necessary, re-engineering
our control processes to
ensure that we have a
sufficiently robust control
environment to discharge

this obligation.

The financial services industry has been subject to
unrelentingand accelerating regulatory change both
in the U.S. and abroad. The practical implications
of the Dodd-Frank Act, as well as an extensive list
of new customer protection rules issued by the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC")
that are scheduled to take effect, in most cases, in
January 2014, has required us to implement complex
and far-reaching changes in the way we do business.
Indeed, these regulatory changes are having a
profound impact on the structure of the financial
markets and how they function. The long-term
impact on the industry is difficult to forecast. By way
of example, our newly regulated swap dealer (5D}
is now subject to more than 700 specific regulations
with which we have to ensure continuous and
demonstrable compliance. We registered INTL



FCstone Markets, LLC as a swap dealer in response
to Dodd-Frank, which has created competitive
advantages for us over our competitors, many of
whom have not responded as quickly as we have.

We believe that our netwark of regulated financial
services subsidiaries in the U.S, Canada, the United
Kingdom, Brazil, Argentina, Dubai, Singapore,
Australia and China places us at the forefront of mid-
size financial services firms.

Overview of Business Units

INTL FCStone has grown dramatically over the last
10 years to a global organization with nearly 1,100
professionals in more than 12 countries serving
20,000 accounts for more than 11,000 separate
organizations with a wide spectrum of products,
services and capabilities.

Our strategy was and remains to focus on niche
products and/or customer segments that are
generally overlooked or under-served by the larger
players in our industry, while offering a broad range
of services and capabilities in almost all markets and
asset classes. This strategy focuses on higher-margin
activities, allowing us to earn an appropriate return
and attain a discernible franchise status in these
niche areas with an opportunity to leverage these
relationships into a broader product offering.

We are becoming recognized as a successful mid-
size financial services firm, providing a wide range
of financial services to a high quality, predominantly
mid-market commercial and institutional customer
hase.

| believe it would be useful in this letter to provide
aur stockholders and customers with an updated
and more comprehensive description of our business
units, which will be embodied in our upcoming filings
and presentations.

Commaodities

Through our network of brokers at FCStone, LLC, we
provide a high-value, high-touch service to mainly
mid-market commercial customers looking to hedge
the risks embedded in their commercial business
operations. Our objective for these customers is to
minimize price risk and help them to enhance the
amount and certainty of their operating profits. We
offer a wide range of products from listed futures
and options, to vanilla look-a-like OTC and swap
instruments through INTL FCStone Markets that
offer greater flexibility, to structured products
designed for customized solutions. We also offer risk-

management consulting services to less sophisticated
commercial entities, quantifying and monitoring their
exposure to various risks, advising on how to control
and hedge those risks, and providing post-trade
reporting against specific objectives.

We deliver these services in avariety of ways depending
on customer needs and sophistication, ranging from
high-touch consulting services, to voice execution, to
lower-touch electronic execution of trades, Generally,
customers direct their own trading activity, and risk
management consultants do not have discretionary
authority to transact trades on behalf of customers.
Our value-added approach generally results in long-
term, high-quality relationships that provide us with
an angoing annuity.

Our customer base is geographically diverse and
active in almost every widely traded commodity. Our
largest sector concentration is in grains {corn, wheat
and soy), where we have significant market share. We
also earn meaningful revenues in the softs (coffee,
sugar, cotton, cocoa, palm oil, etc), energy and metals
sectors, the latter principally in the London Metal
Exchange ("LME"} markets,

The commodities business was acquired when we
merged with FCStone in 2009. FCStone was a leader
in the commodities risk-management business,
starting as a cooperative serving the US. Midwest
grain market. This capability has now expanded to
serve other commaodity verticals and geographic areas
around the world.

We believe that we are now recognized as having
a pre-eminent position with commercial grain
customers and a growing franchise in metals (on
the LME) and soft commodities. We also now have a
recognized franchise in the U.S,, Brazilian, Chinese and
Australian commedity markets. The potential market
for our services is vast, with almost every commercial
company having some form of commadity ar financial
risk that impacts their financial results.

In our physical commodities business, we commit
our capital and expertise to allow our producer and
consurmner customers to effectively manage their
exposure and work to enhance profitability through
customized programs designed to mitigate risk. These
programs use spot, forward and options instruments,
physical purchase and sales, location swaps, leases,
consignment accounts, contractual purchase and sale
agreements and the ahility to price in foreign currency.
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In our physical business, we act as principal and
generally seek to run a matched book and hedge
all underlying price risks. We aperate a commodity
financing and facilitation business that provides
working capital 1o commercial commaodity-related
companies against physical inventories, including
soft commodities, grain and feed ingredients, lumber,
meats, energy preducts and renewable fuels.

Our customers include a wide variety of commercial
entities globally, including banks, producers,
fabricators, refiners, recyclers, traders and
manufacturing entities, scrap merchants, wholesale
jewelry merchants, producers of ethanol and
biodiesel products, soft commodities and grain
and feed merchandising entities and some of our
commercial risk-management customers.

Payments and Foreign Exchange

INTL FCStone provides international payment
solutions to banks, commercial businesses, charities,
non-governmental  organizations (NGOs) and
government organizations. We do not deal with
individuals and do not deliver cash. We offer payment
services in more than 150 countries, more than any
organization in the world, with competitive and
transparent pricing. Through technology platforms
and a commitment to customer service, we are
able to provide simple, fast and secure execution,
ensuring electronic delivery of funds in any of these
countries in the shortest time possible.

We have built a global network of correspondent
banks, operate bank accounts in more than 120
countries and are able to receive and disburse
funds from these local accounts. We maintain
modest balances in certain of these countries to
efficiently satisfy customer demand. We are also
able to aggregate customer demand to obtain better
execution costs locally.

The payments business started organically 10 vears
ago as part of our foreign exchange activities, which
were focused on smaller, less liguid currencies in
the developing world. We recognized that we were
ahle to access foreign exchange rates that were
significantly more competitive than those offered
by the large international banks for payments to
these countries. Our ariginal customer focus was
on charities, NGOs and governmental aid agencies,
given their bread focus on difficult markets, but
over time we expanded the business to include
large multi-naticnal corporations. We betieve that
we are the dominant provider of payment services
to the charitable and NGO cammunity. More recent
development of our proprietary technology, largely
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completed in fiscal 2013, combined with becoming
a SWIFT (Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial
Telecommunication) member, has allowed us to
offer our services to large money center and global
banks looking for more competitive international
payments services. Our customers now include the
largest international banks in the world as well as a
large number of smatler regional and maney center
banks.

The vast majority of our payments are now “no
touch” and executed electronically from the order
initiation by the customer through SWIFT messaging
to the local bank to the execution of final payment
instructions, This has resulted in our transactional
costs being reduced substantially, allowing us to
compete for smaller payments that constitute a
much larger aggregated revenue opportunity for the
organization.

Thetotalvalue of international payments made every
year is extremely large, with the size and method of
transfer varying significantly. The key drivers of the
market segment that we serve are based on the level
of cross-border transactions in goods and services,
which continues to exhibit strong growth. While the
market is traditionally served by banks, there are
an increasing number of new entrants leveraging
technology to provide niche payment services. We
believe that we have developed a unique capability
that cannot easily be replicated, including the
use of proprietary technology that provides an
efficient and effective service to our customers, an
unparalleled network of banks around the world
that provide competitive exchange rates, dominant
market position in key markets, a global footprint
allowing us to position our marketing and trading
staff close to our key customers and markets, local
regulatory permissions in key markets, effective risk
management and robust compliance.

We believe that we have developed a proven
capability for the Company in a very large
marketplacethat, with the technology assets we have
developed, is scalable and could handle significantly
higher transaction volumes with minimal additional
fixed costs. We are now a recognized franchise in
the international payments arena and believe we
can leverage this into a much bigger customer base.

In our foreign exchange business we provide foreign
exchange services to financial institutions, multi-
national corporations and professional traders. We
do not deal with retail accounts. As a clearing FCM,
SD and market maker, we are able to provide our
customers with the full range of exchange-listed



and OTC products including 24-hour execution in
spot, forwards, EFP and options, as welt as NDFs in
bath liquid and exotic currencies. We also provide
a wide range of structured product solutions to our
commercial customers looking to find cost-effective
hedging.

Our objective is to deliver our customers efficient
24-hour execution in the global foreign exchange
markets. We have leveraged our experience in both
OTC and listed markets to provide our customers
with access to liguidity. We offer proprietary
technology with aggregated multiple liquidity
streams that allows direct peer-to-peer trading
combined with cleared prime brokerage. We also
act as market makers in less-liquid currencies for
our customers in less-liquid
exotic markets as well as in
structured products.

In line with our strategy to

differentiate our offering, we

have focused on three key
service niches:

= high-touch hedging and
execution services to
commercial customers
of the Company from
simple forwards and
options to structured
and customized
products;

*+ access to deep pools
of tiguidity for financial
institutions and
professional  traders
through a wide range of market makers
utilizing technology to provide low-latency
execution; and

« arbitrage activities between exchanges and
OTC wmarkets where we take advantage
of pricing anomalies with the objective of
eliminating any directional exposure to the
market.

The foreign exchange market is one of the largest
financial markets, but the current regulatory
changes could prove disruptive for the large
incumbent players including the large banks. As an
FCM, 5D and broker-deater in the US, we believe
that we are ideally placed in this rapidly changing
regulatory environment to provide all of our
customers with comprehensive foreign exchange
execution capability and potentially expand our
customer base and global footprint.

Securities

Through INTL FCStone Securities Inc. ("INTL FCStone
Securities™), a registered hroker-dealer in the US,
the Company provides a complete suite of execution
services in securities. In line with our corporate
strategy, we have focused on providing value-added
solutions that facilitate cross border trading, which
is more complex and involves foreign exchange
transactions as well as an understanding of local
market conventions, liquidity and settlement
protocols. Our customers include U.S-based
regional and national broker-dealers and institutions
investing or executing customer transactions in
international markets, and foreign institutions
seeking access to the US, securities markets. We are
also a regulated broker-dealer in Argentina, where
we are active in providing
institutional executions in
the local capital markets.

We are one of the leading
market makers in foreign
securities, including unlisted
ADRs and foreign ordinary
shares. The Company makes
markets in approximately
800 ADRs and foreign
ordinary shares traded on
the OTC market and will
on request, make prices
in more than 8000 other
ADRs and foreign ordinary
shares. We also provide a
wide range of execution
services across asset
classes, including fixed income, equities and ETFs
for domestic and internationally based financial
services organizations on a commission basis. We
also provide prime brokerage and “piggyback”
clearing for international customers. When acting
as a market maker, we provide liquidity for cur
customers, which requires us to manage and allocate
capital effectively, maintain reliable technology
and be connected to a wide range of liquidity
sources including exchanges, other broker-dealers
and market makers, electronic communications
networks (ECN) and other Lliquidity sources.

This business started 10 years ago as a specialist
market maker in unlisted ADRs and gained a
reputation as a leading franchise in this market niche
serving the largest financial organizations in the U.S.
Mare recently, we have been able to leverage this
franchise and these customer relationships into a
more broadly based high-touch agency execution



model for international institutions. The acquisition
of the Tradewire Securities (“Tradewire”) business
in Miami accelerated this transition, bringing us
relationships with the leading financial erganizations
in Latin America. The recent expansion of our clearing
services capability through the November 2013
acquisition of the First American Trading and Capital
Corp. business will further cement relationships with
these customers.

The global securities markets are large but have
seen declining margins due to cheaper and more
readily available technology providing direct market
access (DMA), which leads to disintermediation
of the traditional equity brokerage model We
believe that regulatory pressures and related costs
combined with customers’
desire to reduce trading
counterparties will lead to
continued consolidation in
the industry. Our strategy
in this environment is to
continue to act as a liquidity
provider and market maker
in less-liquid markets and to
provide key customer niches
with a high-touch, value-
added service to facilitate

execution across asset
classes.
Through INTL  FCStone

Securities, we also provide
a full range of corporate
finance advisory services for
our customers. We seek to
offer superior investment banking services to our
middle market clients, including capital market
solutions and a wide range of advisory services
across a broad spectrum of industries. We apply
experience and creativity to develop optimal capital
structures. We have an experienced team with a
long track record of executing corporate finance
transactions around the world and established
relationships with a wide range of capital providers.
Qur advisory services span mergers and acquisitions,
liability management, restructuring opinions and
valuations. We also have a growing franchise in
infrastructure project finance focused on emerging
markets. In Argentina, we are a leading participant
in the issuance of domestic collateralized debt
obligations and are active in other capital market
activities. This business started six years ago with the
acquisition of a boutique business in Buenos Aires.
This activity has since leveraged its core capital
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markets activity to became one of the largest
domestic asset management companies, with assets
under management reaching $481.0 million during
2013.

Our strategy is to leverage our core customer base
of mid-sized commercial businesses and further
build on our core competencies in commodities and
emerging markets. In Lline with our overall corporate
strategy, we have focused on under-served niche
markets where we believe we have a discernible
competitive advantage. By leveraging the Company's
endowments, we believe we can become a leading
mid-market investment bank.

The global investment banking and corporate
finance advisory business
has generally been
chatlenging for most market
participants, with reduced
deal-flow and  surplus
capacity. We believe that
there is a clear trend where
advisary business is moving
away from large banks
to smaller independent
firms, which are perceived
to be free of conflict and
can provide a high level of
cbjective advice, creativity
and exceptional expertise,
We expect this trend to
continue and are well
placed to take advantage
of it, especially in those
industries where, as a firm,
we have a clear and demonstrated industry expertise
and competency.

Clearing and Execution Services

We pravide competitive and efficient clearing and
execution of exchange-traded futures and options
for institutional and professional traders through
our subsidiary, FCStone, LLC. Through its platform,
customer orders are accepted and directed to
the appropriate exchange for execution. We then
facilitate the clearing of customers’ transactions.
Clearing involves the matching of customers’ trades
with the exchange, the collection and management
of margin deposits to support the transactions, and
the accounting and reporting of the transactions to
customers.

FCStone, LLC is a registered FCM and a clearing
member of all major US. commodity futures



exchanges, including the Chicagc Mercantile
Exchange and its divisions, the Chicago Board of
Trade, the New York Mercantile Exchange and
COMEX; ICE Futures U.S, formerly known as the
New York Board of Trade; and the Minneapolis
Grain Exchange ("MGEX"). FCStone, LLC is one of the
largest independent FCMs in the U.S, as measured by
required customer segregated assets, not affiliated
with @ major financial institution ar commodity
intermediary, end-user or producer. As of September
30, 2013, FCStone, LLC had approximately $1.7
billion in required customer segregated assets.

Revenues in our clearing activities are derived from
clearing fees, commissions and interest earned on
customer balances. The exact amount of interest
retained is negotiated with each customer. We also
charge a variety of fees for services and technology.
Key costs for this business are employment costs
and the costs of technology to provide the clearing
service to our customers.

The commodities business was acquired when
we merged with FCStone in 2009, At the time of
the acquisition, this business was re-structured
to eliminate high-risk custormers that accounted
for the majority of the transaction volume, In line
with our corporate strategy, we have focused on
niche customers where we believe we can earn an
appropriate risk-adjusted return, including floor
traders and “locals” as well as mid-sized trading
firms, CTAs and funds. We also look to leverage
our capabilities and capacity by offering facilities
management or outsourcing solutions to other FCMs
that may not have the necessary scate to self-clear.

The futures clearing business is a low margin,
low-touch business that is highly competitive
and characterized by surplus capacity, which has
driven down returns. The industry has suffered
from a number of well-publicized failures, which
has led to increased regulation and a resultant
increase in costs, as well as potentially more
capital being required to support customer activity.
This industry has generally been unprofitable
due to low interest rates, which are a significant
driver of clearing revenues. We have already seen
meaningful consolidation in the industry, which is
likely to continue until surplus capacity is removed,
and capital committed to the industry earns an
appropriate return. This is a scale business with high
fixed costs and marginally incremental variabte
costs, which tends to force pricing down to the
marginal cost point. Qur response to this has been
to maintain our margins and seek out customers

that value our higher service levels and the fact
that we are well-capitalized and one of the larger
independent FCMs.

Financial Results

Management believes that the best way to assess
our financial performance is on a fully marked-
to-market basis. Our Form 10-K, included in this
Annual Report, provides a detailed reconciliation of
these numbers to the audited numbers. We will he
reviewing our segment presentation in light of the
growth of certain of our businesses.

For the 2013 fiscal year net adjusted earnings were
$12.4 million (2012-$17.0 million, as restated). This
equated to an ROE of 4% -- significantly below our
stated long-term target of 15%.

Fiscal 2013 highlights:

+  Record adjusted operating revenues of $467.3
million,

»  Completed expansion and renewal of a three-
year syndicated committed loan facility for
$140.0 million.

»  Completed our first debt offering with a $45.5
million offering of Senior Notes due in July
2020.

»  Successfully registered INTL FCStone Markets,
LLC as a swap dealer.

«  Increased capacity of global payments business
with a successful migration to a new technology
platform.

= Successfully transferred the accounts and
integrated the operations of Tradewire
Securities, LLC.

+  Reached an agreement to transfer the accounts
of First American Capital and Trading Corp,, a
transaction which closed in the first quarter
of fiscal 2014, adding correspondent clearing
service capabilities to our Securities segment.

We experienced growth in adjusted operating
revenues during fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012.
Net operating revenues, which represent operating
revenues net of transaction-based clearing expenses,
introducing broker commissions and interest
expense, declined $8.8 million, primarily resulting
from an increase in transaction-based expenses in
the Securities and Clearing and Execution Services
(*CES") segments.

All of our segments, with the exception of the
Commodity and Risk Management Services ("C&RM")
segment, experienced operating revenue growth
over the prior year. The decrease in our core C&RM



operating revenues was primarily a result of declines
in both exchange-traded and OTC transactional
volumes in our soft commodities product line,
which was constrained by the lingering effects of
the consecutive 2011-2012 droughts in the United
States on the agricultural commodity markets. The
C&RM and CES segments continue to be constrained
by historically low interest rates. Interest income
earned on customer depaosits declined 14% to $5.5
million, even though average customer assets on
deposit, which generate interest income for us,
increased $66.7 million over the prior fiscal year to
$1.7 billion.

The declines in C&RM revenues have been partially
offset by the continued growth in operating revenues
generated by the LME metals team, acquired during
the first quarter of fiscal 2012. We will continue to
operate this component of our base metals business,
which assists our commercial customers in the
execution of hedging strategies in the financial base
metals markets.

Operating revenues in our Foreign Exchange segment
continued to increase, as the global payments
product line added additional commercial banks and
multi-national clients and successfully implemented
a new technology platform which enables us to
process increased volumes automatically, including
smaller notional payments, without requiring the
hiring of additional support personnel.

The Securities segment continued to show strong
growth following the acquisition of the accounts of
Tradewire in the first quarter of fiscal 2013, as well as
revenue growth in the Argentina and Latin America
debt trading businesses. Operating revenues in our
Other segment continued to increase, as revenues in
both commodity financing and physical commodity
origination business grew compared to fiscal 2012.

Adjusted net income declined in fiscal 2013
compared to the prior year, primarily as a result of
the decline in soft commodity product line revenues,
the execution of the exit plan for the physical base
metals business, as well as the increase in costs
associated with the implementation of the Dodd-
Frank Act legislation and other regulatory reform,
primarily in the farm of increased employee-related
costs. However, this was partially offset by the $9.2
million gain recognized during the first quarter
of fiscal 2013 on the sale of our shares in the LME
and the Board of Trade of Kansas City, Missouri, Inc.
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("KCBT"), following their acquisitions by the Hong
Kong Exchanges & Clearing Limited and the Chicago
Mercantile Exchange ("CME"), respectively.

On an adjusted, non-GAAP basis, the performance
of the physical base metals activities, including the
aforementioned contract termination costs, resulted
in an adjusted, non-GAAP pre-tax loss of $10.0
million in fiscal 2013.

It has been a high priority for management to
control costs and, where possible, realize synergies.
During 2013 costs remained largely unchanged at
$292 million despite increased costs, regulation,
and increased overheads related to the acquisition
of Tradewire, significant system enhancements and
organic growth initiatives. We focus on keeping a
variable cost model, and during 2013 our variable
costs constituted 54% of total costs, down slightly
from the prior year but still above our stated target
of 50%.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, we
successfully completed an offering of $45.5 millien
aggregate principal amount of our 8.5% Senior Notes
due in July 2020. This note offering, which was the
first public debt offering in our history, provided a
more diversified capital structure by adding medium
term debt instruments to the Company’s publicly
traded common shares and committed bank credit
facilities.

The Company concluded the year with adjusted
stockholders’ equity of $338 million and total assets
of $2.8 billion, compared to $323 million and $3.0
billion, respectively, the previous year, as restated.
We remain very liquid, with approximately 3%
of the Company's assets in cash; and deposits and
receivables from exchange-clearing arganizations,
counterparties and customers, and financial
instruments owned, at fair value.

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had
committed bank facilities of $290 million, of which
$61.0 million was outstanding.

A more-detailed description of each of our operating
segments is included under the Management
Discussion and Analysis section of the attached 10-K
filing.

Looking Forward
We are in the middle of a perfect storm, which has



resulted in aur returns being significantly below our
expectations and our stated target, although our
results may arguably be in line with, or even better
than, our peer group companies.

We have internally deliberated whether our
business, as currently configured, can achieve our
long-term cobjective of 15% ROE. Our recent results
and imponderable industry factors would almost
certainly indicate that we should consider reducing
our target. However, we are mindful that we run our
business for the long term, and that this is a long-
term target and as such should not be reduced on
the hasis of short-term headwinds and cyclical
circumstances. Accordingly, the guestion we are
Left with is whether the cuirent headwinds are more
permanent in nature and thus the “new normal” or a
short-term phenomenon.

It seems clear that the drought-related issues are
cyctical and will reverse soon (indeed, recent crop
estimates are proving this) and that the absolute
price levels of commaodities are part of a longer-term
market cycle. Volatility may be subdued for a longer
period than we have seen historically, largely due to
the abnormal central bank activity in the markets
both domestically and abroad. Even interest rates
will revert to a more normal level at some point.
Sa, in our view, all of these factors seem to be part
of an inevitable market cycle, although in this case
a tonger cycle than we may be used to, given the
unprecedented events of the last five years.

However, the regulatory pressures combined with
customers’ desire to transact with well-capitalized
counterparties, have made the financial sector more
capital-intensive and has increased costs, and this is
likely a long-term phenomenon. This has resulted in
industry consolidation, as smaller players are driven
out of the market and larger banks are forced 10 deal
with increased regulatory and capital requirements
to the detriment of smaller customers.

There is clear evidence that this consolidation
has started and is perhaps even accelerating
as scale efficiencies in both costs and capital
become key success drivers. We have developed a
global infrastructure that is unigue for a mid-sized
financial services firm. We have regulated operating
subsidiaries in all the key financial markets and are
capable of executing futures, options, securities,
swaps and foreign exchange, and are well placed to
take advantage of these industry trends.

While we believe that most of our current headwinds
will dissipate over time, achieving our long-term
financial objectives will require us to achieve greater
scale either through gains in market share or an
industry consclidation, both of which we feel well
positioned to do.

The executive management team would like to thank
all of our colleagues for their exceptional contributions
during this extraordinary year, our Board and advisors
for their guidance, our bankers for their financial
support and our stockholders for entrusting their
capital to us.

SEAN M. Q'CONNOR
Chief Executive Officer
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Our Locations

Headquarters

New York {US)

708 Third Avenue,

Suite 1500

New York, NY 10017, USA
Tel: +1 212 485 3500

Fax: +1 212 485 3505
www.intifcstone.com

S Offices International Offices

Kansas City (MO) Asuncidn (Paraguay) Shanghai (China)
+1 800 255 6381 +59521 624197 +86 2151081234

West Des Moines (I1A)
+1 800 422 3087

Beijing (China)

Singapore (Singapore)
+86 10 651 30855

+65 6309 1000

Chicago (L)
+1 800 504 5633

Orlando {FL)
+1 800 541 1977

Buenas Aires (Argentina}
+54 11 4390 7595

Sydney (Australia)
+61 2 809 42000

Campinas (Brazil)
+5519 21021300

Winnipeg {Canada)
+1 866 634 7392

Bloomingten (IL)
+1 800 747 7001

Cuiaba (Brazil)
+59 59 7367 0901

Bowling Green (OH)
+1 800 238 4146

Ciudad del Este (Paraguay)
+595 21 624 197

indianapolis (IN)
+1 866 825 7942

Dubai (United Arab Emirates)
+971 4 47 8500

Miami (FL)
+1 305 925 4900

Minneapolis {MN}
+1 800 447 7993

Dublin {Ireland)
+353 16349140

Goiania (Brazil)
+5562 34327912

Nashville (TN)
+1 6157242225

London (United Kingdom)
+44 20 3580 6000

New York (NY)
+1 212 766 0100

Maringa (Brazil)
+55 44 3033 6800

Omaha (NE)
+1 800 228 2316

Porto Alegre (Brazil)
+51 3017 9150

Spirit Lake (1A)
+1 800 854 6490

Recife (Brazil)
+55 81 3040 1500

St. Louis (MO}
+1 800 888 4254

Sao Paulo (Brazil)
+55 11 3509 5400
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance and has put in place a framework
that fosters good governance, is practical for a company of our size and satisfies our current listing and
regulatory requirements, The Company has instituted a Cade of Ethics that demands honest and ethical
conduct from all employees. Specific topics covered are conflicts of interest, fair dealing, compliance
with regulations and accurate financial reporting.

Executives

The roles of Chairman and CEO are split. The CEQ and CFO make all necessary representations to
satisfy regulatory and listing requirements, Executive compensation is determined by a Compensation
Committee composed exclusively of independent directors.

Board Of Directors

The Company has a Board of Diractors consisting of two executive, one non-independent, and six non-
executive directars, all six of whom are independent. The Chairman is a non-executive directar. The
Baard oversees the strategy, finances, operations and regulatory comptiance of the Company through
regular quarterly meetings and additional special meetings when required. The non-executive directors
regularly meet independently of the executive directors. The Nominating & Governance, Audit and
Compensation Committees are each composed of three independent directors. The Audit Committee
meets the SEC requirement that at least one of its members should be a financial expert.

Financial Reporting And Internal Controt

The Company strives to present clear, accurate and timely financial statements. Management has a
system of internal controls in place, regularly assesses the effectiveness of these controls and modifies
them as necessary. Risk management is an important aspect of this system of internal controls and
management has established a Risk Committee to establish and moniter compliance with risk policies.

Investor Relations

The Company seeks to provide accurate and timely information to stockholders and other stakeholders
to facilitate a better understanding of the Company and its activities. The Company seeks to distribute
such information as widely as possible through filings on Form 8-K, press releases and postings on its
website, www.intlfcstone.com.

Farward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the
Company’s control, including adverse changes in economic, political and market conditions, losses from
the Company's activities arising from customer or counterparty failures, changes in market conditions,
the possible loss of key personnel, the impact of increasing competition, the impact of changes in
government regulation, the possibility of Liabilities arising from violations of laws or regulations and the
impact of changes in technology on our businesses. Although the Company believes that its forward-
looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions regarding its businesses and future market
conditions, there can be no assurances that the Company's actual results will not differ materially
from any results expressed or implied by the Company’s forward-looking statements. The Company
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise. Readers are cautioned that any forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Commission File Number 000-23554

INTL FCSTONE INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE 59-2921318
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (LR.S. Employer Identificarion Ne.)
708 Third Avenue, Suite 1500
New York, NY 10017
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(212) 485-3500

(Registrants telephone number, including area code)

~ - SECURITIES REGISTERED UNDER SECTION 12(B) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT:.

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value NASDAQ Global Market
| 8.5% Senior Notes due 2020 NASDAQ Global Market
- SECURITIES REGISTERED UNDER SECTION 12(G) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT:
NONE
Indicate by check mark

¢ if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 403 of the Securiries Act.

RIRIZ

® if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.

* whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shoreer
period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requitements for the past 90 days.

* whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405
of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter} during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that che registrant was required to submit and post such files).

K & O0F

b0

» if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Trem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy
or information statements incorporated by reference in Part I of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K_

» whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated fler, or smaller reporting company.

Large accelerated filer E:I Accelerated filer E Non-accelerated filer D Smaller reporting company D

\_‘ whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). D

As of March 31, 2013, the aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-afhiliates of the registrant was
approximately $184.3 million.

As of January 13, 2014, there were 19,188,599 shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Certain portions of the definitive Proxy Statement for the Registrant's Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on February
27,2014 are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,



EXPLANATORY NOTE

Throughout this document, unless the context otherwise reguires, the terms “Company”, “we’, ‘us” and “our” refer to INTL FCStone Inc. and
its consolidated subsidiaries. INTL FCStone Inc., formerly krown as International Assets Holding Corporation, is a Delawaye corporation.

This Form 10-K includes the restatement of certain of the
Company’s previously issued consolidared financial statements and
financial information. It also amends previously filed management’s
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations and other disclosures for the periods presented in
this Form 10-K.

On January 9, 2014, we filed on Form 8-K, Irem 4.02(a) Non-
Reliance on Previously Essued Financial Statements or a Related
Audit Report or Completed Interim Review with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. As indicated in the Form 8-K and
in Note 2 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Stacements”
contained in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in
connection with the preparation of its consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the
Company identified errors in the reconciliation of the Company's
subsidiary INTL FCStone Markets, LLC’s accounting records to
its back office system which occurred in 2013, 2012, 2011, and
2010. Correcrions made by the Company related to these errors
in aggregate resulted in a reduction in net income of $5.9 million

Type of Financial Information

collectively for the years ended September 30, 212, 2011 and
2010. The correction of these errors had no impact on the net
cash flows related to operating activities, investing activities,
or financing activities in out previously reported consolidated
statemnents of cash Hows for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2012 and 2011.

As a resulr, the Audit Commitree of the Board of Directors,
along with senior management of the Company in consultation
with the Company’s independent registered public accouncants,
concluded thar the consolidated financial statements as of and for
the years ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011
included in the Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K for
the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012 and September 30,
2011, respecrively, and the unaudited consolidated financial
statements included in interim reports filed for such periods,
should no longer be relied upon.

In this Form 10-K, we therefore amend or restate the following
types of financial information as of and for the periods (collectively,

the “Restated Periods”) noted in the table below.

Date or Period

Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated income statements, comprehensive income,
stockhalders’ equity; and cash flows

Selected financial daca
Quarterly financial information (Unaudited)

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations

As of Seprember 30, 2012
Years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

Years ended and as of September 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010
Each quarter in the year ended September 30, 2012
As of and for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

We believe that presenting all of the amended and restated
information regarding the Restated Perieds in this Form 10-K
allows investors to review all pertinent dara in a single presentation.
We have not filed and do not intend to file amendments to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the years ended Seprember 30,
2012 and 2011 {collectively, the “Affected Periods™). Accordingly,
investors should rely only on the financial information and other
disclosures regarding the Restated Periods in this Form 10-K or
in future filings with the SEC {(as applicable), and not on any
previously issued or filed reports, carnings releases or similar
communications relating to these periods.

The combined impact of the adjustments and specified line items
in the Affected Periods resulting from the restatement is set forth
in Note 2 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
The following items of this Form 10-K are impacted as a result
of the restatement.

# Parc I1, Ttem 6, Selected Financial Data

 Part 11, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

® Part I1, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Cautionary Statement about Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this report, other than purely historical
information, including estimates, projections, statements relating
to our business plans, objectives and expected operating resules,
and the assumptions upon which those statements are based,
are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21F of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are based on
current expectations and assumptions that are subject to risks and

uncertainties which may cause actual results to differ materially
from the forward-looking statements. A detailed discussion of
these and other risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results and events to differ materially from such forward-looking
statements is included in the section entitled “Risk Factors” (refer
to Part I, Trem 1A). We undertake no obligation to update or
revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether asa
result of new information, future evenrs or otherwise,
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PART 1

ITEM 1 Business

Overview of Business and Strategy

We ate a financial services group employing nearly 1,100 people
in offices in eleven countties. We provide comprehensive risk
management advisory services to mid-sized commercial customers.
We also utilize our expertise and capital to provide foreign exchange
and treasury services, securities execution, trading services in
certain physical commodities and execution in both listed futures
and options-on-firtures contracts as well as structured over-the-
counter (“OTC”) products in 2 wide range of commaodities.

We are a customer-centric organization focused on acquiring
and building long-term relationships with our customers by
providing consistent, quality execution and value-added financial
solutions, with the goal of earning returns that aflow us to achieve
our financial objectives.

We provide these services to a diverse group of more than 20,000
accounts, representing approximately 11,000 consolidated
customers located in mote than 100 countries, including producers,
processors and end-users of nearly all widelp-traded physical
commodities whose margins are sensitive to commodity price
movements; to commercial counterparties who are end-users of
our products and services; to governmental and non-governmental
organizations; and to commercial banks, brokers, institutional
investors and major investment banks,

We engage in direct sales efforts to seek new customers, with a
strategy of extending our services to potential customers who
are similar in size and operations to our existing customer base,
as well as other kinds of customers that have risk management
needs that could be effectively met by our services. We plan to
expand our services into new business product lines and new
geographic regions, particularly in Asia, Europe, Australia, Latin
America and Canada. In executing this plan, we intend to both
target new geographic locations and expand the services offered
in current locations, where there is an unmet demand for our
services particularly in areas where commeodity price controls
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have been recently lifted. In addition, in select instances we
pursue small to medium sized acquisitions in which we target
customer-centric organizations to expand our product offerings
and/ar geographic presence.

In the last 24 months, we opened our first office in Paraguay, a
second office in China and four additional offices in Brazil o
address the rapidly growing demand for our services in those
countries. We also expanded our product offering, primarily in
out Commodiry & Risk Management segment, in our London
and Singapore offices by relocating experienced risk management
consultants to these offices to address a growing demand for our
services in Europe and Asia. Tn addition, we completed nine
acquisitions in the last 36 months. This allowed us to expand our
commodity product offerings and the scope of services provided
to our commetcial customer base and to expand the geographic
locations in which we provide the services.

Qur strategy is to utilize a centralized and disciplined process
for capital allocation, risk management and cost control, while
delegating the execution of strategic objectives and day-to-day
management to experienced individuals. This requires high quality
managets, a clear communication of performance objecrives
and strong financial and compliance controls. We believe this
strategy will enable us to build a scalable and significantly larger
organization that embraces an entrepreneurial approach to
business, supported and underpinned by strong central controls.

FEach of our businesses is volatile, and their financial performance
can change due to a variety of factors which are both ourside of
management’s contro! and not readily predictable. To address this
volatility, we attempt to diversify into a number of uncorrelated
businesses.



Available Information

PART 1
ITEM 1 Business

Our internet address is www.indfcstone.com. Our annual reports
on Form 10-K, quartetly reports on Form 10-QQ, current reports
on Form 8-K, statements of changes in beneficial ownership and
press releases are available in the Investor Relations section of

Capabilities

this website. Our website also includes information regarding
our corporate governance, including our Code of Ethics, which
governs our ditectors, officers and employees.

Clearing and Execution

We provide execution services on a wide variety of technology
platforms in 2 number of markets. We provide clearing and
execution of listed futures and options-on-futures contracts on
all major commodity exchanges worldwide, and are a member of
all major U.5. and European commaodity exchanges. We provide
global payments and treasury services in more than 130 countries
to a broad array of commercial customers, including financial
insticutions, multi-natonal corporations, and governmental and
charitable organizations.

Advisory Services

We provide value-added advisory services in a variety of financial
markets by working with commercial clients to systematically
identify and quantify exposures to commedity price risks. We
then develop strategic plans to effectively manage these risks with
a view to protecting margins and mitigating exposures through
our proprietary [ntegrated Risk Management Program (“TRMP*”}.

We provide commercial customers with a full range of investment
banking services from optimizing the customer’s capital structure
through che issuance of loans, debt or equity securities, and
advisory services including mergers, acquisitions and restructurings.

Through our asset management activities, we leverage our specialist
expertise in niche markets to provide institutional investors with
tailored investment products.

Trading Revenues

Physical Trading

We trade in a variety of physical commedities, primarily precious
metals, as well as select soft commodities including various
agricultural oils, animal fats and feed ingredients. We offer
customers efficient off-take or supply services, as well as logistics
management. Through these trading activities, we have the abilicy
to offer complex hedging structures as part of each physical
contract to provide customers with enhanced price risk mitigation,

OTC / Market-Making

We offer customized and complex solutions in the OTC markets
designed to help customers mitigate their specific marker risks,
We offer these solutions on a glabal basis across many markets,
including virtually all traded commodities, foreign currencies
and interest rates. We integrate this process from product design
through execution of the undetlying components of the structured
risk product.

We also provide market-making in a variety of financial products
including commodity options, unlisted American Depository
Receipts (“ADRs”), foreign common shates, and foreign currencies.

In our business, we may act as principal in the purchase and sale
of individual securities, currencies, commedities, or derivative
instruments with our customers, These transactions may be offset
simultaneously with another customer or counterparty, offset with
similarly but not identical positions on an exchange, made from

inventory, or aggregated with other purchases to provide liquidity
intra-day, for a number of days, or in some cases even longer
periods (during which fair value may fluctuate). In addition, in
our foreign exchange segment, we operate a proprietary foreign
exchange desk which arbitrages the futures and cash markets.

INTL FCSTONE INC. - form 10-K 3
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Operating Segments

We divide our activities into five functional areas: Commodity and Risk Management Services, Foreign Exchange, Securities, Clearing

and Execution Services, and Other,

Commodity and Risk Management Services
(“C&RM’F{

We serve our commercial customers by providing high value-
added service thar differentiates us from our competitors and
maximizes the opportunity to retain customers. The IRMP provides
customers with commedity risk management consulting services
designed to develap a customized long term hedging program to
help them mitigate their exposure to commodity price risk and
maximize the amount and certainty of their operating profits.
We assist customets in the execution of their hedging strategies
through our exchange-traded futures and options-on-futures
clearing and execution operations and through access to more
custemized alternatives provided by our OTC trading desk.
Generally, customers direct their own trading activity and risk
management consultants do not have discretionary authority to
transace trades on behalf of customers. When transacting OTC
contracts with a customer, we ordinarily mitigate our risk by
offsecting the customer’s transaction simuftaneousty with one
of our trading counterparties or with a similar but not identical
position on the exchange,

We also provide a full range of wading and hedging capabilities
to select producers, consumers, recyclers and investors in precious
and base metals, as well as certain other related commodities. For
base metals, following the exit of the physical trading business,
this will involve acting as a Category One ring dealing member of
the London Metals Exchange (“LME”) and providing execution,
clearing and advisory services in exchange-traded futures and
OTC products. In precious metals, in addition to offering OTC
products, we act as a principal, committing our own capital to
buy and sell precious metals on a spot and forward basis.

Within this segment, the risk management consultants organize
their marketing efforts into customer industry product lines, and
currently serve customers in the following areas:

¢ Commercial Grain — Customers in this product line include
grain clevator operators, traders, processors, manufacturers
and end-users.

 Energy — The energy customer product line targets companies
where energy represents a significant input cost in the production
of their product or service. Customers in this product line include
producers, refiners, wholesalers, transportation companies,
convenience store chains, automabile and truck fleet operators,
industrial companies, railroads, and municipalities.

* Renewable Fuels — The renewable fuels customer product
line targets producers of ethanol and biodiesel products.
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* Latin America/Brazil — The customers within this product
line are involved in all sectors of agribusiness, including livestock
production and feeding, flour milling and baking, cilseed
crushing and refining, coffee, grain merchandising, meat
processing, and sugar/ethanol production.

» China — The China custemer product line represents both
Chinese futures commission merchants (‘FCMs™) as well as
commercial companies seeking to hedge their commodity
risk exposures. The Chinese FCMs are similar to introducing
brokers, facilitating the transactions of their clients in the U.S.
commodities markets. The commercial accounts generally
represent significant processors of grain or other commodities.

* Dairy/Food Service — The dairy and food service product line
targets the dairy industry and users of agricultural commodities
in the food industry.

* Cotton/Textiles — The cotton product line targets both the
domestic and international markets with a focus on providing
trading, consulting and information services to the global fiber,
textile and apparel industry.

¢ Precions Metals — This product line targets mining producers
and scrap merchants, as well as wholesale jewelry manufactures
and other commercial customers globally.

¢ Base Metals — Through our LME operations we serve
institutional investors and financial services firms in the Americas,
Europe, and the Asia-Pacific region.

o Natural Gas — This product line focuses on consumers of
natutal gas and has relationships with some of the largest natural
gas consumers in North America, including municipalities and
large manufacturing firms, as well as major utilities.

* Introducing Brokers — The customers within this product
line include introducing brokers that maintain relationships
with customers and intermediate transactions between these
customers and FCStone, LLC, our wholly owned FCM. The
customers within this product line are primarily agricultural
producers.

We record all of our physical commodities revenues on a gross basis.
Operating revenues and losses from our commodities derivatives
activities are included in ‘trading gains, net’ in the consolidated
income statements. Inventory for the commodities business is
valued at the lower of cost or fair value, under the provisions of
the Inventory Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”). We generally mitigate the price risk associated with
commodities held in inventory through the use of derivatives.
We do not elect hedge accounting under accounting principles



generally accepted in the U.S. (“U.S. GAAP”) in accounting for
this price risk mitigation. In such situations, unrealized gains in
inventory are not recognized under U.S. GAAP, but unrealized
gains and losses in related derivative positions are recognized under
U.S. GAAP As a result, our reported earnings from commadicies
trading may be subject to significant volatility when calculated
under U.S. GAAP.

Foreign Exchange

We provide treasury, global payment, and foreign exchange
setvices to financial institutions, multi-national corporations,
government organizations and charitable organizations. We
also assist commercial customers with the execution of foreign
exchange hedging strategies. We transact in over 130 currencies
and specializes in smaller, more difficult emerging markets where
there is limited liquidity. In addition, we execute trades based
on the foreign currency flows inhetent in our existing business
activities. We primarily act as a principal in buying and selling
foreign currencies on a spot basis. We detive revenue from the
difference between the purchase and sale prices.

We also provide spot foreign currency trading for eligible contract
participants and high net worth retail customers and operate a
proprictary foreign exchange desk which arbitrages the futures
and cash markets,

Securities

Through INTL FCStone Securities Inc. (INTL FCStone
Securities”), a registered broker-dealer, we act as a wholesale
matket maker in select foreign securities including unlisted
ADRs and foreign ordinary shares and provides execution in
select debt instruments and exchange-traded funds (“ETFs").
INTL FCStone Securities provides execation and liquidity to
national and regional broker-dealers and institutional investors.

We make markets in approximately 800 ADRs and foreign
ordinary shares traded in the OTC market. In addition, we will,
on request, make prices in more than 8,000 other ADRs and
foreign common shares. As a market maker, we provide trade
execution services by offering to buy shares from, or sell shares to,
broker-dealers and institutions. We display the prices at which we
are willing to buy and sell these securities and adjusts our prices
in response to market conditions, When acting as principal, we
commit our own capital and derive revenue from the difference
between the prices at which we buy and sell shares. We also earn
comumissions by execuring trades on an agency basis.

While our customers are other broker-dealers and instirurions,
the husiness tends to be driven by the needs of the private clients
of those broker-dealers and institutions. The size of private client
trades may be uneconomical for the in-house international
equities trading desks of our customers to execute. We are able
to provide execution of smaller trades ac profitable margins.

PART 1
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We provide commercial customers with a full range of investment
banking services from optimizing the customer’s capital structure
through the issuance of loans, debt or equity securities and advisory
services including mergers, acquisitions and restructurings.
We seek ro marker these services to our existing commercial
customer base, particularly in North and South America, and to
develop new customer relationships with whom we can cross-sell
our full suite of financial services. From time-to-time, we may
invest our own capital in debt instruments before selling them
into the market,

Clearing and Execution Services (“CES”)

We provide competitive and efficient clearing and execution
of exchange-traded futures and options-on-futures for the
institutional and professional traders through our subsidiary,
FCStane, LLC. Through its pladform, we accept customer orders
and direct them to the appropriate exchange for execution. We
then facilitate the clearing of customers’ transactions. Clearing
involves the matching of customers’ trades with an Exchange, the
collection and management of margin deposits to support the
transactions, and the accounting and reporting of the transactions
to customers. We seek to leverage our capabilities and capacity
by offering facilities management or outsourcing solutions to

other FCMs,

ECStone, LLC is a registered FCM and a clearing member
of all major U.S. commodity futures exchanges including the
Chicago Mercantile Exchange and its divisions: the Chicago
Board of Trade, the New York Mercantile Exchange and the
COMEX Division; InterCantinental Exchange, Inc. (*ICE”)
Futures US, and the Minneapolis Grain Exchange (‘“MGEX”).
As of September 30, 2413, FCStone, LLC was the third largest
independenc FCM in the United States, as measured by required
customer segregated assets, not affiliated with a major financial
institution or commaodity intermediary, end-user or producer.
As of September 30, 2013, FCStone, LLC had $1.7 billion in
required customer segregated assets.

Other

This segment consists of our asset management and commodity
financing and facilitation business. The asset management
revenues include fees, commissions and other revenues we receive
for management of third-party assets and investment gains or
losses on our investments in funds and proprietary accounts
managed either by our investment managers or by independent
investment managers.

We operate a commodity fimancing and facilitation business
that makes loans to commercial commaodity-related companies
against physical inventories, including grain, lumber, meats,
energy products, and renewable fuels. We use sale and repurchase
agreements to purchase commeodities evidenced by warchouse
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receiprs, subject to a simultanecus agreement to sell such
commodities back to the original seller at a later date. We account
for these transactions as product financing arrangements, and
accordingly no commodity inventory, purchases or sales are

recorded. Additionally, we engage as a principal in physical
purchase and sale transactions related to inputs to the renewable
fuels and feed ingredient industries.

Acquisitions and Disposals during Fiscal Year 2013

During fiscal year 2013, we acquired certain institutional accounts
from Tradewire Securities, LLC (“Tradewire Securities”). This
acquisition was not significant. Our consolidated financial
statements include the operating resules of the acquired business
from the date of acquisition. Also during fiscal year 2013, we
sold our ownership interest in Gletir Agente De Valores S.A.
(“Gletir Agente”) and commenced and executed a plan to exit
the physical base merals business.

Tradewire Acquisition

On December 12, 2012, we acquired certain institurional
accounts from Tradewire Securities, a Miami-based securiries
braker-dealer setvicing customers throughout Latin Amesicaand a
wholly owned subsidiary of Tradewire Group Ltd. We transferred
these accounts to our broker-dealer subsidiary, INTL FCStone
Securities. As part of the transaction, we hired more than 20
professional staff from Tradewire Securities’ securities broker-deater
business based in Miami, Florida, These professionals provide
global brokerage services to a wide range of customers, including
hedge funds, pension funds, broker-dealers and banks located
in Latin America, the Caribbean, North America and Europe.

Acquisitions during Fiscal Year 2012

Gletir Agente De Valores S.A. Disposal

On February 28, 2013, we sold all of our ownership interest in
Gletir Agente De Valores S.A., to Gletir Financial Corp held
by our subsidiaries INTL Netherlands B.V. and Gainvest Asset
Mapagement Lida.

Planned Exit of Physical Base Metals Business

During the quarter ended March 31, 2013, as a result of a change
in management strategy in our base metals product line, we elected
to pursue an exit of our physical base metals business through the
sale and orderly liquidation of current open positons. Dufing the
following six months ended September 30, 2013, we completed a
sale of a portion of the physical base metals open contract positions
and the liquidation of the majority of the remaining physical base
metals inventory, as well as all but two of the remaining open
contract positions. We will fulfill the two remaining open contract
positions by January 2014, at which time we will reflect the physical
base metals activiries in our financial statements as discontinued
operations. We will continue to operate the companent of our
base metals business related to non-physical assets conducted
primarily through the London Metals Exchange.

During fiscal year 2012, we acquired three businesses (Coffee
Network, TRX Futures Limited and Aporte DTVM) and certain
assets of the Metals Division of MF Global UK Limited. These
acquisitions were not considered significant on an individual or
aggregate basis. Our consolidated financial statements include
the operating results of the acquired businesses from the dates
of acquisition.

The Metals Division of MF Global UK
Limited

In Navember 2011, we arranged with the trustee of MF Global’s
UK operations to hire more than 50 professionals from MF
Global’s metals trading business based in London. This business
serves institutional investors and financial services firms in the
Americas, Europe and the Asia-Pacific region. As part of this
transaction, INTL FCStone Ltd. upgraded its LME Category Two
membership o a LME Category One ring dealing membership.
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Coffee Network

Ia November 2011, we acquired 100% of the ownership
interests in Coffee Netwotrk LLC (“Coffee Network™), an online
news and analysis portal for the global coffee industry. Coffee
Nerwork provides up-to-the-minute news and in-depth analysis
to subscribers around the globe from a network of correspondents
and commodity analysts located in key coffee producing and
consuming regions. These services provide a unigue infotmation
solution to subscribers and a competitive advantage in today’s
information-driven marketplace which we intend to expand
into other commodity markees. Following the acquisition, we
reorganized the activities of Coffee Network as a division of
FCStone, LLC.



TRX Futures Limited

In April 2012, cur wholly owned subsidiary in the UK, INTL
Haolding (UK) Limited, acquired 1009 of the outstanding shates
of TRX Futures Limited (“TRX”) from Neumann Grupe GmbH.
TRX was a London-based niche clearing firm for commercial
coffee and cocoa customers, as well as energy and financial

products. During fiscal 2013, we reorganized the activities of
TRX Futures Limited within INTL FCStone Ltd.

Acquisitions during Fiscal Year 2011

PART I
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Aporte DTVM

In February 2012, our subsidiaries, INTL Participacoes ITTDA
and FCStone do Brasil, acquired 100% of the shares of Aporte
DTVM. Following the acquisition, Aporte DTVM was renamed
INTL FCStone DTVM Ltda. INTL FCStone D'TVM Leda. is
based in Brazil and is a broker-dealer regulated by the Central
Bank of Brazil.

During fiscal year 2011, we acquired rwo businesses, Hencorp
Becstone Futures, L.C. and Ambrian Commodities Limited,
and certain assets from Hudson Capical Energy, LLC, These
acquisitions were not significant on an individual or aggregate
basis. Qur consolidated financial statements include the operating
results of the two businesses and certain purchased assets from
the related dates of acquisition.

Hencorp Futures

In Ocrober 2019, we acquired Hencorp Becstone Futures, L.C.,
the futures operation of Miami-based Hencorp Group, which
we renamed INTL Hencorp Furures, LLC (“Hencorp Futures™).
Hencorp Futures specializes in the development and execution of
tisk-management programs designed wo hedge price volatility in
a number of widely traded commodities, including coffee, sugar,
cocoa, grains and energy products. The transaction expanded
our portfolio of commedity risk management services to include
a more robust capability in soft commodities, especially coffee,
where Hencorp Futures has 2 substantial presence and reputation
globally, especially in Central and Souch America. During fiscal
2012, we reorganized the activities of Hencorp Futures as a
division of FCStone, LLC.

Subsequent Acquisition

Ambrian Commodities Limited

In August 2011, we acquired the issued share capital of Ambrian
Commodities Limited ("Ambrian”), the London Metals Exchange
brokerage subsidiary of Ambrian Capital Plc. Following the
acquistion, Ambrian was renamed INTL FCStone Ltd. Ambrian
was a non-clearing LME member, specializing in the development
and execution of risk-management programs designed to hedge
price fluctuations in base metals for a wide variety of producers,
manufacturers and fabricators. INTL FCStone Ltd. has a niche
tocus on smaller industrial clients, including lead recyclers, brass
producers, zine gafvanizers, metal refineties, and copper foil
producers that use LME futures and options for hedging raw
material costs ot output prices.

Certain Assets Purchased from Hudson
Capital Energy, LLC

In April 2011, we acquired certain assets of Hudson Capital
Energy LLC ("HCEnergy”), a New York-based energy risk-
management firm. The transaction expanded our energy risk
management services to include a more robust capability in
crude oil and refined products.

In November 20113, we received conditional regulatory approval
of an agreement by which First American Capiral and Trading
Corp. (“FACT™) agreed to transfer its customer accounts to our
broket-dealer subsidiary, INTL FCStone Securities Ine. FACT

provides correspondent clearing services to institutional customers

Competition

directly and through a global network of partners. FACT serves
a wide range of customers, including broker-dealers, investment
advisors, and fund managers. We completed this transaction in

the first quarter of fiscal 2014.

The international commodities and financial markets are highly
competitive and rapidly evelving. Tn addition, these markers
are dominated by firms with significant capital and personnel
resources that are not matched by our resources. We expect these
competitive conditions to continue in the future, although the

nature of the competition may change as a result of ongoing
changes in the regulatory environment. The crisis has produced
opportunities for us to expand our activities and may produce
further opportunities. We believe that we can compete successtully
with other commadities and financial intermediaries in the
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markets we seek to serve, based on our expertise, products and
quality of consulting and execution services.

We compete with a large number of firms in the exchange-
traded futures and options execution sector and in the OTC
derivatives sector. We compete primarily on the basis of diversity
and value of services offered, and to a lesser extent on price. Qur
competitors in the exchange-traded futures and options sector
include international brokerage firms, national brokerage firms,
regional brokerage firms (both cooperatives and non-cooperatives)
as well as local introducing brokers, with competition driven by
price level and qualicy of service. Many of these competitors also
offer OTC trading programs. In addition, there are a number of
financial firms and physical commodities firms that participate
in the OTC markets, both directly in competition with us
and indirectly through firms like us. We compete in the OTC

Administration and Operations

market by making specialized OTC transactions available to our
customers in contract sizes that are smaller than those usually
available from major counterpatties.

Investor interest in the markets we serve impace and will continue
to impact our activities. The instruments traded in these markets
compete with a wide range of alternative investment instruments.
We seck to counterbalance changes in demand in specified markets
by undertaking activities in multiple uncorrelated markets.

Technology has increased competitive pressures on commodities
and financial intermediaries by improving disseminacion of
information, making markets more transparent and facilitating
the development of alternative execution mechanisms. In certain
instances, we compete by providing technolegy-based solutions to
facilitate customer transactions and solidify customer relacionships.

We employ operations personnel to supetvise and, for certain
products, complete the clearing and settlement of transactions.

INTL FCStone Securities’ securities transactions are cleared
through Broadeours, a division of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith, Inc and Pershing LLC, a subsidiary of The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation. INTL FCSrone Securities does
not hold customer funds or directly clear or settle securities
transactions.

We utilize frone-end electeonic rading, back office and accounting
systems to process transactions on 4 daily basis. In some cases
these systems are integrated. The systems provide record keeping,
trade reporting to exchange clearing, internal risk controls, and
reporting to government and regulatory entities, corporare

managets, risk managers and customers. A third-party service
bureau located in Chicago, Illinois maintains our futures and
options back office system. It has a disaster recovery site in
New York City, New York.

We hold customer funds in relation to certain of our acrivities,
In regulated entities, these customer funds are segregated, but
in unregulated entities they are not. For a further discussion of
custorner segregated funds in our regulated enties, please see
the “Customer Segregated Assets” discussion below.

Our administrative seaff manages our internal financial controls,
accounting functions, office services and compliance with
regulatory requirements.

Governmental Regulation and Exchange Membership

Qur activities are subject to significant governmental regulation,
both in the United States and overseas. Failure to comply wich
regulatory requirements could result in administrative or court
proceedings, censure, fines, issuance of cease-and-desist orders, or
suspension or disqualification of the regulated entity, its officers,
SUpervisors or representatives, The regulatory environment in
which we operate is subject to frequent change and these changes
directly impact our business and operating results.

The commodities industry in the United States is subject to
extensive regulation under federal law. We are required to comply
with a wide range of requirements imposed by the Commodicy
Futures Trading Commission (the “CFTC”), the National Futures
Association (the “NFA”) and the Chicago Mercantile Fxchange,
which is our designated self-regulatory organization. We are also
a member of the Chicago Mercantile Exchange's divisions: the
Chicago Board of Trade, the New York Mercantile Exchange and
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COMEZX, ICE Fututes US, ICE Eutope Led, and the Minneapolis
Grain Exchange. These regulatory bodies protect customers by
imposing requirements relating to capital adequacy, licensing of
personnel, conduct of business, protection of customer assets,
record-keeping, trade-reporting and other matters.

"The securities industry in the United Srates is subject to extensive
regulation under federal and state securities laws. We must comply
with a wide range of requirements imposed by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”}, state securities commissions
and Financial Industry Regulatory Auchoriey (“FINRA™). These
regulatory bodies safeguard the integrity of the financial markets
and protect the interests of investors in these markets. They also
impose minimum capiral requirements on regulated entities.
The activities of our broker-dealer subsidiaries in the United
States, INTL FCStone Securities and FCC Investments, Inc,,
are primarily regulated by FINRA and the SEC.



The Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”), the regulator of the
financial services industry in the United Kingdom, regulates
our subsidiary, INTL FCSrone Ltd., as a Financial Services
Firm under part IV of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000. The regulations impose daily regulatory capital, as well
as conduct of business, governance, and other requirements.
The conduct of business rules include those thar govern the
teeatment of client money and other assets which, under certain
circumstances for certain classes of clients must be segregated
from the firnt’s own assets.

On July 21, 2010, the President signed the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”).
The Dodd-Frank Act created a comprehensive new regulatory
regime governing the OTC and listed derivatives markets and
their participants by requiring, among other things: centralized
clearing of standardized derivatives (with certain stated exceptions);
the trading of clearable derivatives on swap execusion facilities
or exchanges; and registration and comprehensive regulation
of new categories of market participants as “swap dealers” and
swap “introducing brokers.” We registered our subsidiary, INTL
FCStone Markets, LLC, as a swap dealer on December 31,
2012. Most of the rules affecting this business are now final,
and external business conduct rules came into effect on May 1,
2013. Nevertheless, some important rules, such as those serting
capital and margin requirements, have not been finalized or fully
implemented, and it is too carly to predict with any degree of
certainty how we will be affected. We will continue to monitor
all applicable developments in the implementation of the Dodd-
Frank Act. The legistation and implementing regulations affect
not only us, but also many of our customers and counterparties.

Net Capital Requirements
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Failure to comply with current or future legislation or regulations
that apply to our operations could subject us to fines, penalties,
or material restrictions on our business in the future.

The USA PATRIOT Act contains anti-money laundering and
financial transparency laws and mandates the implementation
of various regulations applicable to broker-dealers and other
financial services companies. The USA PATRIOT Ac secks ta
promote cooperation among financial institutions, regulators
and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may
be involved in terrorism or money laundering. Anti-money

“laundering laws outside of the U.S. contain similar provisions.

We believe thar we have implemented, and that we maintain,
appropiate internal practices, procedures and controls to enable
us to comply with the provistons of the USA PATRIOT Act and

other anti-money laundering laws.

The .S, maintains various economic sanctions programs
administered by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of
Forcign Assets Controf (“OFAC”). The OFAC administered
sanctions take many forms, but generally prohibit or restrict
trade and investment in and with sanctions targets; and in
some cases requite blocking of the targer’s assets. Violations
of any of the OFAC-administered sanctions are punishable by
civil fines, criminal fines, and imprisonment. We established
policies and procedures designed to comply with applicable
OFAC requirements. Although we believe that our policies
and procedures are effective, there can be no assurance that our
policies and procedures will effectively prevent us from violating
the OFAC-administered sanctions in every transaction in which
we may engage.

FCStone, LLC is subject to minimum capital requirements under
Section 4(f)(b) of the Commodity Exchange Act and Part 1.17
of the rules and regulations of the CFTC. These rules specify the
minimum amount of capital that must be available to support
our clients’ open trading positions, including the amount of
assets that FCStone, LLC must maintain in relatively liquid
form, and are designed to measure general financial integrity and
liquidity. Net capital and the refated net capital requirement may
fluctuate on a daily basis. Compliance with minimum capital
requirements may limit our operations if we cannot maintain
the required levels of capital. Moreover, any change in these rules
ot the imposition of new rules affecting the scope, coverage,
calculation or amount of capital we are required to maintain
could restrict our ability to operate our business and adversely
affect our operations.

The FCA regulates INTL FCStone Lid. and INTL Global
Currencies Limited. Each is subject to a net capital requirement.

INTL FCStone Securities is subject to the SEC Uniform Net
Capital Rule 15¢3-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. These requirements ensure the financial integrity and
liquidity of broker-dealers, They establish minimum levels of
capital and liquid assets. The net capital requirernents restrict
the payments of dividends, redemption of stock, the prepayment
of subordinated indebtedness and the making of any unsecured
advances or loans to any stockholder, employee or affiliate, if
such payment would reduce the broker-dealer’s net capital below
required levels. The net capital requirements restrict the ability
of INTL FCStone Securities to make distributions to us. They
also restrice the ability of INTL FCStone Securities to expand
its business beyond a certain point without additional capital.

FCC Investments, Inc., a broker-dealer subsidiary, is subject
to the net capital requirements of the SEC relating o liquidicy
and net capital levels.
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The Australian Securities and Investment Commission regulates
FCStone Australia Pty, Ltd (“FCStone Australia”). It is subject to
a net tangible asset capital requirement. New Zealand Clearing
Limited, also regulates FCStone Auseralia. It is subject to a capital
adequacy requirement.

The Central Bank of Treland regulates FCStone Commodity
Setvices (Europe), Lid. which is domiciled in Ireland and is
subject to a net capital requirement.

The Brazilian Central Bank and Securities and Exchange
Commission of Brazil regulates INTL FCStone DTVM Ltda.

{“INTL FCStone DTVM?). It is a registered broker-dealer and
is subject to a capital adequacy requirement,

The Comision de Valores and Mercado de Valores S.A.
(*"MERVAL") regulate INTL Gainvest and Compania Inversora

Segregated Customer Assets

Bursatil S.A. Sociedad de Bolsa (“CIBSA”) and chey are subject
to net capital and capital adequacy requirements. The Rosario
Futures Exchange, the General Inspector of Justice and the
Superintendent of Securities Markets of Buenos Aires regulates
INTL Capital, S.A. It is subject to a capital adequacy requirement.

Certain of our other non-U.S. subsidiaries are also subject to
capital adequacy requirements promulgated by authorities of
the countries in which they operate.

All of our subsidiaries are in compliance with all of their capital
regulatory tequirements as of September 36, 2013. Additional
information on these net capital and minimum net capital
requirements can be found in Note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

FCStone, LLC maintains customer segregated deposits from its
customers relating to their trading of futures and options-on-
futures on U.S. commodities exchanges held wich FCStone, LLC,
making it subject wo CEFTC regulation 1.20, which specifies that
such funds must be held in segregation and not commingled with
the firm’s own assets. FCStone, LLC maintains acknowledgment
letters from each depository at which it maintains customer
sepregated deposits in which the depository acknowledges the
nature of funds on deposit in the account. In addition, CFTC
regulations requite performance of a daily segregation calculation
which compares the assets held in customers segregated depositories
{"segregated assets”) to the firm’s total segregated assets held on
deposit from customers (“segregated liabilities”). The amount of
customer segregated assets must be in excess of the segregated
liabilities owed to customers and any shortfall in such assets must
be immediately communicated to the CFTC. As of September
30, 2013, FCStone, LLC maintained $23.9 million in segregated
assets in excess of its segregated liabilities.

Secured Customer Assets

In addition, FCStone, LLC is subject to CFTC regulation 1.25,
which governs the acceptable investment of customer segregated
assets. This regulation allows for the investment of customer
segregated assets in readily marketable instruments including
U.S. Treasury securities, municipal securities, government
sponsored enterprise securities, certificates of deposit, commercial
paper, corporate notes or bonds, interest in money martket mutual
funds, and repurchase transactions with unafliliated entides in
otherwise allowable securities. FCStone, LLC predominacely
invests its customer segregated assets in 11,5, Treasury bills and
money market mutual funds.

INTL FCStone Led. is subject to cerrain business rules, including
those that govern the trearment of client money and other
assets which under certain circumstances for certain classes
of client must be segregated from the firm’s own assets, INTL
FCStone Led. currently maintains segregated funds in excess of
all applicable requirements.

FCStone, LLC maintains customer secured deposits from its
customers funds relaring to their trading of fucures and options-
on-futures traded on, or subject 1 the rules of, a foreign board
of trade held with FCStone, LLC, making it subject to CFTC
Regulation 30.7, which requires that such funds must be carried
in separate accounts in an amount sufficient to satisfy all of
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FCStone LLC's current obligations to customers trading foreign
futures and foreign options on foreign commodity exchanges
ot boards of trade, which are designated as secured customers’
accounts. As of September 30, 2013, FCStone, LLC maintained
$22.7 million in secured assets in excess of its secured liabilities.
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We operate in a number of foreign jurisdictions, including
Canada, Ireland, the United Kingdom, Argenrina, Brazil,
Uruguay, Paraguay, Mexice, Nigeria, Dubai, China, South Korea,
Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. We established wholly
owned subsidiaties in Mexico, Uruguay and Nigeria but do not
have offices or employees in those countries.

FCStone Commodity Services (Europe) Ltd. is domiciled in
Ireland and subject to regulation by the Central Bank of Irefand.

INTL FCStone Led. is domiciled in the United Kingdom, and
subject to regulation by the United Kingdom FCA.

INTL FCStone Securities and INTL Commodities, Inc. each have
branch offices in the United Kingdom. As a result, their activities
are also subject to regulation by the United Kingdom FCA.

In Arpentina, the activities of INTL Gainvest and Compania
Inversora Bursadil 5.A. Sociedad de Balsa (*CIBSA”) are subject

Business Risks

to regulation by the Comision de Valores and MERVAL and
the acrivities of INTL Capital, $.A. are subiect o regulation by
the Rosario Futures Exchange, the General Inspector of Justice
and the Superintendent of Securities Markets of Buenos Aires.

In Brazil, the activities of FCStone do Brasil are subject to
regulation by BM&F Bovespa, and the activities of INTL FCStone
DTVM Ltda. are regulated by the Brazilian Central Bank and

Securities and Exchange Commission of Brazil.

The activities of INTL Commodities DMCC are subject to
reguiation by the Dubai Multi Commodities Centre.

FCStone Australia Pty Ltd. is subject to regulation by the
Australian Securities and Investments Commission and
New Zealand Clearing Ltd.

We seek to mitigate the marker and credit risks arising from our
financial trading activities through an acrive risk management
program. The principal objective of this program is to limit
trading risk to an acceptable level while maximizing the return
generated on the risk assumed.

We have a defined risk policy administered by our risk commitee,
which reports to our audit commictee, We established specific
exposure limits for inventory positions in every business, as well

Employees

as specific issuer limits and counterparty limits. We designed
these limits to ensure that in a situation of unexpectedly large or
rapid movements or disruptions in one or more markets, systemic
financial distress, the failure of a counterparty or the defaule of an
issuer, the potential estimated loss will remain within acceptable
levels. The audit commitee reviews the performance of the risk
committee on a quarterly basis to monitor compliance with the

established risk policy.

As of September 30, 2013, we employed 1,094 people globally:
724 in the U.S., 2 in Canada, 60 in Argentina, 80 in Brazil,
7 in Paraguay, 144 in the United Kingdom, 6 in Ireland, 12
in Dubai, 27 in Singapore, 12 in China and 17 in Australia.
None of our employees operate under a collective bargaining

agreement, and we have not suffered any work stoppages or labor
disputes. Many of our employees are subject to employment
agreements, certain of which contain non-competirion provisions.

INTL FCSTONE INC. - form 10-K
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ITEM 1A Risk Factors

We face a variery of tisks that could adversely impact our financial
condition and results of operations, including the following:

Our ability to achieve consistent profitability is
subject to uncertainty due to the nature of our
businesses and the markets in which we operate.

During the fiscal year ended Seprember 30, 2013 we recorded net
income of $19.3 million, compared to net income of $12.8 million
in fiscal 2012, and net income of $34.8 million in fiscal 2011.

Our revenues and eperating results may fluctuate significandy
in the future because of the following factors:

* Market condirions, such as price levels and volatility in the
cormnmodities, securities and foreign exchange markets in
which we operate;

® Changes in the volume of our market-making and trading
activities;

¢ Changes in the value of our financial instruments, cutrency and
commodities positions and our ability to manage related risks;

* The level and volatility of interest rates;

® The availability and cost of funding and capiral;

* Qur ability to manage personnel, overhead and other expenses;
* Changes in execution and clearing fees;

¢ The addition or loss of sales or trading professionals;

* Changes in legal and regulatary requirements; and

* General economic and political conditions.

Although we continue our efforts to diversify the sources of
our revenues, it is likely that our revenues and operating results
will continue to Auctuate substandially in the furure and such
fluctuations could result in losses. These losses could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

The manner in which we account for our
commodities inventory and forward
commitments may increase the volatility
of our reported earnings.

Our net income is subject to volatility due to the manner in
which we report our commodities inventory. This inventory is
stated at the lower of cost or fair value. We generally mitigate the
price risk associated with our commodities inventory through the
use of detivatives. This price risk mitigation does not generally
qualify for hedge accounting under U.S. GAAR In such situations,
any unrealized gains in inventory are not recognized under
U.S. GAAP but unrealized gains and losses in related derivative
positions are recognized under .5, GAAF Additionally, in certain
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circumstances, U.5. GAAP does not permit us to reflect changes
in estimated values of forward commitments to purchase and sell
commodities. The forward commitments to purchase and sell
commodities, which we do not reflect in our consolidated balance
sheets, do not qualify as a derivative under the Derivarives and
Hedging Topic of the ASC. As a result, our reported carnings
from these business segments are subject to greater volatility than
the earnings from our other business segments.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our
financial condition.

As of Seprember 30, 2013, our total consolidated indebtedness
1o lenders was $106.3 million, and we expect 1o increase our
indebredness in the future as we continue to expand our business,
Our indebtedness could have impostant consequences, including:

* increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and
industry conditions;

* requiring that a partion of aur cash flow from operations be
used for the payment of interest on our debt, thereby reducing
our ability t use our cash flow to fund working capital, capital
expenditures, acquisitions and general corporate requirements;

* limiting our ability to obtain additional financing to fund
future working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and
genctal corporate requirements;

* limiting our Hexibility in planning for, or reacting 1o, changes
in our business and the securities industry; and

* restricting our ability to pay dividends or make other paymens.

We may be abie to incur additional indebtedness in the future,
including secuted indebtedness. If new indebtedness is added
1o our current indebtedness levels, the related risks that we now
face could intensify.

Committed credit facilities currently available
to us might not be renewed.

We currently have three committed credit facilities undes which
we may borrow up to $290.0 million, consisting of:

* 2 $140.0 million facility available to INTL FCStene Inc.,
for general working capital requirements, committed undl
September 20, 2016.

* 2 $75.0 million facility available to our wholly owned subsidiary,
FCStone, LLC, for short-term funding of margin to commodity
exchanges, commicted until April 10, 2014.

* 24 $75.0 million committed faciliry available to our wholly owned
subsidiary, FCStone Merchant Services, LLC, for financing
traditional commodity financing arrangements and commodity
repurchase agreements, commitred until May 1, 2014,



During fiscail 2014, $150.0 million of our commicted credic
facilities are scheduled to expire. Thete is no guarantee that we will
be successful in renewing, extending or rearranging these facilities.

It is possible that these facilities might not be renewed at the
end of their commitment periods and that we will be unable
to replace them with other facilities. If our credit facilities are
unavailable ot insufhicient to support furare levels of business
activities, we may need to raise additional funds externally, either
in the form of debt or equity. If we cannot raise additional funds
on acceptable terms, we may not be able to develop or enhance
our business, take advantage of future opportunities or respand
to competitive pressure of unanticipated requirements, leading
to reduced profitability.

Our failure to successfully integrate the operations
of businesses acquired by us in the last nwelve
months could bave a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and operating results.
Since September 30, 2012, we have acquired Tradewire Securities,
LLC. Addicionally, subsequent to September 30, 2013, we have
acquired First American Capital and Trading Corp. We will need
w0 meet challenges w realize the expected benefits and synergies
of these acquisitions, including:

* integrating the management teams, strategies, culrures,
technologies and operations of the acquired companies;

* retaining and assimilating the key personnel of acquired
Conpanics;

* retaining existing clients of the acquired companies;

* creating uniform standards, controls, procedutes, policies and
informarion systems; and

» achieving revenue growth because of risks involving (1) the
abitity to retain clients, (2} the ability to sell the services and
products of the acquired companies o the existing clients of
our other business segments, and (3) the ability to sell the
services and products of our other business segments to the
existing clients of the acquired companies,

"The accomplishment of these objectives will involve considerable
risk, including;

* the potential disruption of each company’s ongoing business
and distraction of their respective management teams;

* unanticipated expenses related to technology integration; and
* potential unknown liabilities associated with the acquisition.

It is possible that the integration process could result in the loss of
the technical skills and management expertise of key employees,
the disruption of the ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in
standards, controls, procedutres and policies due to possible cultural
conflicts or differences of opinions on technical decisions and
product road maps that adversely affect our ability to maintain
relationships with customers, counterparties, and employees or
to achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisition.

PART 1
ITEM 1A Risk Factors

We face risks associated with our market-making
and trading activities.

We conduct our marker-making and trading activities
predominantly as a principal, which subjects our capital to
significant risks. These activities involve the purchase, sale or
short sale for customers and for our own account of financial
instruments, including equity and debt securities, commadities
and foreign exchange. These activities are subject to a number of
risks, including risks of price fluctuasions, rapid changes in the
liquidity of matkets and counterparty credicworthiness.

These risks may limit our ability to either resell financial
instruments we purchased or to repurchase securities we sold
in these transactions. In addition, we may experience difficuley
borrowing financial instruments to make delivery to purchasers
to whom we sold short, or lenders from whom we have borrowed,
From time to trime, we have large position concentrations in
securities of a single issuer or issuers in specific couneries and
markets. This concentration could result in higher trading
Josses than would oceur if our positions and acrivities were less
concentrated.

The success of our market-making activities depends on:

* the price volatility of specific financial instruments, currencies
and commodities,

* our ability o attract order fow;
* the skill of our personnel;

* the availability of capital; and

® peneral market conditions.

To attracr market-trading, market-making and trading business,
we must be cornpetitive in:

* providing enhanced liquidity to our customers;

* the efficiency of our order execution;

¢ the sophistication of our trading technology; and
* the quality of our customer service.

In our role as a market maker and crader, we attempt to derive
a profit from the difference between the prices at which we buy
and sell financial instruments, currencies and commodities.
However, competitive forces often require us to:

* match the quotes other market makers display; and

¢ hold varying amounts of financial instruments, currencies and
commodiies in inventory,

By having to maintain inventory positions, we are subject to a high
degree of risk. We cannot ensure that we will be able to manage
our inventory risk successfully or that we will not experience
significant losses, either of which could materially adversely
affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

INTL FCSTONE INC. - Form 10-K
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We :;;vemte as a principal in the OTC derivatives
markets which involves the risks associated with
commodity derivative instruments.

We offer OTC derivatives to our customers in which we act as
a principal counterparty. We endeavor to simultaneously offset
the commeodity price risk of the instruments by establishing
corresponding offsetting positions with commeodity counterparties,
or alternatively we may offser those transactions with similar buc
not identical positions on an exchange. To the extent that we are
unable to simultaneously offset an open position or the offsetting
transaction is not fully effective to eliminate the commodicy
derivative risk, we have market risk exposure on these unmarched
transactions. Our exposure varies based on the size of the overall
positions, the terms and liquidity of the instruments brokered,
and the amount of time the positions remain open.

To the extent an unhedgex position is not disposed of intra-day,
adverse movements in the commaodities underlying these positions
or a downturn or disruption in the mackets for these positions
could result in a substantial loss, In addition, any principal gains
and losses resulting from these positions could on occasion have
a disproportionate effect, positive ot negative, on our financial
condition and results of operations for any particular reporting period.

Transactions involving OTC derivative contracts may be adversely
affected by fluctuations in the level, volatility, correlation or
relationship between market prices, rates, indices and/or other
factors. These types of instruments may alsa suffer from illiquidiey
in the market or in a related marker.

OIC derivative transactions are subject to

unique risks.

OTC derivative transactions are subject to the risk that, as a result
of mismatches or delays in the timing of cash flows due from or 10
counterparties in OTC derivative transactions or related hedging,
trading, collateral or other transactions, we or our counterparty may
not have adequate cash available to fund its current obligations.

We could incur matetial losses pursuant to OTC derivative
transactions because of inadequacies in or failures of our internal
systems and controls for monitoring and quantifying the risk
and contractual obligations associated with OTC derivative
transactions and refated transactions or for detecting human
error, systems failure or management failure.

OTC derivative transactions may be modified or rerminated
only by murtual consent of the original parties and subject to
agreement on individually negotiated terms. Accordingly it
may not be possible to modify, terminarte or offser obligations
or exposure to the risk associated with a ransaction prior to its
scheduled termination date.

We may have difficulty managing our growth.

We have experienced significant growth in our business. Our
operating revenues grew from $90.6 million in the 2009 fiscal
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year to $478.4 million in fiscal 2013. We expect the acquisition
of additional businesses since September 30, 2012 to increase
operating revenues in 2014.

This growth required, and will centinue to require, us to
increase our investment in management personnel, financial
and management systems and controls, and facilities. In the
absence of continued revenue growth, the costs associated with
our expected growth would cause our operating margins te decline
from current levels. In addition, as is common in the financial
industry, we are and will continue to be highly dependent on
the effective and reliable operation of our communications and
information systems.

The scope of procedures for assuring compliance with applicable
rules and regulations changes as the size and complexity of
our business increases, In response, we have implemented and
continue to revise formal compliance procedures.

It is possible that we will not be able to manage our growth
successfully. Our inability to do so could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results,

We have identified a material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting which
existed as of Sj{)tember 30, 2013. If we fail to
properly remediate this or any future weaknesses
or deficiencies or maintain proper and effective
internal controls, our ability to produce accurate
and timely Jnancial statements could be impaired
which could have an adverse effect on our business
and stock price.

We are required by the SEC to establish and maintain adequate
internal control over financial reporting that provides reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. We are likewise required,
on a quarterly basis, to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal
controls and to disclose any changes and material weaknesses
in those internal controls.

While preparing our financial statements for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013, Management identified a marerial
weakness in internal control over financial reporting that existed
as of September 30, 2013, related to the accurate and timely
accounting for certain principal over-the-counter detivative
trading activities. Specifically, controls over the reconciliation
between trading system data and the general ledger were not
designed detect errors timely in recording trading gains to
the general ledger. As a result of this material weakness, the
Company misstated certain principal over-the-counter detivative
trading activities. The financial misstatements resulting from our
marerial weakness resulted in a restatement of our Consolidared
Financial Statements contained herein. See Item 9A, Controls and
Procedures for a complete discussion of this material weakness
in our internal control over financial reporting.



Although we developed, and are currently implementing, 2
remediation plan for this material weakness, the existence of
a material weakness is an indication that there is more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of our financial
statements will not be prevented or detected in the current or
any future period. There can be no assurance that we will be
able 1o fully implement our plans and controls, as described in
Irem 9A, ro address this material weakness, or that the plans and
controls, if implemented, will be successful in fully remediaring
this material weakness. In addition, we may in the future identify
further material weaknesses in our internal contral over financial
reporting that we have not discovered o date. If we fail to
successfully remediate the identified material weakness, or we
identify further marerial weaknesses in our internal controls, our
ability to report our financial results on a timely and accurate
basis could be impacted in a materially adverse manner.

If our financial statements are not accurate, investors may not
have a complete understanding of our operations. Likewise, if
our financial statements are not filed on a timely basis as required
by the SEC and NASDAQ), we could face penalties or sanctions
from those authorities. In either case, there could result a marerial
adverse effect on our business. Inferior internal contrals could
also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial
information, which could have a negarive effect on the trading
price of our stock.

In addition, many of our customers and counterparties ucilize
our publicly reported financial information to evaluate the
credirworthiness of the Company when deciding whether to
acquire services or conduct business with the Company. If cut
financial stacements are not accurate or are not filed on 2 timely
basis, these customers and counterparties may elect to alter or
terminate their relationships with the Company, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and operating results,

We are exposed to the credit risk of our customers
and counterparties and their failure to meet their
financial obligations could adversely affect our
business.

We have substantial credit risk in both our securities and
commodities businesses. As a market-maker of OTC and listed
securities, we conduct the majority of our securities transactions
as principal with broker-dealer counterparties. We clear our
securities transactions through unaffiliated clearing brokers.
Substantially all of our equity and debt securities are held by
these clearing brokers. Qur clearing brokers have the righe to
charge us far losses that result from a counterparry’s failure to
fulfill its contractual obligations.

As aclearing broker in furures and option transactions, we act on
behalf of our customers far all trades consummated on exchanges.
We must pay initial and variation margin to the exchanges
before we receive the required payments from our customers.

PART 1
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Accordingly, we are responsible for our customers’ obligations
with respect to these transactions, including margin payments,
which exposes us to significant credit risk. Customer positions
which represent a significant percentage of open positions in a
given market or concentrations in illiquid markets may expose
us to the risk that we are not able to liquidate a customer’s
position in a manner which does not result in a deficit in chat
customets account. A substantial part of our working capital is
at risk if cuscomers default on their obligations to us and their
account balances and security deposits ate insufficient to meet

all of their obligations.

We act as a principal for OTC derivative transactions, which
exposes us to both the credit risk of our customers and the
counterparties with which we offset the customer’s position. As
with exchange-traded transactions, our OTC transactions require
that we meet initial and variation margin payments on behalf of
our customers before we receive the required payment from our
customers. In addition, with OTC transactions, there is a risk
that a countetparty will fail to meer its obligations when due. We
would then be exposed to the risk that a settlement of a eransaction
which is due a customer will not be collected from the respective
counterparty with which the transaction was offser. Customers
and counterparties that owe us money, securities or other assets
may default on their obligations to us due to bankruptcy, lack
of liquidity, operational failure or other reasons.

In this regard, during its fiscal year ended August 31, 2009,
FCStone Group, Inc. recognized $119.8 million in bad debt
expense as a result of defaults by customer counterparties.
Although we adopted additional procedures designed to reduce
their likelihood and magnitude, credit losses are an inherent
component of our business and we will continue to be subject
te the risk of such losses,

We are tesponsible for self-clearing our foreign exchange and
physical commodities rrading activicies and, in addition, rake
principal risk to counterparties and customers in these activities.
Any metals or other physical commodities positions are held
by third party custodians. In chis regard, during our fiscal years
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $5.6 million
and $2.5 million, respectively, in bad debt expense as a result of
defaults by customer counterparties to whom we had consigned
gald. Although we have adopted additional procedures designed
to reduce the likelihood and magnitude of credit losses, the
possibility of such losses is an inherent component of our business
and we will continue to be subject to the risk of such losses.

Although we have procedures for reviewing credit exposures to
specific customers and counterparties to address present credic
concerns, default risk may arise from events or circumstances
that are difficult to detect or foresee, including rapid changes
in securities, commedity and foreign exchange price levels.
Some of our risk management methods depend upon the
evaluation of information regarding markets, dlients or other
mareers that are publicly available or otherwise accessible by us.
That information may not, in all cases, be accurate, complere,
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up-to-date ot propetly evaluated. In addition, concerns about,
or 2 defaulr by, one institution could lead to significant liquidity
prablems, losses or defaults by other institutions, which in turn
could adversely affect us. We may be materially and adversely
affected in the event of a significant default by our customers
and counterparties.

In our securities and commodities tading businesses we rely on
the ability of our clearing brokers to adequately discharge their
obligations on a timely basis, We also depend on the solvency
of our clearing brokers and custodians, Any failure by a clearing
broker 1o adequately discharge its obligations on a timely basis,
or insolvency of a clearing broker or custodian, or any event
adversely affecting our clearing brokers or custodians, could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and operating results.

Our net operating revenues may decrease due to
changes in market valume, prices or liquidity.

Declines in the volume of securities, commodities and foreign
exchange transactions and in market liquidity generally may resul
in lower revenues from market-making and wrading activities.
Changes in price levels of securities and commodities and foreign
exchange rates also may result in reduced trading activity and
reduce our revenues from marker-making rransactions. Changed
price levels also can result in losses from changes in the fair value
of securities and commodities held in inventory. Sudden sharp
changes in fair values of securities and commodities can result in:

* illiquid markets;
* fair value losses arising from positions held by us;

* the failure of buyers and sellets of securities and commodities
to fulfill their settlement obligations,

* redemptions from funds managed in our asset management
business segment and consequent reductions in management fees;

* reductions in accrued performance fees in our asser management
business segment; and

* increases in claims and litigation.

Any change in market volume, price or liquidity or any other of
these factors could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

Qur net aperating revenues may decrease due to
changes in customer trading volumes which are
dependent in large part on commodity prices and
commadity price volatility.

Customer trading volumes are largely driven by the degree of
volatility—the magnitude and frequency of fiuctuations—in
prices of commodities. Higher volatility increases the need
to hedge contractual price risk and creates opporstunities for
arbitrage tading, Energy and agricultueal commodities markets
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periodically experience significant price voladlity. In addition to
price volatility, increases in commodity prices lead to increased
trading volume. As prices of commodities rise, especially energy
prices, new participants enter the markets to address their
growing risk-management needs or to take advantage of greater
trading opportunities. Sustained periods of stability in the prices
of commodities or generally lower prices could result in lower
trading volumes and, potentially, lower revenues. Lower volatility
and lower volumes could lead to lower customer balances held
on deposit, which in turn may reduce the amount of interest
revenue based on these deposits.

Factars thart are particularly likely to affect price volatility and
price levels of commodities include:

* supply and demand of commodiies;

* weather conditions affecting certain commodities;

* national and international economic and political conditions;
* perceived stability of commodities and financial markets;

» the level and volatility of interest rates and inflation; and

* financial strength of market participants.

Any one or more of these factors may reduce price volatility or
price levels in the markets for commodities trading, which in
turn could reduce trading activity in those markets. Moreover,
any reduction in trading activity could reduce liquidity which
in turn could further discourage existing and potential market
participants and thus accelerate any decline in the level of trading
activity in these markets,

Our net aperating revenues may be impacted
by diminished market activity due to adverse
economic, political and market conditions.

The amount of our revenues depends in part on the level of
activity in the securiries, foreign exchange and commodities
markets in which we conduct business, The level of activity
it these markets is directly affected by numerous national and
international factors that are beyond our control, including;

* econornic, political and market conditions;

» the availability of short-term and long-term funding and capital;
¢ the level and volatility of interest rates;

* legislative and regulatory changes; and

* currency values and inflation.

Any one or more of these factors may reduce che level of activity
in these markets, which could result in lower revenues from
our market-making and trading activities. Any reduction in
revenues or any loss resulting from these factors could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.



Several of our product lines depend significantly
on a limited group of customers.

Based on management’s assessment of our business, we believe
that 2 small number of our customers account for a significant
portion of our revenues in several of the product lines of our
businesses. These preduct lines include our equities market-
making, metals trading and foreign exchange trading product
lines. We are unable to measure the level of this concentration
because our dealing activities do not permit us ro quantify
revenues generated by each customer. We expect a significant
portion of the future demand for each of cur market-making
and trading services to remain concentrated within 2 limited
number of customers. None of these customers is obligated
contractually to use our market-making or trading services.
Accordingly, these customers may direct their trading activities
to other market-makers or traders at any time. The loss of or a
significant reduction in demand for our services from any of these
customers could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

We are dependent on our management team.

Our future success depends, in large part, upon our management
team who possess extensive knowledge and management skills
with respect to securities, commodities and foreign exchange
businesses we operate. The unexpected loss of services of any
of our executive officers could adversely affect our ability 1o
manage our business effectively or execute our business strategy.
Although these officets have employment contracts witch us,
they are generally not required to remain witch us for a specified
period of cime.

We depend on our ability to attract and retain
key personnel,

Competition for key personnel and other highly qualified
managemenc, sales, trading, compliance and technical personnel
is significant. It is possible that we will be unable to retain our
key personnel and to ateract, assimilate or retain other highly
qualified personnel in the future. The loss of the services of
any of our key personnel or the inability to identify, hire, train
and tetain other qualified personnel in the future could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

From time to time, other companies in the financial sector have
experienced losses of sales and trading professionals. The Jevel of
competition to attract these professionals is intense. It is possible
that we will lose professionals due to increased competition or other
factors in the future. The loss of 4 sales and trading professional,
particularly a senior professional with broad industry expertise,
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and operating results.
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Computer systems failures, capacity constraints
and breaches of security could increase our
operating costs and cause us to lose clients.

We are heavily dependent on the capacity and reliability of
the computer and communications systems supporting our
operations, whether owned and operated internally or by third
parties. We receive and process a large pertion of our trade orders
through electronic means, such as through public and private
communications networks, These computer and communications
systems and nerworks are subject to performance degradation
or failure from any number of reasons, including loss of power,
acts of war or terrorism, human error, natural disasters, fire,
sabotage, hardware or software malfunctions or defects, computer
viruses, intentional acts of vandalism, customer error or misuse,
lack of proper maintenance or monitoting and similar events.
Our systems, or those of our third party providers, may fail or
operate slowly, causing one or tore of the following:

* unanticipated disruptions in service to our clients;
* slower response times;

* delays in our clients’ trade execution;

* failed sertlement of trades;

* decreased client satisfaction with our services;

¢ incomplete, untimely or inaccurate accounting, recording,
reporting or processing of trades;

* financial losses;
* litigation or other client claims; and
* regulatory sanctions.

The occurtence of degradation or failure of the communications
and compurer systems on which we rely may lead to financial
losses, litigation or arbitration claims filed by ot on behalf of our
custorners and regulatory investigations and sanctions, including
by the CFTC, which require that our trade execution and
communications systems be able to handle anticipated present
and future peak crading volumes, Any such degradation or failure
coufd also have a negative effect on our reputation, which in
turn could cause us to lose existing customers to our competitors
or make it more difficult for us to attract new customers in the
future. Furcher, any financial loss that we suffer as a result of such
degradations or failures could be magnified by price movements
of contracts involved in transactions impacted by the degradation
or failure, and we may be unable to take corrective actien to
mitigate any losses we suffer.

We are subject to extensive government regulation.

The securities and cominodities futures industries are subject
to extensive regulation under federal, state and foreign laws.
In addition, the SEC, the CFTC, FINRA, the NFA, the CME
Group and other self-regulatory organizations, commonly
referred to as SROs, seate securities commissions, and foreign
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securities regulators require compliance with their respective
tules and regulations. These regulatory badies ate responsible for
safeguarding che integrity of the financial markets and protecting
the interests of participants in those markets.

Ag participants in various financial markets, we may be subject to
regulation concerning certain aspects of out business, including:

* trade practices;

* the way we communicate with, and disclose risks to clients;
* financial and reporting requirements and practices;

* client identification and anti-money laundering requirements;
* capital structure;

* record retention; and

* the conduct of our ditectors, officers and employees.

Failure to comply with any of these laws, rules or regulations
could result in adverse consequences. We and certain of our
officers and employees have, in the past, been subject to claims
arising from acts that regulators asserted were in contravention
of these laws, rules and regulations. These claims resulted in the
payment of fines and sertlements. In this regard, in May 2013, we
settled claims made by the CFTC, that our subsidiary, FCStone
LLC, failed to diligendly supervise its officers’” and employees’
activities relating to risks associated with its customers’ accounts.
The claims of the CFTC arose out of transactions by former
FCStone customers that took place between January 1, 2008
and March 1, 2009. 1n the settlement, FCStone agreed to cease
and desist from violating certain regulations of the CFTC, to
pay $1.5 million to the CFTC, and o appoint an independent
third party reviewer to review and evaluate FCSrone’s existing
policies and procedures relating to certain risks, to ensure that
we have made sufficient modifications to our risk controls since
2008, We had previously provided for the $1.5 million fine in our
financial statements for the quarter ended December 31, 2012.

It is possible that we and our officers and other employees will
be subject to similar claims in the future. An adverse ruling
against us or our officers and other employees could result in
our or our officers and other employees being required to pay a
substantial fine or settlement and could result in a suspension
ar revocation of required registrations or memberships. Such
sanctions could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

The regulatory envitenment in which we operate is subject to
change, particularly in light of the October 31, 2011 bankruprcy
fiting of MF Global and actions taken by the CFTC on July 19,
2012 to freeze assets of Peregrine Financial Group, a futures
commission merchant. Both matters resulted from potential
deficiencies in customer segregated futures accounts. On
November 14, 2013, the CFTC finalized new rules known as
“Enhancing Customer Protections Rules”. These provisions,
among other things, require enhanced customer protections, risk
management programs, internal monitoring and conerols, capital
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and liquidity standards, customer disclosures, and auditing and
examination programs for FCMs. These rule changes, additional
legislation or regulations, changes required under the Dodd-Frank
Wall Streer Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-
Frank Act”) and any new or revised regulation by the SEC, the
CFTC, other United States or foreign governmental regulatory
authorities, SROs or FINRA could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
Changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws
and rules by these governmental authorities, SROs and FINRA
could alse have a marerial adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and operating fesults, Failure to comply with current
or future legislation or regulations that apply to our operations
could subject us to fines, penalties, or material restrictions on
our business in the future,

Additional regulation, changes in existing faws and rules, or
changes in interpretations or enforcement of existing laws and
rules often directly affect financial services firms. We cannot
predict what effect any such changes might have. Qur business,
financial condition and operating results may be materially
affected by both regulations thar ate directly applicable to us
and regulations of general application. Our level of trading
and market-making activities can be affected not only by such
legislation or regulations of general applicability, but also by

industry-specific legislation or regulations.

We have incurred significant additional
operational and compliance costs to meet the
requirements Tﬂ;;f recent legislation and related
regulations. This legislation and the related
regulations may significantly affect our business
in the future.

Recent market and economic conditions have led to legislation
and regulation affecting the financial services industry. These
legislative and regulatory initiatives have affected not only us,
bur also our competitors and certain of our clients. These changes
could eventually have an effect on our revenue and profitability,
limit our ability to pursue certain business opportunities, impact
the vaiue of assets that we hold, require us to change certain
business practices, impase additional costs on us, and otherwise
adversely affect our business. Accordingly, we cannot provide
assurance that new legislation and regulation will not eventually
have an adverse effect on our business, results of opetations, cash
flows and financial condition.

The principal legislation is the Dodd-Frank Act which as already
stated creates a comprehensive new regulatory regime governing
the OTC and listed derivatives markets and their participants by
requiring, among other things: centralized clearing of standardized
derivatives (with certain stated exceptions); the trading of
clearable derivatives on swap execution facilicies or exchanges;
and regjstration and comprehensive regulation of new categories
of market participants as “swap dealers” and swap “introducing
brokers.” The Dodd-Frank Act grants regulatory authorities,



such as the CFTC and the SEC, broad rule-making authority to
implement various provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act, including
comprehensive regulation of the OTC derivatives market, These
regulators will continue w exercise, their expanded rule-making
powers in ways that will affect how we conduct our business.

We have incurred and expect to continue to incur significant
costs to comply with these regulatory requirements. We have
also incurred and expect to continue to incur significant costs
related to the development, operation and enhancement of
our technology relating to trade execution, trade reporting,
surveillance, record keeping and data reporting obligations,
compliance and back-up and disaster recovery plans designed
to meet the requirements of the regulators.

Changes that will be required in our OTC and clearing businesses
may adversely impact our results of operations. Following the
implementation of all of the rules contemplated by the Dodd-Frank
Act, the markets for cleared and non-cleared swaps may be less
robust, there may be less volume and liquidity in these matkets
and there may be less demand for our services. Certain banks and
other institutions will be limited in their conducr of proprietary
trading and will be further limited or prohibited from trading
in certain detivatives. The new rules, including the restrictions
on the trading activities for certain banks and large institutions,
could impact trransaction volumes and liquidiry in these markets
and our revenues would be adversely impacted as 2 result.

Changes that will be required in our OTC and clearing businesses
may also adversely impact our cash flows and financial condition.
Registration will impose substantial new requirements upon
these entities including, among other things, capital and margin
requirements, business conduct standards and record keeping and
data reporting obligations. Increased regulatory oversight could
also impose administrative burdens on us related 10, among other
things, responding to regulatory examinations ar investigations.
We registered our subsidiary, INTL FCStone Markets, LLC, asa
swap dealer on December 31, 2012. Most of the rules affecting this
business have now been finalized, and external business conduct rules
came into effect on May 1. 2013. Nevertheless, some imporcant
rules, such as those setting capital and margin requirements, have
not been Ginalized or fully implemented, and it Is 1o early o predict
with any degree of certainty how we will be affected.

The increased costs associated with compliance, and the changes
thac will be required in our OTC and clearing businesses, may
adversely impact our results of operations, cash fews, and/or
financial condition.

We are subject to net capital requirements.

The SEC, FINRA and vatious other regulatory agencies require
our broker-dealer subsidiaries, INTL FCStone Securities Inc.
and FCC Investments, Inc. to maintain specific levels of net
capital. Failure to maintain the required net capital may subject
these subsidiaries to suspension or revocation of registration
by the SEC and suspension or expulsion by FINRA and other
regularory bodies.
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The CFTC and various other self-regulatory organizations require
our futures commission merchant subsidiary, FCStone, LLC, w0
maintain specific levels of net capital. Failure to maintain the
required net capital may subject this subsidiary to limitations on
its activities, including suspension or revocation of its registration
by the CFTC and suspension ot expulsion by the NFA and
various exchanges of which it is a member.

‘The FCA requires our UK subsidiary, INTL FCStone Lid. 1o
maintain specific levels of net capital. Failure to maintain the
tequired net capital may subject INTL FCStone Lud. to suspension
or revocation of its registration by the FCA.

Ultimately, any failure to meet capital requirements by our
secutities broker-dealer subsidiaries, or our FCM subsidiary ar
our UK subsidiary could result in liquidarion of che subsidiary.
Failure to comply with the net capital rules could have material
and adverse consequences such as limiting their operations, or
restricting us from withdrawing capital from these subsidiaries.

In addition, a change in the net capital rules, the imposition of
new rules or any unusually large charge against net capital could
limit our operations that require the intensive use of capital.
They could also restrict our ability to withdraw capital from
these subsidiaries. Any limitation on our ability to withdraw
capital could limit our ability to pay cask dividends, repay debt
and repurchase shares of our cutstanding stock. A significant
operating loss or any unusually large charge against net capital
could adversely affect our ability to expand or even maintain our
present levels of business, which could have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and operating results.

We are subject to margin funding requirements
on short notice.

Qur business involves establishment and carrying of substantial
open positions for customers on futures exchanges and in the
OTC detivatives markers. We ate required to post and maintain
margin or credit support for these positions. Although we collect
margin or other deposits from our customers for these positions,
significant adverse price movements can occur which will require
us to post margin or other deposits on shore notice, whether or
not we are able to collect additional margin or credit support
from our customers. We maintain borrowing facilities for the
purpose of funding margin and credit support and have systems to
endeavor to collect margin and other deposits from customers on
a same-day basis, there can be no assurance that these facilities
and systerns will be adequate to eliminate the risk of margin calls
in the event of severe adverse price movements affecting open
positions of our customers. Generally, if a cuscomer is unable
to meet izs margin call, we promptly liquidate the customer’s
account. However, there can be no assurance that in each case
the liquidation of the account will not result in a loss to us or
that liquidation will be feasible, given market conditions, size
of the account and tenor of the positions.
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Low short-term interest vates negatively impact
our profitability.

The level of prevailing short-term inserest rates affects our
profitability because we derive a portion of our revenue from
interest earned from the investment of funds deposited with us by
our custorners, As of Seprember 30, 2013, we had $1.7 billien in
customer segregated assets, which are generally invested in short-
term treasury securities and money market funds. Qur financial
performance generally benefits from rising interest races. Higher
interest rates increase the amount of interest income earned from
these customer depasits. If shore-term interest rates remain low or
continue to fall, our revenues derived from interest will decline
which would negatively impact our profitability.

Short-term interest rates are highly sensitive to factors that are
beyend our control, including general economic conditions and
the policies of various governmental and regulatory authorities.
In parricular, decreases in the federal funds rate by the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System usually lead to
decreasing interest rates in the U.S., which generally lead o0 2
decrease in short-term interest rates.

We may issue additional equiry securities.

The issuance of additional common stack or securities convertible
into our common stock could result in dilution of the ownership
interest in us held by existing stockholders. We are authorized
to issue, withouc stockholder approval, a significant number of
additional shares of our common stock and securities convertible
into either common stock or preferred stock.

We are subject to risks relating to litigation and
potential securities laws liability.

Wee face significant legal risks in our businesses, including risks
telated to currently pending litigation involving both the Company
and FCStone. Many aspects of our business involve substantial
risks of liability, including liability under federal and state securities
and commodities laws, other federal, state and foreign laws and
court decisions, as well as rules and regulations promulgared by the
SEC, the CFTC, FINRA, the FCA and other regulatory bodies.
Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against
us and our subsidiaries could have adverse financial effects or
cause significant reputational harm to us, which in turn could
seriously harm our business prospects. Any such litigation could
lead to more volatility of our stock price.

For a further discussion of litigation risks, sce Item 3—Legal
Proceedings below and Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies
in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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We are subject to intense competition.

We derive a significant portion of our tevenues from market-
making and cading activities involving securitics and commodities,
The market for these services, particularly market-making services
through electronic communications gateways, is rapidly evolving
and intensely competitive. We expect competition to continue
and intensify in the future. We compete primarily with wholesale,
national, and regional broker-dealers and FCMs, as well as
electronic communications networks. We compete primarily
on the basis of our expertise and quality of service.

We also derive a significant portion of our revenucs from
commodities risk management services. The commodity
risk management industry is very competitive and we expect
competition ta continue o ingensify in the future. Qur primary
competitors in this industry include both large, diversified
financial instizutions and commeodity-oriented businesses, smaller
firms that focus on specific products or regional matkets and
independent FCMs.

A number of our competitors have significantly greater financial,
technical, marketing and other resources than we have. Some
of them may:

* offer alternative forms of financial intermediation as a result
of superior technology and greater availability of informarion;

« offer a wider range of services and products than we offer;
* be larger and better capitalized;

* have greater name recognition; and

* have more extensive customer bases.

These competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new
or evalving opportunities and customer requirements. They may
also be able to undertake more extensive promotional activities
and offer mare attractive terms to customers, Recent advances
in computing and communications technology are substancially
changing the means by which market-making services ate delivered,
including more ditect access on-line to a wide variety of services
and information, This has created demand for more sophisticated
levels of customer service. Providing these services may entail
considerable cost wichout an offsetting increase in revenues. In
addition, current and potential competitors have established
or may establish cooperative relationships or may consolidate
to enhance their services and products. New competitors or
alliances among competitors may emerge and they may acquire
significant market share.

We cannot assure you thar we will be able to compete effectively
with current or future competitors or that the comperitive
pressures we face will not have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.



Our business could be adversely affected if we
are unable to retain our existing customers or
attract new customers.

The success of our business depends, in part, on our ability to
maintain and increase our customer base. Customers in our
market are sensitive to, among other things, the costs of using
our services, the quality of the services we offer, the speed and
reliability of order execution and the breadth of our service
offerings and the products and markets to which we offer access.
We may not be able to continue to offer the pricing, service,
speed and reliability of order execution or the service, preduct
and market breadth that customers desire. In addition, ofice
our risk management consulting customets have becotne better
educated with regard to sources of risk and the tools available
to facilitate the management of this risk and we have provided
them with recommended hedging strategies, they may no longer
continue paying monthly fees for these services. In addition, the
bankruptcy filing of MF Glabal and its disclosure of a potential
deficiency in customer segregared futures accounts may negatively
affect the perception of our industry and our ability to retain
existing customers or attract new customers. Furthermore, our
existing customers, including IRMP customers, are not generally
obligated to use our services and can switch providers of clearing
and execution services or decrease their wading activity conducted
through us at any time. As a result, we may fail to retain existing
customers or be unable to attract new customers. Our failure to
maintain or attract customers could have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and opetating resules.

We rely on relationships with introducing
brokers for obtaining some of our customers.

‘The failure to maintain these relationships could adversely affect
our business. We have relationships with introducing brokers
who assist us in establishing new customer telationships and
provide matketing and customer service funcrions for some of
our customers. These introducing brokers receive compensation
for incroducing customers to us. Many of our relationships with
introducing brokers ate non-exclusive or may be canceled on
relatively short notice. In addition, our imroducing brokers
have no obligation to provide new customer refationships or
minimum levels of transaction volume. Our failure to maintain
these relationships with these introducing brokets or the failure
of these introducing brokers to establish and maintain customer
relationships would result in a loss of revenues, which could
adversely affect our business.
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Certain provisions af Delaware law and our
charter may adversely affect the rights of holders
of our common stock and make a takeover of us

more difficulr.
We are organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, Certain

provisions of Delaware law may have the effect of delaying or
preventing a change in control. In addicion, certain provisions of
our certificate of incorporation may have anti-takeover effects and
may delay, defer or prevent a takeover actempt that a stockholder
might consider in its best interest. Qur certificate of incorporation
authorizes the board to determine the terms of our unissued series
of preferred stock and to fix the number of shares of any series of
preferred stock without any vote or action by our stockholders.
As a resulr, the board can authorize and issue shares of preferred
stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect
the voting or other rights of holders of our commen stock. In
addition, the issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control, because the rights
given to the holders of a series of preferred stock may prohibit a
merger, reorganization, sale, liquidation or other extraordinary
corporate transaction.

Our stock price is subject to volatility.

The market price of our common stock has been and can be
expected to be subject o fluctuation as a result of a variety of
factors, many of which are beyond our control, including:

+ actual or anticipated variations in our results of operations;
# announcements of new products by us or our competitors;
* technological innovations by us or our competitors;

* changes in earnings estimates or buy/sell recommendations

by financial analysts;
* the operating and stock price performance of other companies;

* general market conditions or conditions specific in specific
markets;

* conditions or trends affecting our industry or the economy
generally;

* announcements relating to stracegic relationships or acquisitions;
and

* risk factors and uncertainties set forth elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Because of this volatility; we may fail to meet the expectations of
our stockholders or of securities analysts, and the trading prices
of our common stock could decline as a result. In addition, any
negative change in the public’s petception of the securities industry
could depress our stock price regardless of our operating results,
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Furure sales by existing stockholders could depress che market
price of our commeon stock. If our stockholders sell substantial
amounts of our common stock in the public market, the market
price of our common stock could fall. Such sales afso might make
it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a
time and price that we deem approptiare.

Our international operations involve special
challenges that we may not be able to meet, which
could adversely affect our financial results.

We engage in a significant amount of business with customers in
the international markets. Certain additional risks are inherent
in doing business in international markets, pardicularly in a

regulated industry. These risks include:

» the inability to manage and coordinate the various regulatory
requirements of multiple jurisdictions that are constandy
evolving and subject to unexpected change;

* tariffs and other trade barriers;

« difficulties in recruiting and retaining personnel, and managing
international operations;

* difficulties of debt collection in foreign jurisdictions;
* potentially adverse tax consequences; and

* reduced protection for intellectual property rights,

Our operations are subject to the political, legal
and econoniic visks associared with politically
unstable and less developed regions of the world,
including the risk of war and other international
conflicts and actions by governmental authorities,
insurgent groups, terrovists and others.

Specifically, we conduct business in countries whose currencies
may be unstable, Future instability in such currencies or the
imposition of governmental or regulatory restrictions on such
currencies could impede our foreign exchange business and our
ability to collect on collateral held in such currencies.

Our operations are required to comply with the
laws and regulations of foreign governmental
and regulatory authorities of each country in
which we conduct business, and if we violate
these regulations, we may be subject to significant
penalties.

The financial services industry is subject to extensive laws,
rules and regulations in every country in which we operate.
Firms that engage in commodity futures brokerage, secutities
and derivatives trading and investment banking must comply
with the laws, rules and regulations imposed by the governing
country, state, regulatory bodies and selt-regulatory bodies with
governing authority over such acrividies. Such laws, rules and
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regulations cover all aspects of the financial services business,
including, but not limited o, sales and trading methods, trade
practices, use and safekeeping of customers’ funds and securities,
capital structure, anti-money laundering and anti-bribery and
corruption efforts, recordkeeping and the conduct of directors,
officers and employees.

Each of our regulators supervises our business activities to
monitor compliance with such laws, rules and regulations in
the relevant jurisdiction. In addition, if there are instances in
which our regulatots question our compliance with laws, rules,
and regulations, they may investigate the facts and circumstances
to determine whether we have complied. A any moment in
time, we may be subject to one or more such investigation ot
similar reviews. At this time, we believe all such invescigations,
and similar reviews are insignificant in scope and immaterial to
us, However, there can be no assurance that, in the future, the
operations of our businesses will not violate such laws, rules, and
regulations and that related investigations and similar reviews
could result in adverse regulatory requiremencs, regulatory
enforcement actions and/or fines.

Additional legislation, changes in rules, changes in the
interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules, or
the entering into businesses that subject us to new rules and
regulations may directly affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

In the United Kingdom, our previous primary regulator, the
U K. Financial Services Authority (*FSA”), has been replaced
by the Prudential Regulation Authority (“PRA”}, a subsidiary
of The Bank of England, and the Financial Conduct Authority
(“FCA"}. The PRA will handle prudential supervision of the
more systemicaily important institucions and the FCA will
focus en consumer protection and market regulation as well as
prudential supervision of all other regulated financial instirutions.
Our regulated U X. subsidiaries, INTL FCStone Ltd. and INTL
Global Currencies Limited, are evaluating the impact of these
changes on their businesses.

We continue to monitor the impact that the Basel Accords will
have on us. The latest updare issued by the Basel Committee
on Banking Supervision in December 2010, known as Basel
M1, has recommended strengthening capital and liquidity rules.
In response, the European Commission is in the process of
implementing amendments ro its Capital Requirements Directive
known as CRD 1V. Changes under CRD IV are expected to start
to come into effect in early 2014 and we continue to monirtor
the porential impact on our subsidiaries that operate in the
United Kingdom.

"The European Markec Infrasteucrure Reguladion (“EMIR”} came
into force in August 2012 and became effective in the United
Kingdom in 2013. In common with the Dodd-Frank Act in the
United States, these rules are intended, among other things, to
reduce counterparty risk by requiring that all standardized over-
the-counter derivatives are cleared through a central counterparty.



We are reviewing EMIR and the related technical standards
published by the European Securities and Markets Authority

and developing a plan to address these requirements.

We are also reviewing the amendments to the Markers in Financial
Instruments Directive and the Markets in Financial Instruments
Regulation to assess the impact this legislation is likely to have
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on our business when they come into force in 2014 or 2015.
Among ather things, the legislation will require certain over-
the-counter derivatives to be traded on exchanges and other
electronic trading platforms.

If we are unable to manage any of these risks effectively, our
business could be adversely affected.

ITEM 1B Unresolved Staff Comments

We have received no written comments regarding our periodic or current reports from the staff of the SEC that were issued 180 days
or more preceding the end of our fiscal year 2013 that remain unresolved.

ITEM 2 Properties

The Company maintains offices in New York, New York; Winter
Park, Florida; West Des Moines, lowa; Chicago, Illinois; Kansas
City, Missouri; St. Louis, Missouri; Bloomfeld, Nebraska; Omaha,
Nebraska; Minneapolis, Minnesota; Bloomington, [llinois;
Miami, Florida; New Smyrna Beach, Florida; Indianapolis,
Indiana; Spirit Lake, Iowa; Bowling Green, Ohio; Nashville,
Tennessee; Golden, Colorado; Lawrence, Kansas; Winnipeg,
Canada; Buenos Aires, Argentina; Campinas, Brazil; Sao Paulo,

ITEM 3 Legal Proceedings

In addition to the marters discussed below, from time to time
and in the ordinary course of business, we ate involved in various
legal acrions and proceedings, including torr claims, contractual
disputes, employment matters, workers’ compensation claims
and collections, We carry insurance that provides protection
against certain types of claims, up to the policy limits of our
insurance. In the opinion of management, possible exposure
from loss contingencies in excess of the amounts accrued, and
in addicion to the possible losses discussed below, is not likely
to be material to our earnings, financial position or liquidity.

The following is a summary of our significant legal marters.

Brazil; Maringa, Brazil; Porto Alegre, Brazil; Goianai, Brazil;
Recife, Brazil; Asuncion, Paraguay; London, United Kingdom;
Dublin, Irefand; Dubai, United Arab Emirates; Singapore,
Singapore; Beijing and Shanghai, China; and Sydney, Australia.

All of our offices and other principal business properties are
leased, excepr for the space in Buenos Aires, which we own.
We believe that our leased and owned facilities aze adequate to
meet anticipated requirements for our current lines of business.

Securities Litigation and Regulatory
Proceedings

FCStone and certain officers of FCStone were defendants in an
action filed in the United States District Court for the Western
District of Missouri in July 2008. Plaintiffs subsequently filed 2
consolidated amended complaint (“CAC”) in September 2009,
As alleged in the CAC, the action purports to be broughe as a
class action on behalf of purchasers of FCStone common stock
between November 15, 2007 and February 24, 2009, The CAC
seeks to hold defendancs liable under Section 10(b} and Section
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and concerns
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disclosures included in FCStone’s fiscal year 2008 public filings.
Specifically, the CAC relates to FCStone’s public disclosures
regarding an interest rate hedge, a bad debr expense atising from
unprecedented events in the cotton trading marker, and certain
disclosures beginning on November 3, 2008 related to losses it
expected o incur arising primarily from a customer enerpy trading
account. FCStone and the named officers moved to dismiss
the action. The parties to the litigation reached an agreement
in principle to settle this macter during May 2012, which was
approved by order of the court on July 23, 2013. The settlement
was at 1o cost to us after consideration of insurance coverage.

In August 2008, shareholders filed a derivarive action against
FCStone and certain directors of FCStone in the Circuit Court
of Platte County, Missouri, alleging breaches of fiduciary duties,
waste of corporate assess and unjust enrichment. Shareholders
subsequently filed an amended complaint was subsequently filed
in May 2009 1o add claims based upon the losses sustained by
FCStone arising out of a customer'’s energy trading account. In
July 2009, the same plaintiff filed 2 motion for leave to amend
the existing case to add a purported class action claim on behalf
of the holders of FCStone common stock.

In July 2009, plaintiffs filed a purported shareholder class action
complaint against FCStone and its directors, as well as the
Company in the Circuit Court of Clay County, Missouri. ‘The
complaint afleged thac FCStane and its directors breached their
fiduciary duties by failing to maximize stockholder value in
connection with the conremplared acquisition of FCStone by the
Company. This complaint was subsequently consolidated with the
complaint filed in the Circuit Court of Platte County, Missouri.
The plaintiffs subsequently filed an amended consolidated
complaint which does not assert any claims against the Company.
This complaint purports to be filed derivarively on FCStone’s
and our behalf against certain of FCStone’s current and former
directors and officers and directly against the same individuals.
We, FCStone, and the defendants filed motions to dismiss on
muldple grounds. The parties to the litigation have reached
an agreement in principle to settle this marter. This agreement
was provisionally approved by the court on December 4, 2013,
and is expected to be finally approved on March 19, 2014. The
agreement, if finally approved, would result in our incurrence
of a legal cost of $265,000 after consideracion of expected
insurance coverage.

In November 2011, the Commeodity Futures Trading Commission
(“CFTC”) Division of Enforcement Staff (“Staff”) requested we
voluntarily produce specified documents to the Staff in connection
with its then informal investigation of the losses that occurred
in 2008 and 2009 in the customer energy ttading account of
FCStone, LLC. In Septemnber 2012, the Staff provided us witha
Wells notice, indicating the Staff’s intention to recommend that
the CFTC bring certain charges against FCStone, LLC. We filed
our Wells submission with che Staff in Octaber 2012. On May
29, 2013, we reached a settlement with the CFTC in this matter.
The CFI'Cs hindings, neither admitted nor denied by us, were
that FCSrone, LLC violated CFTC Regulation 166.3 in that it
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failed to diligently supervise its officers’ and employees’ activities
relating to risks associated with its customers’ accounts, and in
particular one account concrolled by two of FCStone’s customers
who traded in natural gas futures, swaps and option contracts.

The settlement, with appropriate waivers and consents, requited
ECStone, LLC 1o

» cease and desist from violating CFTC Regulation 166.3;
# pay $1.5 million to the CFIC; and

* appoint an independenc third party reviewer to review and
evaluate FCStone, LLC’s existing policies and procedures
relating to certain risks, to ensure that we have made sufficient
modifications to our risk controls since 2008,

We paid the fine of $1.5 million in full in fiscal 2013, Also,
we have appointed an independent third party w conduct the
aforementioned review of policies and procedures, and that
review is currently in process.

Sentinel Litigation

Qur subsidiary, FCStone, LLC, had a portion of its excess
segregated funds invested with Sentinel Management Group
Inc. {“Sentinel™), a registered FCM and an Illinois-based money
manager that provided cash management services to other FCMs.
In August 2007, Sentinel halted redemptions to customers and
sold certain of the assets it managed to an unaffiliaved third party
at a significant discount. On August 17, 2007, subsequent to
Sentinel’s sale of certain assets, Sentinel filed for bankruptcy
protection and $15.5 million of FCStone, LLC’s $21.9 million

in invested funds were returned to it.

In August 2008, the bankruptey trustee of Sentinel filed adversary
proceedings against FCStone, LLC, and a number of other FCMs
in the Bankruptcy Cours for the Northern District of Ilinois.
The case was subsequently reassigned to the United States District
Coust, for the Northern District of Illinois. In the complaing, the
trustee is seeking avoidance of alleged wansfers or withdrawals of
funds received by FCStone, LLC and other FCMs within 90 days
prior to the filing of the Sentinel bankruptcy petition, as well as
avoidance of post-petition distributions and disallowance of the
proof of claim filed by FCSrone, LLC. The trustee secks recovery
of pre- and post-petition transfers totaling approximately $15.5
million, In April 2009, the trustee filed an amended complaint
adding a claim for unjust enrichment. FCStone, LLC answered
the complaints and all parties entered into the discovery phase
of the litigation. In January 2011, the trustee filed a motion for
summary judgment on various counts in the adversary proceedings
filed in August 2008 against FCStone, LLC and a number of
other FCMs. In January 2012, FCStone, LLC filed 2 motion for
summary judgment in its favor with respect to the transfer of
approximately $1.1 million to its customer segregated account
on August 17, 2007, pursuant o the “safe harbor” provisions
of Section 546(¢) of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In April 2012,
FCStone, LLC filed a motion to dismiss a portion of the trustee’s



claims set forth in its amended complaint. The trial of this matter
took place, as a test case, during October 2012. The trial court
entered a judgment against FCStone, LLC on January 4, 2013.
On January 17, 2013, the trial court entered an agreed order,
staying execution and enforcement, pending an appeal of the
judgment. By agreement, FCStone, LLC was required to post
an appeal cash deposit of $8.0 million with the court, which
was depaosited on January 18, 2013. 'The oral arguments in the
appeal were heard on December 10, 2013. Based on the merits

PART I
ITEM 4 Mine Safery Disclosures

of our appeal, management believes a loss is not probable, and
thus has not recorded a provision for this marter. We believe
that if the appeal is unsuccessful, the resulting pre-tax loss to
FCStone, LLC would be in the range of $4 million to $6 million.

Our assessments are based on estimates and assumptions char
have been deemed reasonable by management, but that may later
prove to be incomplete or inaccurate, and unanticipated events
and circumstances may occur that might cause us to change
those estimates and assumptions.

ITEM 4 Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable,
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PART I1

ITEM 5 Market for Registrant’s Common Equity,
Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market  holders of record of our common stock. The high and low sales
LLC ("NASDAQ”) undet the symbol ‘INTL. Our common prices per share of our common stock for each full quarterly
stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Matker. As of  period during fiscal 2013 and 2012 were as follows:
September 30, 2013, there were approximately 293 registered

Price Range
High Low

2013 -

Fourth Quarter 3 2075 § 16.73
- Third Quarser $ 18.60 § i6.11

Second Quarter $ 19.97 § 17.10
. First Quarteq $ 20.08 $ 1645
2012:

Fourth Quarter $ 21.03 § 17.73

Third Quarter $ 2266 § 17.60

Secand Qraarter $ 2734 § 21.05

First Quarter 3 25.18 § 20.36

Value over 5 years of $100 invested on September 30, 2008 in each

o of the company’s stock (“INTL?), S&P 500 Index and NYSE/Arca Securities Broker/Dealer Index

40 |
;
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
- INTL "' S&P 500 Index - @ - NYSE/Arca Securities Broker/Dealer Index
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We have never declared any cash dividends on our commeon stock,
and do not currently have any plans to pay dividends on its common
stock. The payment of cash dividends in the future is subject to
the discretion of the Board of Directors and wilt depend on our
earnings, financial condition, capital requirements, contractual
restrictions and other relevant factors. Qur credit agreements
currently prohibit the payment of cash dividends by us.

On November 15, 2012, aur Board of Directors replaced the
August 12, 2011 authorized repurchase of up to 1.0 million

PART 11
ITEM 6 Selected Financial Data

shares of our outstanding common stock with an authorization
to repurchase up to 1.5 million shares of our outstanding
commen stock from time to time in open market purchases
and private transactions, subjecr to the discretion of the senior
management team to implement our stock repurchase plan,
and subject to market conditions and as permitted by securities
laws and other legal and regulatory requirements. Qur common
stock repurchase program activity for the three months ended
September 30, 2013 was as follows:

Total Number Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of Shares
of Shares Average Price  Purchased as Part of Publicly Remaining to be Purchased
Period Purchased Paid per Share Announced Program Under the Program
Jaly 1, 2013 o July 31, 2013 =% = — 1172175
August 1, 2013 o Augusr 31, 2013 63,004 15.39 63,004 1,109,171
Seprember 1, 2013 1o September 30, 2013 27,087 19.94 27,087 1,082,084
TOTAL 90,091 $ 19.58 90,091

Information relating to compensation plans under which our
Ttem 12 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

equity securities are authorized for issuance is set forch in Part HI,

ITEM 6 Selected Financial Data

'The following selected financial and operating data are derived
from our consolidated financial statements and should be read
in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, included in
Item 7 and our Consolidated Financial Statements included in
Ttem 8. The selected financial information for fiscal years ended
2012, 2011, and 2010 have been restated to reflect adjustments
to our consolidated financial statements which are included in

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September
30, 2013. 'The consolidated income statement data for fiscal years
2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010 reflects the results of FCSione,
which was acquired on September 30, 2009. The consolidated
income statement data for fiscal 2009 does not include the
historical results of FCStone. The selected consolidated balance
sheet informatien reflects che financial condition of INTL after
the FCStone transaction.

SELECTED SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (U.S. GAAP)

Year Ended September 30,
{in milfions, excopt shave and per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
B . (As Restated)  (As Restated)  {As Restated)

QOperating revenues § . | 4T84 454.2 $ 419.1 $ 2671 ¢ 20.6
“Transaction-based clearing expenses R STI N1 105.4 75.6 66.4 119
Introducing broker commissions 40.5 31.0 24.0 18.9 —
Interest expense ' 12.:5_" 11.6 11.3 9.9 8.0

Ner operating revenues 3153 306.2 308.2 i71.9 70.7

Compensation and other expenses: B
Compensation and benefits 2016 202.4 176.6 104.2 40.2
Communication and data services 23.3 22.6 15.5 11,1 2.1
Occupancy and equipment rental o120 11.0 8.9 6.2 1.1
Professional fees B 12.9 10.6 8.1 22
Travel and business development 107 11.2 8.9 6.3 19
Depreciation and arnortization 3.0 7.2 47 1.6 0.8
Bad debts and impairments 0.8 1.5 6.2 5.8 3.0
Other o 232 21.6 214 12,6 6.1

Total compensation and other expenses g 2927 $ 2904 $ 252.8 § 1559 % 57.4
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Year Ended September 30,
(in millions, except share and per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Income from continuing operations, before rax ' 226 15.8 55.4 6.0 13.3
Income tax expense S33 3.1 20.9 57 26
Income (loss) from discontinued operacions, net of uax ' Sl — 0.2 0.6 (1.1}
Income before extraordinary (loss) income 193" 12.7 34.7 10.9 9.6
Extraordinary (foss) income = — — 7.0) 18.5
Net income 19.3 12.7 34.7 3.9 28.1
Add: Net loss (income) actriburable
to noncontrolling interests — 0.1 0.1 0.3 (0.5}
Net income atrributable to INTL FCStone Inc. common ‘
stockholders $ . 193 % 12.8 § 348 % 42 % 27.6
Eamings per share; 1
Basic $ 100§ 0.67 $ 193 $ 0.24 $ 3.11
Diluted $ D97 s 064 $ 8% $ 023 % 2.30
Number of shares: S
Basic 18,443,233 18,282,939 17,618,085 17,306,019 8,895,697
Diluted 19,068,497 . 19,156,899 18,567,454 17,883,233 10,182,586
Selected Balance Sheet Informartion: R
Toral assets $ 28480 5 2,953.0 % 2,6320 % 2,019.8 § 1,555.7
Converrible notes $ —$ — % — 3 167 $ 16.7
Seockholders” equity - 3 335.4 § 3132 § 2926 § 240.1 % 238.8
ADJUSTED NON-GAAP FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) '
Year Ended September 30,
(in millions, except employees) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
' © (AsRestared)  (AsRestated)  (As Restated)
Adjusted Non-GAAP Data (Unaudited):
Adjnsted operating revenues: ‘
Operating revenues $ 4734 3 4542 $ 4191 § 2671 906
Marked-to-matket adjustment {(non-GAAP) (11,1 | 6.8 (8.4) 6.0 6.9
Adjusted operating revenues (non-GAATP) $ 4673 @ 0§ 4610 $ 410.7 $ 2731 $ 975
Adjusted net operating revenues: -
Net operating revenues $ 3153 . % 3062 $ 3082 $ 1719 $ 707
Marked-ro-market adjustment {non-GAAP) (1.1} ° 6.8 (8.4 6.0 6.9
Adjusted net operating revenues {non-GAAP) $ 3042 $ 3130 $ 2998 $ 1779 $ Ti6
Adjusted income from continuing operations: ;
Income from continuing operations, before tax 3 2468 % 15.8 $ 354 $ 160 $ 133
Miarked-to-market adjustment (non-GAAP) aLy 6.8 {8.4) 6.0 69
Adjusted income from continuing operarions, before '
tax {non-GAAP) $ 115 $ 226 $ 470 $§ 220 $§ 202
Adjusted net income attributable !
to INTL FCStone Inc. common stockholders:
Net income attributable to INTL FCStone Inc,
common stockholders® $ 193 $ 128 $ 348 $ 42 $ 276
Marked-to-marker adjustment (non-GAAP) ULy 6.8 (8.4) 6.0 6.9
Tax effect at blended rate of 37.5% 4.2 (2.6) 3.2 2.3) (2.5)
Adjusted net income artributable 1o INTL FCStone L
Inc. common stockholders (non-GAAD) $ 124 ; 3 17.0 8 206 $ 7.9 $ 320
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Year Ended September 30,
(in millions, except employees) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Adjusted stockholders’ equity: TR SN )
" Srockholdets® equity® . R3 3835400 § 3132 $ 2926 $ 2401 . § 2388
Cumulative marked-to-market adjustment Tk
(non-GAAP) d, 15.4 8.6 17.0 11.0
- “Tax effect at blended rate of 37.5% e 1.6) (5.8) (3.2} {6.4) 4.1 .
Adjusted stockholders’ equity (non—GAAP) ¥ 81 $§ 3228 $ 2980 $  250.7 $ 2457
 Return on average adjusted stockholders’ eqmry ! S o R -
" {non-GAAP)® 3.8% 5.5% 10.8% 6.0% T HGL6%:
Other Data: KN -
Employees® 1,004 1,074 904 729 635
Compensation and benefits as a percentage of e
adjusted operaring revenues . _43.1% 43.9% 43.0% 38.2% 41,2%
(@) Net income and stockholders equity for fiscal 2010 includes a $7.0 million extraordinary loss resulti m purchase price adjusirnents and the correction of immaterial

errors related to the FCStone transaction. Net income and stockbolders’ equity for fiscal 2009 inchudes an $18.5 million extraordinary gain related ro the FCSpone

transaction.

(8) Retwrn on average adjusied stockholders’ equity for fiscal 2010 excludes the effect of the 37.0 million extraordinary loss resulting from purchase price adjustments and the
correction af i immaterial errors related to the FCStone transaction. Retwrn on average ddj'mted stockholders equity ft}r ﬁsrtzl 2009 excludes the ejfm t.f:m 3185 million

extraordinary gain related to the FCStone transaction.

(c)  The nuntber of employees listed in fiscal 2009 includes the number of employees of FCStone as of September 30, 2009.

As discussed in previous filings and elsewhere in this Form 10-K,
U.S. GAAP requires us to carry derivatives at fair value bur
physical commodities inventory at the lower of cost ot fair value.
These requirements may have a significant temporary impact on
our reported earnings. Under U.S. GAAP, gains and losses on
commodities inventory and derivatives which we intend to be
offsetting are often recognized in different petiods. Additionally,
in cerrain circumstances, U.S. GAAP does not permirt us to
reflect changes in estimated values of forward commitments
to purchase and sell commodities. In such circumstances,
the forward commitments to purchase and sell commodities,
which we do not reflect in the consolidated balance sheets, do
not qualify as a detivative under the Derivatives and Hedging
Topic of the ASC.

For these reasons, management primarily assesses our aperating
results on a marked-to-market basis. Management relies on these
adjusted operating results to evaluate the performance of our
physical commodities businesses and its personnel.

The Unaudited Adjusted Data in the table above reflect our
adjusted operating revenues, adjusted net operating revenues,
adjusted net income and adjusted stockholders” equity, which have
been adjusted to reflect the marked-to-market differences in our
physical commodities businesses during each period (in the case of
operating revenues, net operating revenucs and net income) and
the cumulative differences (in the case of stockholders’ equity).
We have also included the estimated rax liability which would
have been incurred as a result of these adjustments, uzilizing a

blended tax rate of 37.5%.

Adjusted opetating revenues, adjusted net operating revenues,
adjusted income from continuing operations, before tax, adjusted
net income, and adjusted stockholders’ equity are financial
measures that are not recognized by U.S. GAAP, and should
not be considered as alternatives to operating revenues, net
operating revenues, net income or stockholders” equity calculated
under U.S. GAAP or as an alternative to any other measures
of performance derived in accordance with 11.5. GAAP. We
have included these non-GAAP financial measures because we

" believe that they permit investors to make more meaningful

comparisons of performance between the periods presented. In
addition, these non-GAATP measures are used by management
in evaluating our performance.

We determine the fair value of physical commodities inventory
on a marked-to-market basis by applying quoted matker prices to
the inventory we own on the balance sheet date. In our prectous
metals business, we obtain the closing COMEX neatby futures
price for the Jast business day of the month and then adjust that
price to reflect an exchange for physical transaction, utilizing
bids obtained from one ot more market participants. In our
base metals business, for copper inventoty, we obuain the closing
COMEX or LME nearby futures price and then adjust that price
to reflect any freight charges to the relevant delivery point. For
our lead inventory, we obuin che closing LME nearby futures
month price and then adjust that price to reflect any tolling
and freight charges to the relevant delivery point. If inventories
were required to be valued using fair value instead of under U.S.
GAAP at the lower of cost or market, our physical commodities
inventory would be classified as Level 2 assets using the Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the ASC.
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ITEM 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations

The following discussion should be read together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain statements
in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” are forward-looking stavements that
involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, many
of which are beyond our control. Words such as “may”, “will”,
“should”, “would”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “plans”,
“believes”, “secks”, “estimates” and similar expressions identify
such forward-locking statements. The forward-looking statements
contained hetein are based on current expectations and entail
various risks and uncertainties that could cause actual resulis 1o

differ materially from those expressed in such forward-looking
statements, Factors that might cause such a difference include,
among other things, those set forth under “Risk Factors™ and those
appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Readers are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements,
which reflecc management’s analysis only as of the date hercof. We
assumne no obligation to update these forward-looking statements
to teflect actual results or changes in factors or assumptions
affecting forward-looking statements, Readers are cautioned
that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance,

Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

As discussed further in Notes 2 and 21 of the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” contained in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K, we are restating consolidated financial statements
and other information for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2012 and 2011, certain financial information for the year ended
September 30, 2010, and for each of the quarters in the fiscal year
ended Septernber 30, 2012, Management identified a marerial
weakness in internal control over financial reporting that existed as
of September 30, 2013, related to the accurate and timely
accounting for certain principal over-the-counter derivative trading
activities. Specifically, controls aver the reconciliation between
trading system data and the general ledger were not designed and
operating effectively to timely detect errors in recording trading
gains to the general ledger. As a result of this material weakness,

Overview

we misstated cettain principal over-the-counter derivative trading
activities during the reporting periods of October 1, 2010 through
September 30, 2013. Our corrections related to these errors in
aggregate resulted in a reduction in net income of $5.9 million
collectively for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011, and
2010. The correction of these errors had no impact on the net
cash flows related to operaring activities, investing actividies,
or financing activities in our previously reporsed consolidated
statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2012 and 2011.

See Note 2 of the Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements
for further derail. Also, see “Controls and Procedures” included
in Part IT, Item 9A of this Form 10-K.

INTL FCStone Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries form a financial
services group employing nearly 1,100 people in offices in eleven
countries. Our services include comprehensive risk management
advisory services for commercial cuscomers; execution of listed
futures and options-on-futures contracts on all major commodity
exchanges; the sale of structured aver-the-counter ("OTC”} products
in a wide range of commodities; physical trading and hedging of
precious metals and select other commodities; trading of more than
130 foreign currencies; market-making in international equities;
and debt origination and asset management.

We provide these services to a diverse group of more than 20,000
accounts, representing approximately 11,000 consolidated
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customers Jocated in mote than 100 countries, including producers,
processors and end-users of nearly all widely-traded physical
commedities; commercial counterparties who are end-users of
our products and services; governmental and non-governmental
organizations; and commercial banks, brokers, institutional
investors and major investment banks,

As discussed in Irem 6 - Selected Financial Data, U.S. GAAP
requites us to catry decivatives at fair value but physical
commeodities inventory at the lower of cost or fair value. These
requirements may have a significant temporary impact on
our repotted earnings. Under U.S. GAAR gains and losses on

commodities inventory and derivatives which we intend to be
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offserting are often recognized in different periods. Additionally,
in certain circumstances, U.S. GAAP does not permit us to
reflect changes in estimated values of forward commitments to
purchase and sell commoadities, For these reasons, management
primarily assesses our operating results on a marked-to-market
basis. Management relies on these adjusted operating results to

evaluate the performance of our physical commodities businesses
and its personnel, as well as our overall pesformance, Additionally,
we focus on mitigating exposure to marker risk, ensuring adequate
liquidity to maintain daily operations and making non-interest
expenses variable, to the greatest extent possible,

Recent Events Affecting the Financial Services Industry

The Dodd-Frank Act created a comprehensive new regulatory
tegime governing the OTC and listed derivatives markets
and their participants by requiring, among other things:
centralized clearing of standardized derivatives (with certain
stated exceptions); the trading of clearable derivatives on
swap execution facilities or exchanges; and registration and
comprehensive regulation of new categories of matker participants
as “swap dealers” and swap “introducing brokers.” We registered
our subsidiary, INTL FCStone Markets, LLC, as a swap dealer
on December 31, 2012. Most of the rules affecting this business
have now been finalized, and external business conduct rules
came into effect on May 1, 2013. Nevertheless, some imporant
rules, such as those setting capital and margin requirements,
have not been finalized or fully implemented, and it is too early
to predict with any degree of certainty how we will be affeced.

Fiscal 2013 Highlights

We will continue to menitor all applicable developments in the
implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act. The legislation and
implementing regulations affect not only us, but also many of
our customers and connterparties.

In addition, in light of the banktuptey filing of MF Global and
actions taken by the CFTC to freeze assets of Peregrine Financial
Group, on November 14, 2013, the CFTC finalized new rules
known as “Enhancing Customer Protections Rules.” These provisions,
among other things, require enhanced customer protections, risk
management programs, internal monitoring and controls, capital
and liquidity standards, customer disclosures, and auditing and
examination programs for FCMs. These rules are effective January
13, 2014, however, certain provisions have alternative compliance
dates which extend through December 31, 2018.

* Record operating revenues and adjusted operating revenues of
$478.4 million and $467.3 million, respectively.

» Completed expansion and renewal of a three-year syndicated
committed loan facility for $140.0 million.

» Completed out first debt offering with a $45.3 miilion offering
of Senior Notes due in July 2020,

s Successfully registered INTL FCStone Markets, LLC as a
swap dealer.

Executive Summary

* Increased capacity of global payments business with a successful
migration to a new technology platform.

» Successfully transferred the accounts and integrated the
operations of Tradewite Securities, LLC.

e Reached an agreement to transfer the accounts of First American
Capital and Trading Corp. which is expected to close in the first
quarter of fiscal 2014, which will add cotrespondent clearing
service capabilities to our Securities segment.

We experienced growth in both operating revenues and adjusted
operating revenues duting fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012.
Net operating revenues, which represent operating revenues net of
transaction-based clearing expenses, introducing broker commissions
and interest expense, increased $9.1 million to $315.3 million in
fiscal 2013. However, adjusted net operating revenues declined
$8.8 million primarily resulting from an increase in transaction-
based clearing expenses in the Securities segment as well as an
increase in introducing broker commissions in both the Securities
and Clearing and Execution Services (“CES”) segments.

All of our segments, with the exception of the Commodity and
Risk Management Services (“C&RM”) segment experienced
operating revenue growch over both the prior year three-month

and year-to-date pesiods. The C&RM and CES segments continue
to be constrained by historically low interest rates. Interest income
earned on customer deposits declined 14% to $5.5 million,
even though average customer assets on deposit, which generate
interest income for us increased $06.7 million over the prior
fiscal year to $1.7 billion.

The decrease in our core CAIRM operating revenues was primarily
a result of declines in both exchange-traded and OTC transactional
volumes in our soft commodities product line, which was
constrained by the lingering effects of the consecutive droughts
in the United States during 2011 and 2012 on the agricultural
commodity markets.
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During the quarter ended March 31, 2013, as 2 result of z change
in management strategy in our base metals producr line, we clected
to putsue an exit of our physical base metals business through
the sale and/or orderly liquidation of current open positions.
During the following six months ended September 30, 2013, we
completed a sale of a portion of the physical base metals open
contract positions and the liquidation of the majority of the
remaining physical base metals inventory, as well as all but two
of the remaining open contract positions. The two remaining
open contract positions will be fulfilled during January 2014,
at which time we will reflect the physical base metals activities
in the financial stacements as discontinued operations. The
liquidarion of these outstanding positions in the six months
ended September 30, 2013, as well as the performance of the
physical base merals for fiscal 2013, contributed to 2 the decline
in C&RM segment adjusted operating revenues. Additionally,
on July 31, 2013, we elected to allow the $100.0 million credit
facility, which supported this business, 1o expire without renewal,
and the amount outstanding was repaid in full.

The declines in C&RM revenues have been partally offset by the
continued growth in aperating revenues generated by the LME
metals team, acquired during the first quarter of fiscal 2012,
We will continue to operate this component of our base metal
business, which assists our commercial customets in the execution
of hedging strategies in the financial base metals markets.

Operating revenues in our Foreign Exchange segment continued
to increase, as the global payments product line added additional
commercial banks and multi-national clients and successfully
implemented a new technology platform which enables us to
process increased volumes automacically, including smaller
notional payments, without requiting the hiring of additional
support personnel.

The Securities segment continued to show strong growth following
the acquisition of the accounts of Tradewire Securities, LLC
(“Tradewite Securities™) in the first quarter of fiscal 2013, as well
as revenue growth in the Argentina and Latin American debt
wrading businesses. Operating revenues in our Other segment

Results of Operations

continued to increase, #s revenues in both commodity financing
and physical commeodity origination business grew compared
to fiscal 2012

Overall, net income in fiscal 2013 increased compared 1o the
prior year, primarily as 2 result of the effect of realtzed gains
on the sale of precious and base metals inventories which were
carried at cost at September 30, 2012, which was below market
value. Adjusted net income declined in fiscat 2013 compared
to the prior year, primatily as a result of the decline in soft
commaodity product line revenues, the execution of the exit plan
in the physical base metals business, as well as the increase in
costs assoctated with the implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act
legislation and other regulatory reform, primarily in the form
of increased employee-related costs, which was partially offset
by the $9.2 million gain recognized during the first quarter of
fiscal 2013 on the sale of our shares in the LME and the Board of
"Trade of Kansas City, Missouri, Inc. (“KCB1™), following their
acquisitions by the Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing Limited
and the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (“CME”), respectively.

The performance of the physical base metals activities resulted in
pre-tax income of $1.4 million in fiscal 2013, including $1.9 million
in contract termination costs incurred since March 31, 2013.
On an adjusted, non-GAAP basis, the performance of the physical
base merals activities, including the aforementioned contract
termination costs, resulted in an adjusted, non-GAAP pre-tax loss
of $10.0 million in fiscal 2013, While two open contract positions
remain, whick run off through January 2014, the exit of the physicat
base metals business was substantially completed by the end of fiscal
2013, including the elimination of the physical base metals trading
team and certain operational support personnel.

During the fourth quarrer of fiscal 2013, we successfully completed
an offering of $43.5 million aggregate principal amount of cur
8.5% Senior Notes due in July 2020, This note offering, which
was the first public debt offering in our history, provided a
maore diversified capital structure by adding medium term debe
instruments w the Company’s publicly traded common shares
and commitred bank credit facilities.

Set forth below is our discussion of the results of our operations, as
viewed by management, for the fiscal years ended 2013, 2012
and 2011, 'This discussion refers to both U.S. GAAP results and
adjusted non-GAAP marked-to-market information, in accordance
with the informacion presented in Item 6, Selected Financial
Data. For the Foreign Exchange, Securities and CES segments,
there are no differences between the U.S. GAAP results and the
adjusted non-GAAT marked-to-market results. The C&RM
and Other segments have differences between the U.S. GAAP
results and the adjusted non-GAAP marked-to-marker results,
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This means that there are differences between the U.S. GAAP
basis and the non-GAAP matked-to-market basis total operating
revenues, tocal net operating revenues, total contribution and net
income. Please note that any term below that contains the word
‘adjusted’ refers to non-GAAP, marked-to-market information.

The discussion below relates only o continuing operations. All
revenues and expenses, including income tax expense, relating
to discontinued operations have been removed from disclosures
of total revenues and expenses in all periods and are reflected
net, in income from discontinued operations.
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Financial Overview

The following table shows an overview of our financial results:

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW (UNAUDITED)

Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 % Cha.n_gg 2012 % Cha.nge 2011 _
: {As Restated) © . (AsRestaredy
Operating revenues - § 4784 5% § 4542 8% § 4191
Marked-ro-marker adjustment (non-GAAP) ) {11.1) n/m 6.8 n/m DO (%
Adjusted operating revenues (non-GAAP) - 467.3 1% 461.0 12% 410.7
‘Transaction-based clearing expenses : 110.1 4% 105.4 39% 75.6
Introducing broker commissions 40.5 31% 31.0 29% . 24.0
Tnterest expense ‘ 12,5 8% 116 3% 113
Adjusted net operating revenues (non-GAAP) $ 304.2 (3% § 313.0 4% § 299.8
Compensation and other expenses 262.7 1% 290.4 15% . 252.8
Adjusted income from continuing operations,
before tax {(non-GAAP) § 11.5 (49% $ 22.6 (52)% % 47.0 ‘
Reconciliation of net operating revenues from GAAP
to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: ; .
Net operating revenues $ 315.3 :3 306.2 b3 308.2
Marked-to-market adjustment {non-GAAP) : 11y ' 638 (8.4
Adjusted net operating revenues (non-GAAP) $ 304.2 : $ 313.0 $ 299.8
Reconciliztion of income from continuing operations, !
before tax from GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: : ) _r
Income from continuing eperations before tax $ 226 $ 15.8 $ 55.4
Marked-to-market adjuscment {non-GAAP) { {11 6.8 . 8.4
Adjusted income from continuing opetations,
before tax (non-GAAP) $ 11.5 . 3 22,6 $ 47.0
Opemting Revenues segment, while Other segment adjusted operating revenues

increased $6.6 million as compared to the prior year. Adjusted
operating revenues are identical to operating revenues in all
other segments.

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Our operating revenues under U.S. GAAP for fiscal 2013 and
fiscal 2012 were $478.4 million and $454.2 million, respectively.
This $24.2 million, or 5% increase in operating revenue primarily
resulted from the $21.2 million increase in the Securities segment.
A $20.8 million decline in C&RM segment operating revenues
was nearly offset by a $7.0 million increase in the CES segment,
a $5.1 million increase in the Other segment, a $4.3 million
increase in the Foreign Exchange segment as well as 2 $9.2 million

realized gain on the sale of shares of the IME and KCBT in the 3 precious mecals and physical base metals of $3.8 million and
fiest quarter of fiscal 2013. $4.2 million, respectively, driven by higher metals prices. In
Our adjusted operating revenues were $467.3 million in fiscal 2013 addition, operating revenues in the ongoing LME metals tcam
compared with $461.0 million in fiscal 2012, an inctease of increased $7.7 million compared to the prior year.

$6.3 million, or 1%. The only difference between operating
revenues and adj usted operating revenues, a non-GAAP measure,
is the gross marked-to-market adjustment of ${11.1) million and
$6.8 million for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012, respectively. The
gross marked-to-marker adjustment only affects the adjusted
operating revenues in the C&RM and Other segments. Adjusted
operating revenues decreased by $40.2 million in the C8&RM

Operating revenues declined in the C&RM segment, primarily
as a result of a 26% decline in OTC contract volumes in the
soft commadities product line, primarily in Brazil, Mexico
and Latin America, which contributed to a $35.8 million
decrease in OTC revenues, while exchange-traded revenues
declined only $0.6 million despite 2 9% decrease in exchange-
traded volumes, as the prior year was affected by lost revenues
from customers introduced to MF Global. This decline in soft
commodities operating revenues was partially offsct by increases

While operating revenues in the precious metals and physical
base metals businesses increased over the prior year, adjusted
operaring revenues in those product lines declined $1.3 million
and $10.1 million, respectively, compared with the prior year.
There is no difference berween operating revenues and adjusted
operating revenues in the soft commodity and LME metals
product fines.
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Operating revenues in the Foreign Fxchange segment in fiscal
2013 increased primarily as a result of higher volumes in the
global payments business which contributed to a $1.9 million
increase in operating revenues, while increased activity from
Brazilian customers drove a $2.0 million increase in customer
hedging foreign exchange revenues. Operating revenues increased
$1.5 million from increased trading activity from institutional
clients in our foreign exchange prime brokerage business, however
this was partially offset by a $1.2 million decline in operating
revenues in the foreign exchange arbitrage business.

QOperaring revenues in the Securities segment increased as a result
of a $14.0 million increase in equity market-making operating
revenues, driven by $9.0 million in revenue contributed by
the transfer of accounts from Tradewire Securities in the first
quarter of fiscal 2013, In addition, debt capital markets operating
revenues increased $7.2 million as a result of increased business
activity with our Latin and South American customers as well
as increased investment banking activity.

An increase in the average commission rate per contract in the CES
segment drove a $7.0 million increase in operating revenues in the
CES segment on relatively flat volumes, however interest income
earned on customer margin deposits in this segment continues
to be constrained by historically low shorc-term interest rates.

Opetating revenues and adjusted operating revenues in the
Other segment increased by $5.1 million and $6.6 million,
driven by continued growth in our grain financing and physical
commodity origination product lines as welt as increased asset
management revenues. See Segment Information below for
additional information on activity in each of the operating
Segmfnts.

In fiscal 2013, operating revenues include realized gains of
$1.4 million and unrealized losses of $1.3 million on interest
rate swap derivative contracts used to manage a portion of our
aggregate interest rate position. In fiscal 2012, operating revenues
included realized gains of $2.5 million and unrealized losses of
$1.1 million on interest rate swap derivative contracts. These
interest rate swaps were not designated for hedge accounting
treatment, and changes in the fair values of the interest rate swaps,
which can be volasile and can fluctuate from period to period,
are recorded in earnings on a quarterly basis. The last remaining
interest rate swap expited in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared 1o
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Our operating revenues under U.S. GAAP for fiscal 2012 and
fiscal 2011 were $454.2 million and $419.1 million, respectively. This
8% increase in operating revenue was primarily driven by 42% and
31% increases in the CES and Securities segments, respectively. In
addition, there were increases in operating revenues of 6% in the
Foreign Exchange segment and 9% in the Other segment, which
were partially offset by a 2% decrease in the operating revenues in
the C&RM segment compared to the prior year.
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Qur adjusted operating revenues were $461.0 million in fiscal 2012,
compated with $410.7 million in fiscal 2011, an increase of
$50.3 million, or 12%. The only difference berween operating
revenues and adjusted operating revenues, a non-GAAP measure,
is the gross marked-to-market adjustment of $6.8 million and
$(8.4) million for fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011, respectively. The
gross matked-to-market adjustment only affects the adjusted
operating revenues in the C&RM and Other segments. Adjusted
operating revenues increased 3% and 15% in the C8RM and Other
segments, respectively, compared to the prior year. Adjusted operating

revenues are identical to operating revenues in all other segments,

Operating revenues decreased slightly in the C8RM segment in
fiscal 2012, primarily due to $14.4 million decrease in operating
revenues in the precious metals product line due to a tightening
of spreads and a decrease in the number of ounces traded caused
by low market volatility. Adjusted operating revenues in the
precious metals product line decreased $7.3 million in fiscal 2012
compared to the prior year. Operaring revenues and adjusted
operating revenues in our base metals product line increased
$7.6 million and $14.8 million, respectively, primarily as 2 result
of the addition of the LME metals team in the first quarter of
fiscal 2012. The LME metals team added $21.8 million in both

operating and adjusted operating revenues in fiscal 2012.

In the C&RM segment, operating revenues in the soft commodity
product line wete relatively unchanged in fiscal 2012 compared
to the prior year at $203.4 million, as a $1.8 million decline
in exchange-traded commission and clearing fee revenue and
a $2.8 million decline in interest income were nearly offset by
increases in both OTC and consulting fee revenues. The decline
in exchange-traded commission and clearing fee revenues was
primarily related to lost revenues from clients introduced to MF
Global during the first quarrer of 2012, while interest income
continued to be constrained by slightly lower customer deposits
and lower short-term interest rates. OTC volumes increased 38%
over the prior year, resulting from drought-related agricultural
commadity volatility as well as strong volume growth in Mexico,
Latin America and Europe.

Operaring revenues in the Foreign Exchange segment in fiscal 2012
increased primarily as a result of higher volumes in the global
payments business and higher commercial hedging activity,
most notably in Brazil, as well as increased wrading activity in
our customer prime brokerage business. These increases were
pactially offset by a 30% decrease in operating revenues in the
foreign exchange arbitrage business.

Operating revenues in the Securities segment in fiscal 2012
benefited from an increase in demand from customers of our
equities market-making product line, as the overall industry
volumes recovered, as well as a $4.5 million increase in operating
revenues in the debr capital markets product line driven by
increased activity in our Argentina operations.

Operating revenues in the CES segment increased 42%, driven by
a 67% increase in exchenge-traded volumes primarily attributable
to accounts cransferred from MF Global. However, operating
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revenues in this segment wete constrained by low short-term
interest rates.

Operating revenues and adjusted operating revenues in the
Other segment increased by 9% and 15%, respectively. These
increases were primarily caused by the expansion of eur grain
financing and physical commodity origination product lines,
which were partiaily offsec by lower asset management revenues,
See Segment Information below for additional information on
activity in each of the operating segments.

In 2012, operating revenues include realized gains of $2.5 million
and unrealized losses of $1.1 million on intetest rate swap derivative
contracts used to manage 2 portion of our aggregate interest rate
position. In 2011, operating revenues included realized gains of
$4.2 million and unrealized losses of $0.2 million on interest
rate swap derivative contracts. These interest rate swaps wese not
designated for hedge accounting treatment, and changes in the
fair values of these interest rate swaps, which can be volatile and
can fluctuace from period to period, were recorded in earnings
on a quarterly basis. As of September 30, 2012, $765 million in
notional principal of interest rate swaps were outstanding with
a weighted-average remaining life of 6 months.

Interest and Transactional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Transaction-based cleating expenses: Transaction-based clearing
expenses increased 4% from $105.4 million in fiscal 2012 to
$110.1 million in fiscal 2013, and were 24% of adjusted operating
revenues in fiscal 2013 compared to 23% in fiscal 2012, This
increase in expense is primarily related to higher ADR conversion
and exchange fees in the Securities segment acrivities, resulting
from internal revenue growth as well as the acquisition of the
accounts of Tradewire Securities in the Securities segment.

Introducing broker commissions: Introducing broker
cominissions increased 31% from $31.0 million in fiscal 2012
to $40.5 million in fiscal 2013. This increase is primarily due
to the addition of several new introducing broker relatienships,
particularly in out CES segment, that followed the bankruprey
filing of MF Global in Qctober 2011. Additionally, expanded
activities through our acquisitions of the LME metals team and
the accouncs of Tradewire Securities have resulted in an increase
in introducing broker commission expenses.

Interest expense: Interest expense increased from $11.6 million
during fiscal 2012 to $12.5 million during fiscal 2013. This increase
is primarily due to higher average outstanding borrowings during
fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012, on our loan facilities used for
working capital needs and commeodity financing and facilitation.
On July 22, 2013, we compieted the offering of $45.5 million
aggregate principal amount of our 8.5% Senior Notes due July
2020, which added $0.8 million of interest expense in fiscal
2013, partially offset by the expiration of a credit facility used
for physical base metals activities.

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Transaction-based clearing expenses: Transaction-based clearing
expenses increased 39% from $75.6 million in fiscal 2011 1o
$105.4 million in fiscal 2012, and were 23% of adjusted operating
tevenues in fiscal 2012 compared 1o 18% in fiscal 2011. This
increase in expense was primarily due to a 59% increase in
exchange-traded customer volume, a 38% increase in OTC trading
volumes in the C&RM segment in the Hanley Companies, as
well as an increase in trading volume in our equities market-
making business and activity from the acquisitions of Ambrian
Commodities Limited and TRX Futures Limited.

Introducing broker commissions: Introducing broker
commissions increased by 29% from $24.0 million in fiscal 2011 to
$31.0 million in fiscal 2012. This increase was primarily due to an
increase in exchange-traded volumes from our introducing brokers,
particularly in our CES segment as several new incroducing broker
relationships were opened following the bankruptey filing of MF
Global in Qcrober 2011,

Interest expense: Interest expense increased from $11.3 million
in fiscal 2011 to $11.6 million in fiscal 2012. This increase was
due to increases in the average borrowings on our credit facilities,
primarily related to base metals activities, during fiscal 2012.
The increase was partially offset by a decrease in interest paid to
custormers, impact from the interest rate swaps discussed below
and the result of the conversion of the remaining balance of our
convertible subordinated debt in September 2011,

In fiscal 2008, we entered into two three-year interest rate swaps
for a towal notional value of $100 million, which were originally
designated as cash flow hedges. We previously discontinued
hedge accounting for one of the swaps. We discontinued hedge
accounting for the remaining swap during fiscal 2011, which
resulted in reclassifying a portion of the deferred loss to earnings
during the year. The effective portion of the change in cash flows
from the interest rate swaps had the effect of increasing our
reported interest expense by $1.0 million during fiscal 2011.
During fiscal 2011, both interest rate swap contracts, each with
a notional value of $50 million, matured.

Net Operating Revenues

Net operating revenues is one of the key measures used by
management to assess the performance of our operating segments.
Net operating revenue is calculated as operating revenue less
transaction-based clearing expenses, introducing broker commissions
and interest expense. Transaction-based clearing expenses represent
variable expenses paid wo executing brokers, exchanges, dearing
arganizations and banks in relation to our transactional volumes.
Inuroducing broker commissions include commission paid to
non-employee third patties that have introduced customers to
us. Net operating revenues represent revenues available to pay
variable compensation to risk management consulzants, traders
and administrative employees as well as non-variable expenses.
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Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to Year
Ended September 30, 2012

Net operating revenues increased $9.1 million, or 3%, to
$315.3 million in fiscal 2013 compared to the prior year.
Adjusted net operating revenues declined $8.8 million, or 3%,
to $304.2 million in fiscal 2013 compared to the prior year.

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to Year
Ended September 30, 2011

Net operating revenues declined $2.0 million, or 1%, to
$306.2 million in fiscal 2012 compared to the prior year.
Adjusted net operating revenues increased $13.2 million, or
4%, t0 $313.0 million in fiscal 2012 compared to the prior year.

Compensation and Other Expenses

The following table shows a summary of expenses, other than interest and transactional expenses.

Year Ended Sepcember 30,
(in snillions) 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS: ST
Fixed compensation and benefits ¥ 1134 2% % 104.5 38% $ 75.8
Variable compensation and benefits 4 88.2 - (9% 97.9 {3)% 100.8
2016 . 9% 202.4 15% 176.6
OTHER NON-COMPENSATION EXPENSES: ' S
Communication and data services 233" 3% 226 46% 155
Occupancy and equipment renial 120 . 9% ¢ 11.0 24% 8.9
Professional fees 131, - 2% 12.9 22% 10.6
Travel and business development 107 7 4 11.2 26% 8.9
Depreciation and amortization 80 11% 7.2 53% 4.7
Bad debts and impairments ) 0.8 - {40% . 1.5 {76)% 6.2
Orher expense 232 7% 21.6 1% 21.4
91.1 4% 88.0 15% 76.2
TOTAL COMPENSATION AND OTHER EXPENSES $ 2927 1% % 290.4 15% % 252.8

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Compensation and Other Expenses: Compensation and other
expenses increased by 1% from $290.4 million in fiscal 2012 1o
$292.7 million in fiscal 2013,

Compensation and Benefits: Total compensation and
benefits expenses decreased modestly from $202.4 million to
$201.6 miltion in fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012. ‘Total
compensation and benefits wete 64% of net operating revenues
and 66% of adjusted net operating revenues in fiscal 2013
compared to 66% of net operating revenues and 65% of adjusted
net operating revenues in fiscal 2012. The variable portion of
compensation and benefits decreased 9% from $97.9 million in
fiscal 2012 to $88.2 million in fiscal 2013, primarily related 1o a
3% decrease in adjusted net operating revenues. Administrative
and executive incentive compensation was $11.5 million in
fiscal 2013 compared to $14.1 million in fiscal 2012.

The fixed portion of compensation and benefics increased
9% from $104.5 million in fiscal 2012 to $113.4 million in
fiscal 2013, related to increases in non-variable salaries, share-
based compensation and other employee benefits. Non-variable
salarics increased $2.9 million, or 4%, primarily related to the
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acquisition of the LME metals team, TRX Futures Limited and the
accounts of Tradewire Securities, as well as staffing additions across
administrative departments, primarily in compliance, information
technology development and credic and risk departments. Share-
based compensation includes stock option and restricted stock
expense. Stock option expense was $1.9 million in fiscal 2013
compared to $1.4 million in fiscal 2012. Restricted stock expense
includes a proportion: of the current year’s, as well as the previous
vears’, bonuses allocated to restricted stock awards, as the awards
are deferred and expensed ratably over their three year vesting
period. Restricted stock expense was $7.4 million in fiscal
2013 compared to $4.5 million in fiscal 2012, The increase in
restricted stock expense is primarily related to the acceleration
of expense in the fourth quarter, resulting from the retirement
of an executive of one of our wholly owned subsidiaries. The
number of employees increased 2%, from 1,074 at the end of
fiscal 2012 to 1,094 at the end of fiscal 2013.

Other Non-Compensation Expenses: Other non-compensation
expenses increased by 4% from $88.0 million in fiscal 2012 to
$91.1 million in fiscal 2013. Communication and data services
expenses increased $0.7 million, primarily due to increases in
market information expenses and trading software costs following
the acquisitions of the LME merals team, TRX Futures Limited
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and the accounts of Tradewire Securities, as well as higher costs
related to trade system conversions. Occupancy and equipment
rental increased $1.0 million, primarily related to international
office space rental and related costs. Depreciation and amortization
increased $0.8 milkion, primarily due to the increase in depreciation
of additional information technology infrastructure and software
placed into service during fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012.

Bad debts and impairments decreased $0.7 million year-over-
yeat. During fiscal 2013, bad debus and impairments were
$0.8 million and included $0.1 million of impairment charges
on intangible assets and $0.7 million of bad debt expense, net
of recoveries of $0.1 million. During fiscal 2012, bad debts and
impairments were $1.5 million and included $0.8 million of
impairment chatges on intangible assets, previously determined
to have indefinite lives, and $0.7 million of bad debt expense,
net of recoveries of $0.1 million,

Other expense increased $1.6 million, primarily related w
an increase in non-trading technology costs and a regulatory
settlement of $1.5 million incurred during fiscal 2013 - See
Note 12 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Provision for Taxes: The cffecrive income tax rate on a U.S.
GAAP basis was 13%, in fiscal 2013, compared to 18% in
fiscal 2012. The effective income tax rate can vary from period
to period depending on, among other factors, the geographic
and business mix of our earnings. In fiscal 2013, we released a
portion of the valuation allowance for state net operating loss
carryforwards and changed our state tax rate, resulting in a
decrease in the effective tax race. Generally, when the percentage
of pretax earnings generated from the U.S. decreases, our effective
income tax rate decreases.

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Compensation and Other Expenses: Compensation and other
expenses increased by 15% from $252.8 million in fiscal 2011
to $290.4 million in fiscal 2012,

Compensation and Benefits: Total compensation and benefits
expense increased 15% from $176.6 million te $202.4 million
in fiscal 2012 compared 1o fiscal 2011. Total compensation
and benefits were 66% of net operating revenues and 65% of
adjusted ner operating revenues in fiscal 2012 compared to 57%
of net operating revenues and 59% of adjusted net operating
revenues in fiscal 2011. The variable portion of compensation
and benefits decreased 3% from $100.8 million in fiscal 2011
to $97.9 million in fiscal 2012, as an 8% increase in operating
revenues compated to the prior year, was more than offset by
a decrease in administrative and executive variable incentive
compensation, Administrative and executive bonuses were
$14.1 million, compared with $15.7 million in fiscal 2011.

The fixed portion of compensation and benefits increased 38%
from $75.8 million in fiscal 2011 to $104.5 million in fiscal 2012,
primarily as a result of the acquisitien of Ambrian Commodities

Limited, the LME metals team and TRX Futures Limited, as
well as an expansion of investment banking and administrative
departments, including information technology development,
credic and risk, compliance and accounting departments. Share-
based compensation includes stock option and restricted stock
expense. Stock option expense was $1.4 million in fiscal 2012,
compared with $0.6 million in fiscal 2011, Restricted stock
expense includes a proportion of the current year’, as well as
the previous years', bonuses allocated to restricred stock awards,
as the awards are deferred and expensed ratably over their three
year vesting period. Restricted stock expense was $4.5 million
in fiscal 2012, compared with $1.7 million in fiscal 2011, The
number of employees increased 19%, from 904 at the end of
fiscal 2011 1o 1,074 at the end of fiscal 2012, primarily as a result
of acquisitions of the LME metals team and TRX Fueures Limited.

Oiher Non-Conpensation Expenses: Other non-compensation
expenses increased by 15% from $76.2 million in fiscal 2011
to $88.0 million in fiscal 2012, Communication and data
services expenses increased $7.1 million, primarily due to
increases in market information expenses and trading software
costs following the acquisitions of Hudson Capital Energy,
Ambrian Commodities Limited, the LME metals team and TRX
Futures Limited, as well as expansion of our soft commodities
and foreign exchange activities. Occupancy and equipment rental
increased $2.1 million, primarily as a result of the relocation
of our London offices, in conjunction with the acquisitions of
Ambrian Commoedities Limited, the LME metals team and
TRX Futures Limited, Depreciation and amortization increased
$2.5 million, primatily due to the increase in depreciation of
additional information technology software and infrastructure and
leasehold improvements placed into service during fiscal 2012
and 2011.

Bad debts and impairments decreased $4.7 million year over year.
During 2012, bad debts and impairments were $1.5 million and
included $0.8 million of impairment charges on intangible assets
previously determined to have indefinite lives and $0.7 million of
bad debt expense, net of recoveries of $0.1 million. During 2011,
bad debts and impairments were $6.2 million and included
an impairment loss of $1.7 million related to the fair value
adjustment of its investment in debentures for the single asset
owning company of Suriwongse Hotel located in Chiang Mai,
Thailand, originally issued in August 2008, in the Securities
segment. Additionally, during fiscal 2011, the Company recorded
bad debt expense, net of recoveries, of $4.5 million.

Other expense increased $0.2 million year-over-year, and
included $2.0 million in expense during fiscal 2012 related
to the revaluation of contingent fiabilities refated to potential
additional consideration to be paid for the acquisitions of the
RMI Companies, the Hanley Companies and Hencorp Futures,
compared o $3.2 millien during fiscal 2011. We also accrued
additional contingent consideration during fiscal 2012 and
2011 of $0.4 million and $1.6 million, respectively, related to
FCStone, LLC's pre-merger acquisitions of Drownes 8¢ O’'Neill,
LLC and Globecot, Inc. Also, as a result of previous acquisitions
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and expansion of our offices, primarily in London, Singapore
and South America, business development and employee travel
expenses increased $2.3 million in fiscal 2012 compared to the
prior vear.

Provision for Taxes: The effective income tax rate on a U.S.
GAADP basis was 18%, in fiscal 2012, compared to 38% in
fiscal 2011. The effective income tax rate can vary from period

Variable vs. Fixed Expenses

to period depending on, among other factors, the geographic
and business mix of our earnings. In fiscal 2012, we had 2 loss
from continuing operations, before tax atrributable from U.S.
jurisdictions, compared to 2011, where 42% of the income
from continuing operations, before tax was attributable from
U.S. jurisdictions, Generally, when the percentage of pretax
earnings generated from the U.S. decteases, our effective income
tax rate decreases,

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions} 2013 % of Total 2012 % of Total 2011 % of Total
VARIABLE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS : § 88.2 20% § . 979 23% $ 1008 29%
Transaction-based clearing expenses 110.1 25% 105.4 25% 75.6 21%
Introducing broker commissions 40.5 9% - 31.0. 7% 24.0 7%

Total variable expenses 2388 54% 234.3 55% 200.4 57%
Fised compensation and benefits 113.4 26% - 104.5 25% 75.8 22%
Other fixed expenses 90.3 20% 86.5 20% 70.0 20%
Bad debts and impaitments 0.8 —% 1.5 —% 6.2 1%

Total non-variable expenses 204.5 46% 192.5 45% 152.0 43%
TOTAL NON-INTEREST EXPENSES $ 4433 100% 3 426.8 100% 3 3524 100%

We seek to make our non-ingerest expenses variable to the greatest
extent possible, and to keep our fixed costs as low as possible. The
table above shows an analysis of our variable expenses and non-
variable expenses as a percentage of total nen-interest expenses
for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Qur variable expenses consist of variable compensation
paid to traders and risk management consultants, bonuses

Segment Information

paid to operational, administrative and executive employees,
transaction-based cleating expenses and introducing broker
commissions. As a percentage of total non-interest expenses,
vatiable expenses were 54% in fiscal 2013, 55% in fiscal 2012
and 57% in fiscal 2011.

We report our operating segments based on services provided
to customers. Net contribution is one of the key measures used
by management to assess the performance of each segrent
and for decisions regarding the allocation of our resources.
Net contribution is calculated as revenue less direct cost of
sales, interest expense, transaction-based clearing expenses,
introducing broker commissions and variable compensation.
Variable compensation paid to risk management consultants and
traders generally represents a fixed percentage of an amount equal
to revenues generated, and in some cases, revenues produced
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less transaction-based clearing expense and related charges, base
salaries and an overhead allocation.,

Segment income is calculated as net contribution less non-
variable direct expenses of the segment. These non-variable
direct expenses include trader base compensation and benefits,
operational employee compensation and benefits, communication
and data services, business development, professiona! fees, bad
debt expense, trade errors and direct marketing expenses.
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Total Segment Results

The foliowing table shows summary information concerning all of our business segments combined.

Year Ended September 30,
% of % of % of
Operating Operating Operating
(in millions) 2013 Revenues 2012 Revenues 2011 Revenues
- ‘ (As Restated) (As Restared)
Operating revenues $ 4712 0 100%  § 4344 1009% $ 4187 100%
Gross marked-to-market adjustment (non-GAAP) -~ - {(1L1.1) L 6.3 (84
Adjusted operating revenues (non-GAAP) T 4601 461.2 410.3
"Transaction-based clearing expenses 1097 23% 104.4 23% 74.3 18%
Introducing-broker commissions 40.5 9% 31.0 7% 23.9 6%
Interest expense 10.2 2% 10.0 2% 12.0 3%
Adjusted net operating revenues (non-GAAP) C299.7. 315.8 300.1
Variable direct compensation and benefits 787 16% 83.8 18% £3.1 20%
Adjusted ner contribution (non-GAAP) 223.0 ) 232.0 217.0
Non-variable direct expenses : 119.8 25% 118.6 26% 95.6 23%
Adjusted segment income (non-GAAD) $ 103.2 ’ § 1134 $ 1214
Reconciliation of operating revenues from GAAP -
to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: . -
Operating revenues $ 4784 & 5 4542 $ 4191
Gross marked-to-market adjusentent (non-GAAP) - gy 68 (8.4)
Operating revenue not assigned to a segment 7.2 n . 0.2 (0.4)
Adjusted segment operating revenues (non-GAAFP) : $;. 460.1 - 5 4612 $ 4103
Reconciliation of net operating revenues fram .
GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: A
Net aperarting revenues $ 3153 . § 3062 § 3082
Gross marked-ro-marker adjustment (non-GAAP) {1 I.I)K 6.8 (8.4)
Net operating revenue not assigned to a segment . (4.9} 1.8 (1.1}
Adjusted segment het operating revenues L .
(non-GAAP) 3. 2903 $ 3148 $ 2987
Reconcifiation of net contribution from GAAP D '
to adjusted. non-GAAF numbers: ) B )
Net contribution % oL $ 2252 $ 2254
Gross marked-to-market adjusrment (non-GAAP) ~ ~ {111}, ~ : 6.8 {8.4)
Adjusted ner contribution {non-GAAD) $ '22.3‘0 ) . $ 2320 $ 217.0
Reconciliation of segment income from GAAP T
to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: .
Segment income $ 1143 - $ 1066 3 129.8
Gross marked-to-marker adjustment {non-GAAP) . - (1LY S 4.8 (8.4)
Adjusted segment income (non-GAAP) $ 1032 . $ 1134 $ 1214
Year Ended September 30, 2013 Campared to Total segment income increased 7% to $114.3 million in
Year Ended September 30, 2012 fiscal 2013 compared to $106.6 million in fiscal 2012. Total

adjusted segment income was $103.2 million in fiscal 2013

- . . o
The net contribution of all our business segments increased 4% compared to $113.4 million in fiscal 2012.

to $234.1 million in fiscal 2013 compared ro $225.2 million in
fiscal 2012. The adjusted net contribution of all our business
segments decreased to $223.0 million in fiscal 2013 compared
to $232.0 million in fiscat 2012.
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Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

The net contribution of all our business segments decreased slightly
to $225.2 million in fiscal 2012 compared to $225.4 million in
fiscal 2011. The adjusted net contribution of all cur business
segments was $232.0 million in fiscal 2012 compared to
$217.0 million in fiscal 2011,

Total segment income decreased 18% to $106.6 million in
fiscal 2012 compared to $129.8 million in fiscat 2011. Total
adjusted segment income was $113.4 million in fiscal 2012
compated to $121.4 milfion in fiscal 2011,

Commodity and Risk Management Services — We serve our
commercial customers through our force of risk management
consultants with a high value-added service that differentiates
us from other competitors and maximizes the opportunity to
retain customers. Customers are assisted in the execution of
their hedging strategies through a wide range of products from
[isted exchange-traded futures and options to vanilla look-alike
OTC instruments that offer greater flexibility to structured OTC
preducts designed for customized solutions. We also offer risk
managernent consulting services to commercial enticies designed
to quantify and monitor their exposure to commodicy and
financial risk and develop a plan to control and hedge chese risks
with post trade reporting against specific objectives. While our
services span virtually all traded commodity markets, the largest
concentrations are in agricultural (grains, coffee, sugar, cotton)
and energy commodities. Generally; customers dicect their own

trading activity and risk management consultants do not have
discretionary authority to transact trades on behalf of customers.

In addition, we provide a full range of trading and hedging
capabilities to select producers, consumers, recyclers and investors
in both precious metals and base metals, as well as cervain other
telared commeodities. For base metals, following the exit of the
physical trading business, our business will involve acting as
a Category One ring dealing member of the LME, providing
execution, clearing and advisory services in exchange-traded
futures and OTC produces. In precious metals, in addition
to offering OTC products, we act as a principal, committing
our own capital to buy and sell precious metals on a spot and
forward basis.

We record our physical commodities revenues on a gross basis.
Operating revenues and losses from our commodities derivatives
activities are included in ‘trading gains, net’ in the consolidated
income statements. Inventory for the commaodities business is
valued at the lower of cost or fair value under the provisions of
the Inventory Topic of the ASC. We generally mitigate the price
risk associated with commodities held in inventory through
the use of derivatives, We do not elect hedge accounting under
1.5, GAAP in accounting for this price risk mirigation. In such
situations, unreaiized gains in inventory are not recognized under
U.S. GAAD, but unrealized gains and losses in related derivative
positions are recognized under U.S. GAAP. As a resuls, our
reported earnings from physical commodities trading may be
subject to significant volatility when calenlated under U.S. GAAP

The following table provides the financial performance for this segment.

Year Ended September 30,
(tr millions) 2013 %% Cﬁg& 2012 % Cha.nge 2011
‘ {As Restated) (As Restated)
Operating revenues 3 2217 Mm% % 242.5 )% 3 248.5
Gross marked-to-market adjustment {non-GAAI) (13.5) n/im. 5.9 n/m (8.4)
Adjusted operating revenues {(non-GAAP) 208.2 (16)% 248.4 3% 240.1
Transaction-based clearing expenses 23.9 1% 23.6 17% 20.2
Introducing broker commissions 15,2 2% 12.5 10% 11.4
Ingerest expense 5,3 {23Y% 6.9 (18Y% 8.4
Adjusted net operating revenues (non-GAAP) 163.8 (200% 2054 3% 200.1
Variable direct compensation and benefics 46.2 {23)% 60.0 )% 61.0
Adjusted ner contribution {non-GAAD) 117.6 {19)% 145.4 5% 139.1
Naon-variable direct expenses 715 (2)% 73.3 26% 58.1
Adjusted seement income (non-GAAP) % 46.1 (36y% % 72.1 (1% % 31.0
Reconciliation of C&RM net operating reveriues - '
from GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers:
C8&RM ner operating revenues $ 1773 $ 199.5 $ 208.5
Gross marked-to-market adjustment (non-GAAP) (13.5) 5.9 (8.4)
C&RM adjusted net operaring revenues (non-GAAP) §  163.8 $ 205.4 3 200.1
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Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
Reconcilidtion of C&RM net contribution from
GAAP t adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: :
C&RM net contribution $ 1311 $ 139.5 $ 147.5
Gross marked-to-market adjustment (non-GAAP) (13.5) 5.9 (8.4)
C&BRM adjusted net contribucion (non-GAAP) $ 1176 [ 145.4 $ 139.1
Reconciliation of C&RM segment income from :
GAAP 1o adjusted, non-GAAP numbers:
C&RM segment incorne % 59.6 $ 66.2 $ 89.4
Gross marked-ro-market adjustment (non-GAAP} (13.5) 5.9 L 8.4
C&BRM adjusted segmenc income {non-GAAP) $ 46.1 3 72.1 $ 81.0

For information about the assets of this segment, see Note 22
to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Operating revenues under U.S. GAAP decreased from
$242.5 million in fiscal 2012 to $221.7 million in fiscal 2013,
Adjusted operating revenues decreased 1696 from $248.4 million
in fiscal 2012 to $208.2 million in fiscal 2013. Operating revenues
in this segment are primarily driven by our soft commediries,

precious metals, physical base metals and LME metal product lines.

In the soft commodiries product line, operaring revenues decreased
20% from $203.5 million in fiscal 2012 to $167.0 million in
fiscal 2013. There is no difference berween operating and adjusted
operating revenuss in the soft commodities product line. In
fiscal 2013, exchange-traded contract volumes decreased 9%
and OTC conrract volumes decreased 26% compared to the
prior fiscal year, consisting primarily of agricultural and energy
commodities. Commission and clearing fee revenues decreased
$0.6 million, or 1%, compared to the prior year period, however
commercial grain commission and clearing fee reventues declined
$3.3 million, primarily driven by significantly lower customer
stocks following the consecutive droughts of 2011 and 2012
as well as the effect of inverted prices on castomer trading
activity. This decline in commercial grain commission and
clearing fee revenue was partially offset by revenue increases in
the coffee and cocoa markets, as well as the fact thar exchange-
traded commission and cleating fee revenues in fiscal 2012 were
affected by lost revenues from clients previously introduced by
RMI and Hencorp Futures to MF Global. The majority of the
clients previously introduced to MF Global have subsequently
opened accounts directly with FCStone, LLC.

Overall OTC revenues, primarily reflected in ‘trading gains, net’
in our consolidated income statements, decreased $35.8 million
to $83.8 million in fiscal 2013, compared to the prior year. This
decline in OTC revenues is a result of lower volumes in agricultural
commodities, primarily in Brazil and Latin America as a result of
lower volarility and inverted prices as noted above, as well as in
the domestic energy markets. Interest income decreased 7% to
$4.2 million, resulting from a 2% decrease in the average level

of exchange-traded customer deposits to $908.1 million, lowsr
OTC customer deposits and lower short-term interest rates.

Precious merals operaring revenues increased from $11.1 million
in fiscal 2012 1o $15.0 million in fiscal 2013, primarily as
a result of the effecr of realized gains on the sale of precious
metals inventories which were carried at cost at September 30,
2012, which was below market value, Precious metals adjusted
operating revenues decreased from $14.1 million in fiscal 2012
to $12.8 million in fiscal 2013, These decreases were primarily
a result of a 28% decrease in the number of ounces traded in
fiscal 2013 compared to the prior year, particularly in the Far
East markers,

Operating revenues in our physical base metals business increased
from $6.1 million in fiscal 2012 to $10.3 million in fiscal 2013,
primarily as a result of the effect of realized gains on the sale of
base metals inventories which were carried at cost at September 30,
2012, which was below market vatue. Physical base metals
adjusted operating revenues declined from $9.0 million in fscal
2012 to {$1.1) million in fiscal 2013, This decline was ptimarily
a resulr of the decision made in the second quarrer of fiscal
2013 1o exit the physical base metals business. In conjunction
with the exit of the physical base metals, during the following
six months ended September 30, 2013, we paid premiums to
countetpatties to exit forward contracts which contributed to the
decline in adjusted operating revenues. Operating revenues in our
continuing LME metals business, which operates in the financial
exchange-traded markets increased 35% from $21.8 million in
fiscal 2012 to $29.6 million in fiscal 2013. There is no difference
between operating and adjusted operating revenues in our LME
metals business.

Segment income decteased from $66.2 million in fiscal 2012
to $59.6 million in fiscal 2013. Adjusted segment income
decreased from $72.1 million to $46.1 million. Variable expenses
expressed as a percentage of operating revenues decreased from
40% to 39%. Variable expenses expressed as a percentage of
adjusted operating revenues increased from 39% to 41%.
The decrease in segment income primatily resulted from the
$21.1 million decline in soft commodities segment income
as a result of the operating revenue decrease discussed above,
which was partially offsct by the effect of realized gains on the

INTL FCSTONE INC. - Form 10-K 41



42

PART 11

ITEM 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

sale of precious and physical base metals inventories which
were carried ar cost at September 30, 2012, which was below
market value. Adjusted segment income decreased as a result of
the declines in soft commeodities produce line income as well
as a $6.1 million increase in the physical base metals segment
loss to $10.0 million.

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Operating revenues under U.S. GAAP decreased from
$248.5 million in fiscal 2011 ro $242.5 million in fiscal 2012,
Adjusted operating revenues increased 3% from $240.1 million in
fiscal 2011 1o $248.4 million in fiscal 2012. Operating revenues
in this segment are primarily driven by our soft commaodities,
precious metals, physical base metals and LME metals product
lines.

In the soft commodities product fine, operating revenues increased
from $202.8 million in fiscal 2011 to $203.5 million in fiscal 2012.
Exchange-traded contract volumes decreased 1% and OTC
contract volumes increased 38%, respectively in fiscal 2012, over
the prior year, which included primarily agricultural and energy
commeoditics. While drought-related volatility in agricultural
commodities drove an increase in exchange-traded contract
volumes in the last six months of fiscal 2012, adverse economic
and industry conditions in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 more
than offset those increases, resulting in the slight volume decline
in fiscal 2012. Despite relatively flat volumes, exchange-traded
commission and clearing [ee revenues declined $1.8 million to
$64.5 million in fiscal 2012, primarily as a result of the effect
of lost revenues from clients introduced by RMI and Hencorp
Futures to MF Global. The majority of these clients previously
introduced 1o MF Global have subsequently opened accounts
directly with FCStone LLC. Overall OTC revenues, primarily
reflected in ‘trading gains, net’ in our consolidated income
statements, increased $3.5 million to $119.6 million in fiscal
2012, compared to the prior year. This increase was a result
of the agricultural commodity volatility noted above as well as
strong growth in overall OTC contrace volumes, particularly in
Mexico, Latin America and Europe, which was partially offset
by lower structured OT'C product volumes, particularly in the
Brazil markets during fiscal 2012. Interest income decreased
39% to $4.5 million, driven by a 8% decrease in the average
level of exchange-traded customer deposits to $923.2 million,
lawer OTC customer deposits and lower short-term intetest rates.

Precious metals operating revenues decreased from $25.5 million
in fiscal 2011 to $11.1 million in fiscal 2012. Precious metals
adjusted operating revenues decreased from $21.4 million in
fiscal 2011 to $14.1 million in fiscal 2012, These decreases were
primarily a result of a tightening of spreads due to a lack of market
volatility and a 149% decrease in the number of ounces traded
in fiscal 2012 compared to the prior vear period, particularly in
the Far Fast markers.
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Base metals operating revenues, including physical and
financial activity, increased from $20.3 million in fiscal 2011
to $27.9 million in fiscal 2012, Base metals adjusted operating
revenues, including physical and financial activity, increased from
$16.0 million in fiscal 2011 1o $30.8 million in fiscal 2012. These
increases primarily resulted from the addition of the LME metals
team acquired in the first quarter of fiscal 2012, which added
$21.8 million in operating reverues in fiscal 2012, partially offset
by a tightening of spreads in the physical base metals business.
There is no difference berween operating and adjusted operating
revenues in our LME metals business.

Segment income decreased from $89.4 million in fiscal 2011 to
$66.2 million in fiscal 2012. Adjusted segment income decreased
from $81.0 million to $72.1 million. Variable expenses expressed
as a percentage of operating revenues increased from 37% to
40%. Variable expenses expressed as a percentage of adjusted
operating revenues remained consistent at 39% in each year.
Segment income in fiscal 2012 was primarily affected by the
decrease in revenues, as discussed above, along with increases in
non-variable compensation and benefits and communications
and data services primarily resulting from the acquisition of the
LME metals team. Segment income in fiscal 2011 was affected
by bad debt expense of $6.0 million, primarily related to two
precious metals customers to whom we had consigned gold,
which was partially offset by $1.7 million in recoveries of bad
debt expense, primarily related to a bad debt provision decrease
on a previous customer account deficit based on collection of an
amount in excess of the amount expected to be collected against
a promissory note.

Foreign Exchange — We provide global payment solutions
to banks and commercial businesses as well as charities and
non-governmental organizatons (“NGOs”) and government
organizations. We offer payments services in over 130 counties
at competitive and transparent pricing. Through our technology
platform and commitment to customer service, we are able to
provide simple and fast execution, ensuring delivery of funds
in any of these countries quickly through the banking system.
In this business, we primarily act as a principal in buying and
selling foreign currencies on a spot basis. We derive revenue from
the difference berween the purchase and sale prices.

In addition, we provide prime brokerage foreign exchange
services to financial institutions and professional traders. We
provide our customers with the full range of OTC products
including 24 hour execution of spot, forwards and options
as well as non-deliverable forwards in both liquid and exotic
currencies. We also provide execution of forwards and options
as well as a wide range of structured product solutions to our
commercial customers looking to find cost-effective hedging
strategies. We also operate a proprietary foreign exchange desk
which arbitrages the exchange-traded foreign exchange markets
with the cash markets.
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The following table provides the financial performance for this segment.

Year Ended September 30,
(it millions) 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
Operating revenues YF 669 . 7% % 62.6 6% 3 59.3
Transaction-based clearing expenses Co-82 5% 7.8 18% 6.6
Introducing broker commissions 12 (14)% 1.4 (55)% 3.1
Interest expense 0.5 (44)% 0.9 {(10)% 1.0
Net operating revenues 7.0 9% 52.5 8% 48.6
Variable direct compensation and benefits 13.0 S16% - 11.2 (3)% 11.5
Ner contribution 440 o T% 413 11% 371
Non-variable direct expenses 142 9% 13.0 43% 9.1
Sepment income 1§ .. 298 5% % 28.3 1% § 28,0

For information about the assets of this segment, see Note 22
to the Consclidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Operating revenues increased 7% from $62.6 million in
fiscal 2012 to $66.9 million in fiscal 2013. The operating
revenues in our global payments product line increased from
$39.0 million in fiscal 2012 to $40.9 million in fiscal 2013. This
increase was driven by a 16% increase in the volume of trades
in our global payments product line as we continued to benefit
from an increase in financial institutions and other customers,
as well as our ability to offer an electronic transaction order
System to our customers.

In fiscal 2013, our customer prime brokerage product fine
operating revenues increased 19% to $9.7 million compared
to the prior year. Operating revenues from customer hedging
activity increased 38% to $7.4 million, primarily related to an
increase of hedging by customers of our Brazilian operations.
The proprietary foreign exchange arbitrage desk, which arbitrages
the cash versus the exchange-traded markets, experienced a 12%
decrease in operating revenues to $8.8 million due to fewer
favorable arbitrage opporunities.

Segment income increased 5% from $28.3 million in fiscal 2012
to $29.8 million in fiscal 2013. Variable expenses expressed as
a percentage of operating revenues were flat at 33% for both
periods.

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Operating revenues increased 6% from $59.3 million in fiscal
2011 to $62.6 million in fiscal 2012. The operating revenues in
our global payments product line increased from $32.4 million
in fiscal 2011 to $39.0 million in fiscal 2012, This increase was
driven by a 17% increase in the volume of trades in our global
payments product line as we continued to benefit from an
increase in financial institutions and other customers, as well
as our ability to offer an electronic transaction order system to
our customers.

In fiscal 2012, the customer prime brokerage product line
operating revenues increased 3% to $8.2 million compared to
the prior fiscal year. Operating revenues from customer hedging
activity increased 20% to $5.4 million, primarily driven by an
increase of hedging by customers of our Brazilian operations.
The proprietary foteign exchange arbitrage desk, which arbitrages
the cash versus the exchange-traded markets, experienced a 30%
decrease in operating revenues to $10.0 million due to fewer
favorable arbitrage opportunities,

Segment income increased 1% from $28.0 million in fiscal 2011
to $28.3 million in fiscal 2012. Variable expenses expressed
as a percentage of operating revenues decreased from 36% to
33%, primarily as a result of the change in mix of tevenues in
the current period.

Securities — Through INTL FCStone Securities Inc., we provide
value-added solutions that facilitate cross border trading which
is complex and involves foreign exchange as well as a [ocal
understanding of market convention, liquidity and settfement
protocols. Our customers include U.S. based regional and
national broker-dealers and institutions investing or executing
customer transactions in international markets and foreign
institutions secking access to the U.S. securities markets. We are
one of the leading market malers in foreign securities, including
unlisted ADRs and foreign ordinary shares. We make markets in
approximately 800 ADRs and foreign ordinary shares traded in
the OTC market and will, on request, make prices in more than
8,000 other ADRs and foreign commeon shares. In addition, we
are a broker-dealer in Argentina where we are active in providing
institutional executions in the local capiral markets.

We also originate, structure and place a wide array of emerging
market debt instruments in rthe international and domestic
capital markets. These instruments include complex asset backed
securities, unsecured bond and loan issues, negotiable notes
and other trade-related debrt instruments used in cross-border
trade finance. On occasions, we may invest our own capital in
debt instruments before selling them. We also actively trade in
a vatiety of international debt instruments.
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The following table provides the financial petformance for this segment.

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
Operating revenues $ ceLA T o 053% 0 8 39.9 31% 3% 30.5
Transaction-based clearing expenses 16.0 51% 10.6 45% 7.3
Introducing broker commissions 3.8 . . 153% L5 200% 0.5
Interest expense 1.9 © o 533% 0.3 {25)% 0.4
Net operating revenues 39.4 T 43% 275 23% 22.3
Variable direct compensation and benefits 89 S 16% 7.7 33% 5.8
Net contribution 305 0 S4% 19.8 20% 16.5
Non-vatiable direct expenses 166 - - 8% 15.3 5% 14.6
Segment income 3 13,9 209% § 4.5 137% § 1.9

For information about the assets of this segment, see Note 22
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Operating revenues increased 53% from $39.9 million in
fiscal 2012 to $61.1 million in fiscal 2013. Operating revenues
in the Securities segment are driven by equity market-making
and debr capital markets product lines. Operating revenues in
the equities market-making product line increased 56% from
$25.1 million in fiscal 2012 to $39.0 million in fiscal 2013,
primarily as a result of the late first quarter 2013 transfer
of accounts from Tradewire Securities, which contributed
$9.0 million in operating revenues in fiscal 2013. Equity market-
making operating revenues include the trading profits we earn
before the related expense deduction for ADR conversion fees.
These ADR fees are included in the consolidared income statements
as ‘transaction-based cleating expenses’.

Operating revenues in our debt capital markets product line
increased from $14.9 million in fiscal 2012 to $22.1 million
in fiscal 2013. Our debt capital markets product line primarily
focuses on debt trading in the international markets as well as
debc origination, including a wide range of services, such as the
arranging and placing of debt issues, merger and acquisition
advisory services and asset backed securitization. Operaring
revenues in the debr trading product line increased from
$8.5 million in fiscal 2012 to $12.8 million in fiscal 2013, driven
by strong growth in Argentina and in the Latin American trade
finance business. Operating revenues in our debt crigination
product line increased from $6.4 million in fiscal 2012 to
$9.3 million in fiscal 2013.

Segment income increased 209%, from $4.5 million in fiscal 2012
to $13.9 million in fiscal 2013, primarily as a result of increase
in operating revenues noted above. Vasiable expenses expressed

as a percentage of operating revenues decreased from 50% in
fiscal 2012 to 48% in fiscal 2013.
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Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Operating revenues increased 31% from $30.5 million in fiscal
2011 to $39.9 million in fiscal 2012, Operating revenues in
our equities market-making producr line increased 23% from
the prior vear to $25.1 million. Operating revenues in our debt
capital markets product line increased from $10.4 million in
fiscal 2011 to $14.9 million in fiscal 2012.

Operating revenues in our equities marker-making product line
are [argely dependent on overall volume and volacility, and with
the increased levels of activity in the global equity markets in
fiscal 2012, the retail customer business which drives our equity
market-making activities increased as compared to fiscal 2011.
Equity market-making operating revenues include the trading
profits we carn before the related expense deduction for ADR
conversion fees. These ADR fees are included in the consolidated
income statements as ‘transaction-based clearing expenses’.

Our debt capital markets product line, primarily focuses debt
origination, including a wide range of services, such as the
arranging and placing of debt issues, merger and acquisition
advisory services and asset backed securitization as well as debt
trading in the international markets. The debt origination activities
continue to be constrained due to global economic conditions,
increasing 5% from $6.1 million in fiscal 2011 to $6.4 million
in fiscal 2012. Operating revenues in our debt trading business
doubled from $4.2 million in fiscal 2011 to $8.4 million in hscal

2012, driven by increased activity in our Argentina operations.

Segment income increased 137%, from $1.9 million in fiscal
2011 to $4.5 million in fiscal 2012, primarily as a result of
inerease in operating revenues in our equity marker-making and
debt trading businesses. Segment income for fiscal 2011 includes
a2 $1.7 million loss related to the fair value adjustment of our
investment in debentures of the single asset owning company
of Suirwongse Horel located in Chiang Mai, Thailand. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues increased
from 45% to 50%.
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Clearing and Execution Services — We seek to provide competitive
and efficient clearing and execution of exchange-traded futures
and options for the institutional and professional trader market
segments. Through our platform, customer orders are accepted
and directed to the appropriate exchange for execution. We
then facilitate the clearing of customers’ transactions, Clearing

involves the marching of customers’ trades with the exchange,
the collection and management of customer margin deposits to
support the transactions, and the accounting and reporting of the
transactions to customers. We seek to leverage our capabilities
and capacity by offering facilities management or outsourcing
solutions to other FCMs.

The following table provides the financial performance for this segment.

Year Ended September 30,

{in millions) 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
Operating revenues ' $ w008 v 7% 8 93.8 42% § 66,1
Transacrion-based clearing, expenses 61 - (D)% 61.7 54% 40.1
Introducing broker commissions 20,0 "31% 153 80% 8.5
Interest expense 0.5 —% 0.5 (44)% 0.9
Net operating revenues 19.2 18% 16.3 (2)% 166
Variable direct compensacion and benefits 3.9 -.-9‘3!%7 2.0 (13}% 2.3
Net contribution ‘ 153 7% 143 —% 14.3
Non-variable direct expenses 13.4 % 12.1 29% 9.4
_Segment income ' $ 19 a4 s 2.2 (55)% § 49

For information about the assets of this segment, see Note 22
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Operating revenues increased 7% from $93.8 millien in fiscal
2012 to $100.8 million in fiscal 2013. Operating revenues are
primatily generated from two sources: commission and clearing
fee revenues from the execution and clearing of exchange-traded
futures and options—on-futures concracts, and intetest income
derived from cash balances in our customers’ accounts.

Commission and clearing fee revenues increased $7.1 million,
or 8%, to $97.4 million in fiscal 2013 primarily resulting from
an increase in the average COMIMISSion rate per contract, as
exchange-traded volumes were relatively flat. Interest income
declined 31% to $1.4 million in fiscal 2013, primarily resulting
from lower short-term interest rates despite a 13% increase in
average customer deposits to $754.3 million.

Segment income decreased 14% from $2.2 million in fiscal
2012 to $1.9 million in fiscal 2013, primarily as a result of a
$1.5 million regulatory settlement incurred during fiscal 2013,
as well as an increase in introducing broker commissions and
variable compensation. Variable expenses as a percentage of
aperating revenues wete flat at 84% for both periods.

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Opetating revenues increased 42% from $66.1 million in fiscal
2011 to $93.8 million in fiscal 2012. Commission and clearing
fee tevenues increased $29.4 million, or 48%, to $90.3 million

in fiscal 2012, as a result of a 67% increase in exchange-traded
volumes. This increase was primarily driven by accounts transferred
to us from MF Global during the first quarter of fiscal 2012,
including a large imroducing broker whose clients generally
have higher volumes and lower rates per contract than the
average client in this segment. Interest income dectined 27% to
$2.0 million in fiscal 2012 primarily as a result of a 21% decline
in average customer deposits to $6635.4 million,

Segment income decreased 53% from $4.9 million in fiscal
2011 to $2.2 million in fiscal 2012. The $29.4 million increase
in commission and clearing fee revenue includes an increase of
$20.9 milifon in clearing fee revenue which is almost entirely offset
by clearing fee expense paid to exchange-clearing organizations.
Segment income declined primarily due 1o an increase in
introducing broker commission expense, lower interest income
and increased fixed compensation as we increased the number of
employees in this segment compared to the prior year. Variable
expenses as a percentage of operating revenues increased from 77%
to 84% and are primarily transaction-based clearing expenses.

Other — This segment consists of our asset management and
commodity financing and facilitation business. The asset
management reverues include fees, commissions and other
revenues we receive for management of third party assets and
investment gains or Josses on our investments in funds and
proprietary accounts managed either by our investment managers
or by independent investment managers.

In addition, we operate a commodity financing and facilitation
business which provides financing to commercial commodity-
related companies against physical inventories, including grain,
lumber, meats, energy products and renewable fuels. We use sale
and repurchase agreements to purchase commodities evidenced
by warehouse receipts, subject to a simultaneous agreement to sell
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such commedities back to the original seller at a laver date, These
transactions are accounted for as product financing arrangements,
and accordingly no commodity inventory, purchases or sales

are recorded. Additionally, we engage as a principal in physical
purchase and sale transactions related to inputs to the renewable
fuels and feed ingtedient industries.

The following table provides the financial performance for this segment.

Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
Operating revenues S§ 207 33% § 15.6 9% § 14.3
Gross marked-to-marker adjustment {non-GAAP) 2.4 n/m 0.9 n/m —
Adjusted aperating revenues {(non-GAAP) 231 40% 16.5 15% 143
Transaction-based clearing expenses 5 (29)% 0.7 600% 0.1
Introducing broker commissions 0.5 —% 0.3 {25)% 0.4
Interest expense 20 43% 1.4 8% 1.3
Adjusted net operating revenues (non-GAATD) i) 44% - 14.1 C13% o115
Variable direct compensation and benefits 47 62% 2.9 16% 2.5
Adjusted net conttibution (non-GAAP) 15.6 39% - 11.2 12% 10.0
Non-variable direct expenses 4.1 (168)% 4.9 11% 4.4
Adjusred segment income (non-GAAD) § 115 83% - § 6.3 13% § 5.5
Reconciliation of Other net operating revenues from 3
GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: : .
Other net operacing revenues 5. 179 < 13.2 $ 125
Gross marked-to-market adjustment (non-GAAP) : 2.4 0.9 —
Other adjusted get operating revenues (non-GAAP) 3 20.3 % 14.1 : 3 12,5
Reconciliation of Other net contribution from : i
GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAD numbers: ;
Other net contribution 3 13.2 $ 10.3 3 RUXG;
Gross marked-to-marker adjusrment (non-GAAD} 24 0.9 —
Orher adjusted ner contsibution {non-GAAP) 4 1586 § 11.2 $ 10.0
Reconciliation of Other segment income from :
GAAD to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers: S
Orher segment income $-. 91 $ 5.4 $ 5.6
Gross marked-to-marker adjustment (non-GAAP) 24 0.9 —
Other adjusted segment income (non-GAAP) $ - 11.5 $ 6.3 $ 5.6

For information about the assets of this segment, see Note 22
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Operating revenues increased 33% from $15.6 million in fiscal
2012 to $20.7 million in fiscal 2013. Adjusted operating revenues
increased 40% from $16.5 million in fiscal 2012 to $23.1 million
in fiscal 2013. Assets under management as of September 30, 2013,
were $481.0 million compared with $482.0 million as of
September 30, 2012. Operating revenues in the asser management
product line increased $1.2 million wo $8.8 million in fiscal 2013.
Operating revenues in the grain financing and physical commodity
arigination product line increased 50% to $11.9 million in fiscal
2013, Adjusted operating revenues in the grain financing and
physical commodity origination product line increased 62%
to $14.3 million in fiscal 2013, These increases were driven by
an increase in both commedity financing arrangements and
commodity origination sales. Segment income increased 69%
from $5.4 million in fiscal 2012 to $9.1 million in fiscal 2013.
Adjusted segment income increased 83% from $6.3 million in
fiscal 2012 to $11.5 million in fiscal 2013.
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Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Operating revenues increased 9% from $14.3 million in fiscal
2011 to $15.6 million in fiscal 2012. Adjusted operating revenues
increased 15% from $14.3 million in fiscal 2011 to $16.5 million
in fiscal 2012. Assets under management as of September 30,
2012, were $482.0 million compared with $385.0 million
as of September 30, 2011. Operating revenues in the asset
management product line decreased $1.0 million te $7.6 million
in fiscal 2012. Operating revenues in the grain financing and
physical commodity origination product line increased 38% ro
$7.9 million in fiscal 2012. Adjusted operating revenues in the
grain financing and physical commodity origination product line
increased 55% to $8.9 million in fiscal 2012, These increases
are driven by the establishment of a committed credit facility
to finance commodities, which facilitated additional business
as well as the expansion of our physical inputs business into
the feed ingtedient industry and increased demand for fats and
oils origination from commercial customers. Segment income
decreased 4% from $5.6 million in fiscal 2011 to $5.4 million
in fiscal 2012, Adjusted segment income increased 13% from
$5.6 million in fiscal 2011 to $6.3 million in fiscal 2012.
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Liquidity, Financial Condition and Capital Resources

Overview

Liquidity is defined as our ability to generate sufficient amounts
of cash to meert all of our cash needs. Liquidity is of critical
importance to us and imperative to maintain our operations
on a daily basis,

In FCStone, LLC, oar FCM subsidiary, we have responsibilities
to meet margin calls at all exchanges on a daily basis and intra-
day basis, il necessary. We require our custormers to make any
required margin deposits the next business day, and we require
our largest customers to make intra-day margin payments during
petiods of significant price movement. Margin required to be
posted to the exchanges is a function of the net open positions
of our customers and the required margin per conrract.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2013, INTL FCStone Ltd, our
UK regulated subsidiary, informed the UK authoricies chat it had
reached certain thresholds that require it to be compliant with
the UK’s Individual Liquidity Adequacy Standards (“ILAS™).
To comply with these standards, we have implemented daily
liquidity procedures, and conduct periodic reviews of liquidity
by stressed scenarios, and have created liquidity buffers.

In addition, in our physical commodities trading, soft commodities
OTC, sccurities and foreign exchange trading activities, we may
be called upon to meet margin calls with our various trading
counterparties based upon the underlying open transactions we
have in place with those counterparties.

We continuously review our overall credit and capital needs to
ensure that our capital base, both stockholders’ equity and debs,
as well as available credit facilities can appropriately support the
anticipated financing needs of our operating subsidiaries.

As of September 30, 2013, we had total equiry capital of
$335.4 million, $45.5 million aggregate principal amount of
our issued 8.5% senior unsecured notes, due in July 2020 and
bank loans of $61.0 million.

A substantial portion of our assets are liquid. As of September 30,
2013, approximately 93% of our assets consisted of cash; deposits
and receivables from exchange-clearing organizations, broker-
dealers, clearing organizations and counterparties; customer
teceivables, marketable financial instruments and investments,
and physical commodities inventory, at cost. All assets thar are
not customer and counterparty deposits, are financed by our
equity capital, senior unsecured notes, bank loans, short-term
botrowings from financial instruments sold, not yet purchased,
and other payables.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2013, as a result of a
change in management strategy in our base metals product
line, we elected to pursue an exit of our physical base metals
business through the sale and orderly liquidation of current

open positions. During the following six months ended
September 30, 2013, we completed a sale of 2 portion of the physical
base metals open contracts, and the liquidation of the majority
of the remaining physical base metals inventory, as well as all but
two of the remaining open contract positions. Additionally, on
July 31, 2013, we elected to allow the $100.0 million credit
facilicy which supported this business te expire without renewal,
and the amount cutstanding was repaid in full. While two open
contract positions remain which run off through January 2014,
the exit of the physical base metals business was substantially
completed by the end of fiscal 2013, including the termination
of the physical base metals trading team and certain operational
support personnel,

Fellowing the run off of the two remaining open contract positions,
we will reflect the physical base metals activities in the financial
statemients as discontinued operations, The petformance of the
physical base metals activities resulted in pre-tax income of
$1.4 million in fiscal 2013, including $1.9 million in contract
termination costs incurred since March 31, 2013. On an adjusted,
non-GAAP basis, the performance of the physical base merals
activities, including the aforementioned contract termination
costs, resulted in an adjusted, non-GAAP pre-tax loss of
$10.0 million in fiscal 2013. ‘The physical base metals business
is included in the C&RM segment. We will continue to operate
the portion of our base metals business related to non-physical
assets, conducted primarily through the LME.

We have considered the impact of the exit of the physical base
metals business on eur financial position, future operating results
and liquidity, and believe the exit will not have 2 matetial negative
impact to our consolidated financial statements, expected cash
flows or liquidity. We evaluated the recoverability of long-lived
and intangible assets as a result of this planned exit, noting no
impairment charges. We believe any additional exit costs will not
be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Customer and Counterparty Credit

and Liquidity Risk

Our operations expose us to credit fisk of default of our customers
and counterparties. The risk includes liquidity risk to the extent
our customers or counterparties are unable to make timely
payment of margin or other credit suppott. These risks expose
us indirectly to the financing and liquidity risks of our customers
and counterparties, including the risks that our customers and
counterparties may not be able to finance their operations.

As a clearing broker, we act on behalf of our customers for all
trades consummated on exchanges. We must pay initial and
varjation margin to the exchanges, on a net basis, before we
receive the required payments from our customets. Accordingly,
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we ate responsible for our customers’ obligations with respect to
these transactions, which €xposes us to Signiﬁcant credit risk. Qur
customers are required to make any required margin deposits
the next business day, and we require our largest customers to
make intra-day margin payments during periods of significant
price movement. Our clients are required to maintain initial
margin requirements at the level set by the respective exchanges,
but we have the ability to increase the margin requirements for
customers based on their open positions, trading activity, or
market conditions.

With OTC derivative transactions, we act as a principal, which
exposes us to the credit risk of both our customers and the
counterparties with which we offset our customer positions. As
with exchange-traded transactions, our OTC transactions require
thar we meet initial and variation margin payments on behalf
Of our customers bﬁforﬂ we l'CCCin: the rcquired paymﬂnt from
our customets. OTC customers ate required ta post sufficient
collateral to meet margin requirements based on Value-at-Risk
models as well as variation matgin requirement based on the
price movement of the commodity or security in which they
transact. Our customers are required to make any required margin
depnsil:s the next business day, and we may require our largest
clients to make intra-day margin payments during periods of
significant price movement. We have the ability to increase the
matgin requirements for customers based on their open positions,
trading activity, or market conditions. On a limited basis, we
provide credic thresholds to certain customers, based on internal
evaluations and monitoring of customer creditworthiness.

In addition, wich OTC transactions, we are at risk that a
counterparty will fail to meet its obligations when due. We
would then be exposed to the risk chat che settlement of a
transaction which is due 2 customer will not be collected from
the respective counterparty with which the rransaction was offset.
We continuously monitor the credit quality of our respective
counterparties and mark our positions held with each counterparty
o market on a daily basis.

Information refated to bad debt expense, net of recoveries,
for the fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 is set forth in
Note 6 of the Consolidated Financial Statenents.

Primary Sources and Uses of Cash

Our assers and liabilities may vary significantly from peried
to period due to changing customer requirements, economic
and market conditions and our growth. Our total assets as of
Seprember 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012, were
$2,848.0 million and $2,953.0 million, respectively. Our operating
activities generate or utilize cash as a result of net income or loss
earned or incurred during each period and flucruations in our
assets and liabilities. The most signiﬁcant fAuctuations arise from
changes in the level of customer activity, commodities prices and
Changes in the bafances of financial instruments and commodities
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inventory. FCStone, LLC, our FCM subsidiaty, occasionally uses
its margin line credit facilities, on a short-term basis, to meet
intra-day settlements with the commodity exchanges prior to
collecting margin funds from our customers.

The majority of the assets of FCSrone, LLC are restricted from
being transferred to its parent or other affiliates due to specific
regulatory requirements. These restrictions have no impact
on our ability to meet our cash obligations, and no impact is
expected in the future,

We have liquidity and funding policies and processes in place that
are intended to maintain significant flexibility to address both
Company-specific and industry liquidity needs. The majority of
our excess funds are held with high-quality institutions, under
highly-liquid reverse repurchase agreements, with a maturity of
typically three days or less, U.S. government obligations and
AA-rared money market investments. We do not hold any direct
investments in the general obligations of any sovercign nations.

As of September 30, 2013, $103.3 million of cash, cash equivalents
and available-for-sale investment securities was held by our foreign
subsidiaries. If these funds are needed for operations in the United
States, we would be required to accrue and pay U.S. taxes to
repatriate these funds, up to the amount of undistributed earnings of
$123.1 million. Howeve, our intent Is to indefinitely reinvest these
funds outside of the United States, and our current plans do not

demonstrate 2 need to tepattiate them to fund our U.S, operations.

As of September 30, 2013, approximately $36.7 million of
our financial instruments owned and $8.7 million of financial
instruments sold, not yet purchased, are exchangeable foreign
equities and ADRs,

As of Seprember 30, 2013, we had three committed bank credit
facilities, totaling $290.0 million, of which $61.0 million was
outstanding. The credit facilities include:

o A three-year syndicared loan facility, committed until September 20,
2016, under which INTL FCStone Inc. is entitled to borrow
up to $140 million, subject to certain terms and conditions
of the credic agreement. The loan proceeds are used to finance
working capital needs of us and certain subsidiaries, The
apreement also includes a non-financial covenant that requires
us to provide audited financial statements for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013 within ninety days after the end of
the fiscal year, We were unable to deliver the audited financial
statemnents within the required time period. We requested and
wete granted a waiver from the lenders, dared December 23,
2013, extending the time period we have to provide the audited
financial statements through January 31, 2014,

¢ An unsecured syndicated line of credit, committed until
April 10, 2014, under which our subsidiary, FCStone, LLC is
entitled ta borrow up to §75 million, subject to certain terms
and conditions of the credit agreement. This line of credic is
intended to provide short-term funding of margin tw commodity
exchanges as necessary.
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* A syndicated borrowing facility, committed until May 1, 2014,
under which our subsidiary, FCStone Merchant Services, LLC
is entitled to borrow up to $75 million, subject to certain terms
and conditions of the credit agreement. The loan proceeds are
used to finance traditional commodity financing arrangements
and commodity repurchase agreements.

During fiscal 2014, $150 million of our committed credit facilities
are scheduled to expire. We intend to renew or replace these
facilities as they expire, and based on our liquidity position and
capital structure, we believe we will be able to do so.

Our facility agreements contain certain financial covenants
relating to financial measures on a consolidated basis, as well as
on a certain stand-alone subsidiary basis, including minimum net
worth, minimum working capital, minimum regulatory capital,
minimum net unencumbered liquid assets, minimum equity,
minimum interest coverage and leverage ratios and maximum net
loss. Failure to comply with any such covenants could result in
the debt becoming payable on demand. We and our subsidiaries
are in compliance with all of our financial covenants under the
outstanding facilities.

Subsequent to September 30, 2013, our subsidiary, INTL
FCStone Lid. established a credit facility under which
$25.0 million is available to provide short term funding of margin
to commodity exchanges as necessary.

On July 22, 2013, we completed the offering of $45.5 million
aggregate principal amount of our 8.5% Senior Notes due 2020
{the “Notes”). The net proceeds of the sale of the Notes are being
used for general corporate purposes. The Notes were issued under
an Indenture dated as of July 22, 2013, between us and The
Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee, The Notes bear interest
at a rate of 8.5% per year (payable quarterly on January 30,
April 30, July 30 and Qctober 30 of each year, beginning on
October 30, 2013). The Notes will mature on July 30, 2020, We
may redeem the Notes, in whele or in part, at any time on and
after July 30, 2016, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest
to, but not including, che tedemption date,

On May 3, 2013, we reached an agreement in which First
American Capital and Trading Corp. ("FACT”), will cransfer
its customer accounts to our broker-dealer subsidiary, INTL
FCStone Securities Inc. Completion of this transaction is subject to
certain conditions, including regulatory approval. FACT provides
correspondent clearing services to institutional customers directly
and through a global network of partners. With its experienced
team, FACT services a wide range of customers, including broker-
dealers, invesunent advisors, and fund managers. We completed
this transaction in the first quarter of fiscal 2014,

On December 12, 2012, we finalized an agreement to acquire
certain institutional accounts from Tradewire Securities, 2 Miami-
based securities broker-dealer servicing customers throughout Latin
America and a wholly owned subsidiary of Tradewire Group Lid.
These accounts were transferred to our broker-dealer subsidiary,

INTL FCStone Securities. Tradewire Securities provided global
brokerage services to institutions and individual investors directly
and through a global network of partners. The consideration to be
paid for the acquisition of institutional accounts from Tradewire
Securities consists of three annual contingent payments and a final
contingent payment. Additionally, as part of the transaction, we
hired meore than 20 professional staff from Tradewire Securities,
L1C's securicies broker-dealer business based in Miami, Florida.

In April 2012, our wholly owned UK subsidiary, INTL Holding
{UK) Limited, acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of TRX
Futures Limited (“TRX”) from Neumann Gruppe GmbH. The
purchase price was equal to the tangible net asset value (“NAV”)
of TRX, which was approximately $12.9 million. There are no
additional payments remaining for this acquisition. The total
purchase price for this acquisition was not material to our
consolidated financial statements. Subsequent to September 30,
2012, the activities of TRX have been reorganized within INTL
FCStone Ltd., and TRX is in the process of dissolution.

In February 2012, our subsidiaries, INTL Participacoes LTDA
and FCStene do Brasil, acquired 100% of the shares of Aporte
DTVM. Following the acquisition, Aporte DTVM was renamed
INTL ECStone DTVM Lida. (“INTL FCStone DTVM”). Based
in Brazil, its activities consist of equity brokerage and trustee
services. The purchase price for the acquisition of the shares of
Aposte DTVM was $1.5 million. There are no additional paymenes
remaining for this acquisition. The total purchase price for this
acquisition was not considered to be material.

In November 2011, INTL FCSrone Lid., our wholly owned
subsidiary in the UK, arranged with the administrator of MF
Global's UK operations to acquire certain assets of the Merals
Division of MF Global UK Limited (in special administration). As
part of the arrangement, we received an assighment of customer
accounts and customer account documentation and hired more
than 50 professionals from MF Global’s metals trading business
based in London. The purchase price of the acquisition of
certain assets from MF Global was $1.0 million, There was no
contingent consideration associated with this transaction. The
total purchase price of this transaction was not material ro the
consolidated financial statements.

In November 2011, we acquired 100% of the ownership interests
in Coffee Network LLC (“Coffee Network”). Following the
acquisition, the activities of Coffee Network were reorganized
as a division of FCStone, LLC. The purchase price for the
Coffee Network acquisition consists of an initial pagment of
$0.2 million, three additional annual contingent payments
and a final contingent payment. The total purchase price for
the acquisition of Coffee Network was not material to the
consolidated financial statements.

We have contingent liabilities relating to several acquisicions
we have completed since October 2011. See Note 12 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
on these contingent liabilities. Under the terms of the purchase
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agreements, we have obligations to pay additional consideration
if specific conditions and earnings targets are met. In accordance
with the Business Combinations Topic of the ASC, the fair value
of the additional consideration is recognized as a contingent
liability as of the acquisition date. The acquisition date fair
value of additional consideration is remeasured to its fair value
each reporting period, with changes in fair value recorded in
current earnings. The contingent liabilities for cthese estimated
additional discounted purchase price considerations totaled
$9.6 million as of September 30, 2013, and are included in
‘accounts payable and other accrued liabilities’ in the consolidated
balance sheets. We estimate cash payments during fiscal 2014, 2015
and 20106 related to these contingent liabilities, to be $1.6 million,
$4.8 million and $5.6 million, respecrively.

We contributed $2.9 million to our defined benefit pension
plans during the year ended September 30, 2013, and expect to
contribute $2.3 million to the plans during fiscal 2014, which
represents the minimum funding requirement.

Other Capital Considerations

Our activities are subject to significant governmental regulations
and capital adequacy requirements, both in the United States
and overseas. Certain other of our non-U.S. subsidiaries are
also subject o capital adequacy requirements promulgaced by
authorities of the countries in which they operate.

QOur subsidiaries are in compliance with all of their capiral
regulatory requirements as of September 30, 2013. Additional

information on these net capital and minimum net capital

tequirements can be found in Note 13 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Dodd-Frank Act created a comprehensive new regulatory
regime governing the OTC and listed derivatives markets and
their participants by requiring, among other things: centralized
clearing of standardized derivatives (with certain stated exceptions);
the trading of clearable derivatives on swap execution facilities
or exchanges; and registration and comprehensive regulation
of new categories of market participants as “swap dealers” and
swap “introducing brokers.” We registered our subsidiary, INTL
Hanley LLC, as a swap dealer on December 31, 2012. Most of
the rules affecting this business have now been finalized, and
external business conduct rules came into effect on May 1,
2013. Nevertheless, some important rules, such as those setting
capital and margin requirements, have not been finalized or fully
implemented, and it is too eatly to predict with any degree of
certainty how we will be affected.

Cash Flows

Our cash and cash equivalents decreased from $236.3 million
as of September 30, 2012 to $156.1 million as of September 30,
2013, a net decrease of $80.2 million. Net cash of $44.9 million
was provided by operating activities, $5.1 million was provided
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by investing acrivities and net cash of $129.7 million was used in
financing activities, of which $157.2 million was repaid on lines
of credit and decreased the amounts payable to lenders under
loans, $12.0 million was paid out as earn-outs on acquisitions
and $3.9 million was used to repurchase shares. Fluctuations in
exchange rates caused a reduction of $0.5 million to our cash
and cash equivalents.

In the commadities industry, companies report trading activites
in the operating section of the statement of cash flows. Due to
the daily price volatility in the commodities marker, as well as
changes in margin requirements, fluctuations in the balances
of deposits held at various exchanges, marketable securities and
customer commodity accounts may occur from day-to-day. A
use of cash, as calculated on the consolidated statement of cash
flows, includes untestricted cash transferred and pledged to the
exchanges or guarantee funds. These funds are held in interest-
bearing depasit accounts at the exchanges, and based on daily
exchange requirements, may be withdrawn and returned to
unrestticted cash. Additionally, within our unregulated OTC
and Fotex operations, cash deposits received from customers are
reflected as cash provided from operations. Subsequent transfer
of these cash deposits to counterparties or exchanges to margin
their open positions will be reflected as an operating use of cash
to the extent the transfer occurs in a different period than the
cash deposit was received.

In June 2012, the board of LME Holdings Limited (“LME
Holdings”}, the parent company of the LME, entered into a
framework agreement regarding the terms of a recommended
cash offer for the entire issued and outstanding ordinary share
capital of LME Holdings. In July 2012, the sharcholders of LME
Holdings approved the sale of LME Holdings to the Hong Kong
Exchanges & Clearing Limited. In December 2012, we received
proceeds of $8.6 million from the sale of our shares in the LME.

In December 2012, we sold our exchange membership seats in
the KCBT, in connection with the acquisition of the KCBT by
CME. We received proceeds of $1.5 million and recognized a
gain of $0.9 million before taxcs, during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013, in connection with the sale of these scats.

Capital expenditures included in investing activities for property,
plant and equipment totaled $4.9 million in fiscal 2013, decreasing
from $8.7 million in fiscal 2012,

On November 15, 2012, our Board of Directors replaced the
August 12, 2011 authorized repurchase of up to 1.0 million
shares of its outstanding common stock with an authorization to
repurchase up to 1.5 milkion shares of our outstanding common
stock from time to time in open market purchases and private
transactions, subject to the discretion of the senior management
team to implement our stock repurchase plan, and subject to
market conditions and as permitted by securities laws and
other legal and regulatory requirements, During the year ended
September 30, 2013, we repurchased 200,109 shartes of our
outstanding common stock in open market transactions, for an
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apgregate purchase price of $3.7 million as part of the announced
plan. During the year ended September 30, 2012, we repurchased
217,507 shates of our outstanding common stock in open
market transactions in the aggregate amount of $4.0 miliion
as part of che announced plan. Subsequent to September 30,
2013, we repurchased 63,800 shares of our ourstanding common
stock in open market transactions in the aggregate amount of
$1.3 million as part of the announced plan.

In July 2013, we completed the offering of $45.5 million
aggregate principal amount of our 8.5% Senior Notes due 2020
(the “Notes”). The net proceeds of the sale of the Notes are
being used for general corporate purposes. The Notes were
issued under an Indencure dated as of July 22, 2013, berween us
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee. The Notes bear
interest ac a rate of 8.5% per year (payable quartetly on January
30, April 30, July 30 and October 30 of each year, beginning on

Contractual Obligations

October 30, 2013}. The Notes will macure on July 30, 2020. We
may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on and
after July 30, 2016, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest
o, but not including, the redemption date.

‘We incurred debr issuance costs of $1.7 million in connection
with the issuance of the Notes, which are being amortized over
the term of the Notes. Additionally, we paid debt issuance costs
of $1.5 million in connection with the issuance of the new three-
year credit facility, which are being amortized over the thirty-six
month term of the facility.

Apart from what has been disclosed above, there are no known
trends, events or uncercainties that have had or are likely to
have a material impact on our liquidity, financial condition and
capital resources.

The following table summarizes our cash payment obligations as of September 30, 2013:

Payments Due by Period

(in millions) Total Less than 1 year 1 - 3 Years 3 -5 Years After 5 Years
Operating lease obligations $ 349 § 67 § 103 § 77 % 10.2
Purchase obligations™ 293.0 293.0 — — —
Senior unsecured notes 45.5 — — — 45.5
Contingent acquisition consideration 12.0 1.6 10.4 — —
Orher 17.5 5.7 6.8 3.4 1.6

3 4029 % 307.0 § 27.3 $ 11.1 $ 57.3

(1) Represenss an estimate of contractual purchase commitments in the ordinary course of business primarily for the puvchase of precious and base metals. Unpriced
contract commitments have been estimated using September 30, 2013 faiv values. The purchase commitments for less than one year will be partially offet by

corresponding sales commitments of $216.6 million.

Tota] contractual obligarions exclude defined benefit pension
obligations. In fiscal 2014, we anticipate making contributions
of $2.5 million to defined benefir plans. Additional information
on the funded status of these plans can be found in Note 16 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Based upon out curtent operations, we believe that cash flow from
operations, available cash and available borrowings under our
credit facilities will be adequate to meet our future liquidity needs.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are party to certain financial instruments with off-balance
sheet risk in the normal course of business as a registered securiries
broker-dealer and FCM and from our market-making and
proprictary trading in the foreign exchange and commodities
trading business. As parc of these activities, we carty short positions.
For example, we sell financial instruments that we do not own,
borrow the financial instruments to make good delivery, and
thetefore are obliged to purchase such financial instcruments ar a
future date in order to return the borrowed financial instruments.
We have recorded these obligations in the consolidated financial

statements at September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012,
at fair value of the related financial instruments, toraling
$179.9 million and $175.4 million, respectively. These positions
are held to offset the risks related to financial assets owned, and
reported in our consolidated balance sheets in ‘Ainancial instruments
owned, at fair value’, and ‘physical commodities inventory’. We
will incur losses if the fair value of the financial instruments sold,
not yet purchased, increases subsequent to September 30, 2013,
which might be partially or wholly offset by gains in the value
of assets held as of September 30, 2013. The totals of §179.9
million and $175.4 million include a net lability of $30.7 million
and $44.6 million for derivarives, based on their fair value as
of September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012, respectively.

In our foreign exchange and commodities trading product lines,
we hold options and futures-on-options contracts resulting
from market-making and proprietary trading activities in these
product lines. We assist customets in our commodities trading
business to protect the value of their future production {precious
or base metals) by selling them put options on an OTC basis.
We also provide our commodities trading business customers
with sophisticated option products, including combinations of
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buying and selling pus and calls. We mitigate our tisk by effecting
offsetting options with market counterparties or through the
purchase or sale of exchange-traded commodities futures. The
risk mitigation of offsetting options is not within the documented
hedging designation requirements of the Derivatives and Hedging
Topic of the ASC.

In our C&RM segment, when transacting OTC and foreign
exchange contracts with our customers, our OTC and
foreign exchange trade desks will generally offset the customer’s
transaction simultaneously with one of our trading counterparties
or will offset that transaction with a similar, bur not identical,
positien on the exchange. These unmatched transactions are
intended to be short-term in nature and are conducted to facilitate
the most effective transaction for our customer.

Derivative contracts are traded along with cash cransactions
because of the integrated nature of the markets for such products.

Effects of Inflation

We manage the risks associated with derivatives on an aggregate
basis along with the risks associated with our propristary trading
and market-making activities in cash instrutnents as part of our
firm-wide risk management policies.

We are 2 member of various commodity exchanges and clearing
organizations. Under the standard membership agreement, all
members ate required to guarantee the performance of other
members and, accordingly, in the event another member is
unable to satisfy its obligations to the exchange, we may be
required to fund a portion of the shortfall. Our liability under
these arrangements is not quantifiable and could exceed the
cash and securities we have posted as collateral at the exchanges.
However, management believes that the potential for us to be
required ro make payments under these arrangements is remote,
Accordingly, no contingent liability for these arrangements
has been recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Because our assets are, to a large extent, liquid in nature, they are
not significantly affected by inflation. Increases in our expenses,
such as compensation and benefits, transaction-based clearing
expenses, occupancy and equipment rental, due to inflation,
may not be readily recoverable from increasing the prices of our
services. While rising interest tates are generally favorable for
us, to the extent that inflation has other adverse effects on the
financial markets and on the value of the financial instruments
held in inventory, it may adversely affect our financial position
and results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

The prepatation of consolidated financial statements in conforimity
with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assers and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilicies at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amaunts of revenue and
expenses during the reported period. The accounting estimates
and assumptions discussed in this section are those that we
consider the most eritical to the financial statements. We believe
these estimates and assumptions can involve a high degree of
judgment and complexity. Due to their nature, estimates involve
judgment based upon available information. Actual results or
amounts could differ from estimates and the difference could
have a material impact on the financial statements. Therefore,
understanding these policies is important in understanding our
reported and potential future results of operations and financial
position.
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Valuation of Financial Instruments and Foreign Currencies.
Substantially all inancial inscruments are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements ar fair value or amounts that
approximate fair value. These financial instruments include:
cash and cash equivalents; cash, securities and other assets
segregated under federal and other regulations; financial
instruments purchased under agreements to resell; deposits
with clearing organizations; financial inscruments owned; and
financial instruments sold but not yet purchased. Unrealized
gains and losses related to these financial instruments, which
ate not customer owned positions, are reflected in earnings.
Where available, we use prices from independent sources such
as listed market prices, or broker or dealer price quotations. Fair
values for certain derivative contracts are derived from pricing
models that consider current market and contractual prices for
the underlying financial instruments ar commaodities, as well as
time value and yield curve or volatility factors underlying the
positions. In some cases, even though the value of a security is
derived from an independent market price or broker or dealer
quote, cercain assumptions may be required to determine the
fair value. However, these assumptions may be incorrect and
the actual value realized upon disposition could be different
from the current carrying value. The value of foreign currencies,
including foreign currencies sold, not yet purchased, are converied
into its U.S. doltar equivalents at the foreign exchange rates
in effect at the close of business at the end of the accounting
period. For foreign currency transactions completed during each
reporting period, the foreign exchange rate in effect at the time
of the transaction is used.
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The application of the valuation process for financial instruments
and foreign currencies is critical because these items represent a
significant portion of our total assets. Valuartions for substantially
all of the financial instruments held are available from independent
publishers of market information. The valuation process may
involve estimates and judgments in the case of certain financial
instruments with limited liquidity and OTC derivatives. Given
the wide availability of pricing informarion, the high degree of
liquidity of the majority of our assets, and the relatively short
periods for which they are typically held in inventory, there is
insignificant sensitivity to changes in estimates and insignificant
risk of changes in estimates having a material effect on our
financial statements. The basis for estimating the valuation of
any financial inscruments has not undergone any change.

Revenue Recognition. A significant portion of our revenues are
derived principally from: realized and unrealized trading income
in securities, derivative instruments, commodities and foreign
currencies purchased or sold for our account. We record realized
and unrealized trading income on a trade date basis. We state
securities owned and securities sold, not yet purchased and foreign
currencies sold, not yet purchased, at fair value with related
changes in unrealized appreciation or depreciation reflected in
‘trading gains, net’ in the consolidated income statements. We
record fee and interest income on the accrual basis and dividend
income is recognized on the ex-dividend date.

Revenue on commodities that are purchased for physical delivery
to customers and that are not readily convertible into cash is
recognized at the point in time when the commodity has been
shipped, title and risk of loss has been transferred to the cusromer,
and the following conditions have been met: persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed and determinable, and
collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

The critical aspect of revenue recognirtion is recording all known
transactions as of the trade date of each transaction for the
financial period. We have developed systems for each of our
businesses to capture all known transactions. Recording all
known transactions involves reviewing trades that occur after
the financial period that relate to the financial period. The
accuracy of capturing this information is dependent upon the
completeness and accuracy of data capture of the operations
systems and our clearing firms.

Income Taxes. We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and
numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required
in determining the consolidated provision for income taxes and
in evaluating tax positions, including evaluating uncertainties.
As a result, the company recognizes rax liabilities based on
estimnates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due.
‘These tax liabilities are recognized when despite our belief that
our tax return positions are supportable, we believe that certain
positions may not be fully sustained upon review by the relevant
tax authorities,

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and [iability
method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which those temporary differences ate expected
to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. Significant judgment
is also required in determining any valuation allowance recorded
against deferred tax assers. In assessing the need for a valuation
allowance, management considers all available evidence for each
jurisdiction including past operating results, estimates of future
taxable income, and the feasibility of engoing tax planning
strategies. In the event chat we change our determination as to the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be realized, we will adjust
our valuation aflowance with a corresponding impact to income
tax expense in the period in which such determination is made.

We believe that our accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all
open audit years based on our assessment of many facrors including
past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment
relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve series of
complex judgments about future events. To the extent that new
information becomes available which causes us to change our
judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities, such
changes to tax liabilities will impact income tax expense in the
period in which such determination is made. The consolidated
provision for income taxes will change period to period based on
non-recurring events, such as the settlement of income tax audits
and changes in tax law, as well as recurring factors including the
geographic mix of income before taxes, state and local taxes, and
the effects of various global income tax strategies.
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk

See also Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, ‘Financial Instruments with Qff-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations

of Credit Risk'.

Market Risk

We conduct our market-making and trading activities
predominantly as a principal, which subjects our capital to
significan risks. These risks include, but are not limited to, absolute
and relative price movements, price volarility and changes in
liquidity, over which we have virtally no control. Our exposure
to market risk varies in accordance with the volume of client-
driven market-making transactions, the size of the proprietary
positions and the volarility of the financial instruments traded.

We seek to mitigate exposure to market risk by utilizing a variety
of qualitative and quantitative techniques:

* Diversification of business activities and inscruments;

* Limitatians on positions;

* Allocation of capital and limits based on estimated weighted

risks; and
* Daily monitering of positions and mark-to-markert proficability.

We utilize detivative products in a trading capacity as a dealer to
satisfy client needs and mitigate risk, We manage risks from both
derivatives and non-derivative cash instruments on a consolidated
basis. The risks of derivatives should not be viewed in isolation,
buc in aggregate with our other trading activities.

Management believes that the volarility of revenues is a key
indicator of the effectiveness of its risk management techniques.

The graph below summarizes volatilicy of our daily revenue,
determined on a marked-to-market basis, during the year ended

September 30, 2013.

Marked-to-Market Revenues
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In our securities matket-making and trading activities, we
maintain inventories of equity and debt securities. In our
commodities market-making and trading activities, our positions
include physical inventories, forwards, futures and optiens. Our
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commodity trading activities are managed as one consolidated
book for each commodity encompassing both cash positions and
derivative instruments. We monitor the aggregare position for
each commodity in equivalent physical ounces or metric tons.
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Interest Rate Risk

In the ordinary course of our operations, we have interest rate
risk from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect
the values of financial instruments and impact interest income
earned. We generate interest income from the pasitive spread
earned on customer deposits. We cypically invest in U.S. Treasury
bills and obligations issued by government sponsored entities,
reverse repurchase agreements involving U.S. Treasury bills and
government obligations or AA-rated money market funds. We
have an investment policy which establishes acceprable standards
of credit quality and limits the amount of funds that can be
invested within a particular fund and institution.

Since mid-2010, we have employed an interest rate management
strategy, where we have used derivative financial instruments
in the form of interest rate swaps to manage a portion of our
aggregate interest rate position. Our objective is to invest the
majority of customer segregated deposits in high quality, short-
term investments and swap the resulting variable interest earnings
into a medium-term interest stream when a sufficient interest
rate spread exists berween the two durations, by using a strip
of interest rate swaps that mature every quarter, and enable us
to achieve the two-year moving average of the two-year swap
rate, In fiscal 2013, operating revenues include realized gains of

$1.4 million and unrealized losses of $1.3 million on interest
rate swap derivative contracts used to manage a portion of our
aggregate interest rate position. In fiscal 2012, operating revenues
included realized gains of $2.5 million and unrealized losses of
$1.1 million on interest rate swap derivative contracts. In fiscal
2011, operating revenues included realized and unreatized
gains of $4.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively, on interest
rate swap derivative contracts. These interest rate swaps are not
designated for hedge accounting treatment, and changes in the
fair values of these interest rate swaps, which are volatile and can
Auctuate from period to period, are recorded in earnings on a
quarterly basis. The last remaining interest rate swap expired in

the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.

We manage interest expense using floating rate debrt as well as
including the average outstanding borrowings in aur calculations
of the notional value of interest rate swaps to be entered into as
part of our interest rate management strategy discussed above.
Refer to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for information on the interest rate swap transactions. The
debt instruments are carried at their unpaid principal balance
which approximates fair value. All of our outstanding debe as of
Seprember 30, 2013, has a variable interest rate.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
INTL FCStone Inc.:

We have audited INTL FCStone Inc.’s (the Company} internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, based
on criteria established in futernal Control - Inzegrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reparting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
appearing under Ttem 9A(b) of the Company’s September 30,
2013 annual report on Form 10-K. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over
financial teporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audic o
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. Our audic also included performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal controf over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financiat reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extetnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; {2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements,
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, ot that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a macerial misstaternent
of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A material
weakness related to the accurate and timely accounting for
certain principal over-the-counter derivative trading activities
has been identified and included in management’s assessment.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated balance sheets of the Company and subsidiaries
as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and
stockholders’ equity for each of the years in the three-year period
ended September 30, 2013, as well as the accompanying financial
statement schedule. This material weakness was considered in
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied
in our audit of the 2013 consolidated financial statements, and
this report does not affecr our report dated January 15, 2014,
which expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying financial statement

schedule.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the aforementioned
material weakness on the achievement of the objectives of the
control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, based
on criteria established in Internal Cnntrol—[megmted Framework
(1992} issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission.

We do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance
on management’s staterments referring to corrective actions
taken after September 30, 2013, relative to the aforementioned
material weakness in internal control over financial reporting.

5 KPMG LLP
Kansas City, Missouri
January 15, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of INTL FCStone Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
Septermber 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, cash Hows and
stockholders’ equity for each of dhe years in the three-vear period
ended September 30, 2013. In connection with our audits of
the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the
accompanying financial stacement schedule. These consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedulé are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statemnents are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all matetial respects, the financial

position of the Company as of September 30, 2013 and 2012,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2013, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statemnents taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein.

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company restated its 2012 and 2011 consolidated financial
statements to cofrect a misstatement.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Campany Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company’s internal control aver financial reporting as of
September 30, 2013, based on criteria established in Znternal
Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Commitree
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COSQ), and our report dated January 15, 2014 expressed an
adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

i KPMG LLP
Kansas City, Missouri
January 15, 2014

INTL ECSTONE INC. - Form 10-K 57



PART II
ITEM 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Consolidated Balance Sheets

{in millions, except par value and shave amounts) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
(As Ressated)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1561 - $ 236.3
Cash, securities and other assets segregated under federal and other regulations {including
$107.6 and $72.8 at fair valug at September 30, 2013 and Scptember 30, 2012 regmfgtive[y) 4494 3575
Peposits with and receivables from:
Exchange-clearing organizations (including $1,371.7 and $1,510.0 at fair value at
September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012, respectively) 1,576.6 1,619.8
Broker-dealers, clearing organizations and counterparties {including ${13.1) and $(0.7) ac : |
Eair value ac Seprember 30, 2013 and Sepeember 30, 2012, respectively) 1683 . _ . 1168
Receivable from customers, net 93.3 - 689
Notes receivable, net 374 T 1040
Income taxes receivable 15.5 15.5
Financial inscruments owned, at fair value , 1585 SRS v Y/
Physical commeodities inventory 59.0 131.6
Deferred income taxes, net 255 ¢ 219
Property and equipment, net , 17.5 - 189
Goodwill znd intangible assets, net ! 59.1 558
Other assets 31.8 34.3
TOTAL ASSETS ' $ 2,848.0 : § 2,953.0.
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities {including $9.6 and $14.8 at faic value at
September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012) $ 1140 3 127.0
Payable to:
Customers 2,091.8 2,072.3
Broker-dealers, clearing organizations and counterparties 17.0 ¢ 39.4
Lenders under loans 61.0 218.2
Senior unsecured notes 453 ¢ —
Income taxes payable 34 5.5
Financial instruments sold, not yer purchased, at fair value 179.9 ° 175.4
Deferred income taxes — 2.0
TOTAL LIABILITIES B $ 25126 '8 . 2,639.8

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholdets’ equity: :
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 1,000,000 shares; no shares issued or outstanding - —

Common stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 30,000,000 shares; 19,638,350 issued and
19,209,157 outstanding ac September 30, 2013 and 19,214,219 issued and 18,984,951 ; '
outstanding at September 30, 2012 02 : 0.2

Common stock in treasury, at cost - 429,173 shares at September 30, 2013 and 229,064

shares at September 30, 2012 (7.8} 4.1

Additional paid-in capital 2240 : 213.2

Retained earnings 125.4 106.1

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (6.4); 22
Total stockholders’ equity 3354 313.2
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 2,848.0 - 8 -2,953.0

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial satements.
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Consolidated Income Statements

Year Ended September 30,
{in millions, except share and per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011
{(As Restated) {As Restated)
Revenues:
Sales of physical commuodities $ 43,283.7 § 67,5147 § 72,521.2
Trading gains, net 265.0 244.9 201.6
Commission and clearing fees 173.3 161.0 134.5
Consulting and management fees 35.1 27.9 227
Interest income 10.3 10.3 10.3
QOther income 0.9 0.5 1.0
Total revenues 43.768.3 67,959.3 72,891.3
Cost of sales of physical commodiries 43,289.9 67,505.1 72,4722
Operating revenues : 478.4 454.2 419.1
Transaction-based clearing expenses 110.1 105.4 75.6
Introducing broker commissions 40.5 31.0 24.0
Interest expense 12,5 11.6 11.3
Net operating revenues 315.3 306.2 308.2
Compensation and other expenses:
Compensation and benefits 201.6 2024 176.6
Communication and dara services 23.3 226 15.5
Occupancy and equipment renal 12.0 11.0 8.9
Professional fees 13.1 12.9 10.6
Travel and business development ' 107 11.2 89
Depreciation and amortization 8.0 7.2 47
Bad debts and impairments : 0.8 1.5 6.2
Other 232 21.6 21.4
Total compensation and other expenses 2927 290.4 2528
Income from continuing operations, before tax 226 15.8 55.4
Income tax expense § 3.3 3.1 20.9
Net income from continuing operations 19.3 12.7 34.3
Income from discontinued operations, net of rax —— oo 0.2
Net income 19.3 .7 34.7
Add: Met loss atributable to noncontrolling interests ‘ — 0.1 0.1
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO INTL FCSTONE INC.
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ 193 8 12.8 $ 34.8

Basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operarions attributable to INTL FCStone Inc.

common stockholders $ 1.01 §% 067 $ 1.92
Income from discontinued operations attributable to INTL FCStone Inc.
common stockholders ] — . 0.01
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO INTL FCSTONE INC.
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS ‘ $ 101 $ 0.67 § 1.93

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations attributable to INTL FCStone Inc.

common stockholders $ 097 % 0.64 § 1.82

Income from discontinued eperations attributable vo INTL FCStone Inc.

common stockholders — — 0.01
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO INTL FCSTONE INC.
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ 0.97 $ 0.64 § 1.83
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding:
BASIC 18,443,233 18,282,939 17,618,085
DILUTED : 19,068,497 19,136,899 18,567,454
Amounts attributable to INTL FCStone Inc. common stockholders:

Income from contiauing operations, net of tax $ 193 § 128 % 34.6

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — 0.2
NET INCOME 3 19.3 $ 12.8 § 348

See m‘mmpanying notes te Cﬂmﬂ[iﬂhﬁfﬁlﬁﬂﬂﬂfﬁﬂl.ﬁﬂffmeﬂﬂ.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
' . R ' " {AsRésared) (As Restated)
Net income RS T 193 % 127 % 34.7
Other comprehensive income (loss), ner of tix: SRR S ! o *
Foreign currency translation adjustment R _ (1.8} _ (1.1} {0.4)
Ner unrealized gain on derivative instruments L e — 1.0
Pension liabilities adjustment o L. 34 (1.6) 2.9
Net-usirealized gain or loss on available-for-sale secutities S o 0.6 | 65 {0.6)
Reclassificarion of adjustment for gains included in net income: : o
Foreign cutrency translation adjustment {included in other income) - - .. o — : —
Realized gain on available-for-sale securides (included in trading gains, ner) R - ¥ 3 = _ —
- Income tax expense from reclassification adjustments (included in A : '
income tax expense} e 20 L= - —
Reclassification adjustrment for gains intcluded in net income L (6 - —
Qther comprehensive (loss) incaome ) L (4.2) 3.8 (2.9)
Comprehensive income : 3 © 151 1§ 165 § 3.8
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statements

Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) — _” 2013 2012 _ 2011
S - e (As Restated) - . (As Restated)

Cash flows from operating activities: _ ) . .
- "Net income S " § 193 ¢ 127 % - - 347
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) '

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization EEE ' 86" 72 47
Provision for bad debts and impaitments _ 0.8 1.7 6.2
Deferred income taxes . - ‘ (7.8’ ©.3) o 18
Amortization of debt issuance costs and debt discount 1.2 1.7 1.6
Convertible debt interest setcled in company stock upen conversion — - 02
Amortization of share-based compensation expense 9.3 59 2.3
Loss on sale of properry and equipment =~ - : 04 — p—
Gain on disposal of affiliace _ 7 0.4 - —
Gain on sale of exchange memberships and cofumon stock : (9.1} — e
Galn on acquisition of INTL Provident —_ — _ (0.4).
Changes in operating assets and lisbilides, net: : ' R
Cash, securities and other assets segregated under federal and other regularions (95.1} (199.9} {104.1)
" Deposits and receivables from exchange-clearing organizations 423 - (97.7) - (586.0)
Deposits and receivables from broker-dealers, clearing organizations, and
counterparties _ (53.4) 46.2 51.2
Receivable from customers, net ' i (23.7} C 464 (39.1)
Notes receivable, net 66.6 (77.9) 2.9
Income taxes receivable .- : 0.2) &1 0.6
Financial instruments owned, ac fair value il 58.3 280.7
Physical commodities inventory : : 72.7 29.06 (35.6)
Other assets 4.3 (1.6) (12.1
Accounts payable and othet accrued liabilities. .. (0.2} 10.6 . 308
Payable to customers o 24.0 248.0 366.2
" Payablé to broker-dealers, clearing organizations and counterpareies : {22.3) 35.9 (8
Income raxes payable 0.5 0.3 —_
Pinancial instruments sald, not yet purchased, at fair value : 4.6 (215.5) - 202.9
Net cash provided by {used in} operating activities 44.9 (92.1) 209.0
"Cash flows from investing activities: - o
Deconsolidation of afhiliates — 0.4 —
Disposal of affiliare ' R 0.2 - =
Cash paid for acquisitions, net — (11.7) 9.3)
Purchase of exchange memberships and common stock 0.3) . — (3.4)
Sale of exchange memberships and common stock 10.1 — 1.3
Purchase of property and equipmente  * . ) {4.9) (8.7} © o (18.1)
Net cash provided by (used in} investing activities 5.1 (20.0) (21.5}
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Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 — 2012 . 2011
~ : © {AsRestated) - {As Restated)..

Cash flows {rom financing activiries;

Net charige in payable to lenders under loans asry - 140.8 ' (37.5)
Payments related to earn-outs on acquisitions (12.0) (9.6) (2.4)
Proceeds from issuance of seniot unsecured notes 455 - - — : _—
Repayment of subordinated debt : — — 0.5)
Share repurchase’ B39 . o R
Debt issuance costs 3.7 (0.3) (2.4)
“Fxercise of stock options 15 1.9 . . 14
Income tax benefir on stock options and awards 0.1 0.2 —
Net cash {used in) provided by financing activities {129.7) 1290 (484)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (0.5} {1.2) (0.4)
Net {decrease} increase in cash and cash equivalents (80.2) 15.7 : 138.7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2363 220.6 81.9
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 156.1 $ 2363 % . 220.6
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informarion: _
CASH PAID FOR INTEREST - $ 89 .3 79 % 9.5
INCOME TAXES PAID, NET OF CASH REFUNDS $ 162 § 61 § i 17.6 _

Supplementa] disclosure of nop-cash investing and Fnancing activities:
CONVERSION OF SUBORDINATED NOTES TO

COMMON STOCK, NET $ — 8 — 8 16.7
IDENTIFIED INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL , : - : ‘
ON ACQUISIFIONS $ 56§ 1.8 § 4.9
ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

RELATED TO ACQUISITIONS $ 82 § 21 % 5.4

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Additional Other Non
Common Treasury  Paid-in Renained Comprehensive controlling
(in millions) Stock Stock Capital Earnings Loss Listerests Total
Balances as of Seprember 30, 2010, R S e :
as reported C ) $702°% 1) % 1846 3 597 % 3% 16 % 2429
Cumulative prior period adjustment {1.2) (1.2)
BALANCES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, S R : T
2010, AS RESTATED $ 862 % @I) § 1846 & 585 % 3.1} % 1.6 $ 241.7
Ner income 34.8 {0.1) 347
Other comprehensive loss (2.9) ‘ 2.9)
Redemprion of fund units (0,2} (0.2)
Exercise of stock options 1.4 1.4
Share-based compensation 23 2.3
Convertible note conversions _ 16.9 16.9
BALANCES AS OF SEPTEMBER 36,
2011, AS RESTATED 5 0235 (01 $ 2052 $ 933 8 (6.0) $ 1.3 § 293.9
Net income S 128 ' B ) B VA
Other comprehensive income 3.8 38
Exercise of stack aptions 2.1 C 21
Share-based compensation 5.9 5.9
Repurchase of stock 4.0 4.0y
Disposal or de-consolidation {1.2) (1.2)
BALANCES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, ‘
2012, AS RESTATED $ 02 $£ 41 $ 2132 3% 1061 § {22) $ — § 315.2:
Net income 19.3
Other comprehensive loss 4 (4.2)
Exercise of stock options 1.5 1.5
Share-based compensation 9.3 2.3
Repurchase of stock (3.7 0.2) 3.9
Stock held in escrow for business combination : 0.2 0.2
BALANCES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,
2013 $ 02 8§ (78) § 2240 $ 1254 § (6.4) $ — $ 3354

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial siatements,

INTL FCSTONE INC. - Form 10-K 63



%1

PART 11
ITEM 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1

Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

INTL FCStone Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated
subsidiaries (collectively “INTL” or “the Company”), form
a financial services group focused on domestic and select
international markets. The Company’s services include
comprehensive risk management advisory services for commercial
customers; cxecution of listed futures and options-on-futures
contracts on all major commodity exchanges; structured over-
the-counter (*OTC”) products in 2 wide range of commodiries;
physical tading and hedging of precious and base metals and select
other commodities; crading of more than 130 foteign currencies;
market-making in international equities; debt origination and
asset management.

The Company provides these services to a diverse group of
morte than 20,000 accounts, representing approximately 11,000
consolidated customers lacated throughout the world, including
producers, processors and end-users of nearly all widely-traded
physical commodities to manage their risks and enhance margins;
to commercial counterparties who are end-users of the firm’s
products and services; to governmental and non-governmental
organizations; and o commercial banks, brokers, insticurional
investors and major investment banks.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of INTL FCStane Inc, and all other entities in which
the Company has a controlling financial interest. All material
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Unless otherwise stated herein, all references to fiscal 2013,
fiscal 2012, and fiscal 2011 refer to the Company’s fiscal years
ended September 30.

Reclassifications

Cerrain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to
conform to the current period presentation. The reclassifications
were made to change the income statement presentation
to provide cthe users of the financial statements additional
information related to the operating results of the Company.
These reclassifications include reclassifying transaction-based
clearing expenses and introducing broker commissions separately
from compensation and other expenses, and as components
along with interest expense in arriving at net operating revenues.
Additionally, travel and business development expenses were
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previously included in ‘other’ expense. The reclassifications
had no effect on consolidated net income or consolidated
assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

‘The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as of
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The most
significant of these estimates and assumptions relate to fair value
measurements for financial instruments and investments, revenue
recognition, the provision for potential losses from bad debts,
valuation of inventories, valuation of goodwill and intangible
assets, incomes taxes and contingencies. These estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions
the Company may undertake in the future, The Company reviews
all significant estimates affecting the financial statements on a
recurring basis and records the effect of any necessary adjustments
prior to their issuance. Although these and other estimates and
assumptions are based on the best available information, actual
results could be matertally different from these estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities recorded in foreign currencies are wanslated
at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date, Revenue
and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing
during the period. Gains or losses on eranslation of the financial
statements of 2 non-United States (“U.S.”) operation, when the
functional currency is ocher than the U.S. dollar, are recorded in
other comprehensive income {“OCIL"), net of tax, a component
of stockholders” equity, Foreign currency remeasurement gains or
losses on transactions in nonfunctional currencies are included
in ‘trading gains, ne’ in the consolidated income statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers cash held at banks and all highly liquid

investments, including certificates of deposit, which may be
withdrawn at any time at the discretion of the Company without
penalty, to be cash and cash equivalenes. Cash and cash equivalents

consist of cash, foreign currency, money market funds and



certificates of deposit not deposited with or pledged to exchange-
clearing organizations, broker-dealers, clearing organizations or
counterparties. The money market funds are valued at period-
end at che net asset value provided by the fund’s administrator,
which approximates fair value. Certificates of deposit are stated
at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. The
Company has an investment policy, which limits the maximum
amount placed in any one fund and with any one institution in
order to reduce credit risk. The Company does not believe that
it is exposed to significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Cash, Securities and Other Assets Segregated
under Federal and other Regulations

Pursuant to requirements of the Commodity Exchange Act in
the U.S. and simifarly in the United Kingdom ("UK”), pursuant
to the Markets in Financial Instruments Implementing Directive
2006/73/EC underpinning the Client Asset or ‘CASS’ rules
in the Financial Services Autherity (“FSA”) handbook, funds
depasited by customers relating to futures and options-on-
futures contracts in regulated commeodities must be carried in
separate accounts which are designated as segregated customer
accounts. The deposits in segregated customer accounts are not
commingled with the funds of the Company. Under the FSA’s
rules, certain categories of clients may choose to opt-out of
segregation. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, cash, securities
and other assets segregated under federal and other regulations
consisted of cash held at banks and money market funds of
approximately $416.8 million and $284.7 million, respectively,
U.S. government securities and federal agency obligations of
approximately $19.5 million and $50.5 million, respgcgi‘gely, and
commodities warehouse receipts of approximately 313, miilion
and $22.3 million, respectively (see fair value measuremencs
discussion in Note 4).

Securities purchased under agreements
to resell

The Company has an overnigh sweep reverse repurchase agreement
program to allow the Company to enter into secured overnight
investments {reverse repurchase agreements or reverse repos),
which generally provides a higher investment yield than a regular
operating account. The reverse repurchase agreements are recorded
at amounts at which the securities were initially acquired. It is
the policy of the Company to rake possession of the securities
purchased under agreements o resell. The Company receives 1.S.
Treasury securities as collateral for the overnight agreements. The
securities received are recorded at no more than the lesser of the
current fair value of the securities or the net amount to be realized
by the Company upon resale of the securities. The maturicy of
the reverse repurchase agreements is typically one day, at which
point the securities are sold and the proceeds are returned to the
Company, plus any accrued interest. There were no agreements
to resell securities as of September 30, 2013 and 2012,
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Deposits and Receivables from Exchange-
Clearing Organizations, Broker-dealers,
Clearing Organizations and Counterparties,
and Payables to Broker-dealers, Clearing
Organizations and Counterparties

As required by the regulations of the U.S. Commedity Futures
Trading Commission (“CFTC”) and the Markets in Financial
Instruments Implementing Directive 2006/73/EC underpinning
the CASS rules in the ESA handbook, customer funds received to
margin, guarantee, and/or secure commodity fucures transactions
are segrf:gatﬂd and zccounted for scparately from the gencral
assets of the Company. Under the FSA's rules, certain categories
of clients may choose to opt-out of segregation. Deposits with
Exch:mgc—clﬂaring organizations, broker-dealers and counterparties
pertain primarily to deposits made to satisfy margin requirements
on customer and proprietary open futures and options-on-
futures positions and to satisfy the requirements set by clearing
exchanges for clearing membership. The Company also pledges
margin deposit with various counterparties for OTC derivative
contracts, and these deposits are also included in deposits and
receivables from broker-dealers and counterparties. Deposics
with and receivables from exchange-clearing organizations and
broker-dealers and counterparties are reported gross, except where
a right of offser exists. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012,
the Company had cash and cash equivalents on deposit with
or pledged to exchange-clearing organizations, broker-dealers
and counterparties of $1.0 billion and $0.4 billion, respectively.

These balances also include securities pledged by the Company
on behalf of customers and customer-owned securities that are
pledged. It is the Company’s practice to include customer owned
securities on its consolidated balance sheets, as the rights to those
securities have been transferred to the Company under the terms
of the futures trading agreement. Securities pledged include
U.S. Treasury bills and instruments backed by U.S. government
sponsored entities and government-sponsored enterprise backed
mortgage-backed securities (“mortgage-backed securities™}. The
securities that are not customer-owned are adjusted to fair value
with associated changes in unrealized gains or losses recorded
in OCI, net of tax, unil realized, a component of stockholders’
equity. For customer owned securities, the change in fair value is
offser against the payable to customers with no impact recognized
on the consolidated income statements.

The secutities, primarily U.S. Government obligations and
mortgage-backed securities, held by FCStone LLC {*FCStone™),
a subsidiary of INTL, as collateral or as margin have been
deposited with exchange-clearing organizations, broker-dealers
or other counterpartes. The fair value of these securities was
approximately $0.6 billion and $1.3 billion as of September 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Management has considered guidance required by the Transfers
and Servicing Topic of the ASC as it relates to securities pledged
by customers to margin their accounts. Based on a review of
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the agreements with the customer, management believes a legal
basis exists to support that the transferor surrenders control over
those assets if all of the following three conditions are met: (a)
the transferred assets have been isolated from the transferor—put
presumptively beyond the reach of the transferor and its creditors,
even in bankruptcy or other receivership, (b) each transferec has
the right to pledge or exchange the assets (or beneficial interests)
it received, and no condition both constrains the transferee (or
holder) from taking advantage of its right to pledge or exchange
and provides more than a trivial benefit to the transferor and
(c} the transferor does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through either (1} an agreement thar both
entitles and obligates the transferor to repurchase or redeem
them before their maturity or (2) the ability to unilaterally cause
the holder to return specific assets, other than through a cleanup
call, Under this guidance, the Company reflects the customer
collateral assets and corresponding liabilities in the Company’s
consolidared balance sheets as of September 30, 2013 and 2012.

In addition to margin, deposits with exchange-clearing
organizations include guaranty deposits. The guaranty deposits
are held by the clearing organization for use in potential defaule
situations by one or more members of the dearing organization.
The guaranty deposits may be applied to the Company’s obligations
to the clearing organization, or to the clearing organization’s
obligations to other clearing members or third parties.

‘The Company maintzins customer omnibus and proprietary
accounts with other counterparties, and the equity balances in
those accounts along with any margin cash or securities deposited
with the carrying broker are included in deposits and receivables
from broker-dealers and counterparties.

Receivables from and payables to exchange-clearing organizations
are also comprised of amounts due from or due to exchange-
clearing organizations for daily variation settlements on open
futures and options-on-futures positions. The variation settlements
due from or due ro exchange-clearing organizations are paid in
cash on the following business day.

Deposits and receivables with exchange-clearing organizations
also includes the unrealized gains and losses associated with
the customers’ options-on-futures contracts, See discussion in
the Financial Instruments and Derivatives section befow for
additional information on the treacment of derivative contracts.
For customer owned derivative contracts, the fair value is offset
against the payable to customers with no impact recognized on
the consolidated income statements.

Receivable from and Payable to Customers

Receivable from customers, net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts, include the total of net deficits in individual exchange-
traded and OTC trading accounts carried by the Company.
Customer deficits arise from realized and unrealized trading
lasses on futures, options-on-futures, swaps and forwards and
amounts due on cash and margin transactions. Customer deficic
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accounts are reported gross of customer accounts that contain
net credit ot positive balances, except where a right of offset
exists. Net deficits in individual exchange-traded and OTC
trading accounts include both secured and unsecured deficit
balances due from customers as of the balance sheet date. Secured
deficit amounts are backed by U.S. Treasury bills and notes and
commodity warchouse receipts, These U.S Treasury bills and
notes and commedity warehouse receipts are not netted against
the secured deficit amounts, as the conditions for right of setoff
have not been met.

Payable to customers represent the total of customer accounts
with credit or positive balances. Customer accounts are used
primatily in connection with commodity transactions and include
gains and losses on open commodity trades as well as securities
and other deposits made as required by the Company or the
exchange-clearing organizations or counterparties. Customer
accounts with credic or positive balances are reported gross of
customer deficit accounts, except where a right of offset exists.

For regulatory purposes, certain customers, which would include
persons wha are affiliated with the Company or are principals,
such as an officer or director, and any person who is materially
involved in the management of the Company, are identified as
noncustomers. A noncustomer account may not be carried as a
customer account due to an afhliation with the Company. In a
liquidation event, amounts owed to noncustomers are paid in the
same priority as amounts owed to general creditots of the Company.
"These accounts arc also referred to as proprietary accounts. The
amounts relared to noncustomer accounts are included in ‘payable
to customers on the consolidated balance sheets.

The future collecrability of the receivable from customets can
be impacted by the Company’s collection efforts, the financial
stability of its customers, and the general economic climate
in which it operates. The Company evaluates accounts that it
believes may become uncollectible on a specific identification
basis, through reviewing daily margin deficit reports, the historical
daily aging of the receivables, and by monitoring the financial
strength of its customers. The Company may unilaterally close
customer trading positions in certain circumstances. In addition,
to evaluate customer margining and collateral requirements,
customer positions are stress tested regulatly and monirored for
excessive concentration levels relative to the overall market size.

The Company generally charges off an cutstanding receivable
balance when all economically sensible means of recovery have
been exhausted. That determination considers informarion
such as the occurrence of significant changes in the customer’s
financial position such that the customer can no longer pay
the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be
sufficient to pay the balance.

Notes Receivable

The Company originates short-term notes receivable from
customers with the outstanding balances being insured 90% to 98%



by a third party, including accrued interest. The Company
may sell the insured portion of the notes through non-recourse
participation agreements with other third parties. See discussion
of notes receivable related to commodity repurchase agreements
below,

Accrual of commodity financing income on any note is
discontinued when, in the opinion of management, there is
reasonable doubr as to the timely collectability of interest or
principal. Nenaccrual notes are returned to an accrual status
when, in the opinion of management, the financial pasition
of the borrower indicates there is no longer any reasonable
doubt as to the timely payment of principal and interest. The
Company records a charge against earnings for notes receivable
losses when management believes that collectability of the
principal is unlikely.

Physical Commodities Inventory

Physical commodities inventories are stated at the lower of cost
or matket {*"LCM”), using the weiglted-average price and first-in
first-out costing method. Cost includes finished commodity or
raw material and processing costs related to the purchase and
processing of inventories.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization and depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straighe-
line basis over the estimated useful life of the improvement
or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter. Certain costs of
software developed or obtained for internal use are capitalized
and amortized over the estimated useful life of the software.
Expenditures for maintenance, repairs, and minor replacements
are charged against earnings, as incurred. Expenditures thar
increase the value or productive capacity of assets are capitalized.
When property and equipment are retired, sold, or otherwise
disposed of, the asset’s carrying amount and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or
loss is included in earnings.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the cost of acquired companies in excess of the
fair value of identifiable net assets at acquisition date. In
accordance with the Intangibles — Goodwill and Other Topic
of the ASC, goodwill is tested for impaicment on an annual basis
at the fiscal year-end, and between annual tests if indicators of
potential impairment exist, using a fair-value-based approach.
No impairment of goodwill has been identified during any of
the periods presented.
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Identifiable intangible assets subject to amortization are amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimated period of
benefis, ranging from two to twenty years. Identifiable intangible
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
cifcumstances suggest that an asset’s or asset group's carrying value
may not be fully recoverable in accordance with the Intangibles
- Goodwill and Orther Topic of the ASC. Residual value is
presumed to be zero. Identifiable incangible assets not subject to
amortization are reviewed at each reporting period to reevaluate
if the intangible assec’s useful life remains indefinite. Additionally,
intangible assets not subject to amortization are tested annpually
for impairment at the fiscal vear-end, and between annual tests
if indicators of potential impairment exist, using a fair-value-
based approach. See Note 10 for discussion of impairments of
intangible assets that have been identified during the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.

Financial Instruments and Derivatives

Financial instruments owned and sold, not yet purchased, at
fair value consist of financial inscruments carried ar fair value
or amounts that approximate fair value, with related unrealized
changes in gains or losses recognized in earnings, except for
securities classified as available-for-sale. The fair value of a
financial inscrument is the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Company accounts for its securities pledged on behalf of
customets and proprietary securities in accordance with the
Investments - Debt and Equity Securities Topic in the ASC. In
accordance with this guidance, the Company determines the
appropriate classification of its investments as trading, available-
for-sale, or held-to-marurity at the time of purchase and reevaluates
the designation as of each reporting period.

‘The Company has classified certain U.S. government obligations,
corporate debt securities and exchange firm common stock
not pledged for clearing purposes as available-for-sale, which
are carried ar fair value based on observable or quoted market
prices and associated unrealized gains ot losses are recorded as a
component of OCL, net of tax, until realized, unless an unrealized
loss is determined to be other than temporary, in which case
such loss is charged ro earnings. The Company classifies those
securities as available-for-sale because it would consider selling
them prior to maturity to meet liquidity needs or as part of the
Company’s risk management program.

"The Company computes the cost of its secutities on a specific
identification basis. Such cost includes the direct costs to acquire
securities, adjusted for the amortization of any discount or
premium. The amortized cost of securities is computed under
the effective-inrerest method and is included in interest income,
Realized gains and losses, declines in value judged to be other
than temporary and interest on available-for-sale securities are
included in earnings.
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Investment in managed funds, at fair value represents investments
in funds managed by the Company’s fund managers. The
investments are valued at period-end at the net asset value
provided by the fund’s administraror.

Commodities warehouse receipts are valued ac the cash price, or the
nearby futures prices in the absence ofa cash price, for the commaodity
based on published market quotes. For commodities warehouse
receipts, the change in fair value is offset against the payable to
customers with no impact on the consolidated income statements,

The Company utilizes derivative instruments to manage exposures
to foreign currency, commodity price and interest rate risks for
the Company and its customers. The Company’s objectives
for holding derivatives include reducing, eliminaring, and
efficiently managing the economic impact of these exposures
as effectively as possible. Derivative instruments are recagnized
as either assets or liabilities and are measured at fair value. The
accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivarive depends on
the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.
For a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge,
the effective portion of the detivative’s gain or loss is initially
recorded in OCI, net of tax, and is subsequently recognized
in earnings when the hedged exposure affects earnings. The
ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognized in earnings.
Gains and losses from changes in fair values of derivarives that
are not designated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes
are recognized in earnings.

The Company’s derivative contracts consist of exchange-traded
and OTC derivatives. Fair values of exchange-traded derivatives
are generally determined from quoted markert prices. OTC
derivatives are valued using valuation models. The valuation
models used to derive the fair values of OTC derivatives require
inputs including contractual terms, market prices, yield curves and
measurements of volaility. The Company uses similar models to
value similar instruments. Where possible, the Company verifies
the values produced by pricing models by comparing them to
market transactions. Inputs may involve judgment where market
prices are not readily available. The Company does not elect
hedge accounting under the Derivatives and Hedging Topic of
the ASC in accounting for derivatives used as economic hedges
on its commaodities.

The Company provides clearing and execution of exchange-traded
futures and options-on-futures for middle-marker intermediaries,
end-users, producers of commeodities and the institutional
and professional trader market segments. The Company has
a subsidiary chat is a registered furures commission merchant
(“FCM”), clearing on various exchanges. The primary sources of
revenues for the Company’s FCM are commissions and clearing
fees derived from executing and clearing orders for commodicy
futures contracts and options-on-futures on behalf of its customers.

"The Company also brokers foreign exchange forwards, options
and cash, or spot, transactions between customers and external
counterparties. A portion of the contracts are arranged on an
offsetting basis, limiting the Company’s tisk to performance of
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the two offsetting parties. The offserring nature of the contracts
eliminates the effects of market fluctvations on the Company’s
operating tesults, Due ta the Company’s role as a principal
participating in both sides of these contracts, the amounts
are presented gross on the consolidated balance sheets at their
respective fair values, net of Offéetting assets and liabilities.

In addition, the Company engages in speculative trading and
holds proprietary positions in futures, options, swaps and forward
derivatives, including corn, wheat, soybeans, sugar and foreign
currency contracts. Since some of the derivatives held or sold
by the Company are for speculative trading purposes, these
derivative instruments are not designated as hedging instruments
and accordingly, the changes in fair value during the petiod are
recorded in the consolidated income statements as a component
of ‘trading gains, net’ {see Note 3).

The Company also holds proprietary positions in its foreign
exchange line of business. On a limited basis, the Company’s
foreign exchange trade desk will accepr a customer transaction
and will offset that transaction with a similar but not identical
position with a counterparty. These unmatched transactions are
intended to be short-term in nature and are often conducted
to facilitate the most effective transaction for the Company’s
customer. These spot and forward contracts are accounted for
as free-standing derivatives and reported in the consolidated
balance sheets at their fair values, The Company does not seek
hedge accounting treatment for these derivatives, and accordingly,
the changes in fair value during the period are recorded in the
consolidated income statements in ‘trading gains, net’ (see Note 5).
In applying the guidance in the Balance Sheee-Offsetting Topic
of the ASC, the Company’s accounting policy is such that open
contracts with the same customer are netted at the account
level, in accordance with netring arrangements in place with
each party, as applicable and rights to reclaim cash collateral or
obligations to return cash collateral are netted agains fair value
amounts recognized for derivative instraments with the same
customer in accordance with the master netting arrangements
in place with each customer.

The Company may lease commodities to ot from customers
or counterparties, or advance commodities to customers on an
unpriced basis, receiving payment when they become priced.
These are valued at fair value utilizing the fair value option based
on guidance in the Financial Instruments Topic of the ASC. As
permitced by the fair value option election, the entite instrument
is recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets as a
component of ‘financial instruments owned and sold, not yet
purchased’. Due to the short term nature of the instruments,
the balance of the agreements is not materially differenc than the
recorded fair value. The corresponding change in fair value of the
instrument is recognized in the consolidated income statements
as a component of ‘trading gains, net’ for the fiscal years ended
2013, 2012 and 2011. The Company does elect to value all of
their commodities lease agreements at fair value using the fair
value optien. See fair value measurements in Note 4.



Exchange Memberships and Stock

The Company is required to hold certain exchange membership
seats and exchange firm common stock and pledge them for
clearing purposes, in order to provide the Company the right
to process trades directly with the various exchanges. Exchange
memberships include seats on the Chicago Board of Trade
{“CBOT?"), the Minneapolis Grain Exchange, the New York
Mercantile Exchange ("NYMEX"), the Commedity Exchange,
Inc. (“COMEX") Division of the New York Mercantile Exchange,
Mercado de Valores de Buenos Aires S.A, (“MERVAL”), the
Chicago Mercantile Exchange (*CME”) Growth and Emerging
Markets, InterContinental Exchange, Inc. (*ICE”) Futures US,
ICE Furope Led and London Metal Exchange (‘LME”). Exchange
firm common stock include shares of CME Group, Inc., ICE and
LME. In December 2012, the CME completed its acquisition
of the Board of Trade of Kansas City, Missouri, Inc. (“KCBT”).
The Company received proceeds of $1.5 million and recognized
a gain of $0.9 million before taxes, in connection with its class
A shares of the KCBT held as of September 30, 2012, during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

Exchange memberships and firm common stocks pledged
for clearing purposes are recorded at cost, in accordance with
U.S. GAAP and CFTC regulations and are included in ‘other
assets’ on the consolidated balance sheets. Equity investments in
exchange firm commeon stock not pledged for clearing purposes
are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses recorded as a component of OCI,
net of tax, until realized. Equity investments in exchange irm
common stock not pledged for clearing purposes are included in
“financial instruments owned’ on the consolidated balance sheets.

The cost basis for exchange memberships and firm common
stock pledged for clearing purposes was $10.4 million and $10.5
million as of Seprember 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The fair
value of exchange memberships and firm common stock pledged
for clearing purposes was $8.5 million and $8.9 millien as of
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The fair value of
exchange firm common stock is determined by quoted marker
prices, and the fair value of exchange memberships is determined
by recent sale transactions. The Company monitors the fair value
of exchange membership seats and firm common stock on a
quarterty basis, and does not consider any current unrealized
losses on individual exchange memberships to be anything other
than a temporary impairment.

Commodity and Other Repurchase
Agreements

In the normal course of operations the Company accepts notes
receivable under sale/repurchase agreements with customers
whereby the customers sell certain commeodity inventory or other
investments and agree to repurchase the commedity inventory
or investrment at a future date at either a fixed or floating rate.
These transactions are short-term in nature, and in accordance
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with the guidance contained in the Transfers and Servicing
Topic of the ASC, are treated as secured borrowings rather than
commaodity inventory and purchases and sales in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Additionally, the Company participates in transactions involving
commedities or other investments sold under repurchase
agreements (“repos”). In accordance with the guidance contained
in the Transfers and Servicing Topic of the ASC, these transactions
are treated as secured borrowings that are recorded as a liability
in the consolidated balance sheets. Commodities or investments
sold under repurchase agreements are reflected at the amoune of
cash reccived in connection with the transactions. The Company
may be required ro provide additional collateral based on the
fair value of the underlying asset.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions during fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 are accounted
for as business combinations in accordance with the provisions
of the Business Combinations Topic of the ASC. Under this
accounting guidance most of the assets and liabilities acquired
and assumed are measured at fair value as of the acquisition date.
Certain contingent liabilities acquired require remeasurement at
fair value in each subsequent reporting period. Noncontrolling
interests are initially measured at fair value and classified as a
separate component of equity. Acquisition related costs, such
as fees for actorneys, accountancs, and investment bankers, are
expensed as incurred and are not capitalized as part of the purchase
price. For all acquisitions, regardless of the consummation date,
deferred tax assets, valuation allowances, and uncertain tax position
adjustments occurring after the measurement period are recorded
as a component of income, rather than adjusted through goodwill.

Determining the fair value of certain assets and labilities acquired
is subjective in nature and often involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. Estimating the fair value of the assets
and liabilities acquired requires significant judgment.

Contingent Consideration

The Company estimates and records the acquisition date estimared
fair value of contingent consideration as part of purchase price
consideration for acquisitions. Additionally, each reporting period,
the Company estimates changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration, and any change in fair value is recognized in the
consolidated income statement. An increase in the earn-out expected
to be paid will result in a charge to operarions in the period that
the anticipaced fair value of contingent consideration increases,
while a decrease in the earn-out expected to be paid will result in a
credit to operations in the period that the anticipated fair value of
contingent consideration decreases. The estimate of the fair value of
contingent consideration requires subjective assumptions to be made
of future operating results, discount rates, and probabilities assigned
O various potential opetating tesult scenarios. Future revisions to
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these assumptions could materially change the estimate of the fair
value of contingent consideration and, therefore, materially affect
the Company’s future financial results.

Additional Paid-In Capital
The Company’s additional paid-in capital {"APIC") consists of

stockhalder contributions thar are in excess of par value of common
stock. Included in APIC are amounts related to the exercise of
stock aptions, share-based compensation and shares held in escrow.

In September 2010, the Company acquired certain assets of
Provident Group (“Provident”). The purchase price for the assets
and services of the sellers was $5.0 million. Subsequent to closing,
the individual sellers placed the entire purchase price into an escrow
account and the funds were used o purchase outstanding shares
of the Company on the open market. There were 214,325 shares
purchased and placed into escrow as a result of this agreement,
The entire purchase price was recorded as 2 reduction in additional
paid in capital as shares held in escrow for business combinations.
The shares held in escrow for business combinations will be
released ro the individual sellers, over a five year period from
the date of closing based on net profits, in accordance with the
provisions of the acquisition agreement. However, if the terms of
the agreement are not met, the remaining shares will be forfeited
and the remaining shares and balance in the shares held in escrow
for business combinations will be recorded as treasury stock. In
accordance with the acquisition agreement, 6,799 and 3,255 shares
were earned and subsequently released 1o the sellers during the
yeats ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Sales of physical commodities revenue are recognized when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred,
the fec is fixed ar determinable, and collectability is reasonably
asstited. The Company teports its physical commadities revenues
on a gross basis, with the corresponding cost of sales shown
separately, in accordance with the guidelines provided in the
Revenue Recognition Topic of the ASC.

Trading gains, net include brokerage fees and margins generared
from OTC derivative trades executed with customers and other
counterparties and are recognized when trades are executed.
Trading gains, ner also include activities where the Company
acts as principal in the purchase and sale of individual securities,
currencies, commadities or derivative instruments with customers,
These transactions may be offset simultaneously with another
customer or counterparty, offset with similar but not identical
positions on an exchange, made from inventory, or may be
aggregated with other purchases to provide liquidity intraday,
for a number of days, or in some cases, pardcularly the base
metals business, even longer periods (during which fair value
may fluctuate). In addition, trading gains, net includes activities
from the Company’s operations of a proprictary foreign exchange
desk which arbitrages the futures and cash markets (see addidional
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discussion in the Financial Instruments and Derivatives policy
note for revenue recognition on proprietary rrading activities).
Net dealer inventory and investment gains are recognized on a
trade-date basis and include realized gains or losses and changes in
unrealized gains or losses on investments at fair value. Dividend
income and dividend expense, on short equity positions, are
recognized net, in ‘ttading gain, net’ on the ex-dividend date.

Commissions on futures contracts are recognized on a half-turn basis
in two equal parts. The first half is recognized when the contract is
opened and the second half is recognized when the transaction is
closed. Commissions on options-on-futures contracts are generally
recognized on a half-turn basis, except that full commissions are
recognized on options expected to expire without being exercised
or offset. Commissions and fees are charged at various rates based
on the type of account, the producis traded, and the method of
trade. Clearing and cransaction fees are charged to customers on a
pet exchange contract basis based on the trade date. Such fees are
for clearing customers’ exchange trades and include fees charged
to the Company by the various futures exchanges. See discussion
of transaction-based clearing expenses hefow.

Consulting and management fees include risk management
consulting fees which are billed and recognized as revenue on a
monthly basis when risk management services are provided. Such
agreements ate generally for one year periods, but are cancelable
by either party upon providing thirty days written notice to the
other party and the amounts are net variable based on customer
trading activities. Asset management fees are recognized as they
are earned based on fees due at each period-end dare. These
include performance fees based on the amount that is due under
the formula for exceeding performance targets as of the period-
end date. Fee income for structuting and arrangement of debt
transactions and management and investment advisory income is
recorded when the services related to the underlying transacrions
are provided and success fees are recorded when complete, as
determined under the terms of the assignment or engagement.

Interest income, generated primarily from investments and
customer inventory financing, is recognized on an accrual basis,
Interest from investments is generated from securities purchased
using customer funds deposited with the Company to satisfy
margin requirements, net of interest returned to customers, and
from securities acquired through internally-generated company
funds. Interest also includes unrealized gains and losses on securities
owned and those deposited with other parties,

Revenue generally is recognized net of any taxes collected from
customets and subsequently remitted to governmental authorities.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of sales of physical commodities include finished commodity
or raw material and processing costs along with operating costs
relating to the receipt, storage and delivery of the physical
commodities.



Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits consises primarily of salaries, incentive
compensation, commissions, related payroll taxes and employee
benefits. The Company classifies employees as either traders /
risk management consultants, operational or administrative
pcrsonnel, which includes the executive officers. The most
significant component of the Company’s compensation expense
is the employment of the craders / risk management consultants,
who are paid commissions based on the revenues that their
customer portfolios generate, The Company accrues commission
expense on a trade date basis.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensacion in
accordance with the guidance of the Compensation-Stock
Compensation Topic of the ASC, The cost of employee services
received in exchange for a share-based award is generally measured
based on the grant-date fair value of the award. Share-based
employee awards that require furure service are amortized over
the relevant service period. Expected forfeitures are included in
determining share-based employee compensation expense. In the
first quarter of 2006, the Company adopted the guidance under
the Compensation-Stock Compensation Topic of the ASC using
the modified prospective method. For option awards granted
subscquent to the adoption, compensation cost is recagnized
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period for the entire
award. The expense of unvested option awards granted prior
to the adoption are recognized on a straight-line basis, over the
balance of the vesting period.

Transaction-Based Clearing Expenses

Clearing fees and related expenses include primarily variable expenses
for clearing and sectlement services, including fees the Company
pays to executing brokers, exchanges, dlearing organizarions and
banks. These fees are based on transaction volume, and recorded as
expense on the trade date. Clearing fees are passed on to customers
and are presented gross in the consolidaced statements of income
under the Revenue Recognition Topic of the ASC, as the Company
acts as a principal for these transactions.

Introducing Broker Commissions

Intreducing broker commissions include commissions paid to
non-employee third parties that have introduced customers to the
Company. Introducing brokers are individuals or organizations
that maintain relationships with customers and accept futures and
options orders from those customers. The Company directly provides
all account, transaction and margining services to intreducing
brokers, including accepting money, securitics and property from the
customers. The commissions are determined and settled monthly.
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Income Taxes

Income tax expense includes U.S. federal, state and local and
foreign income taxes. Certain items of income and expense are
not reported in tax returns and financial statemencs in the same
year. The tax effect of such temporary differences is reporred as
deferred income taxes. Tax provisions are computed in accordance
with the Income Taxes Topic of the ASC,

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains
and losses affecting stockholders’ equity that, under U.S. GAAP,
are excluded from net income. Other comprehensive income
{loss) includes net actuarial losses from defined benefit pension
plans, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities,
gains and losses on foreign currency translations, and changes in
the fair value of interest rate swap agreements, to the extent they
are, or previously were, effective as cash flow hcdgf:s.

Noncontrolling Interest and Variable Interest
Entities

In accordance with the Consolidation Topic of the Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) the Company consolidates any
variable interest entities for which it is the primary beneficiary, as
defined. The Company applies the equity method of accounting

when the Company does not have a controlling interest in an
entity, but exerts significant influence over the entiry.

The Company had a majority interest in and was the general
partner of the Blackthorn Multi-Advisor Fund, LP (the “Blackthorn
Fund”), whose assets, liabilities, income and expenses were included
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. During
fiscal 2012, the Company redeemed its remaining investment
in Blackthorn Fund effective December 31, 201 1. As a result
of the final redemption, the Company no longer retains any
ownership interests in the Blackthorn Fund, has transferred its
rights as general partner and deconsolidated ics interest in the
Blackchorn Fund as of December 31, 2011. The aggregate of
the redemption and remaining noncontrolling interest less che
carrying amount of the net assets of the Blackthorn Fund resulted
in a nominal gain and was recorded as a component of ‘urading
gains, net’ in the consolidaced income statement for the year
ended September 30, 2012, as a result of the deconsolidation.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue one million shares of preferred
stock, par value of $0.01 per share, in one or more classes or
series 10 be established by the Company’s board of directors.
As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, no preferred shares were
outstanding and the Company’s board of directors had not yet
established any class or series of shares.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”)
issued new guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income.
This guidance eliminates the option to report comprehensive
income and its components in the consolidated statement of
stockholders’ equity. Under this guidance, an entity can elect
to present items of net income and comprehensive income in
one continuous statement or in two separate, but consecutive,
statements. In addition, the guidance requires entities to
show the effects of items reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss (o net income on the face of the financial
statetntents. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2011 and interim and annual periods thereafter.
Early adoption is permitted, bur full retrospective application
is required. This guidance was effective for the Company’s fiscal
year 2013. The adoption of this guidance resulted in a change
in the presentation of comprehensive income in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidance on the
disclosures about offsetting assets and liabilities. While the FASB
retained the existing offsetting models under U.S. GAAD, the
new standard requires disclosures to allow investors to better
compare and understand significant quanticative differences
in financial statements prepared under U.S. GAAP. The new
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013, and interim periods within those annual periods.
Retrospective application is required. This guidance is effective
for the Company’s fiscal year beginning October 1, 2013. The
Company expects to adopt this guidance starting with the first
quarter of fiscal year 2014. The adoption of this guidance is
expected to change some of the Company’s disclosures in the
notes to its consolidaced financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued final guidance on indefinite-
lived intangible assets impairment testing, Under the guidance,
entities testing indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment
have the option of first performing a qualitative assessment to
determine whether it is more likely chan not that an indefinite-
lived intangible asset is impaired. If a company determines that
it is more likely than not chat the fair value of such an asset
exceeds its carrying amount, it would not reed ta calculate the fair
value of the asset in that year. However, if 2 company concludes
otherwise, it must calculate the fair value of the asset, compare
that value with its carrying amount and record an impairment
charge, if any. The guidance does not revise the requirement to
test indefinite-lived intangible assets annually for impairment.
In addition, the guidance does not amend the requirement 1o
test indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment between
annual tests if events or circumstances warrant, however, it
does revise the examples of events and circumstances that an
entity shouid consider. The guidance is effective for annual and
interim impairment tests performed for fiscal yeats beginning
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after September 15, 2012, Early adoption is permitted. The
Company adopted this guidance and it did not have a macerial
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Updare
("ASU™) No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Qut
of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income requiring new
disclosures regarding reclassification adjustments from accumulated
other comprehensive income ("ACCI”). ASU No. 2013-02 requires
disclosure of amounts reclassified out of AOCI by component.
In addition, che entity is required to present, either on the face
of the statement where net income is presented or the notes,
significant amounts reclassified out of AOCI by the respective
line items of net income. The Company expects to adopt this
guidance starting with the first quarter of fiscal year 2014. The
adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-053, Parent’s
Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon
Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets
within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity,
which addresses the accounting for the cumulative cranslation
adjusement when a parent either setls part or all of its investment
in a foreign entity or no longer holds a controlling financial
interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit
activity or a business within a foreign entity. For public entities,
the ASU is effective prospectively for fiscal years, and interim
periods, within those years, beginning after December 13, 2013.
Early adoption is permitted. The Company expects to adopt
this guidance starting with the first quarter of fiscal year 2015.
The adoption of this guidance is not expected w have a material
impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

[n July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Presentation
of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss
Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward
Exists. This ASU provides that an unrecognized tax benefit, or a
portion thereof, should be presented in the financial statements
as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss
cartyforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward,
except to the extent that a net operating loss carryforward, a
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available at the
reporting date to settle any additional income taxes that would
result from disallowance of a tax position, or the tax law does not
require the entity to use, and the entity does not incend 1o use,
the deferred tax asset for such purpose, then the unrecognized
tax benefit should be presented as a liabiliry. For public entities,
the ASU is effective prospectively for fiscal years, and interim
petiods within those years, beginning after Decemnber 15, 2013.
The Company expects te adopt this guidance starting with the
first quarter of fiscal year 2015. The adoption of ASU 2013-11
is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidared financia! statements.
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Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

The Company has restated the consolidated financial statements
and other financial information for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, certain Anancial information
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, and for each of
the quarters in the fiscal year ended Seprember 30, 2012. In
connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the
Company identified errors in the reconciliation of the Company's
subsidiary INTL FCStone Markets, LLC’s accounting records to
its back office system which occurred in 2012, 2011 and 201¢.
Corrections made by the Company related to these errors in
aggtegate resulted in a reducrion in net income of $3.9 million
collectively for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and
2010. The correction of these errors had no impact on che net

cash flows related to operating activities, investing activities,
or financing activities in the Company’s previously reported
consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011,

Financial Statement Presentation

The prior period consolidated balance sheer included in
this filing has been restated to reflect the correction of these
reconciliation errors noted above. The impacr of the cotrection
of the reconciliation errors to the Company’s previously reported
consolidated balance sheet as of Seprember 30, 2012 is summarized
below.

As of September 30, 2012

Cumulative

Prior Period FY 2012
(in millions) (As Reported) Adjustments Adjustment {As Restated)
Deposits with and receivables from broker-dealers, clearing
‘orgatiizations and counterparties $ 1274 7.1 (3.3) § 116.8
Income taxes receivable $ 11.9 23 1.3 % 15.5
‘Goodwill and intangible assers, ner $ 54.7 1.1 B 35.8
Total assets $ 2,958.9 (3.7) 2.2y % 2,953.0
Torat liabilities $ 26398 — —_— % 2,639.8
Retained earnings $ 112.0 (3.7) 22y § 106.1
Total stockholders’ equity $ 319.1 (3.7) 22 $ 3132
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 2,958.9 (3.7) 22 3§ 2,953.0

The prior period consolidated income statements included
in this filing have been restated to reflect the correction of
these reconciliation errors, which impact “rrading gains, net”
revenues and “income tax expense”. In addition, the prior
period consolidated income statements have been revised ro
reflect the immaterial correction of certain intercompany
physical sales which were not correctly eliminated from the
consolidated income statements, resulting in a gross-up of
sales of physical commodities and cost of sales of physical
commodities. This gross-up does not impact operating revenues
ot net incorne.

'The prior period consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity
included in this fiting have been restated as of October 1, 2010 for
the cumulative overstatement of retained earnings prior to fiscal
year 2011 arising from these errors in the amount of $1.2 million.

We have reflected the correction of these reconciliation errors in
our consolidated financial statements for each of the quarterly
periods in the year ended Seprember 30, 2012 as presented in
Note 21 - Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudired).

Immaterial Correction of Errors in Previously
Reported Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company has made an immarerial correction relating to the
reconciliation errors for the three months ended June 30, 2013
resulting in an aggregate increase in net income of $0.5 million.
"The Company has also made immaterial correciions relating 1o
errors involving certain intercompany physical sales which were
not carrectly eliminated from the consolidated income statements,
for the quarterly periods ended December 31, 2012, March 31,
2013, and June 30, 2013, These immaterial corrections did not
impact operating revenues or net income.
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‘The impact of the correction of these errors to the Company’s previously reported consolidated income statements for fiscal years
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows:

Consolidated Income Statement Information for the Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011

(in weillivns, exveps share and per shave amounts) (As Reported) Adjustment (As Restated)  (As Reported) Adjustment (As Restated)
Sabes of physical commodities $ 688125 (1,297.8) § . 675147 $ 751234 . (26022 . § 725212
Trading gains, net $ 248.4 (33 % 2449 % 205.7 41 $ 201.6
Total reveniues $ 69,2606 (1,3013) $ 679593 $ 754976 (26063} 3 728913
Cost of salcs of physical commodirics $ 688029 (1,297.8) § 675051 § 750744  (26022) $ 724722
Operating revenues $ 4577 35 $ 4542 § 4232 @D § 0 4190
Net operating revenues 3 309.7 3.5 % 3062 % 312.3 (4.1) $ 308.2
Incormé from gontinuing operarions, before tax  § 19.3 (330 ¥ 158 % 595 D)% 554
Income tax expense $ 4.4‘ (1.3) % 31 % 22.5 1.6) % 20.9
Net incame attributable to INTL FCStone ' . - Lo
Ine, common stockholders 3 15.0 2.2) % 128 % 37.3 {25y % °. 348
Comprehensive income 3 18.7 22) §% 165 § 34.3 (235 § 31.8
Basic earnings per share $ 0.79 ©.12) % 067 % 2.07 14 8 193
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.75 0.11) $ 064 § 1.96 0.13) $ 1.83

NOTE 3 Earnings per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(“EPS”) using the two-class method which requires all outstanding
unvested share-based payment awards that concain rights to non-
forfeitable dividends and therefore participate in undiscributed
earnings with common stockholders be included in computing
earnings per share. Under the two-class method, net earnings
are reduced by the amount of dividends declared in the period
for each class of common stock and participating security. The
remaining undistribued earnings are then allocated to common
stock and participating secutities, based on their respecrive
rights to receive dividends. Restricted stock awards granted to
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certain employees and directors and shares held in trust for the
Provident Group acquisition contain non-forfeitable rights to
dividends at the same rate as common stock, and are considered
participating securities,

Basic EPS has been computed by dividing net income by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. The
following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator
of the diluted net income per share computations for the periods
presented below.
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Year Ended September 30,
(i millions, except shave amounts) 2013 2012 2011
(As Reseated) (As Restated)

Numeraror:

Income from continuing operations arwributable to INTL FCStone Inc., stockholdess  $ 9.3 % 128§ 34.6
Less: Allocation ro parricipating securities 0.8) {0.5) 0.9)

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS ALLOCATED

TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS - § 185 % 123  § 33.7
Income from discontinued operations $ — % — 3 0.2
Less: Allocation to participating securities — — —

INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ALLOCATED :

TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ — 3 — $ 0.2
Dikuted net income $ 193 % 128 % 34.8
Less: Allocation to participating securitics (0.8) (0.5 0.9

DILUTED NET INCOME ALLOCATED TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS  $ 185 3§ 123 § 33.9

Denominator:

Weighted average number of:
Common shares outstanding 18,443,233 18,282,939 17,618,085
Dilutive potential common shares outstanding:
Share-based awards 625,264 873,960 949,369
DILUTED WEIGHTED-AVERAGE SHARES 19,068,497 19,156,899 18,567,454

The dilutive effect of share-based awards is reflected in diluced
net income per share by application of the treasary stock method,
which includes consideration of unamortized share-based
compensation expense required under the Compensation —

Stock Compensation Topic of the ASC.

Options to purchase 1,447,688, 1,157,601 and 386,031 shares
of common stock for fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted
earnings pet share because they would have been anti-dilutive.

NOTE4  Assets and Liabilities, at Fair Value

The Company’s financial and nonfinancial assets and Liabilities
reported at fair value are included in the following captions on
the consolidated balance sheets:

e Cash and cash equivalents

e Cash, securities and other assets segregated under federal and
other regulations

* Deposits and receivables from exchange-clearing organizations,
broker-dealers, clearing organizations and counterparties

¢ Financial instruments owned
» Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
* Payable to customers

* Payable to broker-dealers, clearing organizations and
counterparties

* Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased

Fair Value Hierarchy

As required by the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic
of the ASC, financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities are

classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quorted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to uncbservable inpuss (Level 3 measurements}.
A matket is active if there are sufficient transactions on an
ongoing basis to provide current pricing information for the asset
or liability, pricing information is released publicly, and price
quotations do not vary substantially either over dime or among
marker makers. Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market
participants woulkl use in pricing the asset or liability developed
based on market dara obrained from sources independent of the
reparting entity, The guidance requires the Company to consider
counterparty credit risk of all parties to outstanding derivative
instruments that would be considered by a market participant
in the transfer or settlement of such contracts (exit price).
The Company’s exposure to credit risk on derivative financial
instruments relates to the portfolic of OTC derivative contracts
as all exchange-traded contracts held can be settled on an active
marker with the credit guarantee by the respective exchange. The
Company requires each counterparty to deposic margin collateral
for all OTC instruments and is alse required to deposit margin
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collateral with counterparties. The Company has assessed the
nature of these deposits and used its discretion to adjust each based
on the underlying credit considerations for the counterparty and
determined that the collateral deposits minimize the exposure
to counterparty credit risk in the evaluation of the fair value of
OTC instruments as determined by a market participant.

The majority of financial assets and labilities on the consolidated
balance sheets are reported at fair value. Cash is reported at
the balance held at financial institutions. Cash equivalents
includes money market funds, which are valued at period-end
at the net asset value provided by the fund’s administrator, and
certificates of deposit, which are stated at cost plus accrued
interest, which approximates fair value. Cash, securities and other
assets segregated under federal and other regulations include
the value of cash collateral as well as the value of other pledged
investments, primarily U.S. Treasury bills and obligations issued
by government sponsored entities and commodities warehouse
receipts, Deposits with and receivables from exchange-clearing
organizations and broker-dealers, clearing organizations and
counterparties and payable to customers and broker-dealers,
clearing organizations and counterparties include the value of cash
collateral as well as the value of money market funds and other
pledged investments, primarily .S, Treasury bills and obligations
issued by government sponsored entities and mortgage-backed
securities. These balances also include the fair value of exchange-
traded futures and options-on-futures and exchange-cleared swaps
and options determined by ptices on the applicable exchange.
Financial instruments owned and sold, not yet purchased include
the value of U.S, and foreign government obligations, corporate
debt securities, derivative financial instruments, commodities,
mutual funds and investments in managed funds. The fair value
of exchange common stock is determined by quoted market
prices, and the fair value of exchange memberships is determined
by recent sale transactions. Payables to lenders under loans carry
variable rates of interest and thus approximate fair value. The fair
value of the Company’s senior unsecured notes is estimated to be
$46.4 million (carrying value of $435.5 million) as of September 30,
2013, based on the transaction prices at pub]ic cxchangcs for
the same or similar issues.

The fair value estimates presented hetein are based on pertinent
information available to management as of September 30, 2013
and 2012. Although management is not aware of any factors
that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts,
such amounts have not been comprehensively revalued for
purpases of these financial statements since that date and current
estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts
presented herein.

Cash equivalents, securities, commodities warchouse receipts,
derivative financial instruments and contingent liabilities are
carried at fair value, on a recurring basis, and are classified
and disclosed into three levels in the fair value hierarchy. The
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Company did not have any fair value adjustments for assets or
liabilities measured at fair value on 2 non-recurring basis during
the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy under the Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures Topic of the ASC are;

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted ptices in active markets chat are
accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted
assets or liabilities. Level 1 consists of financial assets and liabilities
whose fair values are estimated using quoted marker prices.
Included in Level 1 are money market funds, certificates of
deposit, commodities warehouse receipts, common stock and
American Depositary Receipts (“ADRs"), some U.S. and foreign
obligations, equity investments in exchange firms, some mutual
funds, as well as futures and options-on-futures contracts traded
on narional exchanges, exchange-cleared swaps and options which
are valued using exchange closing prices, and OTC swaps and
options contracts using quoted prices from national exchanges
in which the Company executes transactions for customer and
proprietary accounts;

Level 2 - Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities
in markets thart are less active, that is, markets in which there
are few transactions for the asset or liability that are observable
for substantially the full term. Included in Level 2 are those
financial assets and liabilities for which fair values are estimated
using models or ocher valuation methodologies. These models
are primarily industry-standard models that consider various
observable inputs, including time value, yield curve, volatility
factors, observable current market and contractual prices for
the underlying financial instruments, as well as other relevant
economic measures. Included in Level 2 are U.S. and foreign
government obligations, mortgage-backed securities, some
common stock and ADRs, corporate and municipal bonds,
some mutual funds, investments in managed funds and OTC
forwards, swaps, and options; and

Level 3 - Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs thac are
both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable
(i.e., supported by little or no market activity). Level 3 comprises
financial assets and liabilities whose fair value is estimarted based
on internally developed models or methodologies utilizing
significant inputs that are not readily observable from objective
sources. Included in Level 3 are common stock and ADRs, some
corporate and municipal bonds, some other investments and
contingent liabilities.

The following tables set forth the Company’s financial and
nonfinancial assets and liabilities accounted for at fair value, on
a recurring basis, as of September 30, 2013 and September 30,
2012 by level in the fair value hierarchy. There were no assets
or liabilities that were measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis s of September 30, 2013 and 2012.
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September 30, 2013

Netting and

(in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Collateral® Total

ASSETS:
Money marker funds 3 0.1 3 — — § — 3 0.1
Certificate of deposits 2.9 — e - 29

Unrestricted cash equivalents 3.0 e — — 3.0
Money market funds 75.0 e e o 75.0
Commodities warchouse receipts 13.1 — —_ — 134
11.§. povernment obligations — 19.5 — e 19.5

Securities and other assets segregated under federal .

and ather regulations 88.1 19.5 — — 107.6
Money market funds 841.4 — — — 8414
U.S. government obligations — 594.8 — — 594.8
Mortgage-backed securities — 53 — — 53
Derivatives 2,263.2 — — (2,333.0) {69.8)

Deposits and receivables from exchange-clearing organizations 3,104.6 600.1 —  (2,333.0) 1,377
U.S. government obligations — — — — —
Derivatives 1.8 0.2 — (15.1) {13.H)

Deposits and receivables from broker-dealers, clearing

_organizations and counterparties - derivatives 1.8 0.2 — {15.1) {13.1)
Common and preferred stock and American Depositary Receipts
{"ADRs") . 49.3 19.8 0.7 — 69.8
Exchangeable foreign ordinary equiries and ADRs 36.7 — — — 36.7
Corporate and municipal bonds 0.1 - 3.5 — 3.6
U.S. government obligations — 0.3 — — 0.3
Foreign government obligations 1.7 — —_— — 7.7
Derivarives 173.6 440.6 — (592.3) 219
Commoditics leases — 56.1 — (50.0) 6.1
Commodities warehouse receipts 4.0 — — — 490
Exchange firm common stock 4.4 — — — 44
Mutual funds and other 4.0 — — — 4.0

Financial instruments owned 279.8 516.8 42 (642.3) 158.5

TOTAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE $ 34773 3 1,136.6 42 § (2,990.4) $ 1,627.7

LIABILITIES: ‘

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities -

cantingent liabilities % — & — 9.6 3 — & 9.6

Paysble to customers - desivatives 2,328.2 — — (2,328.2) —
Common and preferred stock and ADRs 82.9 16.6 — — 99.5
Exchangeable foreign ordinary equities and ADRs 8.7 — — — 8.7
Derivatives 174.0 473.2 — (616.5) 30.7
Commadiries leases ) — 83.5 — (44.5) 410

Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased 265.6 575.3 — (661.0) 179.9

TOTAL LIABILITIES AT FATR VALUE. $ 25938 4 5753 § 9.6 § (2989.2) $ 1895

(1) Represents cash collaveral and the impact of netting across the levels of the fair value hiemrchy. Netiing among positions classified within the same level are incluided
in that level,
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September 30, 2012
Netting and

(int millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Collateral™” Total

ASSETS: ' -
Money market funds $ 0.1 § — 3 — % — 3 0.1
Certificare of deposits 10.4 — = — 10.4

Untestricted cash equivalents 10.5 = — — 10.5
Commodities warehouse receipts 73 — — — 22.3
U.S. government obligations — 50.5 — — 50.5

Securities and other assets segregated under federal C ;

and other regulations 22.3 50.5 — — 72.8
Money matket funds - 3351 — — — 335.1
UL.S. government obligations _— 1,318.3 — — 1,318.3
Mortgage-backed securities — 7.0 - — 7.0
Derivatives 33443 - — (3.494.7) (150.4)

Deposits and receivables from exchange-clearing

organizations 3,679.4 1,325.3 — (3,494.7) 1,510.0
Derivatives 07 5.0 — 6.4 (0.7}

Deposits and receivables from broker-dealers, clearing

organizations and counterparties - derivatives 0.7 5.0 — (6.4) 0.7)
Common and preferred stock and American Depositary
Receipts ("ADRs™) 17.8 5.6 0.9 — 24.3
Exchangeable foreign ordinary equities and ADRs 10.0 — — — 10.0

- Cotporate and municipal bonds 03 . 06 36 — 4.5
U.S. government obligations — 0.3 —_ — 0.3
Foreign government obligations 14.8 - — — 14.8
Derivarives 315.0 785.3 — (1,047.0) 53.9
Commodities leases — 135.2 —_ (93.1) 421
Commoadities warehouse receipts 7.5 — — — 7.5
Exchange firm common stock o ) .34 .90 — — 124
Murual funds and other 1.9 — — — 1.9

Financial instraments owned 371.3 —_936.0 4.5 {1,140.1) 171.7

TOTAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE $ 40842 $ 23168 $ 45 8  (4641.2) $ 1,7643

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities -

contingent liabilities $ — § — $ 148 $ —  $ 14.8

Pavable to customers - derivatives 3,562.3 o — {3,562.3) —
Common and preferred stock and ADRs 16.4 5.9 — — 223
Exchangeable foreign ordinary equities and ADRs 5.7 = . — 57
Derivatives 338.1 775.2 — (1,008.7) 44.6
Commeodities leases e 220.0 — (117.2) 102.8

Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased 360.2 1,001.1 — (1,185.9) 175.4

TOTAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE $ 39225 $ 10011 § 148 $§  (4,748.2) ¢ 190.2

(1) Iifpwt:ﬁ? cash collateral and the impact of nerving across the levels of the fouir value bierarchy. Nerting amang positions classified within the same level are included in

nar

Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in ‘trading gains, net’ in the consolidated income statements.
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Information on Level 3 Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company's financial assets at fair value classified within level 3 of the fait value hierarchy as of September 30, 2013 and 2012
are summarized below:

(i millions) Seprember 30, 2013 _ September 30, 2012
Total level 3 assets ' $ 42 % 45
Level 3 assets for which the Company bears economic exposure ¥ 42 % 4.5
Total assets 3 2,848.0 § 2,953.0
Total financial assets at fair value ¥ 1,627.7 % 1,764.3
‘Total level 3 assets as a percentage of toral assets 0.1% : 0.2%
Level 3 assets for which the Company bears econemic exposure as a percentage of toral assers 0.1% 0.2%
Total level 3 assets as a percentage of total financial assets at fair value 0.3% 0.53%

The following tables set forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Company’s level 3 financial assets and liabilities during
the fiscal yeats ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, including a summary of unrealized gains (losses) duting the fiscal year ended
on the Company’s level 3 financial assets and liabilities still held as of September 30, 2013.

Level 3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Balancesat  Realized gains Unrealized Transfers in
beginning of  (losses} during  gains (losses) Purchases/ or {out) of  Balances at
(i1 millions} period petiod duting period issaances Settlements Level 3 end of period
ASSETS:
Common and
preferred stock and
ADRs $ 09 % — $ 02 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 0.7
Corporate and _—
municipal bonds 3.6 — 0.1 — ) — — 3.5
$ 45 § — % 0.3) § — % — 3 — 3 4.2
LIABILITIES; :
Contingent
liabilities $ 148 $ — $ 26 % 56 % (13.4) 3 — 3 9.6
Level 3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
Balances at  Realized gains Unrealized Transfers in
beginning of (losses) during gains (losses) Purchases/ or (out) of Balances at
(in millions) period period during period issuances Settlements Level 3 end of period
ASSETS: o ' '
Common and
preferred stock and
ADRs $ 1.1 8 — ¢ 0.2y $ — 5 — 3 — 3 0.9
Corporate and ' . >
municipal bonds 3.6 — — — — — ‘36
Mutual funds and
other 0.4 0.4) — — — — —_—
$ 51 8% 04 3 0.2y $ — § — — § 4.5
LIABILITIES:
Contingent .
liabilities $ 223 § — 3 20 $ 0.1 § {9.6) § — § 148
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In accordance with the Fair Value MeasurementsTopic of the
ASC, the Company has estimated on a recurring basis each
period the fair value of debentures issued by a single asset owning
company of Suriwongse Hotel located in Chiang Mai, Thailand.
As of September 30, 2013, the Company’s investment in the
hotel is $3.5 million, and indluded within the corporate and
municipal bonds classification in the level 3 financial assets
and financial liabilities tables, The Company has classified its
investment in the hotel within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
because the fair value is determined using significanc unobservable
inpurs, which include projected cash flows. These cash flows are
discounted employing presenc value techniques. The Company
estimates the fair value of its investment in these debentures by
using a management-developed forecast, which is based on the
income approach. During the year ended September 30, 2011,
the Company recorded a loss of $1.7 million, representing an
other than temporary impairment. The Company continues to
monitor the hotel renovation process and evaluate the fair value
of the debentures. There has leen no significant change in the
fair value of the debentures, and no additional loss has been
recognized during the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.

The Company is required to make additional future cash payments
based on certain financial performance measures of its acquited
businesses. The Company is required to remeasure the fair
value of the cash earnout arrangements on a recurring basis in
accordance with the guidance in the Business Combinations
Topic of the ASC. The Company has classified its liabilities
for the contingent earnour arrangements within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy because the fair value is determined using
significant unobservable inputs, which include projected cash
flows. The estimated fair value of the contingent purchase
consideration is based upon management-developed forecasts,
a level 3 input in the fair value hierarchy. These cash flows are
discounted employing present value techniques in arriving
at fair value, The discount rate was developed using market
participant company data and there have been no significant
changes in the discount rate environment. From the dates of
acquisition to September 30, 2013, certain acquisicians have
had changes in the estimates of undiscounted cash flows, based
on actual petformances fluctuating from estimates, During the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the fair value
of the contingent consideration increased $2.6 million and
$2.0 million, with the corresponding expense classified as ‘other’
in the consolidated income statements.

The value of an exchange-traded detivative contrac is equal
to the unrealized gain or loss on the contract determined by
marking the contract to the current setlement price for a like
contract on the valuation date of the contract. A sertlement price
may not be used if the market makes a limit move with respect
to a particular derivative contract or if the securities underlying
the contract experience significant price flactuations after the
determination of the serdement price. When a settlement price
cannot be used, derivative contracts will be valued at their fair
value as determined in good faith pursuant to procedures adopted
by management of the Company.
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The Company reports transfers in and out of levels 1, 2 and 3,
as applicable, using the fair value of the securities as of the
beginning of the reporting period in which the transfer occurred.

On March 31, 2013, the commodities market experienced
downward limit price movements on certain commodities. As a
result, certain exchange-traded derivative coneraces, which would
normally be valued using quoted market prices and classified
as level 1 within the fair value hierarchy, were priced using a
valuation mode! using observable inputs. Due to the change in
valuation technigues because of the limit moves, some derivative
assets and liabilicies were classified as level 2 at March 31, 2013.
Such derivative assets and liabilities were valued using quoted
market prices, and as such, were classified as level 1 as of June, 30,
2013, September 30, 2013 and prior to March 31, 2013. There
were no significant similar occurrences of upward or downward
limit price movements during the year ended Seprember 30,
2012 and the derivarive assets and liabilities were valued using
quoted market prices as of the respective quarter ends in fiscal
year 2012 and as such were classified as level 1.

Except as described above, the Company did not have any
additional significant transfers berween level 1 and level 2 fair
value measurements for the fiscal years ended Seprember 30,
2013 and 2012.

The Company has classitied equity investments in exchange firms’
common stock not pledged for clearing purposes as available-for-
sale. The investments are recorded at fair value, with unrealized
gains and losses recorded, net of raxes, as a component of OCI
until realized. As of September 30, 2013, the cost and fair value
of the equity investments in exchange firms is $3.7 million and
$4.4 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, the cost
and fair value of the equity investments in exchange firms is
$4.4 million and $12.4 million, respectively.

In June 2012, the board of LME Holdings Limited
(“LME Holdings™), the parent company of The London Metal
Exchange {“LME"), entered into a framework agreement regarding
the terms of a recommended cash offer for the entire issued and
outstanding ordinary share capital of LME Holdings. In July 2012,
the shareholders of LME Holdings approved the sale of LME
Holdings to the Hong Kong Exchanges 8 Clearing Limited. In
December 2012, the Company received proceeds of $8.6 million
from the sale of its shares in the LME. The shares of the LME
were previously held by the Company as available-for-sale and
the unrealized gain for those shares was reflected in OCI. For the
fiscal year ended Seprember 30, 2013, the Company reclassified
the unrealized gain remaining in AOCI of approximarely
$6.3 million, ner of income tax expense of $2.0 million, into
the current period earnings.

Tn December 2012, the Company seld its exchange membership
scats in the Board of Trade of Kansas City, Missouri, Inc.
(“KCBT™), in connection with the zequisition of the KCBT
by Chicago Mercantile Exchange (*CME”). The Company
was requited to hold these exchange membership seats for
clearing purposes and, as a result, the associated KCBT shares



were being held at cost on the consolidated balance sheet. The
Company received proceeds of $1.5 million and recognized a
gain of $0.9 million before taxes, during the fiscal yeat ended
September 30, 2013, in connection with the sale of these seats.

The Company has unrealized losses of $0.5 million, net of income
tax benefit of $0.3 million and unrealized gains of $6.2 million,
net of income tax expense of $2.0 million in OCI related to
U.S. government obligations, mortgage-backed securities and
the remaining equity investments in exchange firms classified as
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available-for-sale securities as of September 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The Company monitors the fair value of exchange
common stock on a periodic basis, and does not consider any
curtent untealized losses o be anything other than temporary
impairment.

The following rables summarize the amortized cost basis, the
aggregate fair value and gross unrealized holding gains and losses
of the Company’s investment securities classifted as available-
for-sale as of Seprember 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012:

September 30, 2013
Amounts included in deposits with and receivables from exchange-clearing organizations:
Unrealized Holding Estimated
(in millions) Amoxtized Cost Gains {Losses) Fair Value
USS. government obligations - 8 5685 $ — 3 — 8 5685
Mortgage-backed securities 5.2 0.1 — 5.3
o $ 5737 _$ 0l $ — 3 573 8
(1) Unrealized gainfloss on U.S. government obligations as of September 30, 2013, is less than 0.1 million,
September 30, 2012
Amounts included in deposits with and receivables from exchange-clearing organizations:
Unrealized Holding® Estimated
(ins millians) Amortized Cost Gains ' {Losses) Fair Value .
U.S. government obligations - s 1,289 $ - — §. . 12989
Mortgape-backed securities 6.8 0.1 - 69
' 8 1,305.7_$ el 3 - — g . 13058

(1) Unrealized gainfloss on U.S. government obligavions as of Seprember 30, 2012, 3 less than 0.1 million.

Asof Scptembér 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012, investments in debt securities classified as available-for-sale (AFS) mature as follows:

September 30, 2013

Due in Estimated

(in millions) _ Less than 1 year 1 year or more Fair Value
U.S. government obligations T N $ 5685 % — 8 568.5
Mortgage-backed securities — 5.3 5.3
- $ 568.5 $ 53 § 573.8

September 30, 2012
Due in Estimated
(in millions) Less than 1 year 1 year or more Fair Value
U.S. government obligations : Lo 1,2089 § L T 12989

Mortgage-backed securities —_ 6.9 6.9
- ‘ $ 12989 § 69§ -~ 1,305.8

Except as discussed previously, there were no other sales of
AFS Securities during years ended September 30, 2013 and
September 30, 2012, and as a result, no additional realized
gains or losses were recorded for the years ended September 30,
2013 and September 30, 2012,

For the purposes of the maturity schedule, mortgage-backed
securities, which are not due at a single marurity date, have been
allocated over maruticy groupings based on the expected maturicy
of the underlying collateral. Mortgage-backed securities may
mature eatlier than their stated contractual marurities because
of accelerated principal repayments of the underlying loans.
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NOTE 5 Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations

of Credit Risk

The Company is party to certain financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of its business.
The Company has sold financial instruments that it does
not currently own and will therefore be obliged to purchase
such financial instruments at a furure date. 'The Company
has recorded these obligations in the consolidated financial
statements as of September 30, 2013 at the fair values of the
related financial instruments. The Company will incur logses if
the fair value of the underlying financial instruments increases
subsequent to September 30, 2013. The total of $179.9 million
as of September 30, 2013 includes $30.7 million for derivative
contracts, which represent a liability w the Company based on
their fair values as of September 30, 2013.

Derivatives

'The Company uiilizes derivative products in its trading capacity
as a dealer in order to satisfy client needs and mitigate risk.
The Company manages risks from both derivatives and non-
derivative cash instruments on a consolidated basis, The risks of
derivatives should not be viewed in isolation, but in aggregare
with the Company’s other trading activities. The majority of the
Company’s derivative positions are included in the consolidaring

balance sheets in ‘financial instruments owned, at fair value’,
‘deposits and receivables from exchange-cleating organizadions’

¢ . - . el
and ‘financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fair value’.

The Company employs an interest rate risk management strategy
that uses derivarive financial instraments in the form of interest rate
swaps to manage a portion of the aggregare interest rate position.
The Company’s objective is to invest the majority of customer
segregated deposits in high quality, short-term investments and
swap the resulting variable interest earnings into the medium-term
interest stream, by using a strip of interest rate swaps that marure
every quarter, in order to achieve the two year moving average
of the two year swap rate. The risk mitigation of these interest
rate swaps is not within the documented hedging designation
requirements of the Derivatives and Hedging Topic of the ASC,
and as a resulc they are recorded at fair value, with changes in the
marked-to-market valuation of the financial instruments recorded
in ‘trading gains, net’ in the consolidated income statements. At
September 30, 2012, the Company had $765.0 million in notional
principal of interest rate swaps ourstanding with a weighted-average
remaining life of 6 months. The fast remaining interest rate swap
expired in the fourth quarter of 2013. The Company did not
have any interest rate swaps outstanding at September 30, 2013.

Listed below are the fair values of the Company's derivative assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, Assets represent

net unrealized gains and liabilities represent net unrealized losses.

September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012

(ire millions) Assets™ Liabilities™ Assers™ Liabilities™
Derivative contracts not accounted for as hedges: :
Exchange-traded commodity derivatives $ 2,0366 § 2,0463 $ 3,3256 § 3,565.3
OTC commodity derivatives - 4814 484.9 823.6 841.4
Exchange-traded foreign exchange derivatives 89.3 104.2 63.0 47.7
OTC foreign exchange derivatives 1323 162.3 215.4 196.6
Exchange-traded interest rate derivatives 4.3 36.0 0.9 2.6
OTC interesr rate derivarives — — 1.6 —_
Equiry index derivarives 135.5 141.7 20.8 22.0
Giross fair value of derivative contracts 2,879.4 2,975.4 4,450.9 4.675.6 -
Impact of netting and collateral {2,940.4) (2,.944.7) (4,548.1) (4,631.0)

Total fair value included in “Deposits and receivables from

exchange-cleating organizations’ $ (69.8) $ (150.4)

Toral fair value included in ‘Depaosits and receivables from broker-

dealers, cJearing organizations and counterparties’ $ (13.1) $ (0.7)

Total fair value included in “Financial instruments owned,

ac fair value’ $ 21.9 $ 53.9

Fair value included in ‘Financial instruments sold, not yet

_purchased, at fair value’ $ 30.7 $ 44.6

(1) As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Companys derivative contract volwme for open positions was approximately 4.1 million and 4.1 million conrracs,

respectively.
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The Company'’s derivative contracts are principally held in its
Commodities and Risk Management Services (*C&RM”) segment.
The Company assists its C&RM segment customers in protecting
the value of their future production by entering into option or
forward agreements with them on an OTC basis. The Company
also provides its C&RM segment customers with option products,
including combinations of baying and selling puts and calls. The
Company mitigates its risk by generally offsetting the customer’s
transaction simultancously with one of the Company’s trading
counterparties or will offset that transaction with a similar but not
identical position on the exchange. The risk mitigation of these
offsetting trades is not within the decumented hedging designarion
requirements of the Derivatives and Hedging Topic of the ASC.
"These derivative contracts are traded along with cash transactions
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because of the integrated nature of the markets for these products.
The Company manages the risks associated with derivatives on an
aggregate basis along with the risks associated with its proprietary
trading and matket-making activities in cash instruments as part
of its firm-wide risk management policies. In particular, the risks
related to derivative positions may be partially offset by invencory,
unreatized gains in inventory or cash collateral paid or received.

The following table sets forth the Company’s net gains (losses)
related to derivative financial instruments for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, in accordance with
the Derivatives and Hedging Topic of the ASC, The net gains
{losses) set forth below are included in ‘trading gains, net’ in the
consolidated income statements.

Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
* (As Restated) (As Restated)
Commodities § 846 $ 623 $ 32.8
Fareign exchange 11.6 10.4 15.0
Interest rate 0.1 1.4 3.5
Net gairis from derivarive contracts 3 963 § 741§ 51.3

Credit Risk

In the normal course of business, the Company purchases and
sells financial instruments, commodities and foreign currencies
as either principal or agent on behalf of its custemers. If either
the customer or counterparry fails to perform, the Company may
be required to discharge the obligations of the nonperforming
party: In such circumstances, the Company may sustin a loss
if the fair value of the financial instrument or foreign currency
is different from the contract value of the transaction.

'The majority of the Company’s transactions and, consequently, the
concentration of its credic exposure are with commodity exchanges,
customers, broker-dealers and other financial insdtutions. These
activities primarily involve collateralized and uncollateralized
arrangements and may result in credit exposure in the event
that a counterpatty fails to meet its contractual obligations.
The Company’s exposute to credit risk can be directly impacted
by volatile financial markets, which may impair the ability
of counterparties to satisfy their contractual obligations. The
Company seeks to control its credit risk through a variety of
reporting and concrol procedures, including establishing credit
limits based upon a review of the counterparties’ financial
condition and credit ratings. The Company monitors collateral
levels on a daily basis for compliance with regulatory and internal
guidelines and requests changes in collateral levels as appropriate.

The Company is a party to financial instruments in the normal
course of its business through customer and proprietary trading
accounts in exchange-traded and OTC derivative instruments. These
instruments are primarily the execution of orders for commaodity
futures, options-on-futures and forward foreign currency contracts

on behalf of its customers, substantially all of which are transacted
on a margin basis. Such transactiens may expose the Company
to significant credit risk in the event margin requirements are not
sufficient to fully cover losses which customers may incur. The
Company controls the risks associated with these transactions by
requiring customers to maintain margin depaosits in compliance
with individual exchange regulations and internal gnidelines, The
Company monitors required margin levels daily and, therefore,
may require customers to deposit additional collateral or reduce
positions when necessary. The Company also establishes credit
limirs for customers, which are monitored daily. The Company
evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case by case basis.
Clearing, financing, and settlement activities may require the
Company to maintain funds with or pledge securities as collateral
with othet financial institutions. Generally, these exposures to
both customers and exchanges are subject to master netting, or
custorner agreements, which reduce the exposure to the Company
by permitting receivables and payables with such customers
o be offset in the event of a customer default. Management
believes thac the margin deposits held as of September 30, 2013
and September 30, 2012 were adequate to minimize the risk
of material loss that could be created by positions held at that
time. Additionally, the Company monitors collateral fair value
on a daily basis and adjusts collateral levels in the event of excess
market exposure. Generally, these exposures to both customers
and counterparties are subject to master neiting, or customer
agreements which reduce the exposure to the Company.

Derivative financial instruments involve varying degrees of
off-balance sheet market risk whereby changes in the fair values
of underlying financial instruments may result in changes in the
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fair value of the financial instruments in excess of the amounts
reflected in the consclidated balance sheets. Exposure to market risk
is influenced by a number of factors, including the relationships
between the financial inscruments and the Company’s positions,
as well as the volatility and liquidity in the matkets in which the
financial instruments are traded. The principal risk components

of financial instruments include, among other things, interest
rate volatility, the duration of the undetlying instruments and
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company astempts to
manage its exposure to market risk through various techniques.
Aggregate market [imits have been established and market risk
measutes are routinely monitored against these limits.

NOTE 6 Receivables From Customers, net and Notes Receivable, net

Receivables from customers, net and notes receivable, net include an
allowance for bad debis, which reflects the Company’s best estimate
of probable losses inherent in the receivables from customers and
notes receivable. The Company provides for an allowance for doubtful
accounts based on a specific-identification basis. The Company
continually reviews its allowance for bad debts. The allowance
for doubtful accounts related to receivables from customers was
$1.1 million and 0.9 millien as of September 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts related to notes
receivable was $0.1 million as of September 30, 2013 and 2012.

Duting the year ended Seprember 30, 2013, the Company
recorded bad debt expense, net of recoveries, of $0.7 million,
including provision increases of $0.2 million and direct write-
offs of $0.6 million, offset by recoveries of $0.1 million. The
provision increases during fiscal 2013 were primarily related 1o
customer deficits in the C&RM segment, and the direct write-offs
were primarily related to investment banking advisory services
in the Securities segment.

During the year ended September 30, 2012, the Company
recorded bad debt expense, net of recoveries, of $0.7 million,
including provision incteases of $0.5 million and direct write-
offs of $0.3 million, offset by recoveries of $0.1 millien. The
provision increase during fiscal 2012 was primarily related to
customer deficits in the C&RM segment. During fiscal 2012, the

Company charged-off receivables on consigned gold transactions
of $8.5 million and CES customer deficits of $2.7 million, which
were all fully reserved.

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company
recorded bad debt expense, net of recoveries, of $4.5 million,
including provision increases of $6.8 million and direct write-
offs of $1.4 million, offset by recoveries of $3.7 million. The
provision increase during fiscal 2011 was primatily related to
credit losses recognized on consigned gold transactions, in the
C&RM segment, and a clearing customer deficit account in
the CES segment. During fiscal 2011, the Company recovered
$3.7 million of bad debt expense related to collection of a previous
customer account deficit, in the C&RM segment, and collection
following a scttlement relating to a disputed trade, in the CES
segment, that was “given-up” to FCStone, LLC during the quarrer
ended June 30, 2010 by another FCM. During fiscal 2011, the
Company charged off §111.5 millien of note receivable which
was fully reserved. The remaining notes receivable related to these
customer account deficits is $0.7 million, and the Company
expects to collect the remaining amounts from the introducing
broker, by withholding commissions due on future revenues
collected by the Company, although no assurance can be given
as to the timing of collection.

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts and notes for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

(in smiflions) 2013 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 10 % 119 % 119.2
Provision for bad debts 0.2 0.4 7.2
Transfer in® — — 2.5
Deductions:
Charge-offs — {11.2} (113.3)
Recoveries — (0.1) (3.7)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ . 1.2 ] 1.0 § 11.9

(1) During the three months ended December 31, 2010, certain open posizion devivative contracts, which had a $2.5 million credit reserve as of September 30, 2010
wete closed, and the deficit acconnt balance was reclussified from financial instrumenss owned 10 a veceivable from customer. Accordingty, the previously established
credit veserve amount was :ramﬁm’d' into the allowance ﬁr abubW accounts during the three months ended December 31, 2010,

The Company originates short-term notes receivable from
customers with the ourstanding balances being insured 90%
to 98% by a third party, including accrued interest. The
total balance outstanding under insured notes receivable was
$21.1 million and $10.2 million as of September 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The Company has sold $18.7 million and
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$0.8 million of the insured portion of the notes through non-
recourse participation agreements with ather third parties as of
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

See discussion of notes receivable relared to commodity repurchase
agreements in Note 14.
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NOTE7 Physical Commodities Inventory

The carrying values of the Company’s inventory as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 are shown below.

(ire millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012

- Commodities in process R T — § . 136
Finished commodiries 59.0 118.0

PHYSICAL COMMODITIES INVENTORY Gy g 590 _$  13Lé

As a result of declining market prices for some commodities towards the end of the fiscal year, the Company has recorded LCM
adjustments for physical commodities inventory of $0.9 million and $0.4 million as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
'The adjustments are included in ‘cost of sales of physical commaodities in the consolidated income statements.

NOTE8 Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment are stated at cost, and reported net of ~ The estimated useful lives of property and equipment range

accumulated depreciation on the consolidated balance sheets. frome 3 to 10 years. During the fiscal years ended Sepiember 30,
Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated on the 2013, 2012 and 2011, depreciation expense was $5.8 million,
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. $4.7 million and $2.4 million, respectively.

A summary of property and equipment, at cost less accumulated depreciation as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

(in millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Property and equipment: o L - S
Furniture and fixtures _ % 6.0 5 6.3
Softwate o ST e 60 . . 39
Equipment ‘ 10,2 9.3
Leasehold improvements L e ' 9.6 T 0
Toral properry and equipment ‘ 31.8 28.5
Less accumulared depreciation L L e {14.3) " - (8.6)
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET $ 175§ 18.9

NOTE9 Goodwill

During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized $2.8 million and $1.1 million, respectively, in
additional goodwill related w acquisitions. See discussion in Note 19 related to the additional goodwill recotded for the Company’s
acquisitions.

Goodwill allocated to the Company’s operating segments as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

fin millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
- o R ' (As Restaredy
Commodity and Risk Management Serwces ‘ $ 331 % 331
Foreign Exchange . _ LT e 63 : 63
Securities 8.1 5.3
GOODWILL T T 475 8 4T

INTLFCSTONE INC. - Fform 10-K 8
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NOTE 10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets of $2.8 million, atributed to customer relationships, acquired during the fiscal year ended September 306, 2013

relate to an acquisition, as discussed in Note 19.

The gross and net carrying values of intangible assets as of the balance sheet dates, by major intangible asset class are as follows:

September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
(ine millions) Amount  Amortization Amount Amount  Amortization Amount
Intangible assets subject to amortization 5 o o
Noncompete agreement $ 37 % 3.7 $ — $ 37 % (3.0) % 0.7
Trade name ) A 0.7 0.7y — 07 0.5 02
Software programs/platforms 2.2 (1.5) 07 2.2 (1.0) 12
Custoner base . 12.4 (2.6) 9.8 9.6 (1.8} 78
190 (8.3) 10.5 16.2 (6.3) 9.9
Intangible assets not subject to amortization _
Trade name 1.1 — 1.1 1.2 — 1.2
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS $ 201 $ (85) $ 116 8% 174 § 63 8 111

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $2.2 million, $2.5 million, and $2.3 million for the fiscal years ended 2013,

2012 and 2011, respectively.

As of September 30, 2013, the estimated future amorcization expense was as follows:

(in millions)
Fiscal 2014 3 14
Fiscal 2015 1.0
Fiscal 2016 0.7
Fiscal 2017 0.7
‘Fiscal 2018 o7
Fiscal 2019 and thereafter 6.0
$ 105

During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,
as part of the annual goodwill and intangible assets impairment
analysis, the Company assessed the value of the indefinive-lived
rrade names related to previous acquisitions and determined
thar the vatue of the Hanley Companies, Hencorp Futures and
Provident Group trade names had been impaired during those
years, The Company discontinued the use of these trade names,
which impaired the value of the previously recorded intangible
assets. The remaining value, if any, of the trade names was
determined based on the income approach utilizing projected
sales, an estimared rayalty rate and discount rate.

NOTE 11 Credit Facilities

The Company recorded impairment losses for the trade names of
$0.1 million and $0.8 million, in ‘bad debts and impairments’
on the cansolidated income statements, during the fiscal years
ended Septenber 30, 2013 and 2012, During fiscal year 2012, the
Company determined that the remaining value of the Hencorp
Futures trade name was no longer an indefinite-lived intangible
asset. The remaining value of the Hencorp Futures trade name of
$0.1 million was amortized over a one year period. The Hanley
Companies, Hencorp Futures and Provident Group trade names
wete recorded in the CR&M and Securities segments, respectively.

Variable-Rate Credit Facilities

"The Company has three committed credit facilities undet which the
Company and its subsidiaties may bortow up to $290.0 million,
subject to the terms and conditions for these facilities. The amounts
outstanding under these credic facilities are short rerm borrowings
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and carry variable rates of interest, thus approximating fair value,
The Company's credit facilities are as follows:

A three-vear syndicated committed loan facility established
on September 20, 2013 under which $140 million is available
to the Company for general working capiral requirements,



'The line of credit is secured by a pledge of shares held in certain
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Unused portions of the loan
facility require a commitment fee of 0.625% on the unused
commitment. Borrowings under the facility bear interest at
the Eurodollar Rate, as defined, plus 3.00% or Base Rate, as
defined, plus 2.00%, and averaged 3.72% as of September 30,
2013. The agreement contains financial covenants related to
consolidated tangible net worth, consolidated domestic tangible
net worth, consolidated interest coverage ratio and consolidated
net unencumbered liquid assets, as defined. The Company was
in compliance with these financial covenants as of September 30,
2013. The agreement also includes a non-financial covenant that
requites the Company to provide audited financial statements
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 within ninety
days after the end of the fiscal year. The Company was unable
to deliver the audited financial statements within the required
time petiod. The Company requested and was granted a waiver
from the lenders, dated December 23, 2013, extending the
time period the Company has to provide the audited financial
scatements through January 31, 2014. The Company paid debt
issuance costs of $1.5 million in connection with the issuance of
this credit facilicy, which are being amortized over the thirty-six
month term of the facility.

An unsecured syndicated committed line of credit, established
on June 21, 2010 and renewed by amendment on April 11,
2013, under which $75 million is available to the Company’s
subsidiary, FCStone, LLC to provide short term funding of
margin to commodity exchanges as necessary. This line of credit
is subject to annual review, and the continued availability of this
line of credit is subject to FCStone, LLC’s financial condition
and operating results continuing ro be satisfactory as set forth
in the agreement. Unused portions of the margin line require
a commitment fee of 0.50% on the unused commitment.
Borrowings under the margin line are on a demand basis and
bear fnterest at the Base Rate, as defined, plus 2.00%, which
was 5.25% as of September 30, 2013. The agreement contains
financial covenants related to FCStone, LLC's tangible net worth,
leverage ratio, and net capital, as defined. FCStone, LLC was
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in compliance with these covenants as of September 30, 2013,

The facility is guaranteed by the Company.

A syndicated committed borrowing facility established on
August 10, 2012, and amended on July 30, 2013, under which
$75.0 million is available to the Company’s subsidiary, FCStone
Merchant Services, LLC (“FCStone Merchants”) for financing
traditional commodity financing arrangements and commodity
repurchase agreements. The facility is secured by the assets of
FCStone Merchants, and guaranteed by the Company. Unused
portions of the borrowing facility require a commitment fee of
0.50% on the unused commitment. The borrowings outstanding
under the facility bear interest at a rate per annum equal o the
Base Rate plus Applicable Margin, as defined, which averaged
3.75% as of September 30, 2013. The agreement contains
financial covenants related to tangible net worth, as defined.
FCStone Merchants was in compliance with this covenant as
of September 30, 2013. FCStone Merchants paid minimal debt
issuance costs in connection with this credit facility.

Senior Unsecured Notes

On July 22, 2013, the Company completed the offering of
$45.5 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's
8.5% Senior Notes due 2020 (the “Notes”). The net proceeds
of the sale of the Notes are being used for general corporate
purposes. The Notes were issued under an Indenture dated as of
July 22, 2013, between the Company and The Bank of New York
Mellon, as Trustee (the “Trustee™). The Notes bear interest at a
ratc of 8.5% per vear (payable quarterly on January 30, April 30,
July 30 and October 30 of each year, beginning on October 30,
2013). The Notes will mature on July 30, 2020. The Company
may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on and
after July 30, 2016, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest
to, but not including, the redemption date. The Company
incurred debr issuance costs of $1.7 million in connection wich
the issuance of the Notes, which are being amortized over the
term of the Notes,

The following table sets forth a listing of credit facilities, the commitied amounts as of September 30, 2013 on the facilities, and
outstanding borrowings on the facilities as well as indebtedness on senior notes as of September 30, 2013 and 2012:

{in millions) Amounis Outstandiﬂg
Credit Facilities Total September 30, September 30,

Borrower Security Renewal/Expiration Date  Commitment 2013 2012
INTL FCStone Inc. Certain pledged shares Seprember 20, 2016 § 1400 § . 550 8 48.0
FCStone, LLC None April 10, 2014 750 0 — 20.0
FCSrone Merchants Certain commodities assets May 1, 2014 75.0 ' LG 43.2
INTL Commaoditics Cerrain commodities assets Expired July 31, 2013 — — 107.0
$ 290.0 61.0: 218.2

Senior Unsecured Notes

8.50% senior notes, due July 30, 2020 45.5 =
TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS $ 1065 $§  218.2

INTL ECSTONE INC., - Form 10-K 8
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As noted above, $150 million of the Company’s committed credit
facilities are scheduled to expire during the next twelve months.
The Company intends to renew or replace these facilities as
they expire, and based on the Company’s liquidity position and
capital scructure, the Company believes it will be able to do so.

Subsequent to September 30, 2013, the Company’s subsidiary,
INTL FCStone Lud. established a credit facility under which
$25.0 million is available to provide short term funding of margin
o commadity exchanges as necessary, and for general corporate
purposes of INTL FCStone, Lid (see Note 23).

NOTE 12 Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings

Certain conditions may exisc as of the date the financial sratements
are issued, which may result in a loss to the Company but which
will enly be resolved when one or more future events occur or
fail to occur. The Company assesses such contingent liabilities,
and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment.
In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that
are pending against the Company or unasserted claims that may
resuit in such proceedings, the Company’s legal counsel evaluates
the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims
as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or
expected to be sought therein.

If the assessment of a contingency indicates thac it is probable
that a material loss had been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the liability can be estimared, then
the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s financial
statements. If the assessment indicates that a potentially material
loss contingency is not probable, but is reasonably possible, or
is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the
contingent liability, together with an estimate of the range of
possible loss if determinable and material, would be disclosed.
Neither accrual nor disclosure is required for loss contingencies
that are deemed remote. The Company accrues legal fees related
to contingent liabilities as they are incurred.

In addition to the matters discussed below, from time to time
and in the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved
in various legal actions and proceedings, including tort claims,
coneractual disputes, employment matters, workers' compensation
claims and colleciions. The Company carries insurance thar
provides protection against certain types of claims, up to the
policy limits of the insurance.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the consclidated balance
sheets include loss contingency accruals, recorded during and
prior 1o these fiscal years then ended, which are not material,
individually ot in the aggregate, to the Company’s financial
position or liquidity. In the opinion of management, possible
exposure from loss contingencies in excess of the amounts
accrued, and in addition to the possible losses discussed below,
is not likely to be material to the Company’s earnings, financial
position or liquidicy.
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The following is a summary of significant legal matcers involving
the Company.

Securities Litigation and Regulatory Praceedings

FCStone and certain officers of FCStone were defendants in an
action filed in the United States District Court for the Western
District of Missouti in July 2008. Plaintiffs subsequently filed a
consolidated amended complaint (“CAC”) in September 2009.
As alleged in the CAC, the action purports to be brought as
a class action on behalf of purchasers of FCStone common
stock berween November 15, 2007 and February 24, 2009,
The CAC seeks to hold defendants liable under Section 10(b)
and Section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
concerns disclosures included in FCStone’s fiscal year 2008
public filings. Specifically, the CAC relates to FCStone’s public
disclosures regarding an interest rate hedge, a bad debrt expense
arising from unprecedented events in the cotton rrading marker,
and certain disclosures beginning on November 3, 2008 related
t0 losses it expected to incur arising primarily from a customer
energy trading account. FCStone and the named officers moved
to dismiss the action. The parties to the litigation reached an
agreemert in principle to settle this matter during May 2012,
which was apptoved by order of the court on July 23, 2013. The
settlement was at no cost to the Company after consideration
of insurance.

o August 2008, shareholders filed a derivative action against
FCStone and certain directors of FCStone in the Circuit Court
of Platte County, Missouri, alleging breaches of fiduciary duties,
waste of corporate assets and unjust enrichment. Shareholders
subsequently filed an amended complaint in May 2009 w add
claims based upon the losses sustained by FCStone arising out
of a customer energy trading accounc. In July 2009, the same
plainiff filed 2 motion for leave to amend the existing case o
add a purported class action claim on behalf of the holders of
FCStone common stock.

In July 2009, plaintiffs filed a purported sharehelder class action
complaint against FCStone and its directors, as well as the
Company in the Circuit Court of Clay County, Missouri. The
complainc alleged that FCStone and jts directors breached their
fiduciary duties by failing to maximize stockholder value in
connection with the contemplated acquisition of FCStone by the



Company. This complaine was subsequently consolidated with the
complaint filed in the Circuit Court of Placte Councy, Missouri,
The plaintiffs subsequently filed an amended consolidated
complaint which does not assert any claims against the Company.
This complaint purports to be filed derivatively on FCStone’s and
the Company’s behalf and against certain of FCStone’s cutrent
and former directors and officers and directly against the same
individuals. The Company, FCStone, and the defendancs filed
motions to dismiss on multiple grounds, The parties to the
litigation have reached an agreement in principle 1o setde this
matter. This agreement was provisionally approved by the court
on December 4, 2013, and is expected to be finally approved
on March 19, 2014. The agreemenc, if finafly approved, would
result in the Company incurring a legal cost of $265,000 after
consideration of expecred insurance coverage.

In November 2011, the Commodity Futures Trading Commission
(“CFTC”) Division of Enforcement Staff (“Staff”) requested the
Company to voluntarily produce specified documents co the Staff
in connection with its then informal investigation of the losses
that occurred in 2008 and 2009 in the customer energy trading
account of FCStone, LLC. In September 2012, the Staff provided
the Company with a Wells netice, indicating the Staffs intention
to recommend that the CFTC bring certain charges against
FCStone, LLC. The Company filed its Wells submission with
the Staff in October 2012. On May 29, 2013, the Company
reached a sectlement with the CFTC in this macter. The CFTC’s
findings, neither admitted nor denied by the Company, were
that FCStone, LLC violated CFTC Regulation 166.3 in thar it
faited to diligently supervise its officers’ and employees' activities
relating to risks associated with its customers’ accounts, and in
particular one account controlled by two of FCStone’s customers
who traded in natural gas futures, swaps and option contracts.

The settlement, with appropriate waivers and consents, required

FCStone, LLC to:
» cease and desist from violating CFTC Regulation 166.3;
* pay $1.5 million to the CFTC; and

* appoint an independent third party reviewer to review and
evaluate FCStone, LLC’s exiscing policies and procedures
refating to certain risks, to ensure that the Company has made
sufficient modifications to its risk controls since 2008,

The fine of $1.5 milfion was paid in full in fiscal 2013, Also, the
Company has appointed an independent third party w conduce
the aforementioned review of policies and procedures, and that
review is currently in process.

Sentinel Litigation

The Company’s subsidiary, FCStone, LLC, had a portion of
its excess segregated funds invested with Sentinel Management
Group Inc. (“Sentinel”), a registered FCM and an lllinois-based
money manager that provided cash management services to other
FCMs. In August 2007, Sentinel halted redemprions to customets
and sold certain of the assets it managed to an unaffiliated third
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party at a significant discount. On August 17, 2007, subsequent
to Sentinel’s sale of cerrain assets, Sentinel fled for bankruptey
protection and $15.5 million of FCStone, LLC’s $21.9 million
in invested funds were returned 1o it.

In August 2008, the bankruptcy trustee of Sentinel filed adversary
proceedings against FCStone, LLC, and a number of other FCMs
in the Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of [llinois.
The case was subsequently reassigned to the United States District
Courr, for cthe Northern District of Illinois. In the complaint, the
trustee is secking avoidance of alleged transfers or withdrawals
of funds received by FCStone, LLC and ather FCMs within 90
days prior to the filing of the Sentinel bankruptey petition, as
well as avoidance of post-petition distributions and disallowance
of the proof of claim filed by FCStone, LLC. The trustee seeks
recovery of pre- and post-petition transfers totaling approximately
$15.5 million, In April 2009, the trustee filed an amended
complaint adding a claim for unjust enrichmene. FCStone, LLC
answered the complaints and all parties entered into the discovery
phase of the litigation. In January 2011, the trustee filed a motion
for summary judgment on various counts in the adversary
proceedings filed in August 2008 against FCStone, LLC and a
number of other FECMs. In January 2012, FCStone, LLC filed
a motion for summary judgment in its favor with respect to the
transfer of approximately $1.1 miflion to its customer segregated
account on August 17, 2007, pursuant to the “safe harbor”
provisions of Section 546(e} of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In April
2012, FCStone, LLC filed a motion to dismiss a portion of the
rrustee’s claims set forth in its amended complaint. The trial of
this matrer took place, as a test case, during October 2012. The
trial court entered a judgmene against FCStone, LLC on January
4,2013. On January 17, 2013, the trial court entered an agreed
order, staying execution and enforcement, pending an appeal
of the judgment. By agreement, FCStone, LLC was required
to post an appeal cash deposit of $8.0 million with the court,
which was deposited on January 18, 2013. The oral arguments
in the appeal were heard on December 10, 2013. Based on the
merits of the Company’s appeal, management believes a loss
is not probable, and thus has not recorded a provision for this
marter. The Company believes that if che appeal is unsuccessful,
the resulting pre-tax loss to FCStone, LLC would be in the range
of $4 million to $6 million.

Contractual Commitments

Contingent Liabilities - Acquisitions

Under the terms of the purchase agreements, related to che
acquisitions listed below, the Company has obligations to pay
additional consideration if specific conditions and earnings
targess are met. In accordance with the Business Combinarions
Topic of the ASC, the fair value of the additional consideration
is recognized as a contingent liabilicy as of the acquisition date.
The contingent liability for these estimated additional purchase
price considerations of $9.6 million and $14.8 million are
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included in ‘accounts payable and other accrued liabilities' in
the consolidated balance sheets as of Seprember 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The acquisition date fair value of additional
consideration is remeasured to its fair value each reporting
period, with changes in fair value recorded in current earnings.
The change in fair value during the years ended September 30,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were increases of $2.6 million, $2.0 miliion
and $3.1 million, respectively, and are included in ‘other” in the
consolidated income statements.

"The Company recorded an estimated contingent liability as of the

. . acquisition daye, which was alsp the estimated total purchasz price,

]

of $5.6 million, relating to the December 2012 acquisition of the
accounts of Tradewire Securities, LLC, as described in Note 19.
The Company expects to make cash payments of $0.9 million,
$2.0 million and $5.5 million in fiscal 2014, 2015, and 2016,
respectively, related to this contingent liability. The change in fair
value during the year ended Sepiember 30, 2013 was an increase
of $0.7 million, included in ‘other’ in the consolidared income
statement. The present value of the estimated total purchase
price, including contingent consideration, is $6.3 million as
of Septernber 30, 2013, which remains outstanding and is
included in ‘accounts payable and other accrued liabilities’ in
the consolidated balance sheet,

‘The Company has a contingent liability relating to the November
2011 acquisition of Coffee Nerwork, LLC, subsequently
reorganized as a division of FCStone, LLC, which may result
in the payment of additional purchase price consideration,
see Note 19 for discussion of the acquisition. The acquisition
date fair value of additional consideration was estimated to be
$0.1 million. The present value of the estimated contingent liability
recorded of $0.1 million as of September 30, 2013 represents
the fait value of the expected consideration to be paid, based on
the forecasted adjusted pre-tax net earnings for the third fiscal
year following the closing of the acquisition, plus an additional
final contingent payment.

"The Company has a contingent liability relating to the October 2010
acquisition of Hencorp Becstone Futures, L.C., subsequently
reorganized as a division of FCStone, LLC, {“Hencorp Futures™,
which may result in the payment of additional purchase price
consideration, see Note 19 for discussion of the acquisition.
The acquisition date fair value of additional consideration was
estimated to be $2.3 million. The contingent liability recorded
as of September 30, 2013 represents an estimated contingent
payment of $0.7 million based on adjusted pre-tax net earnings
of Hencorp Futures for fiscal 2013 and the fair value of the
expected consideration to be paid, based on the forecasted adjusted

pre-tax net easnings during the fourth fiscal vear following the - -

closing of the acquisition, plus an additional final estimated
contingent payment and a discount rate being applied to those
future payments, The Company expects to make remaining
cash payments of $0.7 million and $2.8 million in fiscal 2014
and 2015, respectively, relared to this contingent liabilicy.
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The change in fair value during the years ended September 30,
2013 and 2012 were increases of $1.0 million and $0.1 million,
respectively, and are included in ‘other’ in the consolidated income
statemments. The present value of the estimated total purchase
price, including contingent consideration, is $7.5 million as of
September 30, 2013, of which $3.2 million has not been paid
and is included in ‘accounts payable and other accrued liabilities”
in the consolidated balance sheet.

In July 2013, the Company paid $10.0 million, representing
the final payment relating to the July 2010 acquisition of the

. Hanley Campanigs, which was reflected as a contingent liability in

‘accounts payable and othet liabiliries’ in the previous consolidated
balance sheet. The change in fair value, refated to that contingent
liability, for the vears ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were
increases of $0.7 million and $2.0 million, respecrively, and
are included in ‘other’ in the consolidated income statements.

In May 2013, the Company paid $3.1 million, representing the
final payment refating to the April 2010 acquisition of the RMI
Compatiies, subsequently reorganized as divisions of FCStone,
LLC, which was reflected as a contingent liability in ‘accounts
payable and other Habilities’ in the previous consolidated balance
sheet. The change in fait value, related w that contingenc liabilicy,
for the fiscal years ended Seprember 30, 2013 and 2012 were an
increase of $0.2 million and decrease of $28 thousand, respectively,
and are included in ‘other’ in the consolidated income statements.

The Company had a contingent liability refating to the February 2008
acquisition of Globecor, Inc. Under the terms of the purchase
agreement, the Company had an obligation to pay additional
consideration if specific conditions and earnings targets were
met in the twelve-month period ending January 31, 2013.
As a result of the Company’s acquisition of FCStone Group,
Inc. and subsidiaries (the “FCStone transaction”), effective
September 30, 2009, any additional consideration paid as a
result of this acquisition would be considered an adjustment to a
pre-acquisition contingency, made after the end of the allocation
period, and inchuded in earnings in the current period. The final
pre-acquisition contingency expense of $(.4 million was recorded
during fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 and there are no
further contingent payments relating to the Globecot acquisition.

Operating Leases

The Company is obligated under various noncancelable operating
leases for the rental of office facilities, aircraft, automobiles, service
abligations and certain office equipment, and accounts for these
lease obligations on a straight line basis. The expense associated
with operating leases amounted to $9.2 million, $8.9 million
and $7.2 million, for fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The expenses associated with the operating leases
and service obligations are reported in the consolidated income
statements in ‘occupancy and equipment rental’, ‘transaction-
based clearing expenses’ and ‘other’ expenses.
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Future aggregate minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases as of September 30, 2013 are as follows:

(ire millions)

Year ending September 30,

2014 ¢ $ 6.7

2015 5.8

2016 4.5

2017 4.0

2018 3.7

‘Thereafter 10.2
$ 34.9

Purchase Commirments

The Company determines an estimate of contractual purchase
commitments in the ordinary course of business primarily for
the purchase of precious metals. Unpriced contract commitments
have been estimated using Seprember 30, 2013 fair values. The
purchase commitments and other obligations as of September 30,
2013 for less than one year, one to three years and three o
five years were $298.7 million, $6.8 million and $3.4 million,
respectively. There were $1.6 million putchase commitments and
other obligations after five years as of September 30, 2013. The
purchase commitments for less than one year will be partially
offset by corresponding sales commitments of $216.6 million.

Exchange Member Guarantees

The Company is 2 member of various exchanges that trade and
clear futures and option contracts. Associated with its memberships,
the Company may be required to pay a proportionate share of the
financial obligations of another member who may default on ics
obligations to the exchanges. While the rules governing different
exchange memberships vaty, in general the Company’s guarantee
obligations would arise only if the exchange had previously
exhausted its resources. In addition, any such guarantee obligation
would be apportioned among the other non-defzulting members
of the exchange. Any potential contingent liability under these
membership agrecments cannot be estimated. ‘The Company has
not recorded any contingent liability in the consolidated financial
statements for these agreements and believes that any potential
requirement to make payments under these agreements Is remote.

NOTE 13 Regulatory Requirements and Subsidiary Dividend Restrictions

The Company's subsidiary FCStone, LLC is a commedity futures
commission merchani registered with the CFTC servicing
customers primarily in grain, energy and food service-related
businesses. Pursuant to the rules, regulations, and requirements
of the CFTC and other regulatory agencies, FCStone, LLC is
required to maintain certain minimum net capital as defined in
such rules, reguladons, and requirements. Net capital and the
telated net capital requirement may fluctuate on a daily basis.
FCStone, LLEC also has restriction on dividends, which restricts
the withdrawal of equity capital if the planned withdrawal would
reduce net capital, subsequent to haircuts and charges, to an
amount less than 120% of the greatest minimum requitement.

Pursuanc to the requirements of the Commodity Exchange Act,
funds deposited by cuscomers of FCStone, LLC relating to their
trading of furures and options-on-futures on a U.S. commodities
exchange must be carried in separate accounts which are designated
as segregated customers’ accounts. Pursuant to the requirements
of the CFTC, funds deposited by customers of FCStone, LLC
relating to their trading of futures and options-on-futures traded
on, or subject to the rules of, a foreign board of trade must be
carried in separate accounts in an amount sufficient to sarisfy all of
FCStone LLC's current obligations to customers trading foreign

futures and foreign options on foreign commodity exchanges
or boards of trade, which are designated as secured customers’
accounts. See Additional Information of FCStone, LLC Related
to Customer Segregated and Secured Funds further below for
additional information regarding FCStone, LL.C’s calculation
of segregated and secured customer funds.

The Company'’s subsidiary INTL FCStone Ltd. is regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA™), the regulator
of the financial services industry in the United Kingdom, as a
Financial Services Firm under part IV of the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000. The regulations impose daily regulatory
capital, as well as conduct of business, governance, and other
requirements. The conduet of business rules include those thar
govern the treatment of client money and other assets which
under certain circumstances for certain classes of client must
be segregated from the firm’s own assets.

The Company’s subsidiary INTL Global Cuttencies Limited is
regulated by the FCA as a Payment Institution under the Payment
Services Regulations 2009. The regulations impose regulatory
capital {reported annually), and conduct of business requirements.
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The Company’s subsidiary INTL FCSone Securities Inc, (*INTL
FCStone Securisies™) is a registered broker dealer and member
of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”} and
is subject to the SEC Uniform Net Capital Rule 15¢3-1. This
tule requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, and
requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital
not exceed 15 1o 1. A further requirement is that equity capital
may not be withdrawn if this ratio would exceed 10 to | after
such withdrawal.

The Company’s subsidiary FCC Investments, Inc. is a registered
broker-dealer and a member of FINRA, and is subject to the
SEC Uniform Net Capital Rule 15¢3-1.

The Company's subsidiary FCStone Australia Pty Led (*FCStone
Australia”} is regulated by the Australian Securities and Investment
Commission and is subject to a net tangible asser capital
requirement. FCSione Australia is also regulated by New Zealand
Clearing Limited, and is subject to a capital adequacy requirement.

FCStone Commodity Services (Europe), Ltd. is domiciled in
Iretand and subject to regulation by the Central Bank of Ireland,
and is subject to a net capital requirement.

INTL FCStone DTVM Lida, (“INTL FCStone DTVM™ isa
registered broker-dealer and regulated by the Brazilian Cencral
Bank and Securities and Exchange Commission of Brazil, and
is subject to a capital adequacy requirement.

All subsidiaries of the Company are in compliance with all of their regulatory requirements as of September 30, 2013, as follows:

As of September 30, 2013
(in millions) Minimum
Suhsidiary Repulatory Authority Requitement Type Actual Regquirement
FCSvone, LLC CFIC Netcapital § 106.3 % 66.3
FCStone, LLC CFTC Segregated funds  $ 11,6935 % 1,669.6
FCSrone, LLC CFIC Secured funds  § 825 & 59.8
INTL FCStene Lid FCA {United Kingdom) Net capital $ 60.8 & 23.4
INTL FCStone Lid BCA United Kingdom Segregated funds  $ 612 $ 61.1
INTL Globat Currencies Limited FCA {United Kingdom) Net capital $ 114 % 12
INTL FCStone Securities Ine. SEC Ner capitat  § 50 % 1.0
FCC Investments, Inc. SEC Net capiral  $ 03 % 0.3
Australian Securities and Investment
PCSwone Australia Commission Net capital  § 1.8 & 0.2
FCStone Australia New Zealand Clearing Lid Capiral adequacy  § 116 & 4.1
FCStone Commodity Services
(Eutope), Lid Central Bank of Treland Neg capital § 20 % 0.6
Brazilian Central Bank and Securities and
INTL FCStone DTVM Ltda. Exchange Commission of Brazil Capital adequacy  $ 0.7 $ 0.7
INTL Capital S.A. Rosario Futures Exchange (Argentina) Capital adequacy  § 63 § 0.1
INTL Capital S.A. General Inspector of Justice (Argentina) Ner capital $ 85 % 6.4
Superintendent of Securities Markets
INTLE Capiral S.A. of Buenos Aires (Argentina) Net capital § 40 % 0.3

Certain other non-U.S. subsidiaries of the Company are
also subject to capital adequacy requirements promulgaced
by authorities of the countries in which they operate. As of
September 30, 2013, these subsidiaries were in compliance with
their Jocal capiral adequacy requirements.
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Additional Information of ECStone, LLC
Relacii:d to Customer Segregated and Secured
Fun

Pursuant to the requirements of the Commodity Exchange Act,
funds depasited by customers of FCStone, LLC telating to futures
and options-on-futures positions in regulated commeodities must
be carried in separate accounts which are designated as segregated
customers’ accounts. Certain amounts in the accompanying
table reflect reclassifications and eliminations required for
regulatory filing.
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Funds deposited by customers and other assets, which have been segregated as belonging to the commodity customers as of

September 30, 2013 and 2012, are as follows:

(in millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Cash, at banks - segregated $ ¥ 2476 § : 2256
Securities - customer segregared — —
Sccuritics held for customers in lieu of cash, at banks 19.5° 472
Deeposits with and receivables from:
_ Exchapge-cleasing otganizations, including securitfes, fiet of omnibus eliminations 1,413.3° 1,370.4.
Securities held for customers in lieu of cash 13.1 223
Total customer-segregated funds 1.693.5 | 1.665.5
Amount required to be segregated 1,609.6 1,620.5
Excess funds in segregation $ ' 239 § - 45.0

Funds deposited by customers and other assets, which are held in separate accounts for customers trading foreign futures and foreign
options customets, as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

{in millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Cash - secured $ ' 342§ R &
Securities —_ 33
Equities with futures commission merchants 27.00 - .99
Amounts held by clearing organizations of foreign boards of wade —_ _ 20.8
Amounis held by members of foreign boards of trade 21.3 30,1
Total customer-secured funds 82.5 89.3
Amount required to be secured 59.8 ' 77.6.
Excess secured funds 5 227 % 11.7

NOTE 14 Commodity and Other Repurchase Agreements

The Company’s ourstanding notes receivable in connection
with the sale/repurchase agreements, whereby the customers
sell certain cormmodity inventory and agtee to repurchase the
commedity inventory at a fucure date at either a fixed or floating
rate, as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $9.2 million and
$92.5 million, respectively.

NOTE 15 Share-Based Compensation

The obligations outstanding related o commodities sold under
repurchase agreements that are tecorded in ‘broker-dealers,
clearing otganizations and counterparties’ as of Seprember 30,
2013 and 2012 were $0.0 million and $37.0 million, respectively.
The obligations outstanding related to commeodities sold under
repurchase agreements that are recorded in ‘lenders under loans’
as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 were $6.0 million and
$43.2 million, respectively.

Share-based compensation expense is included in ‘compensadon
and benefits in the consolidated income statements and totaled
$9.3 million, $5.9 million and $2.3 million for the fiscal years
ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Stock Option Plans

The Company sponsors a stock option plan fot its directors,
officers, employees and consultants. The Company’s Board
of Directors approved a new stock option plan (“the 2013
Stock Option Plan”), which was appraved by the Company’s

shareholders at the 2013 annual meeting, and authorized the
Company to issue stock options covering up to 1.0 million shares
of the Company’s common stock. As of September 30, 2013,
there were 1.0 million shares authotized for fucure granc under
this plan. Awards thar expire or are canceled generally become
available for issuance again under the plan. The Company settles
stock option exercises with newly issued shares of common stock.

Fair value is estimared at the grant date based on a Black-Scholes-
Merton option-pricing model using the following weighted-
average assumptions:
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Year Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2011
Fxpected stock price volatility 35% 57% 77%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%
Risk free intersst rate 0.37% 1.53% 0.72%
Average expected life (in years) 2.88 7.86 2,94

Expected stock price volatility rates are primarily based on the
historical volatility. The Company has not paid dividends in the
past and does not currently expect to do so in the future, Risk
free interest rates are based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect ar the time of grant for perieds cotresponding with the
expected life of the option or award. The average expected life

tepresents the estimated petiod of time thar eptions or awards
granted are expected to be outstanding, based on the Company’s
historical share option exercise experience for similar option
grancs. The weighted average fair value of options issued during
fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $4.21, $13.57 and
$11.66, respectively.

The following is a summary of stock option activity for the year ended September 30, 2013:

Shares Number of Weighted Weighted Average Weighted Average  Aggrepate
Available Options Average Grant Date Remaining Term  Intrinsic Value
for Grant Qutstanding Exercise Price Fair Value (in years) (3 millions)
Balances at Seprember 30, 2012 921,412 1,899,634  $ 23.36 % 1L.11 545§ 6.0
Additional shares authorized by
sharcholders 1,000,000
Tertnination of 2003 pln (821,412)
Granted (100,000) 100,000 § 17.53 § 421
Exercised {177.246) $ 8.40 § 5.26
Forfeited — (32,738) % 1035 8 3.88
Expired — (667) 4 2349 3 11.58
Balances at September 30, 2013 1,000,000 1,779,983 % 2476 § 11.44 4.87 § 4.8
Exercisable at Seprember 30, 2013 680,820 $ 2747 3 11.04 191 ¢ 3.1

The total compensation cost not yet recognized for non-vested awards of $10.0 million as of September 30, 2013 has a weighted-
average period of 5.71 years over which the compensation expense is expected to be recognized. The total intrinsic value of options
exercised during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $2.0 million, $3.0 million and $1.6 million, respectively.

The options outstanding as of September 30, 2013 broken down by exercise price are as follows:

Weighted Average
Number of Options Weighted Average Remaining Term
Exercise Price Qutstanding Exercise Price (in years)

$ - - % 5.00 — : Y nla _ . nfa
$ 5.00 B 10.00 301,875 $ 7.02 R Bt
3 10,00 -3 15.00 — : nfa B nfa,
$ 15.00 - % 2000 322,179 $ 18.01 2.40
$ 20.00. - % 25.00 126,204 § 12352 3.10
$ 25.00 - % 3000 800,000 § 25.91 8.22
$ 30.00 - % 35.00 — ' nla . 0wl
3 35.00 - % 40.00 — nfa nfa
$ 40.00 - % 4500 — wla ‘nfa
$ 45.00 - % 50.00 — nfa nfa
$ 50.00 - % 5500 229725 § 5423 2.45
1,779,983 § 24.76 4,87
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Restricted Stock Plan

The Company sponsors a restricted stock plan for its directors,
officers and employees. On January 31, 2012, the Company’s
2007 restricred stock plan expired. On February 23, 2012,
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plan authorizing up to 1.5 million shares to be issued. As of
September 30, 2013, 1,154,862 shares were authorized for future
grant under the restricted stock plan. Awards that expire or are
canceled generally become available for issuance again under
the plan. The Company utilizes newly issued shares of common

shareholders QPP[OVCd the Company’s 2012 restricted stock stock to make restriceed stock grants.

The following is a summary of restricted stock activity through September 30, 2013:

Shares Number Weighted Average Weighted Average Aggregate
Available of Shares Grant Date Remaining Term  Intrinsic Value
for Grant Outstanding Fair Value (in years) {8 millions)
Balances at September 30, 2012 1,420,114 512,124 $ 22.09 1.81 $ 9.8
Granted (268,885) 268,885 $ 17.92
Vested (406,901)  § 2072
Forfeited 3,633 (10,470) $ 22.62
Balances at September 30, 2013 1,154,862 363,638 $ 20.53 1.74 % 7.4

The total compensation cost not yet recognized of $4.9 million
as of September 30, 2013 has a weighted-average period of
1.74 years over which the compensation expense is expected to be
recognized. Compensation expense is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period. Restricted stock grants are included
in the Company's total issued and outstanding common shares.

NOTE 16 Retirement Plans

The Company and an executive of a wholly owned subsidiary
murually agreed to the executive’s retirement from employment
as of July 1, 2013. As a result of the executive’s retirement from
employment, the Company recorded compensation cost, related
to the individual’s restricted stock, of $2.6 million during che
fiscal year ended September 30, 2013,

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

As a result of its acquisition of FCStone on September 30, 2009,
the Company has a qualified and a nonqualified noncontributory
retirement plan, which are defined benefit plans that cover certain

employees. Prior to acquisition, the plans were closed to new
employees, and amended to freeze all future benefit accruals,
therefore no additional benefits accrue for active participants
under the plans.

The following table presents changes in, and components of, the Company’s net liability for retitement costs as of and for the years
ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, based on measurement dates of September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

(in millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Changes in benefit obligation: k
Benefic obligation, beginning of year b 428 % 39.0 $ 37.6
Interest cost : L5 1.8 19
Acruarial loss {2.6) 5.8 2.6
Benefits paid (4.2) (3.8) (3.1
Benefir obligation, end of year 37.5 42.8 39.0
Changes in plan assets:
Fair value, beginning of year 26.5 24,2 24.2
Actual return 37 4.6 (0.4)
Employer contribution 2.9 1.5 3.5
Benefits paid (4.2) (3.8) (3.1}
Fair valye, end of year 289 26.5 24,2
Funded status 4 {8.6) § {16.3) $ {14.8)
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The Company is required to recognize the funded status of its
defined benefit pension plans measured as the difference between
plan assets at fair value and the projected benefir obligation on
the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2013 and
2012, and to recognize changes in the funded status, that arise
duting the periods but are not recognized as components of net
petiodic pension cost, within accumulated other comprehensive
loss, net of tax. Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets consist of $0.5 million and $0.1 million included ir ‘other
assets’ as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and

$9.1 million and $16.4 million included in ‘accounts payable
and other accrued liabilities’ as of Seprember 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, includes
amounts for actuarial losses in the amount of $2.9 million and
$6.2 million as of September 3(}, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The estimated net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that
will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss
into net periodic pension cost duting fiscal 2014 is $0.2 million,

The following table displays the Company’s defined benefit plans that have accumulated benefit obligations and projected benefit
obligations in excess of the fair value of plans assets (underfunded ABO) as of September 30, 2013 and 2012:

(in millions)

Accumulated benefir obligations
Projected benefit obligations
Plan assets

September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
. [ LR R A N $ 42_8
$ 42.8
3 26.5

The defined benefic obligations were based upon annual measurement dates of September 30, 2013 and 2012. The following
weighted-average assumptions were used to determine benefic obligations in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of

September 30, 2013 and 2012:

Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate
Fxpected return on assets

September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012

3.80%
7.00%

The following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine net periodic pension cost for the years ended September 30,

2013, 2012 and 2011:

Weighted average assumptions:
Discounr rate
Expected return on assets

To account for the defined benefic pension plans in accordance
with the guidance in the Compensation — Retirement Berefits
Topic of the ASC the Company malkes two main determinations
at the end of each fiscal year. These determinations are reviewed
annually and updated as necessary, but nevercheless, are subjective
and may vary from actual results.

First, the Company must determine the acruarfal assumpeion
for the discount rate used to reflect the time value of money
in the calculation of the projected benefit obligations for the
end of the carrent fiscal year and to determine the ner periodic
pension cost for the subsequent fiscal year. The objective of the
discount rate assumption is to reflect the interest rate at which
pension benefits could be effectively settled. In making this
determination, the Company considers the timing and amount
af benefits that would be available under the plans. The discount
rates as of September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were based on a
model portfolio of high-quality fixed-income debt instruments
with duracions that are consistent with the expected cash fows
of the benefir obligations.
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Year Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2011
4.80% 5.30%
7.30% 7.30%

Second, the Company must determine the expected long-term
rate of return on assets assumption that is used to determine the
expected return on plan assets component of the net periodic
pension cost for the subsequent period. The expected long-term
rate of return on asset assumption was determined, with the
assistance of the Company'’s investment consultants, based on
a variety of factors. These factors include, but are not limited to,
the plar’s asset allocations, a review of historical capital market
performance, hiscorical plan performance, current market factors
such as inflation and interest rates, and 2 forecast of expected future
asset returns. The Company reviews this long-term assumption
on an annual basis.

As a result of the defined benefit plans having a frozen starus, no
additional benefits will be accrued for active participants under
the plan, and accordingly no assumption will be made for the
rate of increase in compensation levels in the future.
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The components of net periodic pension cost recognized in the consolidared income statements for the years ended September 30,

2013, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Year Ended September 30,
fin millions) 2013 2012 2011
Interest cost R 5 .8 % 19 .
Less expected return on assets (1.7 .7
Net amortization and deferral L : 0.4 —
Ner periodic pension cost & C8 05 % 0.2

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income for the years ended Seprember 30,

2013 and 2012 were as follows:

(in miilions)

Year Ended sepmmbér 30,

Ner (gain) loss

Amortization of loss

2013 2012
B a1 H 29
- {0.8). (0.4)

Total recopnized in other comprehensive income

(5.4) 2.5

Total recognized in ner periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive income

49§ 3.0

Plan Assets

The following table sets forth the actual asset allocation as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the target asset allocation for the

Company’s plan assets:

Sltember 30, 2013 September 30, 2012 Target Asset Allocation
Equiry sccurities - _-"68% 66% 70%
Debt securities S 32% _‘ 34% 30%
TOTAL - 100% 160% -

The long-term goal for equity exposure and for fixed income
exposure is presented above. The exact allocation atany point in
time is at the discretion of the invesiment manager, but should
recogize the need to satisfy boch the voladlity and he rate of
return objectives for equity exposure and sarisfy the objective of
preserving capital for the fixed income exposure.

The investment philosophy of the Company’s pension plans
reflect that over the long-term, the risk of owning equities has
been and should continue to be rewarded with a greater rerurn
than thar available from fixed income investments. The primary
objective is for the plan to achieve a rate of return sufficient to
fully fund the pension obligation without assuming undue risk.

Investments in the Company’s pension plans include debt and
equity securities. The fair value of plan assets is based upon the
fair value of the underlying investments, which include cash
equivalents, common stock, U.S. government securities and federal
agency Gbligations, municipal and corporate bonds, and equity
funds. Cash equivalents consist of short-term money market
funds that are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

"The shares of common stock, U.S. government securities and
federal agency. obligations, municipal and: ¢orpotate bonds are
stated at estimated fair value based upon quoted matket prices,
if available, or dealer quotes. The equity funds are itvestment
vehicles valued using the net asser value (*“NAV™} provided by the
administracor of the fund. The NAV is based on the underlying
assets owned by the fund, minus its liabilities, and then divided
by the number of shates ourstanding.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation
that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective
of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Company believes
the valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with
other marker participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could resule in a different fair value measurement
at the reporting date.

Equity securities did not include any INTL FCStone Inc, common
stock as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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The following tables summarize the Company’s pension assets, excluding cash held in the plan, by major category of plan assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually) as of September 30, 2013 and 2012. For additional information and a
detailed description of each level within the fair value hierarchy, see Note 4.

September 30, 2013

fin millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash equivalents $ — % 05 § — § 05

Fixed income: : ' ' R o ' T n
Government and agencies - 0.6 . — 0.6

Colleceive funds: RERR N L Lo
Fixed income — 8.1 ) — . 8.1
Equities R 18.7 18T
Real estare — 1.0 — 1.0

TOTAL _ $ - % 289 $ - o § 289

September 30, 2012

{in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets: . | o . ' ) S

Cash equivalents $ — % 04 $ — $ 0.4

Fixed income: ‘ SRS : ' o ' i
Government and agencies — 08 — 0.8

Collective funds: : : . ) S
Fixed income — 7.7 - 77
Equities s 16.6 RSO 166
Real estate — 1.0 - 1.0

TOTAL : g ) i 263 . % - § - 265

Cash equivalents are mostly comprised of short-term money
matker instruments and the valuation is based on inputs derived
from observable marker data of related assets.

Fixed Income: These securities primarily include debt issued by
the U.S. Deparement of Treasuty and secutities issued or backed
by U.S. government sponsored entities and municipal bonds.
These investments are valued utilizing a market approach that
includes various valuation techniques and sources such as, broker
quotes in active and non-active markets, benchmark yields and
securities, reported trades, issuer spreads, and/or other applicable
reference data and are generally classified within Level 2.

Mutual Funds: Mutual funds held by the Company’s plans are
primarily invested in murtual funds with undetlying common stock
investments. The fair value of these investments is based on the
net asset value (“NAV”) of the units held in the respective fund
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which are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally
recognized securities exchanges,

Collective Funds: These collective investment funds are
unregistered investment vehicles that invest in portlolios of stock,
bonds, or other securities. The fair value of these investments
is based on the NAV of the units held in the respective funds.
As no redemption restrictions or other features are noted
that require adjustment to NAV. These funds are classified as
Level 2 investments.

The Company expects to contribute $2.5 million to the pension
plans during fiscal 2014, which represents the minimum funding
requirement. However, the Company is currently determining
what voluntary pension plan contributions, if any, will be made
in fiscal 2014,
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'The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected to be paid:

(in millions)

Year ending September 30,

2014 3 36

2015 3.3

2016 3.2

2017 2.9

2018 1.9

2019 - 2023 8.5
$ 24.4

Defined Contribution Retirement Plans

UK. based employees of INTL FCSrone are eligible to participate
in a defined contribution pension plan. The Company contribures
double the employee’s contribution up to 10% of total base
salary for this plan. For this plan, employees are 100% vested
in both the employee and employer contributions at all times.

The Company offers participation in the INTL FCStone Inc.
401(k) Plan (“401(k) Plan’}, a defined contribution plan providing
retirement benefits, to all domestic employees who have reached
21 years of age, and provided four months of service to the
Company. Employees may conttibute from 1% to 80% of their

NOTE 17 Other Expenses

annual compensation to the 401{k) Plan, limited to a maximum
annual amount as set petiodically by the Internal Revenue Service.
The Company makes matching contributions to the 401(k)
Plan in an amount equal to 62.5% of each participant’s eligible
elective deferral coneribution to the 401(k} Plan, up to 8%.
Matching contriburions vest, by participant, based on the
following yeats of service schedule: less than two years — none,
two to three years — 20%, three to four years — 40%, four to
five years — 60%, and greater than five years — 100%.

For fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s
contribution to these defined contribution plans were
$4.0 million, $3.7 million and $2.8 million, respectively.

Other expenses for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are comprised of the following:

{int millions)

Year Ended September 30,

Contingent consideration, ner”

201‘;’-_ 2012 2011
SRR ¥ 29 47

Insurance 1.7 1.5
Advertising, meetings and conferences 25 1.8
Non-trading hardware and software maintenance and software

licensing 22 28
Office supplies and printing 13 i1
Other clearing relared expenses 1.7 1.8
Other non-income taxes 40 2.8
Qther L 5.3 4.9
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES o 2.8 216 % 214
(1} Contingent consideration includes vemeasurement of contingent linbilities related to business combinations acc d for in accordance with the provisions of the

Business Combinations Topic of the ASC (see Note 4) and additional purchase price, based on achieving specific conditions and carnings targess, relating to FCStone,
LLC’ previous acquisitions of Dounes OWeill, LEC (“Doumes O'Neill”) and Globecot, Tnc. (“Globecot”), When the Downes O'Neill] and Globecot acquisitions
oceurred, they were recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations ("SFAS 1417}, As a result of the FCSwone transaction on September 30, 2009,
these contingent purchase price amounts were considered pre-acquisition contingencies, which were not reasonably estimable during the merger allpcation period
Jollowing the FCStone transaction. In accordance with SFAS 141, adjustments to pre-acquisition contingencies, made after the ¢nd of the allscasion period, are
included in earnings in the current period. The final pre-acquitition contingency expense was recorded during fiscal year 2013 and there are no further contingent

paymenis relating to the Downes O'Neill or Globecot acquisitions.
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NOTE 18 Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefic) for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was allocated as follows:

Year Ended September 30,
{in millions) 2013 2012 2011
. : {(As Restated) (As Resrated)
Income tax expense artribueable to income from continuing operations  $ 335 % 3.1 $ 20.9
Income tax expense atteibucable o loss from disconcinued operations S— — 0.1
Taxes allocated to stackholders’ equity, related to unrealized gains
(losses) on available-for-sale securities o (1.6) 2.2 (0.3)
Taxes allocated to stockholders’ equity, related to pension liabilities 1.8 {1.0) (1.7)
Taxes allocated to stockholders’ equity, related to unrealized loss on derivatives . . — — 0.6
Taxes allocated to additional paid-in capital, related to share-based : .
compensation i — {0.2) —-
TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE $ - 3.5 $ 4.1 $ 19.6
The components of the provision for income taxes attributable to income from continuing operations were as follows:
Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
' (As Restated) {As Restated)
Currenr taxes:
U.S. Pederal $ 0 uy $ 69 $ 7.6
U.S. State and local (1.3) 0.4 1.6
Internarional : 13.5 10.1 9.9
"Total current taxes - 1.0 3.6 19.1
Deferred taxes (7.7) (0.5) 18
INCOME TAX EXPENSE $ 33 § 3.1 $ 20.9
U.S. and international components of (loss) income from continuing operations, before income taxes, was as follows:
Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
{As Restated) {As Restated)
U.S. $ B 4% B T 3 (17.2) § 23.2
International L 44.3 33.0 322
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS, BEFORE o .
TAX $ 26§ 158  § 55.4

Items accounting for the difference berween income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and the provision for income taxes
were as follows:

Year Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2011

. o (As Restated) (As Restated)

Federal statutory rate effect of: 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
U.S. Stare and local income taxes C0.8% (2.00% 0.8%
Foreign earnings taxed at lower rates o (20.'1)% 20.4% {3.1)%
Change in foreign valuarion allowance 2% 2.2% 0.7%
Change in state valuation allowance {7.60% {0.2)% 1.0%
Tax impace of U.S. Stace and local rate change 2.4)% —9% 1.2%
Uncerrain tax positions S C 0.3)% {1.5)% 1.5%
Non-deductible meals and entertainment . . 1.3% 2.7% ey
Foreign permanent items 4.3% 6.0% —%
Orhey reconciling items C Lo 380 {4.2)% 4.6%
Penalties 2.4% —% —%
Audir settlements {1.7)% —% —%
EFFECTIVE RATE . 15.4% 17.6% 37.7%
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The components of deferred income tax assets and liabiliries were as follows:

fin millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
(As Restated)
Deferred tax assets:
" Share-hased compensation R 27§ 2.5
Pension liability 34 6.1
" Deferréd compensation” 23 ) 32
Foreign nert operating loss carryforwards 1.9 2.0
“ U.S. State and focal net operating loss carryforwards 4.9 49
U.S. Federal net operating loss carryforwards 7.3 —
Intangible assets 6.9 6.1
Capital loss carryforwards 0.7 1.1
Bad debt reserve 0.2 0.1
Foreign tax credit 0.1 0.3
Other compensation 1.6 4.5
Other 1.4 1.2
Total gross deferved tax assets 334 32.0
Less valuation allowance {2.3) (4.1)
Deferred tax assets 311 27.9
Deferred income tax lisbilities:
Untealized gain on securities 1.3 3.1
Prepaid expenses 0.9 1.1
_ Fixed assets 3.4 3.8
Deferred income tax labilities 5.6 8.0
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS $ 25.5 $ 19.9

Deferred income tax balances reflect the effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
and their tax bases and are stated ar enacted tax rates expected to
be in effect when taxes are actually paid or recovered.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company has net
operating loss carryforwards for U.S. federal, state, and local and
foreign income tax purposes of $11.8 million and $2.8 million,
net of valuation allowances, respectively, which are available to
offsec future taxable income in these jurisdications. The U.S.
federal net operating loss carryforward of $7.3 million expires
in 2033. The state and local net operating loss carryforwards
of $4.5 million, net of valuation allowance, expire in tax years
ranging from 2020 through 2633.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of September 30,
2013 was $2.3 million. The net change in the rotal valuation
allowance for the year ended September 30, 2013 was a decrease of
$1.8 million. The valuation allowances a5 of September 30, 2013
and 2012 were primarily related to U.S. state and local and
foreign net operating loss carryforwards that, in the judgment
of management, are not more likely than not to be realized. In
assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management
considers whether it is more likely than not that some or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company incurred U.S. federal, state, and local taxable
{losses) income for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012
and 2011 of $(22.2} million, $(21.2) million, and $22.7 million,
respectively. There are no significant differences berween actual

levels of past taxable income and the results of continuing
operations, before income raxes in these jurisdictions. U.S. federal,
state, and local taxable losses incurred during the years ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012 were attibutable to a decrease
in exchange-traded and OTC derivative transactional volumes
and revenue caused by consecutive droughts in the U.S., as well
as losses incurred in the physical base metals business. During 2013,
the Company elected to pursue an exit of its physical base metals
business through an ordetly liquidation of open positions.
Additionally, the Company completed an acquisition of the
accounts of Tradewire Securities. Although both the exic of the
physical base metals business and the acquisition of the Tradewire
Securities accounts are expected to positively affect future levels of
taxable income, the expected impact cannot be reliably projected.
When evaluating if U.S. fedetal, state, and local deferred taxes
are realizable, the Company considered deferred tax liabilicies
of $4.3 million that are scheduled 1o reverse from 2014 to
2018 and $1.3 million of deferred tax liabilities associated with
unrealized gains in securities which the Company could sell,
if necessary. Furthermore, the Company considered its ability
to implement business and tax planning strategies that would
allow the remaining U.S. federal, state, and local deferred tax
assets, net of valuation allowances, to be realized within 16 years.
Based on the tax planning strategies that can be implemented,
management believes that it is more likely than not that the
Company will realize the tax benefit of the deferred tax assets,
net of the existing valuation allowance, in the future.
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The total amount of undistributed earnings in the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries, for income tax purposes, was $123.1 million
and $93.8 million as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
It is the Company’s current intention to reinvest undistributed
earnings of its foreign subsidiaries in the foreign jurisdictions,
resulting in the indefinite postponement of the remittance of
those earnings. Accordingly, no provision has been made for
foreign withholding taxes or U.S. federal income taxes which may
become payable if undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries
were paid as dividends to the Company.

The Company recognizes the tax benefic from an uncertain tax
position anly if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authority, based upon
the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit recognized
in the consolidated financial statements from such a position
is measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than
50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year 3 05 % 0.9 3 e
Gross increases for tax positions refated to current year 0.1 — —
{Gross increases for tay positions related 1o prioryears . — — 0.9
Gross decreases for tax positions of prior years {0.2) 0. —_
Serdernents {0.2) 0.1 e
Lapse of statute of limitations {0.1) {0.2) —
Balance, end of year $ 01 __ 3 0.5 % 0.5

Included in the balance of uncertain tax benefits as of September
30, 2013, is $0.1 million of tax benefits that, if recognized, would
affect the effective tax rate. While it is expected that the amount of
unrecognized tax benefits will change in the next twelve months, the
Company does not expect this change to have a material impact on
the results of operations or the financial position of the Company.

Accrued interest and penalties are included in the related tax
liability line in the consolidated balance sheets. Accrued interest,
net of federal benefir, and penalties included in the consclidated
balance sheets as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $0.0 million
and $0.2 million, respectively.

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to
income taxes as a component of income tax expense. During 2013,
2012 and 2011, the amount of interest, net of federal benefir,
and penalties recognized as a component of income tax expense
was $(0.2) million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

NOTE 19 Acquisitions and Disposals

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns with
the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various U.S. state and local and
foreign jutisdictions. The Company has apen tax years ranging
from Seprember 30, 2008 through September 30, 2013 with
U.S. federal and state and local taxing autherities. In the UK,
the Company has open tax years ending September 30, 2012 to
September 30, 2013. In Brazil, the Company has open tax years
ranging from December 31, 2008 through December 31, 2012.
In Argentina, the Company has open tax years ranging from
December 31, 2006 to September 30, 2013. The Internal Revenue
Service commenced an examination of the U.S. income tax return
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, Additionally, INTL
FCStone is under state examinations for various periods, ranging
from September 2009 through September 30, 2012. There are
no examinations taking place in foreign jurisdictions.

Acquisitions in Fiscal 2013

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the
operating results of the acquired businesses from the dates of
acquisition. The total amount of goodwill and intangjble assets, in
connection with these acquisitions, that is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes is $5.6 million as of September 30, 2013.
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First American Capital and Trading Corp.

On May 3, 2013, the Company reached an agreement in which
First American Capital and Trading Corp. (“FACT™), has agreed
to transfer its customer accounts to INTL FCStone Inc.’s broker-
dealer subsidiary, INTL FCStone Securities Inc. Completion
of this transaction is subject to certain conditions, including
regulatory approval. FACT provides correspondent cleating services
to institutional customers directly and through a global network of
partners. FACT services a wide range of customers, including broker-
dealers, investment advisors, and fund managets. The Company
completed this transaction in the first quarter of fiscal 2014,



Tradewire

On December 12, 2012, the Company finalized an agreement to
acquire certain institucional accounts from Tradewire Securities,
LLC (“Tradewire Securities”), a Miami-based securities broker-
dealer servicing customers throughout Latin America and a wholly
owned subsidiary of Tradewire Group Ltd. These accounts were
transferred to INTL FCStone Inc.’s broker-dealer subsidiary, INTL
FCStone Securities. As part of the transaction, the Company
hired more than 20 professional staff from Tradewire Securities
securitics broker-dealer business based in Miami, Florida, These
professionals provide global brokerage services 1o 2 wide range
of customers, including hedge funds, pension funds, broker-
dealers and banks located in Latin America, the Caribbean,
North America and Europe.

The consideration to be paid for the acquisicion of institutional
accounts from Tradewire Securities consists of chree annual
contingent payments and a final contingent payment and the
original estimated present value was estimated to be $5.6 million
as of the acquisition date. The purchase price for the acquisition
is not expected to be material to the consolidated firancial
statements. The present value of the estimated total purchase price,
incuding contingent consideration, is $6.3 million (see Note 12).
The Company obtained a third-party valuation of the intangible
assets and contingent labilities, and allocated the purchase costs
among identified intangible assets with determinable useful lives
and goodwill. The goodwill and intangible assets recognized in
this transaction of $2.8 million and $2.8 million, respectively,
were assigned to the Securities segment.

Disposals in Fiscal 2013

Gletir Agente De Valores S.A.

On February 28, 2013, the Company, through its subsidiaries
INTL Netherlands B.V. and Gainvest Assct Management Lida,
entered into an agreement to sefl all of its ownership interest in
another subsidiary, Gletit Agetite De Valores S.A, (“Gletir Agente”),
to Gledir Financial Corp (the “Purchager”). The Company sold
the capital stock of Gletir Agente for $0.8 million. Gletir Agente
had net assets of $0.6 million, which included $0.1 million of
AQCT related to foreign currency translation, included in the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company, at the time of the sale.
The gain resuiting {tom the sale price less the carrying amount of
the net assets and the gain from the AOCI balance were recorded
as components of ocher income on the consolidated income
staternent for the fiscal year ended ended September 30, 2013,

Exit of Physical Base Metals Business

During the quarter ended March 31, 2013, as a result of a
change in management sttategy in the Company’s base metals
product line, the Company elected to pursue an exit of its
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physical base metals business through the sale and/or ordetly
liquidacion of current open positions. During che fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013, the Company completed z sale of a
portion of the physical base metals open contract posicions, and
the liquidation of the majority of the remaining physical base
metals open contract positions and inventory. The performance
of the physical base merals activities resulted in pre-tax income of
$1.4 million during the fiscal year ending Seprember 30, 2013,
including $1.9 million in centract termination costs incurred in
the aforementioned sale. The Company believes the exit of the
physical base metals business wiil be completed by the end of
fiscal 2014. The physical base metals business is included in the
C&RM Segment. The Company will continue to operate the
portion of its base metals business relared to non-physical assers,
conducted primarily through the London Metals Exchange.

The Company has considered the impact of the exit of the physical
base metals business on the Company’s financial position, furure
operating results and liquidity, and believes the exit will not have a
marerial negative impact to the consolidated financial statements,
expected cash flows or liquidity of the Company. The Company
evaluated the recoverability of long-fived and intangible assets as
a result of this planned exit, noting no impairment charges. The
Company believes any additional exit costs will not be material
to the consolidated financial statements.

Acquisitions in Fiscal 2012

During fiscal 2012, the Company acquired three businesses (Coffee
Network, TRX Futures Limited and Aporte DTVM) and certain
assets of the Metals Division of MF Global UK Limited, which
were not considered significant on an individual or aggregare
basis. The Company’s consolidated financial statements include
the operating results of the acquired businesses from the dates
of acquisition.

These acquisitions resulted in the recognition of goodwill and
intangible assets that is expected to be deducrible for tax purposes
of $0.7 million.

Coffee Network

In November 2011, the Company entered into an agreement to
acquire 100% of the ownership interests in Coffee Network LLC
(“Coffee Network”), an online news and analysis portal for the
global coffee industry. Coffee Netwotk provides up-to-the-minute
news and in-depth analysis to subscribers around the globe from
a network of correspondents and commodity analysts located
in key coffee producing and consuming regions. These services
provide a unique information solution to subscribers and a
competitive advantage in today’s information-driven marketplace.

The putchase price for the Coffez Network acquisition consiscs
of an initial payment of $0.2 million, three additional annual
contingent payments and a final contingent payment. See Note 12
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for discussion of the contingent payments. The present value of the
estimated total purchase price, including contingent consideration,
is less than $0.3 million. The intangible assets recognized in this
transaction were assigned to the C&RM segment. Purchase costs
allocated to intangible assets with determinable useful lives are
$0.2 million, which are being amortized over the remaining
useful lives of the assets, and include customer relationships,
websites and non-compete agreements (approximate two-year

weighted-average useful life).

MF Metals Team

On November 25, 2011, INTL FCStone Ltd. Ltd, the Company's
wholly owned subsidiary in the United Kingdom (“UK”),
artanged with the administrator of MF Global’s UK operations
to acquire certain assets of the Merals Division of ME Global UK
Limited (in special administration). As part of the arrangement,
the Company received an assignment of customer accounts and
customer account documenration. Additionally, as part of the
transaction, the Company hired more than 50 professionals
from MF Global’s metals trading business based in London.
This business serves institutional investors and financial services
firms in the Americas, Europe and the Asia-Pacific region. The
Company has allocated equity capital to integrate these brokers
and their customers into the Company’s operations, through
a combination of increased regulatory capital to support the
accounts of these cusromers and increased compensation and
related personnel costs for the brokers. The amount of the
required capital depends upon the activity in and balances of
the customer accounts.

The purchase price of the acquisition of certain assets from MF
Global was $1.0 million. There was no contingent consideration
associated with this transaction. The intangible assets recognized
in this transaction were assigned to the C&RM segment. Purchase
costs allocaeed to intangible assets with determinable useful lives
are $0.5 million, which are being amortized over the remaining
useful lives of the assets, and include customer relationships
(approximate three-year weighted-average useful life).

TRX Futures Limited

On Aprit 30, 2012, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary
in the UK, INTL Holding (UK) Limited, acquired 100% of
the outstanding shares of TRX Futures Limited (“TRX”) from
Neumann Gruppe GmbH. TRX is a London-based niche
clearing firm for commercial coffee and cocoa customers, as well
as enetgy and financial products. The purchase price was equal
to the tangible nec asset value of TRX, which was approximately
$12.9 million. 'There are no additional payments remaining for
this acquisition. The goodwill recognized in this transaction
was assigned to the C8RM segment. Purchase costs allocated
to goodwill of $0.3 million was calculated as the excess of the
fair value of the consideration transferred over the fair value of
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the identified net assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Aporte DTVM

In February 2012, the Company’s subsidiaries, INTL Participacoes
LTDA and FCStone do Brasil, acquired 100% of the shares of
Aporte DTVM. Following the acquisition, Aporte DTVM was
renamed INTL FCStone DTVM Lida. INTL FCStone DTVM
is based in Brazil and is a broker-dealer regulated by the Central
Bank of Brazil. The purchase price for the acquisition of the shares
of Aporte DTVM was $1.5 million. There are no additional
payments remaining for this acquisition. The goodwill recognized
in this transaction was assigned to the C&RM segment. Purchase
costs allocated to goodwill of $0.8 million was calculated as
the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred over
the fair value of the identified net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, and is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisitions in Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011, the Company acquired two businesses,
Hencorp Furures and Ambrian Commodities Limited, and
certain assets from Hudson Capital Energy, LLC, which were
not considered significant on an individual or aggregate basis.
The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the
operating tesults of the two businesses and certain purchased
assets from the dates of acquisition.

These acquisitions resulted in the recognition of geodwill and
intangible assets that is expected to be deductible for tax purposes
of $4.9 million.

Hencorp Futures

In QOctober, 2010, the Company acquired all of the ownership
interests in Hencorp Futures, the commodity futures operation
of Miami-based Hencorp Group. Hencorp Futures specializes in
the development and execution of risk-management programs
designed to hedge price volatility in a number of widely rraded
commodities, including coffee, sugar, cocoa, grains and energy
products. The transaction will enable the Company to round out
its portfolio of commeodity risk management services o include
a more robust capability in soft commeodities, especially coffee,
where Hencorp Futures has established a substantial presence and
reputztion globally, and especially in Central and South America,

The purchase price of the Hencorp Futures acquisition consisted
of an initial payment of $2.3 million, two payments rotaling
$1.4 million and representing the adjusted tangible equity of
Hencorp Futures as of September 30, 2011, payments of $0.3
million based on the adjusted pre-tax net earnings of Hencorp
Furures for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 and 2012,
respectively, two additional annual contingent payments and



a final contingent payment. See Note 12 for discussion of the
contingent payments. The present value of the estimated total
purchase price, including contingent consideration, is $7.5 million.

The Company obtained a third-party valuation of the intangible
assets and contingent liabilities, and allocated the purchase
costs among cangible assets, identified intangible assets with
determinable useful lives, intangible assets with indefinite lives
and goodwill. The intangible assets and goodwill recognized in
this transaction were assigned to the C8RM segment. Purchase
costs allocated to intangible assets with determinable useful lives
are $1.7 million, which are being amortized over the remaining
useful lives of the assets, and include customer relationships
of $1.3 million (twenty-year weighted-average useful life) and
non-compete agreements of $0.4 million (two-year weighted-
average useful life). Purchase costs allocated to intangible assets
with indefinite lives are $0.8 million, and relate to a trade name.
See discussion in Note 10 for discussion of the impairment of
the Hencorp Futures trade name during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012, Goodwill of $2.1 million was calculated as
the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred over
the fair value of the identified net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, and is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
During 2012, Hencorp Futures was reorganized as a division

of FCStone, LLC.

Certain Assets Purchased from Hudson Capital
Energy, LLC

In April 2011, the Company acquired certain assets from Hudson
Capital Energy LLC (“HCEnergy”), a New York-based energy
tisk-management fitm. The transaction enables the Company’s
energy risk management services to include a more robust
capability in crude oil and refined products. HCEnergy is a
specialist in exchange cleared options, swaps and futures, and has

NOTE 20 Discontinued Operations
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grown its business to include hedging and trading professionals
across the spectrum of global petroleum products.

The purchase price of the acquisition of certain assets from
HCEnergy consisted of the aggregate net asset value of certain
commaodity futures brokerage accounts and certain proprietary
software, votaling $1.0 million. There was no contingent
consideration associated with this transaction.

‘The Company has made an allocation of the purchase costs
among tangible assets. Thete were no intangible assets or goodwill
recognized in this transaction.

Ambrian Commeodities Limited

In August 2011, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary in the
United Kingdom, INTL Global Currencies Limited, acquired the
issued share capital of Ambrian Commodities Limited (“Ambrian”},
the London Metals Exchange brokerage subsidiary of Ambrian
Capital Plc. Ambrian was subsequently renamed INTL FCStone
Led. (“INTL FCStone Europe”). INTL FCStone Europe, a
non-clearing LME member, specializes in the development
and execution of risk-management programs designed to hedge
price fluctuations in base metals for a wide variety of producers,
manufacturers and fabricators. INTL FCStone Europe has a
niche focus on smaller industrial clients, including lead recyclers,
brass producers, zinc galvanizers, metal refineties and copper foil
producers that use LME futures and options for hedging raw
material costs or output prices.

At closing, the Company paid $7.1 million, representing the
net asset value of Ambrian less cerrain intercompany balances
due to Ambrian from its affiliates. There was no contingent
consideration associated with this transaction. The Company has
allocated the purchase costs among tangible assets. There were
no intangible assets or goodwill recognized in this transaction.

On June 10, 2010, the board of directors of Agora, LLC (“Agora”)
agreed to discontinue the operations of the entity, at which time
the Company held a 15% noncontrolling ownership interest
in Agora. During 2011, the Company recognized a gain of

$0.2 million, net of taxes, related to the final liquidation of Agora
in discontinued operations. The resulis of Agora were previously
included in the Other segment.
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NOTE 21 Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The impact of the immaterial correction of the reconciliation errors and errors relating to ceruain intercompany physical sales, as
previously discussed in Note 2, to the fiscal 2013 quarterly information is as follows:

For the 2013 Fiscal Quarter Ended
(in millions, except per share amounts) September 30 June 30 Magch 31 December 31
As Reported  AsRevised As Reported  As Revised AsReported  As Revised
Towl revenucs $ 90304 § 11,0395 § 99966 § 13,1131 § 121885 § 12,7195 $§ 12,5528
. Cost of sales of physical .. :
__comrpodities 8,917.8 10,917.4 9,873.3 12,995.8 12,071.2 12,593.8 12,4271
Operating tevenues 112.6 122.1 122.8 117.3 117.3 125.7 1257 -
Transaction-based clearing expenses 28.0 28.9 289 28.6 28.6 24.6 24,6
Introducing broker commissions 11.5 11.0 1.0 9.6 9.6 8.4 8.4
Interest expense 29 3.2 3.2 29 2.9 35 35
Net operating revenues 70.2 79.0 79.7 76.2 76.2 89.2 89.2
Compensation and other expenses 72.7 74.9 74.8 74.8 74.8 0.4 70.4
{Loss) income before tax (2.5) 4.1 49 1.4 14 18.8 18.8
Income tax (benefit) expense 3.7 1.3 1.6 (0.1 {0.13 5.5 55
NET INCOME $ 1.2 § 2.8 § 33 $ 15 % 15 § 3.3 § 13.3
Net basic earnings per share $ 005 $ 0.15 § 0.18 3% 0.08 § 008 § 070 $ 0.70
Ner diluted earnings per share $ 0.04 § 0.15 § 0.17 § 008 % 0.08 §$ 068 % (.68

The impact of the restatement for the cortection of the reconciliation errors and the immaterial cortection of etrots relating to certain
intercompany physical sales, as previously discussed in Naote 2, to the fiscal 2012 quarterly informacion is as follows:

(in millions, except per

For the 2012 Fiscal Quarter Ended

share amounts) September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31
As Reported  As Restated As Reported  As Restated As Reported  As Restated - As Reported ~ As Restated

Toral revenues $ 17,668.1 $ 17,3691 $ 17,3511 § 17,1929 $ 16951.0 $ 16,808.0 § 172904 $ 16,589.3
Cost of sales of )
physical commodities 17,550.1 17,251.2 17,2273 17,0714 16,831.4 16,689.5 17,194.1 16,493.0

Operating revenues 118.0 117.9 123.8 121.5 119.6 118.5 96.3 96.3
Transaction-based -
clearing expenses 26.0 26.0 30.3 303 269 26.9 22.2 22.2
Introducing broker
commissions 2.3 9.3 79 7.9 8.0 8.0 5.8 3.8
Interest expense 3.3 3.3 2.6 2.6 3.6 3.6 2.1 2.1

Net operating revenues 79.4 79.3 83.0 80.7 81.1 80.0 66.2 66.2
Compensation and . E
other expenses 68.9 68.9 77.1 77.1 77.5 775 66.9 66,9

Income from continuing

operations, before tax 10.5 10.4 5.9 3.6 3.6 2.5 0.7} (0.7}
Income tax expense
{benefir) 2.2 2.1 1.2 0.4 1.2 0.8 (0.2} 0.2}

Income (loss) from

continying operations 8.3 8.3 4.7 3.2 2.4 1.7 (0.5) (0.5)
Add: Net loss o
anibutable .
noncongolling interests — — — — — — 0.1 0.1

NET INCOME (LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE

TO INTL FCSTONE

INC. COMMON

STOCKHOLDERS _ § 83 § 83 § 4i7 $ 32 $ 24 8 1.7_$ 04) § (0.4)
Net basic earnings s
(loss} per share $ n44 % 044 % 024 § 016 $ 0.13 3 0.09 § (0.02) % 10.02)

Net diluted earnings

{loss) per sharc $ 042 § 042§ 023 3§ 015 § 012 § 0.09 § 0.0 8 (002
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NOTE 22 Segment and Geographic Information

The Company reports its operating segments based on services
provided to customers. The Company's activities are divided
into the following functional areas:

» Commodity and Risk Management Services
¢ Foreign Exchange

* Securities

¢ Clearing and Execution Services

® Other

Commodity and Risk Management Services
(C&RM) v

The Company serves its commercial customers through its force
of risk management consuleants with a high value added service
that differentiates the Company [rom other competitors and
maximizes the opportunity to retain customers. The Integrated
Risk Management Program {“IRMP*”) involves providing
customers with commodity risk management consulting services
that are designed to develop a customized long term hedging
program to help them mitigace cheir exposure to commodity price
risk and maximize the amount and certainty of their operating
profits. Customers are assisted in the execution of their hedging
strategies through the Company’s exchange-traded futures and
options clearing and execution operations and through access
te more customized alternatives provided by the OTC trading
desk. Generally, customers direct their own trading activity and
risk management consultants do not have discretionary authority
to transact trades on behalf of customers. When transacting
OTC contracts with customers, the Company may offset the
customer’s transaction simultaneously with one of its trading
counterparties. Alternatively, the OTC trade desk will accept a
customer transaction and offset that transaction with a similar
but not identical position on the exchange.

In addition, the Company provides a full range of trading and
hedging capabilities to select producers, consumers, recyclers and
investors in precious and base metals, as well as certain ather
related commodities. For base metals, following the exit of the
physical trading business, this will involve acting as a Category
One ring dealing member of the LME, providing execution,
clearing and advisory services in exchange-traded furures and
OTC products. In precious metals, in addition to offering OTC
products, the Company acts as a principal, committing its own
capital to buy and sell precious metals on a spot and forward basis,

The Company records its physical commodities revenues on a
gross basis. Operating revenues and losses from the Company’s
commodities detivatives activities are included in ‘trading gains,
net’ in the consolidated income statements. Inventory for the
commodities business is valued at the lower of cost or fair value
under the provisions of the Inventory Topic of the ASC. The

Company generally mitigates the price risk associated with
commodities held in invencory through the use of derivatives.
The Company does not elect hedge accounting under U.S. GAAP
in accounting for this price risk mitigation. In such situations,
unrealized gains in inventory are not recognized under 1.5, GAAR
but unrealized gains and losses in related derivative positions
are recognized under U.S. GAAP As a result, the Company’s
reported earnings from commodities trading may be subject to
significant volatility when calculated under U.S. GAAP.

Foreign Exchange

The Company provides treasury, global payment and foreign
exchange services to financial institutions, multi-national
corporations, government organizations and charitable
organizations as well as assisting commercial customers with the
exccution of foreign exchange hedging strategies. The Company
transacts in over 130 currencies and specializes in smaller, more
difficult emerging markets where there is limited liquidity. In
addition, the Company executes trades based on the foreign
currency flows inherent in the Company's existing business
activities, The Company primarily acts as a principal in buying
and selling foreign currencies on a spot basis. The Company
derives revenue from the difference berween the purchase and
sale prices.

The Company also provides spot foreign currency trading for
a customer base of eligible contract participants and high ner
watth retail customers as well as operating a proprietary foreign
exchange desk which arbitrages che futures and cash markets.

Securities

Through INTL FCStone Securities, Inc., the Company acts as
a wholesale market maker in select foreign securities including
unlisted ADRs and foreign ordinary shares and provides execution
in select debt instruments and exchange-traded funds (“ETFs").
The Company provides execution and liquidity to national broker-
dealers, regional broker-dealers and institutional investors. The
Company also provides global execution services for institutional
customers, including hedge funds, pension funds, broker-dealers
and banks located primarily in Latin America, the Caribbean,
North America and Europe.

The Company makes markets in approximately 800 ADRs and
foreign ordinary shares traded in the OTC market. In addition,
the Company will, on request, make prices in more than 8,000
other ADRs and foreign common shares. As a markec-maker, the
Company provides trade execution services by offering to buy
shares from, or sell shares to, broker-dealers and institutions. The
Company displays the prices at which it is willing to buy and
sell these securities and adjusts its prices in response to market
conditions. When acting as principal, the Company commits its
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own capiral and derives revenue from the difference between the
prices at which the Company buys and sells shares. ‘The Company
also carns commissions by executing trades on an agency basis.

While the Company’s customers are other broker-dealers and
institutions, the business tends to be driven by the needs of the
private clients of those broker-dealers and institutions. The size
of private client trades may be uneconomical for the in-house
international equities trading desks of our customers to execute.
The Company is able to provide execution of smaller trades at
profitable margins.

"The Company provides a full range of investment banking
advisory services to commercial customers including the issuance
of loans or equity. The Company also originates, structures and
places a wide array of emerging market debt instrumencs in the
international and domestic capiral markets. These instruments
include complex asset backed securities, unsecured bond apd loan
issues, negotiable notes and other trade-related debt instrumencs
used in cross-border trade finance. On occasions the Company
may invest its own capital in debrt instruments before selling
them. It also actively trades in a variety of international debt
instruments.

Clearing and Execution Services (CES)

The Company seeks to provide competitive and efficient cleating
and execution of exchange-traded futures and options for the
institucional and professional trader market segments. Through
its platform, customer orders are accepted and directed to the
appropriate exchange for execution. The Company then facilitates
the clearing of customers’ transactions. Clearing involves the
maiching of customers’ trades with the exchange, the collection
and management of margin deposits to support the transactions,
and the accounting and repotting of the transactions w customers.
The Company secks to leverage its capabilities and capacity
by offering facilities management or outsourcing solutions to

other FCMs.

Other

This segment consists of the Company’s asset management
and commodity financing and facilication business. The asset
management revenues include fees, commissions and other
revenues received by the Company for management of third
party assets and investrent gains or losses on the Company’s
investments in funds and proprietary accounts managed either
by the Company's investment managers or by independent
investment managers.

The Company operates a commodity financing and facilitation
business which provides financing to commercial commodity-
related companies against physical inventories, including grain,
lumber, meats, energy products and renewable fuels. Sale and
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repuschase agreements are used to purchase commodities evidenced
by warehouse receipts, subject to a simultaneous agreement to sell
such commodities back to the original seller at a later date. These
transacrions are accounted for as product financing arrangements,
and accordingly no commodity inventory, purchases or sales are
recorded. Additionally, the Company, as a principai, engages in
physical purchase and sale transactions related to inputs to the
renewable fuels and feed ingredient industries.

A AR AR K

The total revenues reported combine gross revenues for the physical
commodities businesses and net revenues for all ather businesses.
To reflect the way that the Company’s management views the
results, the cables below also reflect the segment contribution to
‘operating revenues’, which is shown on the face of the consolidared
income statements and which is calculated by deducting physical

commodities cost of sales from total revenues.

Segment data includes the profitability measure of net cenwibution
by segment. Net contribution is one of the key measures used by
management to assess the performance of each segment and for
decisions regarding the allocation of the Company’s resources.
Net contribution is calculated as revenue less direct cost of sales,
transaction-hased clearing expenses, variable compensation,
introducing broker commissions and interest expense. Variable
compensation paid to risk management consultants / traders
generally represents a fixed percentage of an amount equal to
revenues generated, and in some cases, revenues produced less
transaction-based clearing expenses and related charges, base
salaries and an overhead allocation.

Segment data also includes segment income which is calculated
as net contribution less non-variable direct expenses of the
segment. These non-variable direct expenses include trader base
compensation and benefits, operational emplayee compensation
and benefits, communication and data services, travel and
business development, professional fees, bad debt expense and
other direct expenses.

Inter-segment revenues, charges, receivables and payables are
eliminated upon consolidation, except revenues and costs related
to foreign currency transactions underraken on an arm’s length
basis by the forcign exchange trading business for the securities
business. The foreign exchange trading business competes for
this business as it does for any other business. If its rates are not
competitive, the securities businesses buy or sell their foreign
currency through other market counterpariies.

On a recurring basis, the Company sweeps excess cash from
certain operating segments 1o a centralized corporate treasury
function in exchange for an intercompany receivable asset. The
intercompany receivable asset is eliminaced during consolidation,
and thetefore this practice may impact reporeed rotal assets
between segments.
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Information concerning operations in these segments of business is shown in accordance with the Segment Reporting Topic of the ASC as follows:
Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
' ' (As Restared) {As Restated}

Total revenues:

Commodity and Risk Management Services : 8 43,2182 = % 67,627.0 % 72,6678
Foreign Exchange 66.9 62.6 59.3
Securities - 61.1 39.9 30.5.
Cleating and Execution Services 160.8 93.8 66.1
Other 1 _ 314.1 136.2 67:2
Corporate unallocared 7.2 (0.2) 0.4
TOTAL $ 43,7683 % 67,959.3 § 72,8913
Operating revenues (loss):
Commadity and Risk Management Services $ 2217 % 2425 § - 2485
Foreign Exchange 66.9 62.6 59.3
Securities : 61.1 39.9 30.5
Clearing and Execution Services 100.8 93.8 66.1
Other : 20.7 15.6. - 14.3
Carporate unallocated 7.2 0.2) 0.4
TOTAL $ 4784 3 454.2 % 419.1

Net contribution:

(Revenises less cost of sales, transaction-based clearing expenses, variable
bonus compensation; introducing broker commissions and incerest expense):

Commodity and Risk Management Services 5 1311 % 1395 § 147.3
Foreign Exchange 44.0 41.3 37.1
Securities 30.5 19.8 ‘ 16.5
Clearing and Execution Services 15.3 14.3 14.3
Other 13.2 10.3 10.0
TOTAL $ 2341 252 $ 2254

Segment income:

{Net contribution less non-variable direct segment costs):

Commodity and Risk Management Services $ 596 % 662 % 89.4
Foreign Exchange 29.8 28.3 28.0
Securities 139 4.5 1.9
Clearing and Execution Services Ly 2.2 4.9
Other 9.1 5.4 5.6
TOTAL $ 1143 § 106.6 3 129.8
Reconciliation of segment income to income from continuing operations,
before tax: _
Segment income $ 1143 - % 1066 § ©o1208
Costs not allocated to operating segments 917 90.8 74.4
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS, BEFORE TAX § 2.6 § 15.8 § 354
As of September 30,
(it millions) 2013 2012 2011
' ' {As Restated) (As Reseated)
Total assets:
Commaodity and Risk Management Services b 1,151  § 1,439.7 % 1,534.8
Foreign Fxchange 145.0 1245 146.1
. Securities 1985 88.7 104.8-
Clearing and Execution Services 1,246.4 1,090.9 734.4
Other : 37.3 ¢ 110.8 434
_Corporate unallocared 115.7 98.4 68.5
TOTAL $ 2,8480 @ § 2,953.0 $ 2,632.0
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Information regarding revenues and operating revenues for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, and information
regarding long:-lived assets (defined as property, equipment, leasehold improvements and software) as of September 30, 2013, 2012

and 2011 in geographic areas were as follows:

Year Ended September 30,
(ire mitlions) 2013 2012 2011
(As Restated) {As Restated)
Total revenues:
United States 3 29,062.0 $ 53,3980 $ 48,1653
Europe 65.6 69.9 35.1
South America 51.3. 58.2 33.3
Asia 14,582.1 14,420.8 24,627.0
Other 7.3 12.4 1.6
TOTAL $ 43,7683 $ 67,959.3 § 72,891.3
Opetating revenues: :
United Scates $ 3339 § 2938 § 298.0
Europe 65.6 69.9 35.1
South America 51.3 58.2 53.3
Asia 20.3 : “19.9 27.6
Other 7.3 12.4 5.1
TOTAL $ 4784 § . 454.2 8 o 419.1
As of September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
. (As Restated} {As Restated)
Long-lived assets, as defined:
United States $ 91. § 115 $ 10.7
Europe 5.4 3.8 2.0
Seuth America 2.4: 2.8 1.6
Asia 0.5 0.7 0.6
Other 0.1 0.1 0.1
TOTAL § 175§ 189 § 15.0

NOTE 23 Subsequent Events

On November 15, 2013, the Company’s subsidiary INTL
FCStone, Lid entered into a credit agresment under which
$25 million is available to INTL FCStone, Ltd. to provide short-
term funding of margin to commadity exchanges as necessary,
and for general corporate purposes of INTL FCStone, Ltd. This
line of credit is subject ro annual review, and the continued
availability of this line of credit is subject to INTL FCSrone,
Lid.’s financial condition and operating results continuing
to be satisfactory as set forth in the agreement. The facilicy is
guaranteed by the Company.
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On January 13, 2014, a purported class action was filed in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York against the Company and certain of its officers and
directors. The complaint alleges violations of federal securities
laws, and claims thar the Company has issued false and misleading
information concerning the comp:my’s business and prospects.
The action seeks unspecified damages on behalf of persons who
purchased the company’s shares between February 17, 2010 and
December 16, 2013. The Company believes the case is without
merit and intends to vigorously defend itself.
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SCHEDULEI INTL FCStone Inc. Condensed

Balance Sheets

Parent Company Only
(in millions) September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
ASSETS j -
Cash and cash equivalents $ a1 % 13.1
Receivable from subsidiaries ; 229 201
Nortes receivable, net 273 10.2
Income vaxes receivable 17.5 14,3
Financial instruments owned, at fair value — 1.5
Investment in subsidiariest® 237.3 220.1
Defetred income taxes 7.1 0.9
Property and equipment, net 3.6 4.3
Goodwill and intangible assets, net — —
Other assets : 4.3 34
TOTAL ASSETS 5 .. 3231} $ 287.9
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ' ‘
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other acerued liabiliries % 1.1 % 4.2
Payable to customers o ©187 0.7
Payable to lenders under loans 55.0 48.0
Senicr unsecured notes 45,5 —
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fair value 0.6 253
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1309 78.2
INTL FCStone Inc. {(Parent Company Only} stockholders” equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 1,000,000 shates; no shares issued
or putstanding — _
Common stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 30,000,000 sharcs; 19,638,330 issued and
19,209,157 outstanding at September 30, 2013 and 19,214,219 issued and 18,984,951
outstanding at September 30, 2012 0.2 0.2
Comimon stock in treasury, at cost - 429,173 shares at Seprember 30, 2013 and 229,064
shares at September 30, 2012 (7.8) (4.1)
Additional paid-in capital 224.0 213.2
Retained earnings™ {24.2) 0.4
Toral INTL FCStone Inc. (Parent Company Only) stockholders equity 192.2 209.7
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY - § 3231 & 287.9

(1) Within the Condensed Balance Sheets and Condensed Statements of Operations of INTL FCStone Inc. - Parent Company Only, the Company has accounted for its
investment in wbo!]y owned subsidiaries using the cost method rJf accounting. Under this method, the Companys share of the earnings or losses ry" such subsidiaries

are not included in the Condensed Balance Sheet or Condensed Statements of Operati

I the ac

ing for its i

it wholly auwned subsidiaries were

presented under vhe equity method of accounting, investmens in subsidiaries and retained earnings wowld each increase by $149.6 million as of September 30, 2013,

respectively, and $105.7 million, as restated, as of September 30, 2012, respectively.
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SCHEDULEI INTL FCStone Inc. Condensed
Statements of Operations

Parent Company Only
Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Revenues: ;
Trading gains, net 7.1 % 3.1
Consulting and management fees 0.2 —
Interest income 2.1 4.3
Other income® 0.1 0.4
Total revenues 9.5 7.8
Interest expense 5.6 9.7
Net revenues 3.9 {1.9)
Mon-interest expenses:
Compensation and benefis 12.4 8.6
Clearing and related expenses 0.3 0.1
Introducing broker commissions — 0.2
Communication and darta services 0.6 0.5
Occupancy and equipment rental 1.0 1.2
Professional fees 3.1 3.8
Travel and business development 1.4 0.5
Depreciation and amortization 1.2 0.6
Bad debts and impairments 2.2 —
Qther 5.4 (1.0)
"Total non-interest expenses 27.6 14.5
Loss from continuing operations, before tax 237 {16.4)
Income tax benehit o 9.2 6.4
NET LOSS g (145) 8 {10.0)

(2) Within the Condensed Balance Sheets and Condensed Statements of Operations of INTL FCStone Ine. - Parens Company Only, the Company bus acconnved for its
invesiment in wholly owned subsidiaries wsing the cost method of accounting, Under this method, the Company’s share of the earnings or losses qf such subsidiaries
ave not included in the Condensed Balance Sheer or Condensed Stasenents of Operations, If the accounting for its investment in wholly owned subsidiaries were
presented vinder the equity method of accounting, revenwes wonld include income from investment in subsidiaries of $43.9 million, 327.3 milfion, as restated, and
$44.8 million, as restaed, for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 201 1, respectively.

Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
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SCHEDULE I INTL FCStone Inc. Condensed
Statements of Cash Flows

Parent Company Only
Year Ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
“Cash flows from operating activities: ' :
Net loss Ly (24.6) § (14.5) § (10.0)
- Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities:
Depreciarion and amortization 1.5 1.2 0.6
Provision for impairments — 2.2 -
Deferred income taxes (6.1) (0.1) 1.1
Amortization of debr issnance costs and debt discount 0.5 0.5 0.2
Convertible debt interest settled in common stock upon conversion — — 0.2
Amortization of share-based compensation expense 9.3 5.9 2.3
Gain on acquisition of INTL Provident — — (0.4)
Changes in operating assets and liabilitles:
Receivable from subsidiaries 2.8) 21.7 35.7
Notes receivable, net (17.1} (10.2) —
Income taxes receivable (3.2) 7.1 (13.6)
Financial instruments owned, at fair value 1.5 1.7 0.4} -
Other assets 1.7 0.3 (0.8)
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 1.4 .2 17
Payable to customers 18.0 0.7 —
" Firancial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fair value (24.7} (33.4) {0,5)
Ner cash {used in) provided by operating activities (44.6) (19.7} 16.1
Cash flows from investing activides:
Capital contribution in affiliates (11.5) (12.5) 1.0
Purchase of property and equipment (0.8) (2.7) - (1.7}
Net cash used in investing activities (12.3) (15.2) (2.7}
Cash flows from financing acrivities:
Payable to lenders under loans 7.0 48.0 (11.9}
Proceeds from issuance of senior unsecured notes 45.5 — —
Share repurchase (4.0) (4.0) —_
Debt issuznce costs 3.2) .1 {1.2)
Exercise of stock options 1.5 1.9 1.3
Income tax benefit on stock options and awards 0.1 0.2 —
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities 46.9 46.0 (11.8)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (10.0) 11.1 16 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 13.1 2.0 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 31§ 131§ 2.0
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 30§ 21§ 3.0
Income taxes (received} paid, net of cash refunds $ (1.6) § 0.1 $ 10.8
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Conversion of subordinated notes to common stock, net $ — % — % 16.7
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ITEM 9 Changes in and Disagreements with
Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure

None,

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In connection with the filing of this Form 10-K, our management,
including the principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of September 30,
2013. We seek to design our disclosure controls and procedures
to provide reasonable assurance that the reports we file or submit
under the Exchange Act contain the required information and
that we submit these reports within the time periods specified
in SEC rules and forms. We also seek to design these controls

and procedures to ensure that we accumulate and communicate
cotrect information to our management, including our principal
executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow
rimely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based on our evaluation, we identified a material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting refated to the accounting
for certain principal over-the-counter derivative trading activities.
Because of the material weakness described below, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that
we did not mainain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2013,

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term
is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Our internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”). Our internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that: (i) percain to the maintenance
of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(i} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,
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There are limirations inherent in any internal control, such as the
possibility of human ersor and the citcumvention or overriding
of controls. A control system, no matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that
the objectives of the control system are met, and may not prevent
or detect misstatements. As conditions change over time, so too
may the effectiveness of internal controls. A material weakness is
a deficiency, or 2 combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a matetial misstatement of our annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management (with the participation of our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer) evaluated the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,
2013, based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission. Based on
the evaluation and the criteria set forth in the COSO report, we
identified a material weakness in internal control aver financial
reporting as described below.



Management identified a material weakness in internal control
over financial reporting that existed as of September 30, 2013,
refated to the accurate and timely accounting for certain principal
over-the-counter detivative trading activities. Specifically; concrols
over the reconciliation between trading system data and the
general ledger and the review thereof were not designed o detect
errors timely in recording trading gains to the general ledger.
As a result of this material weakness, the Company misstated
certain principal over-the-counter derivative trading activities.
We corrected these misstatements and restated our consolidated
financial statements for the years ended September 30, 2012
and 2011 and adjusted the preliminary consolidated financial
statements for the year ended September 30, 2013 in connection
with the issuance of the September 30, 2013 consolidated
financial scatements.

PART 11
ITEM 9B Other Information

Because of the matetial weakness desctibed above, management
concluded that the Company did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013,

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
audited the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2013, and KPMG LLP issued a
report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, which is
included in Item 8 “Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and
expresses an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting.

(¢} Remediation Steps to Address Material Weakness

‘We have developed, and ate currently implementing, a remediation
plan for this material weakness. We will continue to execute our
remediation plan, which includes, among other things modifying
the design of the reconciliation, adding documentation detailing
the reconciliation and any future changes to the reconciliation
as well as layers of review over manual processes and the

remediation process. As we continue to evaluate and work
to enhance internal control over financial reporting, we may
determine thar additional measures should be taken to address
these or other control deficiencies, and/or we should madify the
remediation plan described above.

(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that vecutred during the quarter ended September 30, 2013
that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting,

ITEM 9B Other Information

None.
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ITEM 10 Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate

Governance

We will include a lisc of our executive officers and biographical
information about them and our directors in the definitive
Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
1o be held on February 27, 2014. We will file the proxy within
120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended September 30,
2013 (the 2014 Proxy Statement”). The 2014 Proxy Statement
is incorporated herein by reference. Information abour our
Audit Committee may be found in the Proxy Statement. That
information is incorporated hetein by reference.

We adopted a code of ethics that applies to the directors, officers
and employees of the Company and each of its subsidiaries.
The code of ethics is publicly available on our Website at
www.intlfcstone,.com/ethics.aspx. If we make any substantive
amendments te the code of ethics or grant any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to our Chief
Executive Officer, Chiefl Financial Officer, or Chief Accounting
Ofhcer, we will disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver
on that website or in a report on Form 8-K.

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

We will include information relating to our executive officer and director compensation and the compensation committee of our
board of directors in the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART III
ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

We will include information relating to security ownership of ~ The following table provides information generally as of
certain beneficial owners of our common stock and information September 30, 2013, the last day of fiscal 2013, regarding
relating to the security ownership of our management in the securities to be issued on exercise of stock options, and securities
2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. remaining available for issuance under our equity compensation

plans that were in effect during fiscal 2013,

Number of securities to  ‘Weighted average Number of securities

be issued upon exercise exercise price of remaining available for

of outstanding options, outstanding options, future issuance under equity
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and vights compensation plans _
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders 1779985 § - 24.76 © 1,000,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders — — —
JTOTAL _ 1,779,983 $ 2476 1,000,000

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions, and Director Independence

We will include information regarding certain relationships and related transactions and director independence in the 2014 Proxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services will be included in the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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ITEM 15 Exhibits

31

3.2

41

42

4.3

4.4

16.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

1010

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorpotated by. referenoc from the Comparny’ Form 8-K filed with the SEC ”‘_
on October 9, 2009). ‘

Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the
SEC on August 14, 2007).

International Assets Holding Corporation 2003 Stock Option Plan (iﬁcpmorated by reference from the Company’s Proxy
Statemnent on Schedule 14A filed on Jenuary 14, 2003). ‘
Amendment to International Assets Holding Cotporation 2003 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference from the Company’s
Proxy Statement on Form 14A filed with the SEC on February 11, 2004).

Amendment to International Assers Holding Corporation 2003 Stock OPIIOCL Plan (incorporated by reference from the Cbmpany’s'
Proxy Statement on Form 14A filed with the SEC on January 23, 2006).

FCStwone Group, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan {incorporated by reference from the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by
FCStone Group, Inc. with the SEC on June 12, 2006).

Employment Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company and Sean O’Connor (incorporated by referenm :
from the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Ocrober 24, 2002). :
Employment Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company and Scott Branch (incorporated by reference
from the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC an October 24, 2002).

Regiseration Rights Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company, and Sean O’Connor (incorporated by
reference from the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 24, 2002).

First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 6, 2002, by and between the Company and Sean O’Conner
(incorporated by reference from the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2002).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company and Scott Branch (mcorporatocl by
reference from the Company’s Form 8-X filed with the SEC on Ocrober 24, 2002). ‘
First Amendment o Registration Rights Agreemnent, dated December 6, 2002, by and between the Comparty and Scour Branch
(incorporated by reference from the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2002).

Registration Rights Agreement, dared October 22, 2002, by and between the Company and John Radziwill {mcorporawd by
reference from the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 24, 2002). :
First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 6, 2002, by and between the Company and John Radziwill
{incorporated by reference from the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2002).

Employment Agreemen, effective Diecember 1, 2004, by and between the Company and Brian T. Sephron {incorporated by
reference from the Company’s Porm 8-K, as filed with the SEC on November 24, 2004), ‘

Tnternational Assets Holding Corporation form of Registrasion Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference from the Company's
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 15, 2006).

2012 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement on Form 14A filed with the SEC on ‘
January 13, 2012). .
2012 Executive Compensation Plan (incotporated by reference from the Company’s Praxy Statement on Form 14A filed with the
SEC on January 13, 2012).

Farmers Commodities Corporation Supplemental Nonqualified Pension Plan (incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 2:.
o the Registration Statement on Form 5-4 filed by FCStone Group, Inc. with the SEC on December 9, 2004}

Form of Director Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on
Form 5-4 filed by FCStone Group, Inc, with the SEC on December 30, 2004)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010, by and among FCStone Group, Inc.; Risk Management Incorpotateds RMI
Consulting, Inc.; John Snelf; Daniel Contath and Shane Mathis (mcerporated by refemnce from the Company'’s Current R:port on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Aptil 5, 2010).
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10.16  Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, made as of June 21, 2010, by and between FCStone, LLC, as borrower, FCStone
Group, Inc., as a guarantor, International Assets Holding Cotporation, as a guarantor, Bank of Montreal, as administrative agent,
BMO Capital Markets, as Sole Lead Arranger, and the lenders party thereto (incorpotated by reference from the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 24, 2610),

10.17  Fifth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, made as of April 11, 2013, by and berween FCStone, LLC, 25
Borrower, FCSrone Group, Inc., as Guarantor, INTL FCStone Inc., as Guarantor, Bank of Montreal, as Adminiscrative Agent, and
BMO Hatris Financing, Inc., as a [ender party thereto (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed with the SEC on April 16, 2013),

10.18  Purchase Agreement dated as of July 2, 2010, by and among FCStone Group, Inc.; Haniey Group Heldings, LLC; HGC Trading,
LLC; HGC Asser Management, LLC; HGC Advisory Services, LLC; Hanley Alternative Trade Group, LLC; HGC Office Services,
LLC; George P Hanley; George P Hanley Trust and George B Hanley GRAT (incorporated by reference from the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2010).

10.19  Credit Agreement, made as of August 10, 2012, by and between FCStone Merchant Services, LLC, as Borrower, INTL FCStone
Inc., as Guarantor, Bank of Monureal, as Administrative Agent and a Lender, BMO Capiral Markets, as Sole Lead Arranger and

Sole Book Runner, and the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on August 14, 2012).

10.20  Fifth Amendment ro Credic Agreement, made as of July 30, 2013, by and between FCStone Merchanr Services, LLC, as Borrower,
INTL FCStone Inc., as Guarantor, Bank of Montreal, as Administrative Agent and a Lender, and the financial institutions party to
the Fifth Amendment, as lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Curzent Repore on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on August 5, 2013). ‘

10.21  Credit Agreement made as of September 20, 2013 by and berween INTL FCStone Inc. as Borrower, the Subsidiaries of INTL
FCStone nc, identified therein, as guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer,
Bank of America Merrill Lynch and Capital One, N.A., as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joine Book Managers, Bank Hapoalim B.M.,
BMO Harris Bank N.A. and The Korea Development Bank, New York Branch, as additional Lenders, and with the lenders from
time to time partiés thereto (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-X filed with the SEC on
September 24, 2013).

10.22  Credit Agreement, made as of November 15, 2013, by and between INTL FCSrone Ltd., as Borrower, INTL FCStone Inc., as
Guarantor, Bank of America, NLA., as Administrative Agent and a Lender, Mertill Lynch, Pietce, Fenner & Smith Incorporared,
as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Manager, and with the lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference from the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 20, 2013).

14 Intetnational Assets Holding Corporation Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Form 10-KSB filed with
the SEC on December 29, 2003).

21 List of the Company’s subsidiaries. *

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP *

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a—14{a). *

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a). *

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursnant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant ro Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, *

322 Cerification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. *

*  Filed as pars of this repore.
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ITEM 15 Signatures

Schedules and Fxhibits Excluded

All schedules and exhibits not included are not applicable, not required or would contain information which is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, or the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

INTL FCStone Inc.
/sf SEAN M. O’CONNOR
Sean M. O’Connor
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: January 14, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Signature Tide Date

s JOHN RADZIWILL : Director and Chairman of the Bourd January 14, 2014

John Radziwill

fsf SEAN M. O'CONNOR Direcror and Chief Executive Officer January 14, 2014
{Principal Bxecutive Officer)

Sean M. O’Connor

i/ SCOTT ], BRANCH Director and President . - January 14, 2014

Scott J. Branch

s/ PAUL GG, ANDERSON : Direcior - January 14, 2014

Paul G. Andesson

fs! DIEGO J. VEITIA Director January 14, 2014

Diego J. Veitia

fs{ JOHN M. FOWLER Director Janvary 14, 2014

John M. Fowler

s BRUCE KREHBIEL Director January 14, 2014

Bruce Krehbiel

fs/ DARYL. HENZE Director January 14, 2014

Daryl Henze

/sf ERIC PARTHEMORE Director January 14, 2014

FEric Parthemore

i/ WTLLIAM 1. DUNAWAY Chief Financial Qfftcer . Januvary 14, 2014

{(Principal Financial Officer and Chigf Accounting Officer)
William J. Dunaway
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EXHIBIT 21  Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Name Place of Incorporation
FCC Furiwes, Inc. Towa, US

FCC Investments, Inc. Towa, US

F(Stone Asia Pre, Lid Singapore

FCStone Austrakia Pry Lid Australia

FCStone Canada ULC Nova Scotia, Canada.
FCStane Commodity Services (Europe), Led. Ireland

.FCStone do Brazil Leda. ‘ Brasil

FCStone Group, Inc. Delaware

FCStone Metchane Services, LLC Delaware, US
FCStone Paraguay S.R.L. Paraguay

FCStone, LLC Towa, US

Gainvest Asset Management Led. British Virgin Islands
Gﬂlnvest S.A. Sociedad Gerente de Fondos Comunes de Invetsion Argentina
Gainvest Uruguay Asset Management S.A,- Uruguay

INTL Asia Pre. Led Singapore

INTL Capital and Treasury Global Services Lid. Nigeria

INTL Capiral 5.A. Argenting,

INTL CIBSA Sociedad de Bolsa S.A. Argentina

"INTL Cammodities DMCC Dubai, Unired Arab Emirates
INTL Commodities, Inc. Delaware, US
INTL FCStone Capital Assessoria Financeira Lida. Brazil

INTL FCStone DTVM Lida. Brazil

JINTL FCStone Lid, United Kingdom
INTL FCSione (Netherlands) B.V. ‘The Netherlands
INTI. FCStone SA. . Argentina

INTL FCStone Securities Inc. Florida, US

INTL FCStone Trading Co., Lrd China

INTL Global Currencies Limired United Kingdom
"INTL FCStone Markess, LLC lowa, US

INTL Holding (U.K.) Limited United Kingdom
INTL Korea Limited Republic of Korea
INTL Netherlands B.V. The Netherlands
INTL Participacoes Leda.. Brazi]

INTL FCStone Assets, Inc. Florida, US
Westown Commedities, LLC lowa, UUS

INTL ECSTONE INC. - Form 10-K
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EXHIBIT 23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Ditectors
INTL FCStone Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration
statements {Nos. 333-117544, 333-137992, 333-144719,
333-152461, and 333-186704 on Form S-3 and Nos. 333-108332
and 333-142262 on Form $-8) of INTL FCStone Inc.
(the Company) of our reports dated January 15, 2014, with
respect to the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as
of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows, and
stockholders’ equity for each of the yeats in the three-year period
ended September 30, 2013, and the related financial statement
schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2013, which reports appear in the
September 30, 2013 annual report on Form 10-K of the Company.

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company restated its 2012 and 2011 consolidated financial
statements (o correct 2 misstatement.

E-2 INTL FCSTONE INC. - Form 10-K

Our report dated January 15, 2014, on the effectiveness of internal
contsel over financial reposting as of Seprember 30, 2013, expresses
aur opinion that the Company did not mainzain effective internal
contrel over financial reporting as of Seprember 30, 2013 because
of the effect of a material weakness on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria and contains an explanatory
paragraph that states a material weakness related to the accurate
and timely accounting for certain principal over-the-counter
derivative trading activities has been identified and included in
management’s assessment.

5 KPMG LEP
Kansas City, Missouri

January 15, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1 Section 302 Certification

I, Sean M. O’Connor, certify that:

for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

1. Thave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of INTL ‘
FCStone Inc; () Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
L . controls and procedures and presented in this report
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any o P bout the eff P Fche disch P
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material our conclusions about the effectiveness of che disclosure
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the controls and P rocedures, a5 of the end of thf: period
) i covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this {(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s
report; internal control over financial reperting that occurred
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial starements, and other during the fast recent ﬁsc.al quarter that' has materially
c1s LD I , affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
financial informarion included in this repore, fairly present . ) s . .
. . . o registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
in all material respects the financial condition, results of and
opetations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this report; The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed,
, ; s ; based on cur most recent evaluation of internal control
4. 'The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible

for establishing and maineaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f})
for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure contrals and procedures, or
caused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(5) Desigred such internal controls over financial reporting,

ovet financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

() All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting,

Dhace: January 15, 2014
/s/ SEAN M, O’'CONNOR
Sean M. O’Connor

Chief Bxecutive Officer

or caused such internal controls over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statemnents

INTL FCSTONE INC. - form 10-K  E-3



EXHIBIT 31.2 Section 302 Certification

I, William J. Dunaway certify that:

for external purposes in accordance wich generally
accepted accounting principles;

1. Ihave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of INTL
FCStone Inc.; (¢)  Evaluated cthe effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any controls;lan.d pr:]:cdur;s tnﬁd p.rcsentedfltrﬁ tl:ilisscrlcport
untrue statement of 2 material fact or omit 1o state 2 material our cor; um:;ns ?;t ¢ ectﬁ'ﬁncss ?i fih os.urs
fact necessary eo make the statements made, in ligh of the contro dsl:n hI') roc urEs, :ZO Ccin :_I €p ?no d
circumstances under which such statements were made, covered by this report based on such evaluation; an
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s
report; internal control pver financial reporting that eccarred
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other gmg dthe oSt reccnlilﬁslc_a]f ?uartcr thatlalh?s an;tcnalliy
financial information included in this report, faitly present cted, oris rcasoarlla ¥ Fym rgater . aly ect, O C_
in all material respects the financial condition, results of regldstrants internal control over financial reportings
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, an
the periods presented in this report; The registrant’s other cersifying officer and I have disclosed,
4. 'The registrant’s other cerdfying officer and I are responsible based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

for establishing and maintaining disclosure contsols and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and
15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15([))
for the registrant and have:

{a} Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or
caused such disclosure conerols and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure thar material
informarion relating to the registrant, incdluding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
the design or opetation of internal contral over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability o record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether ot not material, that involves
tmanagement ot other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting,

(b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting,
or caused such internal controls over financial reporting
1o be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements

Date: January 15, 2014

s/ WILLIAM ]. DUNAWAY
William J. Dunaway

Chief Financial Gfficer
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EXHIBIT 32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Reporr of INTL FCStone Inc. {the
Campany) on Form 10-K for the period ended Seprember 30,
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on the date hereof (the Report), I, Sean M. O’Connor, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C,
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that o the best of my knowledge:

(1) ‘The Report fully complies with the requirements of
section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The informadon contained in the Report fairly presents,
in al! material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

Dated: January 15, 2014
fsf SEAN M. O’CONNOR

Sean M. O’Connor
Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 ar other document authenticating, acknowledging or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the elecrronic version of this written statement required by Section 906,
has been provided to INTL FCStone Inc. and will be retained by INTL FCStone Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission or its staff upon request,
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EXHIBIT 32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of INTL FCStone Inc. (the
Company) on Form 10-K for the period ended September 30,
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
an the date hereof (the Report}, I, William J. Dunaway, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, putsuant to 18 US.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, thac to the best of my knowledge:

(1} 'The Report fully complies with the requirements of
section 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents,
int all material tespects, the financial condision and resulrs
of operations of the Company.

Dated: January 15, 2014
/5! WILLIAM ]. DUNAWAY
William J. Dunaway

Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 ot other document authenticating, acknowledging or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906,
has been provided to INTL FCStone Inc. and wili be retained by INTL FCStone Inc. and furnished 1o the Securities and Exchange

Commission or its staff upon request.
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Executive Directors
Sean Q'Connor
Chief Executive Officer

Officers

William Dunaway
Chief Financial Officer

Brian Sephton
Chief Legal & Governance Officer

Peter J. Nessler, Jr.
Executive Vice President -
Commodities

Non-Executive Directors
John Radziwill

Chairman

Private Investor

Company Director

Paul G. (Pete) Anderson
Vice-Chairman
Retired Company President

John M. Fowler

Chairman Compensation Committee

Member Nominating & Governance
Committee

Private Investor

Independent Consultant

Daryl Henze

Chairman Audit Committee
Independent Consultant
Company Director

Corporate Headquarters
708 Third Avenue, Suite 1500
New York, NY 10017, USA

Tel: +1 212 485 3500

Stock Listing

The Company’s commaon stack
trades on NASDAQ under the
symbol “INTL".

Company Information

To receive Company material,
including additional copies of this
annual report, Forms 10-K or 10-Q,
or to obtain information on other
matters of investor interest, please
contact Chief Financial Officer

Bill Dunaway at the Stockholder
Relations address or visit our
website at www.intlfcstone com.
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Phone: +1 866 522 7188
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The annual meeting of stockholders
will be held at 10:00 am on
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